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SENATOR JOSEPH F. VITALE (Vice Chair): Good
afternoon. We’'re going to begin the hearing.

Thank you very much.

I first want to thank my colleagues in the Senate and the
Assembly for coming this afternoon and joining us for this -- we hope to be
the beginning of a dialogue.

We have a panel of experts who are here this afternoon to
discuss-- Ken Ritchey is here from the Department -- from the Division --
to discuss these issues.

This hearing today is not--

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: It’s hard to
hear you, Senator.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: We can’t
hear you.

SENATOR VITALE: The hearing today is not about any
particular piece of legislation, it’s not about a bill. It’s about the issue, it’s
about how we provide services in the community and developmental
centers. It’s not about legislation. It’s the beginning of a dialogue that this
Legislature wants to have with the professionals, with our departments and
divisions, with the provider community, and more specifically and more
importantly with those who receive the care and their families as well.

We have that panel here today. We’re going to limit the time
for the discussion from our panels. We’ll have opportunities for our
legislators, my colleagues here, to ask questions during the course of the

testimony. And we have others from the community, and from the unions,
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and from other places who want to take the time to make presentations as
well.

I would just ask us all to respect one another’s opinions, and
questions, and statements. In some ways, of course -- all of us here, of
course, in the end, care about those who receive the care. It’s sometimes a
matter of how it is provided. And there are philosophical differences. But I
think, in the end, we all want those who receive the care to get the very best
care in the right place and at the right time.

I'd like to ask Chairwoman Huttle to make an opening
comment as well -- to make a few comments.

Before I do that, I just wanted to let everyone here today know
that Chairwoman Weinberg had a minor medical procedure this week, and
she’s still not up to coming down to Trenton, but she sends her regards and
will be following this thing closely, of course.

Assemblywoman.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VALERIE VAINIERI HUTTLE (Chair):
Thank you, Senator.

Good afternoon, everyone, and welcome. I thank all of you for
coming here today, especially those of you who have difficulty in traveling.

Before we begin, I would like to acknowledge my Committee
members and substituting -- Assemblyman Joe Malone today for
Assemblyman Declan O’Scanlon. My Vice Chair, Caridad Rodriguez;
Assemblywoman Wagner; Assemblyman Biondi; Assemblywoman McHose;
and Assemblywoman Mary Paterson Angelini. And I also would like to

acknowledge our staff for helping put this public hearing together -- our
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OLS staff; along with our Majority staff, Kate; and my staff member,
Andrea Katz.

Just a brief background: Before becoming -- or I should say the
last couple of months as Chair, I've spent countless hours traveling around
across this state to visit all seven of our State centers. I, quite frankly,
found each to have its own personality, specialty, and population. And
several of my colleagues on this Committee also joined me, including
Assemblywoman Cleo Tucker, who could not be with us today. And I know
that Assemblyman Malone has visited as well, along with all of my
Committee members.

I think what I can say for all of us is that it was an eye-opener
and a learning experience. And I found that these facilities certainly meet a
vital need for our services among a particularly vulnerable population. I
also visited group homes and I learned not only about the care options
available to individuals with developmental disabilities in the state, but also
about the need to expand those options to the many people who are still
waiting to receive much-needed services and resources by the State.

I think we all know here today that we are grappling with an
urgent waiting list of 8,000 people; not to be confused with the thousands
more who are not in urgent need at this particular moment, but who will
inevitably be joining the list as autism and other developmental disabilities
continue to grow. So every one of these individuals, their parents, siblings,
guardians are certainly terrified about the future of their loved ones when

they are no longer able to care for them.
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So I think and I know that our State has a moral obligation to
provide the resources these most vulnerable individuals need and the peace
of mind their caregivers deserve.

I have also met with families and advocates who are also
fortunate enough to have that peace of mind. So regardless of how those
family members felt about one option over the other, I think we can also
agree on the need for choice. There is some division among the advocates
testifying today. But from what I've heard, they all share a common goal,
and that’s ensuring that their loved ones have the very best care, resources,
and services possible.

And I think, as you heard Senator Vitale -- the point of the
hearing today is to start an important and necessary dialogue about all the
stakeholders, the Legislature, the Department of Human Services, the
advocates, the family members, the self-advocates, and all of you here
today. We can work together to bring services and resources to the
thousands who are without anything, and to expand the residential options
available in the state.

So I believe that it is in the spirit of cooperation that we move
forward today. And I, again, ask everyone testifying to be respectful of each
other’s thoughts and opinions.

And with that, I will turn it back to Chairman Vitale to call up
the first witnesses.

Thank you.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you, Assemblywoman.
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Before I do that, I just wanted to recognize the members of the
Senate Committee who came today: Senator Goodwin, Senator Singer,
Senator Madden, Senator Gordon. Thank you for your attendance.

Our first panel is going to consist of Ken Ritchey, who is
Assistant Commissioner of the Division of Developmental Disabilities at
the Department of Human Services; and Eloise Hawkins, the CEO of the
Vineland Developmental Center.

Ken, thank you for coming.

ASST. COMM. KENNETH W. RITCHEY: Thank you
very much.

Good afternoon, Chairman Vitale, Chairwoman Huttle, and
esteemed Senate and Assembly Committee members.

I am happy to be here today on behalf of our Human Services’
Commissioner, Jennifer Velez, to talk with you about our vision for New
Jersey’s system of institutional care for individuals with developmental
disabilities. We're delighted that there is a bipartisan legislative interest in
this issue. And our hope is to begin an informed and constructive
conversation that supports community placement efforts, respects the
vulnerability of the people we serve, and values the fiscal resources provided
by our State taxpayers.

To give you some context, let me begin by telling you that New
Jersey has provided institutional care for individuals with developmental
disabilities since 1888, when what is now known as the Vineland
Developmental Center opened its doors. The institutional system was at its
zenith in the 1960s, when New Jersey operated 11 developmental centers

that were home to almost 6,000 individuals.
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In 1981, the formerly favorable sentiment on institutional care
was beginning to be reversed, and the Federal Medicaid program create the
Home and Community Based Waivers as a funding mechanism to support
states in their efforts to develop systems of community care. It was truly a
revolutionary initiative. And New Jersey, I believe, was the second state in
the country, in 1982, to have its waiver approved for community services.
Between 1988 and 1998, as the community system began to take root, the
Division closed four developmental centers.

When I came to DDD in 2007, the census in our seven
remaining developmental centers was 3,100. To date, it’'s 2,722 and
dropping. That same year, we issued our Path to Progress report, which
provided a blueprint for expanding community living options in the
community for people with developmental disabilities residing in our State
institutions.

Nationally, we are among 40 states that still have publicly
administered institutions. Eleven states and the District of Columbia have
closed all their institutions, and 10 more states currently have plans
underway to close one or more of their institutions.

As each of you already knows, or at least learned as you
prepared for today’s discussion, the institutionalization, the closure of
facilities, and the movement of loved ones can be an extremely polarizing
discussion.

Our continuing examination of the future of New Jersey’s
institutions has been in the context of the experience we gained when we
most recently closed North Princeton Developmental Center in 1998. Our

development centers are home to 2,722 fragile individuals with multiple
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disabilities, many of whom have lived in those centers for decades. Moving
them into the community is a complex undertaking that cannot be
accomplished overnight or without careful consideration of each person’s
needs.

Furthermore, almost all of the residents have parents or siblings
who have a lot of anxiety about the care their family member would receive
in a community setting. Many families tell us they want their loved one to
stay in the developmental center, including some who have tried a
community placement. Our partner provider agencies do yeoman’s work to
help individuals and families acclimate to community living.

So we are not standing still. Since 2007, we have closed 10
cottages on four developmental center campuses. We are limiting
admissions into our developmental centers to emergency placements, which
is consistent with what is happening across the country. And, in
compliance with the Supreme Court’s 1999 Olmstead decision -- which
declared that people with disabilities have the right to live in the least
restrictive and integrated setting -- we continue to move individuals from
developmental centers into the community.

In our Department’s proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2011, we
make the recommendation to consolidate the West Campus at Vineland
Developmental Center. It is a women’s-only campus and annex to the only
developmental center that is actually split and has sites five miles apart.
The census at the West Campus is 110. Approximately 30 of the 110
women who reside there would move to community placements, and the

balance would be moving into other developmental centers, as appropriate.
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Our work at the Department to deinstitutionalize is ongoing
and thoughtful. We’re confident that as we continue to apply the Olmstead
principles to our operations, our developmental center census will continue
to decrease and our ability to reconfigure the system with fewer institutions
will evolve. Using our Path to Progress as a starting point, we’ve begun to
revise and update that plan to address the issue of developmental center
closings.

Commissioner Velez has discussed the need to close centers
with Governor Christie, and he is anticipating a proposal from us. We look
forward to working with the Legislature and the stakeholders during this
process.

I would be happy now to answer any questions you might have.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you, Ken.

Before we ask the members to ask questions, I'd like to ask our
final panelist -- it is panel one -- Ms. Hawkins, the CEO of Vineland
Developmental Center, to make her comments.

ELOISE E. HAWKIN S: Good afternoon, and thank you for the
opportunity to present comments on behalf of the developmental centers.

As Assistant Commissioner Ritchey has already stated,
Vineland Developmental Center was the first facility to open, in 1888, so
we have well over a hundred years of experience in providing services to
people with disabilities. Our campus consists of two campuses, and also 20
group homes and supervised apartments housing about 140 women. We
have been participating in the ICF/MR program for the last 30 years. At
the time we began that participation, our census at the facility was upwards

of 2,000 people. Since that time, our census has dropped by almost 1,600
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people primarily going into community living arrangements. So we had
much success in that process. Our census currently now is down to 421
people.

I'd like to talk a little bit about the people who live at Vineland
Developmental Center. Although I will be speaking about their disabilities,
I still want to be -- I want to caution you that I’d like you to understand
them as people.

The overwhelming percentage of our ladies function at the
profound level of disabilities -- 80 percent of our population. In addition to
that, many of them have what we call comorbidities and other medical,
behavioral diagnoses and disabilities on top of that level of functioning.

For example, about 142 people, 33 percent, have been
diagnoses with cerebral palsy. Two hundred seventy-six of our ladies have
also been diagnosed with uncontrolled or controlled seizures. Another 250,
65 percent, have been diagnosed with significant behavioral issues,
including psychiatric diagnoses of bipolar disorder, borderline personality
disorder; demonstrate behaviors of aggression, pica behaviors -- ingesting
non-edible objects, self-injurious behaviors. In addition, a large number --
95 percent -- of the people who live there have been diagnosed with
significant speech impediments and primarily -- and a large extent are
nonverbal.

For this reason, much of what we -- much of the services that
we deliver are multisensory integration.  Around the multisensory
integration: repositioning, behavior modification, adaptive seating, and
training in the use of adaptive equipment, prevocational skill training, and

training in developing activities of daily living and self-care.
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Even with the challenging behaviors and medical conditions
that I just talked about, we still, at this point -- out of the 421 people we
have live at the facility -- we have recommended 185,almost 50 percent of
that population, for community placement. It is still our philosophy that
people should be able to live in the most appropriate setting according to
their needs and abilities.

There are a number of reasons why the entire population has
not been recommended for community placement.  The Assistant
Commissioner just mentioned some of those reasons. I would like to just
add that, at Vineland, we happen to have a large population of senior
citizens with significant medical issues, including having to be fed through
PEG tubes, having to breath through trachs and requiring oxygen support.

The staff at Vineland-- I want to just speak for a couple of
seconds about the staff at Vineland Developmental Center. We have about
1,500 employees: 1,200 at the facility, 200 staffing the group homes that
we jointly run with a community agency, PAFACOM. The staffing includes
direct-care staff, human services assistants, cottage training assistants and
their supervisors, head cottage training supervisors, and cottage training
supervisors and management staff. As important, we have a full-time
medical nursing staff. We employ specialists in the field of work activities,
nutrition, occupational therapy, art therapy, music therapy, physical
therapy, psychology, recreational services, and social services. We also have
support services including housekeeping, laundry, maintenance -- everything
we need to maintain the physical plant. This is representative of all the

developmental centers, not just Vineland Developmental Center.
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We are proud to provide services to the citizens of New Jersey
who happen to live in developmental centers.

Thank you. (applause)

SENATOR VITALE: Before we take questions from the
legislators, I want to just take an opportunity to welcome Senator Allen
back to the State House. I can’t tell you how wonderful it is to see you and
have you back. You’'ve been sorely missed, and we’re glad you're here, so
much.

SENATOR ALLEN: Thank you. (applause)

SENATOR VITALE: Members, would anyone like to ask a
question or make a statement? (no response)

Really? That will move things along.

I'm going to ask, Assistant Commissioner, if you could stay at
the table while we call up the next panel. And we’ll do this throughout the
afternoon. You can sit on that side. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

Panel 2: We have Lowell Arye, the Executive Director of the
Alliance for the Betterment of Citizens with Disabilities; Liz Shea, Assistant
Director for The Arc of New Jersey; and Executive Director Tom Baffuto.

Tom and Liz, are you both coming up?

Oh, just Tom.

Katie (sic) Walsh of The Arc; Stephanie Rosati-Pratico, self-
advocate; Debbie Legutko -- I don’t know if I pronounced that right, forgive
me -- self-advocate; Adelaide Daskam, self-advocate; and Todd Emmons, a

self-advocate.
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And since we have such a large panel, we can give each one a
couple of minutes each. If you need more-- But hopefully this way we have
time for everybody to speak.

Lowell, I think if you’d like to start -- please, Mr. Arye.
KATHY WALSH: Ifit’s all right with you, I think that we decided
that I was going first. Is that okay?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: That’s fine, Katie.

MS. WALSH: Senator Vitale, Assemblywoman Huttle,
members of the Joint Committee, thank you for this opportunity to
participate in the conversation on this very, very important issue.

My name is Kathy Walsh, and I'm the CEO of The Arc of
Bergen and Passaic Counties.

The Arc in New Jersey had its roots back in Bergen and Passaic
in 1947. In the early days of The Arc, one of the top issues for parents was
the developmental center beds -- getting more developmental center beds.
At that time, there were no other services, and they needed a place where
their sons and daughters could be well cared for. We fought very, very hard
for those beds to be developed. And, in fact, on the weekends, The Arc
even ran bus trips to go down to the centers that were far away -- Vineland,
New Lisbon, Woodbine -- because that trip was so long for Bergen and
Passaic that this was a way for parents and siblings to get down to see their
loved ones.

By the early 1970s though, parents had started to think about
other alternatives. They had some success in setting up schools, and work

programs, and camps in the community. And they began to realize that
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they could develop residential options, as well, that would be closer to home
and in the neighborhoods where their sons and daughters had grown up.

From this idea, The Arc of Bergen and Passaic actually opened
the first group home in 1970 in Paterson, and the first in Bergen County in
1980. And from that point on, through the '80s and '90s -- spurred on by
these parents, The Arc and many providers developed many, many group
homes throughout the state. And these group homes -- it was interesting
because, at the time, the way a group home was developed was -- there were
a number of people from the developmental center and a number of people
from the community waiting list that would be -- that we would work
together to develop a home for. So we were constantly pulling people from
the developmental center and the waiting list to move the process forward
of giving community opportunities.

Now initially, the folks who came out of the developmental
centers were very, very independent. Some now are living on their own,
living very independently in the community. But over time, the folks who
the developmental center served -- and then, as a result, who the
community served -- had greater and greater challenges. And as the centers
learned how to best serve them, so did we in the community. We are both
light years ahead of where we were back in the "70s and "80s.

So the question is: If the community has come so far, why do
people still end up in developmental centers? And the answer is very
simple: it’s resources. New Jersey has not built a community infrastructure
with adequate resources to meet all the needs. By this I don’t mean that
the community agencies are not willing and don’t have the expertise. But

what I do mean is that there aren’t enough beds, enough staff, enough
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professionals because those resources have not been put into the
community over the years. And as a result, when a family goes into crisis
and there isn’t an appropriate bed available in the community, they do end
up in the developmental center.

So what’s the solution? New Jersey needs to invest in the
community, and this can only be done, given the resources, by closing some
of the developmental centers and ensuring that the funds that were tied to
those centers are not diverted elsewhere. They must be used to develop the
programs and resources, so that when families do go into crisis those
resources are available in the community. And so for people who want to
come out of the developmental centers, there is the appropriate resource to
provide them with equal or better care in the community.

And I want to be really clear here, because I think that there’s a
lot of rhetoric that gets tossed back and forth when we discuss
developmental center closure. And I'm not, for a minute, saying that
individuals in developmental centers do not get good care. Developmental
centers have kind, caring, and competent staff. And I know this for a fact,
because many of them also work for us. For years we’ve shared staff back
and forth with North Jersey Developmental Center. And those staff have
shown that they can work in the institutions and in the community
programs, and do a fine job in both.

Here is the bottom line: The Arc believes that individuals with
disabilities have the right to have fully included lives in the communities of
their choosing. But for this to happen, there must be an array of diverse,
high-quality community resources that ensure this opportunity. And this

array needs to not just be traditional group homes, it needs to provide the
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whole spectrum of options, including specialized programs for people with
medical and behavioral needs.

Any individual who is living in a developmental center and has
expressed the desire and ability to move into the community needs to be
given that opportunity. At the same time, it’s understandable that parents
with a loved one would be concerned. Their family member was probably
placed in a developmental center because there was not an appropriate
placement in the community. So why should they think that now, by
magic, the community can serve their son or daughter? It defies logic.

But there is a way to do this that makes sense. The State needs
to commit to a reasonable, planned process that ensures that resources --
which were not there when those families had to place their son or daughter
in the developmental center -- are put into the community so that those
needs can be met and that the transition plan for each individual takes all
of his or her needs into consideration. Families must be an integral part of
that conversation on the individual level for their loved one, but also on the
macro level to ensure that the resources are in place for the system as a
whole. We need to be honest, and we need to recognize that at this time
there will be some individuals that the community does not yet have the
resources to serve. That’s not to say that it will never happen, but we need
to be realistic with what can be done and when. Let’s not scare families by
putting the cart before the horse. There are individuals who are old, who
are frail, who have lived there for all of their lives, and for whom a move to
an unfamiliar environment may not be in their best interest. These
concerns must be heard and honored, and planning must be individually

focused.
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As I said before, for many, the developmental center provides
good care. Parents are rightly concerned that this continue. But we need to
understand that good care is not exclusive to a developmental center and
that life can be enhanced when good care is provided along with the
opportunity for community life. In fact, studies have shown that
community living with -- better quality of life comes from community
living, and in a whole variety of areas which I won’t go into. But one of
those also includes safety.

We need to make a moderate and rational approach to
community transition and the subsequent closure of a facility. We need to
allocate the proper time and the funds to do it right, but we must do it. We
must give the people the opportunity to live full lives.

Back in the ’80s, one of my responsibilities was to visit
developmental centers and meet individuals who were going to be coming
out into our residential programs. Every year, around mid-February, I
receive a call from the staff at my Teaneck group home, and they say
simply, “Andrea wants to talk to you,” at which point Andrea gets on the
phone. Now, if you knew her, she’s a woman of few words. So the
conversation goes something like this: “Kathy?” “Yes, Andrea.” “Me, you,
dinner, no old school.” And so we set up a dinner date for sometime
around mid-March, which is Andrea’s anniversary. It’s the anniversary of
when she moved from North Jersey Developmental Center to our Teaneck
group home back in the '80s. Every year since that time, Andrea and I go
to dinner to celebrate her anniversary. It’s not something I initiated, it’s
something she initiated. And while we’re at dinner -- usually after we order

because that’s priority, we have to order first -- she’ll point to my cell
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phone, and she’ll say, “Call,” which I know after all these years means I
need to dial the number for Mary. Mary was the other staff who was there
when she transitioned to the group home. Mary hasn’t worked at our
organization--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Kathy, excuse me.
We have to just-- If you could, just wrap up, because we--

MS. WALSH: This is my end. Absolutely.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

MS. WALSH: Mary hasn’t worked there since 1987, but she
calls her every year to thank her for the group home. It’s gone on for over
20 years. And that anniversary is important to her, because it’s the date
that changed her life. And it changed mine too because she reminds me
that, every day, we all -- each of us can help someone change their life. It’s
well within our grasp, and we just need to collectively take that first step.

Thank you. (applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Just so we're
conscious of time, if you could hold your applause we’d appreciate it so
every speaker has their fair opportunity to speak within the time frame.

Thank you.

Lowell.

LOWELL ARYE: Yes.

My name is Lowell Arye. I'm the Executive Director of the
Alliance for the Betterment of Citizens with Disabilities, better known as
ABCD.

ABCD represents agencies throughout the state serving people

with complex behavioral, as well as neurological and medical, physical,
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developmental disabilities. More than 10,000 people are served by ABCD
member agencies.

What I'm going to say to you straight out is that member
agencies of ABCD serve people in the community who have similar or more
complex needs than people who currently reside in the developmental
centers. Specifically, most of the individuals who are served by ABCD are
in wheelchairs, need assistance in bathing, feeding, many of them are
unable to communicate verbally, and have behavioral and medical complex
issues.

What I want to say to you is that for the last 30 years or more,
Federal and State disability policy changes have been implemented to break
down the barriers of exclusion, dependency, and segregation. Specifically,
the Olmstead Supreme Court decision lays out that people have the right to
live in the most integrated setting appropriate to their needs.

Many of you in this Legislature now worked with us and The
Arc of New Jersey to move forward on a bill, that is P.L. 2006 Chapter 61,
which mandated that the Division move forward on a plan to ensure that
people could live in the most integrated settings appropriate to those needs.

Ken Ritchey talked about that. It’s called the Path to Progress.
The Path to Progress lays out that 250 people should be moved out every
single year from the developmental centers over an eight-year period.
Unfortunately, that plan has never been fully implemented.

Let me tell you one of the things that plan lays out. It includes
how many -- who’s in the developmental centers. On average, they’re 50
years old, 57 percent have psychiatric diagnoses, 24 percent have cerebral

palsy, 18 percent have autism, 39 percent have visual impairments. I'm not
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going to go through the list, but what I'm telling you is that those are the
same people who my member agencies serve with quality and safety in the
community.

Unfortunately, as I said, this has not been fully funded. Kathy
laid out that we need community infrastructure. This is something that
clearly is the case. NJIT, New Jersey Institute of Technology, laid out,
several years ago, a study that was asked for by DDD. What they found
was that the reason that most people go into the DCs from the community
for emergency reasons were three reasons: lack of barrier-free housing,
significant behavioral and psychiatric problems, and medical needs that are
not currently being met in the community. That means we need the
community infrastructure in the community.

What I'm going to say to you is that if we fully funded the Path
to Progress as it was supposed to be done -- not the 62 that are in the
current budget, but the 250 -- that if we had funded it in 2009 and 2010,
we would have moved more than 500 people out. Now, certainly, there are
a number of people, and what happens is, a lot of people do move back into
the developmental centers. = However, when you figure out how many
people move in and out, in effect we would have had a net reduction of 429
people coming out of the developmental centers. That is the size of one of
the three developmental centers -- either Woodbridge, 410 residents; North
Jersey, 400 residents; or New Lisbon, 440. This is something that we really
need to make sure we continue to move forward on.

Where can we get some of the money? ABCD, for years --

literally over a decade you’'ve heard me testify in front of this Committee.
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We are not reinvesting our Federal funds into the community, and we must
do that. It is imperative that we do this.

I will give you one example. In 2007, the State received $194
million in retroactive community care waiver funds from the Federal
government. Do you know how much the community got of that: $50
million over three years. Think about that: $50 million over three years.
That means $144 million of Federal retroactive money was used for other
State purposes other than for our community services.

Budget language has been in place for the last five years, at
least, which says that they limit and cap the amount of money that can be
used for the community care waiver in the community. The rest of it goes
away. That language must be eliminated, and we must be able to utilize
those funds for that.

I will simply say, last, we call upon you and we call upon the
Governor. Announce at least one closure. It’s been more than a decade
since we’ve close even one developmental center. Announce the closure of
one developmental center over the next 18 to 24 months.

We've done it in-- Other states have done it. Maryland has
closed one -- 153 people in 17 months. Other states have done it as well.
Massachusetts is estimating it takes five years to close four institutions with
476 people. If you all funded the law that you all helped to write -- Senator
Vitale -- for the Path to Progress, the 250 a year to move out -- we could
have actually closed one already.

Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE:  Thank you,

Lowell.
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STEPHANIE ROSATI-PRATICO: My name is Stephanie
Rosati-Pratico, and I want to start by thanking you all for giving me this
opportunity to share my family’s story and my experiences.

I also want to thank you for giving this issue the consideration
and respect that it deserves. It’s pretty obvious from the amount of people
who are in this room today from various walks of life that this is a very
emotionally charged issue, because it impacts many people for many
different reasons in their life.

I can certainly appreciate the challenge that you have ahead of
you on a very personal, emotional level. I am the mother of two children
with Down syndrome. And although it felt like it was a lifetime away
before I'd have to worry about where my children would live as adults, my
son is soon to be 17, and so the reality of his adult life is approaching
quickly.

If you ask my son John -- and actually, if it’s okay, I'd just like
to -- it kind of helps to put a face with the name. Thank you.

If you ask him where he will live when he’s an adult, he will
very confidently tell you that he will live in his own apartment. And if you
ask him why he wants to live in his own apartment, he will very simply say
it’s so that he has the ability to walk around in his underwear. (laughter) It
doesn’t get any simpler than that.

In addition to my own children, and being a parent, and
looking into the future, I am also the guardian of my 64-year-old aunt who
lived in Vineland Developmental Center for 50 years. At the age of 12
years old, my grandfather had a massive heart attack and almost died. And

at that point, he and my grandmother had to make the very difficult
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decision to place her in a developmental center or, as we knew it, an
institution -- which we later referred to as her school -- because he was a
wonderful provider and caretaker, and he did not want to leave my
grandmother, should he have another heart attack, to be the sole provider
of three small children and then have to get a job. And, obviously, my aunt
had extremely significant needs, because she is severely developmentally
disabled.

I can remember as a child driving back and forth to Vineland
with my grandfather to pick her up and take her back after her long
weekend visits several times a year. And I would sit very quietly in the back
seat crying and trying to hide that from him, because I didn’t want to make
his heartache any worse than it already did.

I think back to that now, and I remember -- or I know that that
was probably my heart unsettled with the fact that we had to leave her
there without any family. We live not far from here. We live in Hamilton.
That had to leave a void for her. It was something that we accepted as
normal for our family, and so we did what we had to do.

When I was given the opportunity in January of 2009 to move
her out of the Vineland Developmental Center -- after 49 years of living
there -- into a community placement, I was extremely nervous and excited.
I can appreciate the families who sit in this room who have a loved one in a
developmental center, and the fear and anxiety that goes through your body
and your mind in making that decision. Was it right for us to make a
decision to move her from the place that she had known all those years as
her only home? I can tell you the thing that probably motivated me the

most was, when we would bring her home -- probably over the last five years
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-- I would notice that she would lay, often, curled up on the couch holding
her ears in almost the fetal position. And in going down for my IHP visits
and to visit her, I realized that the population of the developmental center
had changed so much that here she was, a 62-year-old woman at the time,
entering her golden years and probably wanting peace and tranquility in her
life, just like the rest of us would at that stage, and not being able to have it.
So she created that happy place for herself to be able to cope with every
day.

I can tell you that moving her into the community has not been
without challenge. There have been times where it’s been difficult, but the
overwhelming gains compared to those challenges are immeasurable.

And, again, I feel badly for the people who work there who may
lose their jobs, or the other issues that surround this that make it so
emotional, but the truth is, it’s about her. And if I had to leave you with
one thought, I can tell you that for her, as a person, being able to go into
her apartment and seeing her -- it has to be 15 years ago, 20 years ago
maybe -- the last time I saw her actually sit in a chair and peacefully watch
television. She has been significantly delayed. She has very limited ability
to communicate. But I can tell you from the smiles on her face and the
laughter that I hear, that’s infectious, that I have not heard since I was a
little girl, it has had a positive impact on her life.

Does that change the fact that it is a very scary move? It is a
very scary move. The fact that we don’t have the best stability in our
support systems is scary. I think we need to put more focus there to be able
to support these individuals and give them the option of a choice in the

community.
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I mentioned that I have two children with Down syndrome.
I'm sorry. I skipped right over John, because he’s really the one who is
talking about the apartment. I leave you with this thought. I hope that
you will give this all the diligence it deserves. Because I also have an 11
year old who has Down syndrome. Her name is Sarah. She is as sweet as
can be, but she has extremely significant medical issues. And I pray to God
that it’s not 50 years before she can safely and comfortably live in the
community. Because chances are I'm not going to be here to see that. And
I don’t want her to have to experience that on her own.

So I think we have to band together and keep working at this to
build a structure that can support what these individuals deserve.

Thank you for your time. (applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE:  Thank you,
Stephanie, for sharing your stories. We truly appreciate it.

The next -- Tom -- I guess panel-- Do you have--

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:
(indiscernible) (speaking from audience)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Are you coming
up? (affirmative responses)

I guess before the three -- Lowell, Kathy, and Stephanie -- leave,
if any of the Committee members have questions.

We do have one question.

Assemblyman Coutinho.

ASSEMBLYMAN COUTINHO: Thank you, Madam Chair.

It’s for Lowell, just one question.
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And before I do, I want to welcome everybody here and thank
you for coming. It’s obviously a very important issue for the State, and we
look forward to hearing from all of you.

Lowell, you mentioned the issue of us not leveraging Federal
dollars. I don’t know if you may be able to -- even not today -- but to this
Committee and also to the Budget Committees -- because on the Budget
Committee, on which I sit, we’re very much interested in the issue of trying
to take advantage of any and all opportunities for Federal dollars. My
friend Joe Malone is with us here today.

And if you can get us a list of either between-budget language
or Federal dollars that the State of New Jersey is not going after, we will do
what we can to try to incorporate that either into this year’s budget or going
forward.

MR. ARYE: I appreciate that very much. As Assemblyman
Malone knows, this has been something that I say every year.

Right, Mr. Malone?

We have given this in the past. The problem is not-- There are
two pieces to this. One is that for many years the State did not go after as
much of its Federal funds for the home and community-based services
waiver. And about four or five years ago, because of urgings from many of
us in the advocacy world, they started to do it. They started to claim more
Federal dollars. Unfortunately, they have then limited that amount of
money and then saying only a certain amount of that money can go into
the Federal -- can be used for community services. The rest of it goes back
into the Treasury for other budgetary purposes.

I’d be happy to give you that list as well.
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The second part of it is that, in the past, this Department has
also not gone after other funds for it. We are one of about only 17 -- not
even -- about a dozen states who receive no Federal funds from Family
Support Services. This year the Division is actually talking about that and
has actually convened a work group that -- the Assistant Commissioner has
convened a work group to actually start talking about a family home
support waiver so that we could actually get Federal funds. And we
appreciate that, and we’re very excited about that. There’s currently over
$39 million in family support State-only money. And we could be
maximizing our Federal money from that. Unfortunately, the concern we
have in the community is that since they already take a lot of -- some of our
money and don’t use it for community services, we are concerned that
unless they -- unless the Department -- and I'm talking about the Treasury
now -- unless the Treasury allows the Department of Human Services to
reinvest all of those Federal moneys back into community services, then we
are not going to have the adequate resources to serve people on the waiting
lists, people living at home. More people want to live at home and get in-
home support than at any time. Over 80 percent of all people want to live
in-home. In-support -- the family home support waiver is a great idea. We
are very pleased and very excited that the Division is moving forward on it.
But unless we get those funds and get it reinvested back into the DDD, we
will not have the adequate supports necessary.

But I’d be happy to give you more information.

ASSEMBLYMAN COUTINHO: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.
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Before I call the next panel, any other questions from the
members?

I'm sorry, Assemblyman Malone.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Lowell, in your discussion, who
has the ultimate decision-making authority in where an individual or loved
one is placed? Who has that authority?

MR. ARYE: I think the person themself first has the ultimate
decision-making authority, and then at that point, if they are not able to
make that decision and a court rules that, then it’s the guardian.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Because I've had a hard time
getting an answer to that question. And I think that really is the ultimate
question: Who has that authority? I was told, “Oh, the State does, the
court does.” I think if we take it out of the hands of the individuals and/or
their families, that’s not a good situation. And I think we ought to be
moving -- if we’re not, we ought to be moving toward the individual or the
families to make those decisions.

MR. ARYE: Assemblyman, I totally agree with you. (applause)

The U.S. Supreme Court ruled, in the Olmstead decision, that
there are actually several things that have to occur. The first is that the
individual themselves wants to move. That’s the first thing. At that point
then, the State has to make a decision -- an assessment -- whether or not
the person -- through their professionals -- whether or not that person can
live in the community. And then the third piece of it is whether or not
there are funds available to do that. Those are basically-- There are several

more. And I look to others who you will be hearing from shortly -- the
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attorneys -- who can actually explain that more. But that’s really -- that’s
pretty much what the Supreme Court said.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Assemblywoman
McHose.

We also have -- just an FYI for the members -- Assistant
Commissioner Ken Ritchey is still with us. So if there are any questions
that you may want addressed, he’s still here for any comment.

Assemblywoman McHose.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McHOSE: Thank you very much.

Stephanie, I have a question for you. When Lowell mentioned
the fact that many individuals actually can be cared for in the community
versus the developmental centers, you talked about the problems -- you had
both problems and good things that you saw come from it. Is your aunt in
a group home, is she supervised, is there someone living with her?

MS. ROSATI-PRATICO: Yes. She has almost 24-hour care.
She goes to a day program from 9:00 to 2:00, and then she has a support
person for the rest of the hours. And she’s actually in a two-bedroom
apartment.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McHOSE: Okay. So there’s a
roommate and there are people around.

I guess -- because my experience touring the developmental
facilities-- I was just curious to know whether the transition period from
living in the developmental center to living alone -- if that was difficult, or
how the staff-- I'm sure the staff are the ones who help transition the

person. And everything is on an individual basis, I'm sure.
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MS. ROSATI-PRATICO: I was just going to say that. I think
community living looks different for every person because of who they are,
what their personality is. I mean, it’s no different than you and I. Some
people like to live in a city setting, and some people like to live in the
suburbs. That being said, I think the transition is no different than moving
from one house to another house, or one community to another
community, whether you have disabilities or not.

I think the important thing is that there are people around that
person who can support them and who can identify their needs. She went
through a transition. I was not disillusioned to think that she wouldn’t. I
can tell you that my mother and my other aunt, who are older, I think had
this vision that everything was going to just-- Having had my own children
and dealing with children with developmental disabilities on a 24-hour
basis, I had a little better, clearer expectation, because I've been through
different transitions in their lives. But I will tell you that each layer, as it
resolved -- that spirit -- her spirit that I watched diminish had reappeared. I
really do think it’s about being supportive. She’s very lucky, because she
has a family that’s close by. So we were able to be part of that support
network. And I realize that not everybody has that, and so that has to be
addressed. And I think that’s where you said individuals and families -- it’s
going to be a very individualized plan.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McHOSE: Thank you very much. I
appreciate that.

That was my point -- that it’s very difficult, in this situation, to
have a sort of one-size-fits-all, because it’s not the way it is.

MS. ROSATI-PRATICO: I agree.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN McHOSE: And I just want to applaud,
publicly, the employees of the developmental centers that I visited. Because
place after place -- when I asked these employees, “How many years have
you worked here?” And the feeling and the sense that I got from the level
of commitment that the people and the employees have-- And I just want
to applaud any of you who are here today. I really think you do great work.

Thank you. (applause)

MS. ROSATI-PRATICO: Can I clarify one quick thought back
to you? Because when you talk about that, it really-- Our desire to move
her to the community-- She got good care. It had nothing to do with that.
That’s why I said that. It really-- The focus has to stay about the person.
It was really about what was best for her. And it didn’t have to do with her
care, it had to do with her emotional and spiritual well-being, and her as a
person.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Assemblywoman
Wagner.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WAGNER: Thank you, Madam Chair.

I just had one question in regard to the money that was
returned to the Treasury -- and that large amount of money.

Could you explain to me, is that a problem with the process?
What would you like to see happen?

MR. ARYE: Thank you for that question. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WAGNER: It really is a question that--

MR. ARYE: That’s exactly it.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WAGER: It’s something I need to

understand.
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MR. ARYE: We believe that it’s imperative that the money
stays, that actually the language that is in the budget-- There is currently
budget language that specifically limits how much money is used, through
the community care waiver, that is put back into the Division. It actually
says specifically -- that puts a dollar amount on and says that any money
after that must be actually -- created a plan that the Director of the Budget
and Accounting -- in effect, OMB -- must approve. That language, in my
mind and many of our minds, must be eliminated. It should say straight
out, “All funds from the community care waiver will be reinvested in the
Division of Developmental Disabilities Community Services, and that any
funds (applause) from consolidation or closure of a developmental center
should also be reinvested in the community services.” That’s what it should
say.

Right now, every year the dollar amount goes up a smidgen, but
the assumption and the estimates are that they are going to net-- This year
I believe there’s been some differentials. OMB had some inaccuracies in
their budgeting brief about how much money they’re estimating this year.
But I believe that in FY "10 they’re estimating about $20 million more than
they’re saying that they’re going to -- that it says it limits. So that’s $20
million that we could use for community services and to help build our
infrastructure.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

Before we call up the next panel, we have Committee Room 6
available. If any of you who are standing would like to be more

comfortable, in Committee Room 6 we are streaming that as well. So if
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anyone would-- If you're in the hallways, if you're standing, if you’d like to
move into Committee Room 6, it is available.

And with that, I will call up the second panel.

Tom, maybe you can introduce the panel, and then we can
move quickly through that.

THOMAS BAFFUTO: Sure.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

MR. BAFFUTO: Thank you, Chairwoman Huttle, Chairman
Vitale, for holding this much-needed hearing today.

I'm Tom Baffuto, the Executive Director of The Arc of New
Jersey. I have some wonderful guests with me today. We have two self-
advocates and a family member who I will introduce. But I just wanted to
touch on a couple of very quick points. You've heard a lot already.

But The Arc of New Jersey believes strongly in supporting
people in their communities wherever possible. We work to get people with
intellectual and other developmental disabilities the support and services
they need to maintain as independent a life as possible. We want people
with developmental disabilities to have the same opportunities as everyone
else: living, working, recreating in the community close to their families,
friends, and neighbors.

One of our core driving principles at The Arc is to empower
people with developmental disabilities with choice. We recognize that some
people would prefer to remain at a developmental center rather than move
into the community, especially those who have lived there most of their
lives. We respect that choice. But at the end of the day, the reality is, we

simply do not need seven large institutions anymore. The vast majority of
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people in our service system (applause) are more appropriately served in the
community. And every dollar we invest into developmental centers is one
less dollar we spend building up our community infrastructure.

We need to make tough choices during these tough times. We
need to balance the resources available for folks. And rather than continue
to overinvest in State funding in institutions, we need to strengthen our
investment in the infrastructure that is sorely needed to serve people,
particularly people with complex medical and behavioral needs in
community-based settings. If we’re going to make sure that individuals and
families really have a choice, we absolutely have to invest in the community
too.

I think I'm better served now to let you hear from the folks who
are with us. First, let me introduce a family member, Debbie Legutlko.

Debbie.

DEBORAH LEGUTKO: Good afternoon.

Thanks for the opportunity to share my story with you today.

My name is Debbie Legutko, and I'm the mother of two young
men, Frank and Derek -- and this is Frank’s picture at his favorite spot, the
firehouse -- both with developmental disabilities. My older son Derek, who
has autism, is now 26. He works 20 hours a week at two different part-time
jobs. He is very verbal and extremely knowledgeable about sports, music,
and movies. Derek has been on DDD’s priority waiting list for over nine
years.

My younger son Frank turned 23 on April 9. He has been
living at Hunterdon Developmental Center for almost 14 months. Prior to

that he was living at home with 24-hour nursing care for 22 years. Frank is
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autistic, on a ventilator and oxygen, and has had aggressive behaviors for
many years. Early last year we became -- we were unable to manage his
behaviors at home, and he became a constant danger to his caregivers and
himself. Our only option was to find a nursing home or an emergency
developmental center placement.

Before our situation became an emergency, he had been on the
waiting list for residential services for over five years. In fact, you may
remember me testifying before you in March of 2008 about the waiting list
and how much we needed help. That help never came. And when our
situation finally became an emergency, a developmental center or nursing
home were the only options. After spending 21 years in the community, it
was very upsetting for Frank and our family to see him admitted to the
Hunterdon Developmental Center. I cannot even consider what would
happen should our family face another emergency situation with Derek.

Frank now lives on a hospital ward with 14 other men; most are
over the age of 50. There’s no social interaction between the residents, and
he considers the staff his friends. Since admission, his behavior has greatly
improved, and his medical care is very good. His last trip into the
community was in March, and trips are rare because of the staff he needs to
accompany him. He cannot participate in Special Olympics for the same
reason, something he really enjoyed in school.

For 21 years he was a part of the community. We gave him
every opportunity to be out and about just like anyone else. ~ He has
traveled to Disney World, seen Broadway shows, and even tried his luck on

the slot machines in Atlantic City. He loves amusement parks and the
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excitement of the Jersey Shore boardwalks. He is always talking about
Santa Claus and fire trucks.

His life now is not what I envisioned for him. But at the time,
we really had no choice. I always hoped he could live in a community with
other people needing the same level of care. People in our state are living
longer with complex medical conditions, and it’s time to be innovative. I
really want to see him in a community placement.

So, for now, Frank and I do what we can to enjoy our twice-
weekly outings. His favorite waitress at the Cracker Barrel calls him my
friend Frank, and he likes to blow her kisses. They no longer ask for his 1D
at the Sands Casino. And the owner of the local Italian restaurant buys him
lunch. He asks to ride past the firehouse. He is happiest when he is out
and about. So as long as it’s physically possible, I will continue our weekly
routine and drive the 120 miles round trip. Hopefully it won’t be for too
long and he will have a home living with others as a member of a
community.

Thank you. (applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

Todd.

MR. BAFFUTO: Let me introduce-- You know, families are so
important to what we do at The Arc of New Jersey. But equally as
important are self-advocates who speak for themselves. We have two here
with us today, Todd Emmons and Adelaide Daskam.

And we’ll let ladies go first, Todd. Why don’t we turn this to
Adelaide?

ADELAIDE DASKAM: Hi
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My name is Adelaide Daskam. I'm from Community Access
Unlimited, which is a good agency program for people with disabilities.
And we do get our support and our needs 24 hours a day. A lot of us are in
supervised apartments. A lot of us are on our own, where we have our own
apartment, our rights, and everything else.

I have a brief story to tell you and everything.

Hi, my name is Adelaide Daskam. I was in North Jersey
Training School for five years. I did not like the way I was being treated by
staff. I was told when to eat and when bedtime was. I had to stand at the
baclk of the line to go to the cafeteria. I did not like the way anybody in the
institution was abused.

A lot of us people were taken either into the bathroom or into
the office and be beaten by staff. If it wasn’t the staff, it was the clients
there. They would beat us up, like taking a ruler, or a shoe, or a chair and
throw it at us. It was not right. I was one of them that was abused in
North Jersey Training School, the State institution up in Totowa.

Now, since I've been out for 31 years, I have my freedom, have
my own apartment, and I have my own cat and my own boyfriend. I am
happy to be out in the community for 31 years, meeting new people, trying
to get my brothers and sisters out of the institution where they could have
their freedom, their life, where they can be happy and comfortable.

I am working with Community Access as a secretary, doing a
wonderful job and everything, and I receive my paycheck every two weeks.
Also, I help Community Access with people with disabilities when they
come into our program -- how to understand the staff, how to understand

the rules and the regulations of everything.
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I have a friend who was from another agency program. They
wanted to leave that agency program to come and be with me, to be with
her sister -- but she’s not my real sister. But inside she is a sister to me.
And a lot of my brothers and sisters are here today who are glad that they
all have their freedom and everything.

My friend Todd has been my best friend for many, many years.
And we consider each other brother and sister. And I would like to see all
of you please help my brothers and sisters out of the institutions.

And also, we have old buildings that are boarded up, old
warehouses, and stuff like that -- old homes that are boarded up that could
be fixed, rebuilt, made into a good place for people to live in. All these
homes that are boarded up and other places can be built up for people with
disabilities. Get them out into them. I mean, where is all this money going
to? Nowhere. I mean, you keep these boarded homes, boarded buildings.
Make them into new places for people with disabilities.

I mean, a lot of people with disabilities will feel 100 percent
happy to be out of the institution. A lot of our brothers and sisters did not
ask to be put into an institution. Back in a later age -- I mean time --
parents used to listen to the doctors. The doctors would say to the parents,
“Put your son or daughter in an institution. They’re not going to learn

”

anything.” But the doctors are wrong. If you let your son or daughter live
with you or go to an agency program to live more independent -- like go
food shopping, doing their own laundry, doing their banking, and stuff like
that -- and get along with the people out in the community, everything

would be 100 percent better.
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But now since we have the institution still open, it’s not good.
A lot of our brothers and sisters are getting fed up living there. A lot of
them want to be out in the community more.

Thank you very much. (applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE:  Thank you,
Adelaide.

And please, folks, hold your applause.

But just a note on the abuse that you were speaking of, the
Governor has signed a bill -- a piece of legislation just last week. My
colleague, Assemblyman Fuentes, was one of the prime sponsors. And that
is to create a registry of offenders, whether they are physically abusing the
disabled population, sexually abusing, verbally abusing -- to put them in this
registry to protect our most vulnerable population and have them never
work in a facility, or a group home, or in a home, or anywhere to come in
contact with anybody from the disabled population. (applause) So I do
want to mention that. And I think it’s certainly common sense that should
have been legislated a long time ago.

But thank you for sharing your story, and we truly appreciate
it.

Todd, she’s a tough act to follow.
TODD LeROY EMMON S: Thank you very much, Assembly.

I want to say thank you for giving me this opportunity to talk
to you today.

My name is Todd LeRoy Emmons. I am here to talk about my

experiences living in the developmental center and living in the community.
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Back in 1972 -- this is going back 38 years ago -- I was placed
by my family into New Lisbon State School, which is now the New Lisbon
Developmental Center, which everybody said would help me with my living
skills.

My day at the developmental center was just exactly the same
thing that Adelaide said. They decided what time I woke up, what time I
went to bed, what time were my meals, what time I was going to eat. They
decided everything for me on those days. I was never able to make friends
in the developmental center or outside the developmental center -- I had
friends inside the developmental center but not outside. I was treated
unfair and unkind. The staff there was very, very abusive to me. They
ridiculed me, they called me names over and over again. And I'm sorry I
have to use this, but they called me retarded boy. How do you think I felt
about that? I was hurt. I was hurt, I was angry, and I was very mad about
it.

Back then I didn’t know a lot about my choices, and I thought I
was helpless and very alone. I did manage to leave the developmental
center. I was actually placed in another group called Edward R. Johnstone
back in 1974, and I was there until 1976.

My family and my case manager helped me get out of there. I
am now living in a wonderful, supervised community (indiscernible) with
the Bancroft group. I love living there. I've been living there for 28 years
now, and I love them. Theyre my family. Now my day is-- I can go
anywhere I want to go, I do everything I want to do. I used to-- I was
employed for awhile, now I'm not. I am able to take the Transit buses. I

have friends. I now even have a girlfriend that I love very much. And I'm
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also, thanks to Governor Corzine, who was our former Governor, I am now
the newest member of the New Jersey Council on Developmental
Disabilities. I can’t thank him enough for that.

I'm also the Chairperson for the Monday Morning Network.
I'm also involved with our self-advocacy group, and I'm on so many other
groups. I feel very happy and very valued -- contribute -- citizen. I vote in
all elections. I have a wonderful townhouse where I live in Voorhees, New
Jersey. I have a wonderful roommate. We get along very well. I have a
lot-- My family and I are very proud of my accomplishments so far, and I'm
looking forward to many achievements.

And everybody needs to live in the community, giving them a
chance for happiness.

Thank you very much. (applause)

SENATOR BUONO: Thank you, Todd.

Any questions for our panel?

Senator Allen.

SENATOR ALLEN: Thank you.

First of all, thank you very much, both of you, for coming here
today.

MR. EMMONS: Thank you.

MS. DASKAM: Thank you.

SENATOR ALLEN: You’ve been very helpful.

I would like to know-- Todd, you said that you left the center
because your caseworker and your family helped you do that. Did you

initiate that? Did you tell them, “I really want to get out of here?” How
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does it work? And also, are there -- does everybody know how to make that
work?

MR. EMMONS: For me, what was encouraging was that my
family thought-- When they first put me in these two institutions, they
thought it was going to help me with my living skills, but it was the reverse
around. I mean, they tortured the heck out of me at the place.

With my case manager, who I had back then when I was living
in Johnstone-- They said, “No, Todd doesn’t need to be there in Johnstone
anymore. He needs to be out in the community.” And that’s how it
happened. And I got out of there on June 16, 1976. And that was actually
my mom’s birthday.

SENATOR ALLEN: Are there others who-- Well, it’s been
some time since you’'ve been there, obviously. But at the time, were there
others who also wished to be out but just didn’t know how to go about it?

MR. EMMONS: Well, actually Johnstone is now closed, and I
thank God for that. But I do have a lot of friends still in New Lisbon who
are on the waiting list right now to be out of there. And I'm hoping and
praying that this Assembly and Senate -- everybody can get them all out of

there. Because I don’t want to see anybody in there -- in those groups

again.
SENATOR ALLEN: Again, I thank you both for being here.
MR. EMMONS: Thank you, Senator Allen.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Assemblywoman
Wagner.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WAGNER: Thank you, Madam Chair.
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My question is very similar to Senator Allen’s. I would like to
know how much counseling takes place when you’re making the choice.
And if you go into the community, is counseling still available? And are
you aware that it’s still available, if it is?

MR. EMMONS: Either one of us? (affirmative response)

I really don’t know if there is still a lot of counseling in there,
because I haven’t been in the State school in over 34 years. So I really
don’t know, Senator (sic).

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WAGNER: Is it available for you now if
you need it in the community setting?

MR. EMMONS: I now go to a psychologist that I see, and I
tallk to him a lot about my own personal problems and stuff. And he’s been
helping me a lot with everything that I've been going through. So, yes,
there is a lot of help with that.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WAGNER: Thank you.

MR. EMMONS: You're welcome.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you very
much.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you. (applause)

Our next panel is this: Thomas York, Esquire, Sidley and
Austin.

Mr. York.

THOMAS B. YORK, ESQ.: Yes.

SENATOR VITALE: You just flew in from Arkansas?

MR. YORK: No, no, I drove in from Harrisburg, Pennsylvania.

SENATOR VITALE: Oh, close enough.
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MR. YORK: That’s all right. I am handling a case currently in
Arkansas. And I did fly in yesterday from Arkansas. So your information
isn’t entirely inaccurate.

SENATOR VITALE: If I can have you make a presentation if
you’d like. And if we have questions afterwards, please stay.

MR. YORK: Sure.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you.

State your name and, again, why you’re here -- who you
represent.

MR. YORK: I'm Thomas York. I don’t know if I represent
anybody in particular. I was asked to appear here, and I really welcome the
opportunity to comment on these very important issues.

I am an attorney. I've been practicing for almost 30 years, and
the last 20 years have been focused almost exclusively on systems for the
developmentally disabled and people with mental health problems. And my
background involves representation of a number of states, including Florida,
Virginia, Pennsylvania, Connecticut, Massachusetts, Arkansas, Nebraska,
California, and a few more that I can’t think of off the top of my head.

My experience is not just in representing states in facilities,
ICF/MRs, or large congregate institutional settings; it’s also representing
them and defending them sometimes in their community systems, and also
in their waiver programs, and so on. And my experience and background
perhaps is why I was asked to testify -- was because of my extensive amount
of time that I've spent in ICF/MRs around the country in visiting different

community programs.
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For example, in the Arkansas case, I have spent four weeks at
the facility, nonstop, visiting and touring the facility with experts from the
U.S. Department of Justice, and then spent more days after that with our
experts. And we also then toured the different community settings and so
on. [I've done that in a number of states and visited dozens of facilities
across the country in many, many, many community settings.

And if you don’t mind, I will try to shorten my presentation. I
have submitted a written presentation. But I will try to shorten it, and just
highlight that, and maybe deviate a little bit from it based on some of the
comments I have heard here today.

I was formerly a deputy attorney general with the Office of the
Attorney General in Pennsylvania. And I was subsequently chief of
litigation for the Department of Public Welfare in Pennsylvania. And that
is the state agency in Pennsylvania, as you probably all know, that covers
facilities that deal with the developmentally disabled and people with
mental health issues. And I've been in private practice now for a number of
years.

For nearly 20 years I've been assisting states in designing and
defending comprehensive systems of services and supports for persons with
developmental disabilities, including preserving a choice-- (fire alarm
sounds) (people exit room)

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you.

If you could all grab a seat or stand. Please stop talking now so
we can resume the hearing.

Mr. York.

MR. YORK: Thank you, Senator.
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I've had some strong reactions to some things I've said in the
past, but I've never set off a fire alarm before. (laughter) It seems
coincidental. It was right at the point where I was saying I was assisting
states in designing and defending comprehensive systems of services and
supports for persons with developmental disabilities. And right about then
it rang. And the next point is probably the most important point in my
whole speech: including preserving a choice for those who feel they are best
served in a ICF/MR. And that’s very important, the issue of choice.

I am a strong advocate for the right of individuals -- or in the
case of many individuals, their families and/or guardians -- to choose the
setting that is best for them, including ICF/MR settings and state-run
developmental centers. I will outline a number of reasons that have led me
to this position in a moment. However, I would like to note three
important elements of my thinking at the outset here.

First, access to ICF/MR-level care is, in effect, an entitlement.
Medicaid regulations are such that if a state offers ICF/MR services through
its Medicaid state plan, then individuals who qualify for such services have
an entitlement to them and, by Medicaid rules, are required to be given a
choice of setting, including an ICF/MR setting.

Second, Olmstead preserves the right of individuals to continue
to receive services in an ICF/MR if they choose to do so. It was not the
intent ever of either the ADA or the Supreme Court’s Olmstead decision to
force individuals from institutional facilities if they did not want to leave, or
to necessarily cause the closure of these institutions.

And third, many guardians of individuals who have lived in

developmental centers, including a substantial number of individuals in
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New Jersey, desire their loved ones to continue living in these facilities.
Most of the individuals who are advocating for the closure of institutions
are not the guardians, the parents, the family members, or even the
individuals themselves. Rather, those individuals who are advocating for
institutional closure have no stake in what happens to an individual who
loses access to necessary services. It is important that we hear the voices of
guardians, the parents, the family members in this discussion.

Problems arise when individuals from developmental centers
are moved to the community without sufficient supports. You heard some
great stories here today. And I think that was very nice that we heard some
anecdotal stories. And it’s wonderful that those people are doing well, and
everyone should be proud of those individuals. But the reality is, I can give
you many stories of people who have failed in the community and have had
disastrous results too. And the other reality is, as proud as I am of those
individuals who have succeeded, even though they’re disabled -- the reality
is that these people are not typical of probably the people who remain in
your facilities right now. So if you're trying to decide whether or not you
want to downsize your facilities, or maybe even close them, I think you
have to understand that the two individuals who testified earlier are not, by
any means, typical, I believe, of what’s in your current developmental
centers. (applause)

And another important point I feel compelled to make was that
there were allegations of abuse that were, of course, very old allegations.
Unfortunately, I cannot testify as to the individuals -- probably outstanding
individuals who work at your developmental centers here in New Jersey,

because I have not had the good opportunity to visit with them. But if they
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are typical of the workers that I have found in most -- the vast majority of
state facilities across the country, I would say that it is highly unlikely that
these people are committing that kind of abuse here today. (applause) And
I think it’s a shame that these people-- If there was any implication that
the current employees of your developmental centers are committing those
kinds of abuses, I would say they are probably false. And I think-- T feel
bad that these people have been tarnished in that way if that’s what the
implication was meant to be.

So problems arise when individuals do not have sufficient
supports. For example, one state recently moved 47 individuals to the
community with little planning, with the result that half had died within 15
months.  Community services must be able to address the medical,
psychiatric, and behavioral needs of the residents of ICF/MRs if these
individuals are to be successfully relocated to the community.

There are several critical facts here. And the one other thing I
wanted to note too: I have had great opportunity to work with many
people from the State of New Jersey who are experts in my various cases.
And you have some of the most outstanding experts. There’s probably no
state that I draw from more -- and I mean that very sincerely -- in just shear
numbers and in quality, than the experts you have in New Jersey. So I also
learned a lot about your facilities from talking to those very experts.

I know New Jersey is fortunate and set apart from other states
because it has access to provider organizations such as Developmental
Disabilities Health Alliance, which specializes in meeting these needs.
There is the type of organization that could serve as an example to provide

services.
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Some critical facts I think we should note: There are some very
good reasons why we should be very cautious in calling for the closure of
developmental centers. Here are some points I think your Committee
should carefully consider. Again, I would ask you to look at the facts rather
than on anecdotal stories or emotional appeal alone.

One is that individuals with intellectual and other
developmental disabilities vary more than the general population, more
than most people understand or realize, ranging from individuals a little
different from the general population to individuals who need constant care.
And I think you're talking about probably the people who are in your
current State facilities -- need constant care.

People with severe and profound disabilities are far different in
their needs. These people are quite different from the general population,
often consisting of individuals who have no self-help or adaptive skills, who
require personal assistance for all areas of their life, who have associated
multiple disabling medical conditions, and who are often quite fragile.
These are the individuals who, by far, make up the bulk of individuals in
the remaining developmental centers in America, including the seven here
in New Jersey.

Another point: Facility residents are a tiny percent of the IDD
population; and I give you the calculation to show how small the actual
number is in relation to the overall population of the disabled. It does not
seem reasonable that such a small percentage of individuals results in such a
contentious and continuing debate relative to their care. Thus, it is likely

that the issue has been kept in the public eye more by the ideology of pro-
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community advocacy groups than by professional decisions about service
locations.

And remember, even under the Olmstead decision and other
decisions like Youngberg, the key is professional judgement, where the
professionals believe they need to be. And then, of course, overriding
everything is the right of parents and guardians to make decisions as to
where their loved ones should reside.

Number three -- this goes against some commonly believed but
not verified opinions -- but cost savings are not assured in facility closures.
A recent review of selected literature did not validate the firm conclusion
that cost comparisons between institutions and group homes showed cost
savings in community settings. And essentially what you’re getting usually
from these advocacy groups is a comparison of apples and oranges. So I
think you need to take a close look at these comparisons and really
determine whether or not your state would even save any money by closing
facilities.

Number four: Pervasive supports are needed. Because of the
small number of individuals and the lack of obvious cost efficiencies, it is
likely that the current level of institutional use in New Jersey is reasonable.

Although many community advocates argue that the
institutional model is an outdated and repressive system, and is better left
as a relic of the past, they often reach such a position ideologically, based on
outdated information rather than through a review of current empirical
evidence from modern congregate ICF/MR settings. The remaining
individuals in such settings are generally quite restricted in their functioning

level, not at all independent, and require constant care and supervision.
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I believe it is important that New Jersey explore what is the
correct level of ICF/MR beds for your state. That is, I believe it would be
grossly inappropriate to simply close all of your facilities based on the
considerations that I am raising in this testimony. In fact, it is the fear on
the part of parents, families, guardians, and others in New Jersey, as
elsewhere in America, that this valuable resource will no longer be available
and that their loved ones will receive inferior services in the community to
their great detriment. The parents and family members of individuals in
institutions are strongly advocating for the continuance of some of these
facilities. I believe that you, the legislators here in New Jersey, need to seek
and seriously consider the views of those who are closest to the individuals
receiving services and who are typically their legal guardians.

And my number five point, which I've already touched on:
Individuals and families have choices. And I've already pointed out that I
think the Medicaid act, and the regulations, and the Olmstead decision
supports that they be given that choice.

What I've already also touched on is number six: Positive
outcomes are not always assured. When individuals with severe and
profound disabilities are moved from ICF/MR facilities, the positive
outcomes of increased integration, community involvement, and exercise of
free choice are not always observed.

Outcomes for many mildly disabled individuals leaving
institutions for community settings may be truly positive for them and
result in an improved quality of life. However, that’s not the population
you're generally looking at here in the current developmental centers.

However, severely and profoundly disabled individuals receiving highly
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professional, complex ICF/MR-level professional services within institutions,
who are then placed in HCBS Waiver settings, may have difficulty gaining
access to these services, especially medical care, psychiatric care, and
behavioral supports which are often difficult to access or sometimes simply
unavailable.

When adequate health and other professional services are not
as readily available as they are in ICF/MR settings, research and practice
shows that individuals run increased risk of death, mental health crises,
inappropriate placement in nursing homes, lack of access to needed services,
and so forth. It would seem most appropriate at present to retain complex
individuals in ICF/MR settings, if they choose them, in which these services
are available and accessible until such time as some other service
infrastructure for these individuals can be sufficiently developed in
community settings.

So to conclude, in my opinion it would be rash to close IDD
facilities in New Jersey that are certified to provide ICF/MR services, when
substantial numbers of individuals with severe and profound disabilities are
currently benefiting from such services and appear to require them. I do
recognize that there may be some consideration of consolidation, and that
may be possible. However, in my view, it would be wrong to begin on a
program designed to close all developmental centers in favor of community-
based services. (applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Please hold your
applause.

Thank you, Mr. York.

Any members have questions for Mr. York?
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Senator Allen.

SENATOR ALLEN: Your statistic of the number who dies is
very frightening, and I'm wondering if any of that is based on New Jersey
information.

MR. YORK: I think there are-- Senator, there are some studies
that have done -- attempts have been made to do more nationwide. That
particular one I gave you was from a particular state.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: What state?

MR. YORK: What state?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Yes.

MR. YORK: There have been efforts, though, to gather that
kind of information nationwide. And those studies have generally shown --
and one of them I think was done by one of your doctors here in this state.
Dr. Kastner has helped in one of those studies, and he worked with Dr.
Strauss in California -- have generally shown that mortality rates are higher
in the community, abuse rates are higher in the community, and other
factors also. Turnover of staff is higher in the community. You don’t have
probably as good a staff outfitted in some of these community settings,
staying as long and being committed there to a long-term job. And as you
know, staff turnover usually results in poorer services when you have staff
turnover. (applause)

SENATOR ALLEN: I asked about it being New Jersey-- As it
happens, I served on the board of an organization that runs many group
homes here in New Jersey and deals with many folks with developmental
disabilities on many levels. And they do offer wonderful care and these

sorts of things. I know many other groups that do. I honestly don’t know
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of any that don’t. I'm not saying that they don’t exist, I just don’t know of
them in New Jersey. And it just concerns me that we would be thinking
that there were so many groups in New Jersey, if we can’t point to them,
that are doing such a poor job that they would have these problems occur.

I also must say, I do appreciate your pointing out that the folks
who are working in the institutions are good, hard-working people who
don’t deserve to have that broad brush of abuse used.

I guess I would like to have further information from you,
possibly written, on what you know about New Jersey in particular so that
we can have a good sense of our state. I hear what you're saying about
other states, but honestly that isn’t what’s important to me. It’s what we’re
doing here. (applause)

MR. YORK: That’s very fair.

SENATOR ALLEN: Thank you.

MR. YORK: I would be happy to try to provide some
additional information for you, Senator.

SENATOR ALLEN: Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Assemblyman
Malone.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Thank you.

Mr. York, are you familiar-- In our hearings on the Budget
Committee and in other situations, we’ve heard that Maryland is a model of
success. Are you familiar with the Rosewood closing in Maryland?

MR. YORK: I have some familiarity with it, yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: What were the results of that

closure in Maryland?
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MR. YORK: I can provide you with some additional data on
that. I believe it has, again, mixed results, as with most closures. And,
again, it’s how you measure it. I mean, there are a lot of people out there
who will give you data -- so-called -- I call it pseudoscience -- that will tell you
how successful everybody is who has been moved out into the community,
because they go in and gauge things like, “How happy did the person look
when I went and visited them?” But I try to rely more on empirical,
scientifically proven data which demonstrates the mortality rates, the abuse
rates, and those kinds of things that are actually something that you can
measure, that you can actually put your finger on. But I think I can supply
you with some information from Maryland.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: We had received a copy of a
Justice report on the results of the Rosewood closing, and it’s pretty
horrifying. And anyone who would like a copy of that-- I just think that we
need to look at other situations and how they were handled. And I would
be very interested in getting, as the Senator was, some additional
information from you from various aspects across the country.

MR. YORK: And another example -- and I don’t think they’d
mind me saying, because it was pressured on them by the U.S. Department
of Justice, who is often my adversary in these types of cases. But Nebraska
has had a bad experience recently too, where they were forced to move out
a number of people rather abruptly. And the next thing you know, the
parents and everybody are coming back in and saying, “My child is being
harmed or has died now.” And I think careful consideration has to be made

before anybody is moved. So I would be happy to try to help you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: I'm assuming you have an
extensive background in litigating against the Justice Department in closure
i1ssues.

MR. YORIK: That’s true.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: How successful have you been in
your litigations with the Justice Department?

MR. YORK: Well, many of the cases end up in settlement, so
you would have to -- that would be somewhat subjective on how successful
or unsuccessful. I think we’ve gotten the best settlements in the country.
I'm sorry if I sound a little prideful there. But the only times we’ve taken
cases to trial and finished the trial -- we’ve beaten them every time. They’ve
never beaten us in the courtroom. So we’ve been very successful.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Categorized, at times, the Justice
Department is being a little overzealous in their reach?

MR. YORK: Absolutely. I've been shocked. Being a former
deputy attorney general from Pennsylvania, I thought they were cut from
the same cloth as me, and that the truth would prevail, and the facts would
prevail. And I find much of their advocacy is zealous -- they’re zealously
attacking things and coming from a political perspective rather than basing
their cases on the facts.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Thank you very much.

MR. YORK: Thank you, Senator.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Assemblywoman
McHose.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN  McHOSE:  Thank you, Madam

Chairwoman.
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Mr. York, I just want to thank you for bringing up the cost
comparison, because that was one of the thoughts that I had as a layperson.
I'm new to the Human Services Committee this year. And my concern was
that although I know there are many, many good community-based service
providers, I just couldn’t understand and relate to the cost shift from the
developmental centers to individual care. And I think that what you
explained was helpful to me. So I appreciate that very much.

Thank you for being here today.

MR. YORK: Well, thank you very much. And I wish there
were better studies on the cost comparison. Because there is a chance that
you do save some money moving people to the community, although that,
obviously, shouldn’t be your only consideration. But what you're getting
usually from the advocacy groups and other people who want to advocate
their position is apples to oranges. They are not including everything into
the cost analysis that they should. I would like to see a study that really
breaks it down and includes all the same things in the same categories so
that you can really say, “This is what the savings would be if you need to.”

Again, I think parents’ rights and choice might outweigh,
sometimes, even if it is more expensive. You might still want to do what
the parents want to do. But I'm just saying the cost analyses that I've seen,
-- and we’ve litigated over in trials in courtrooms, have not stood up because
they do not compare the same things.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McHOSE: Thank you very much.

Assistant Commissioner Ritchey, do we have some of those

numbers here in New Jersey?
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ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RITCHEY: Chairwoman (sic),
Senator (sic), the issue is very, very complex because the funding formulas
are totally different between the developmental center and the community
waiver program. You have to factor in numerous discrepancies because
when you’re on the waiver, you build in a higher SSI payment, you have
your Medicaid card. A lot of that is covered in the DC.

That being said, the other problem we run into is, when you
move a person into the community today -- I can give you an exact budget
pretty much down to the penny. It may not be there a year later. You have
no comparison in the center, because all the costs reports are generated on
averages for the center. So I can’t start with John and say, “I spent exactly
this dollar in the DC but now this dollar in the community.”

So what I'm going to answer you-- I'm going to answer your
question, but I want to put a lot of caveats here, because it is not simple
analysis. In talking to various states, the range of cost difference -- not the
reimbursement differences, because the waiver is reimbursed in a different
way than, I say, from our funding -- is between 15 percent and 33 percent --
is what we best can see.

Looking at New Jersey, with the people we’ve moved in the last
year, compared to average costs for that person in the center -- which is not
their cost -- the differences of cost is about 26 percent. But that’s not the
reimbursement. So I want to be real clear. And I have seen no study that
has really nailed uniqueness, because even the Federal government sees the
institutional side differently than the waiver side.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McHOSE: Thank you for that.

Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.
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SENATOR VITALE: Thank you very much for coming. I
appreciate you taking the time to be here and traveling so far.

MR. YORK: Thank you for the honor of letting me appear.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you. (applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Next we have Dr.
Conroy, the CEO of the Center for Outcome Analysis; and Dr. Spitalnik,
the Executive Director of the Elizabeth Boggs Center on Developmental
Disabilities.

Welcome to you both.

Is Dr. Conroy here with you as well?

DEBORAH M. SPITALNIK, PhD. Idon’tknow. I
haven’t seen him, and he is about 6’2, so I assume--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Okay. Well then
it’s all yours.

DR. SPITALNIK: Thank you.

Thank you so much, Senator Vitale, Assemblywoman Huttle,
members, and guests. I'm pleased to have the opportunity to testify before
you today.

My name is Deborah Spitalnik, and I'm Professor of Pediatrics
at the University of Medicine and Dentistry, Robert Wood Johnson
Medical School. I'm also the Executive Director of the Elizabeth Boggs
Center on Developmental Disabilities, New Jersey’s federally designated
University Center for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities Education,
Research, and Service. And one of our functions is to advise policymalkers.

And that’s the context I appear before you today.
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I'm also former chair of the President’s Committee on
Intellectual Disability, and also a former guardian of a man who lived at
Hunterdon Developmental Center.

My goal today is to place our experience in New Jersey -- and
it’s very germane given Mr. York’s testimony -- our concerns and
opportunities for supporting people in a national context.

The information I'm sharing with you today comes from a
national database, it’s verified.

And I also have New Jersey-specific information, Senator Allen,
which I'm delighted to share.

It’s my goal today to contribute to a dialogue that affirms
whatever position we're taking, we have the common commitment to the
well-being of people with disabilities.

There has been, for the past 30 years, a clear direction in
Federal and State policy toward community living for individuals with
disabilities. This policy began under President Nixon, and it has always
been a bipartisan commitment. This commitment is evident in the
Developmental Disabilities Act, the thrust of Medicaid funding for long-
term care services, the Olmstead Supreme Court decision, the Year of
Community Living.

I also very optimistically share with you that in the New
Patient Protection bill -- so-called Federal Healthcare Reform -- there are
possibilities for increased revenue to the State, but only for community
services.

Assistant Commissioner Ritchey talked about the individuals

served by the Division of Developmental Disabilities. And I want to point

59



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

out that 70 percent of those on the Division’s caseload live with their
families, and that’s in contrast to the national percentage of 57 percent.
Additionally, we have a larger number of people living out-of-home in New
Jersey, 22 percent.

For people in our state who utilize residential placements, we
have a smaller percentage of people who live in small group homes,
supervised apartments than the national average. We're about 20 percent
lower. But we are two-and-a-half times higher in the degree to which we
rely on large, state-run institutions. It also should be mentioned that New
Jersey has the largest number of people placed in out-of-state placements,
which is a great human cost in terms of separation from the family; and also
very expensive. And, unfortunately, over the past 10 years we’ve seen a 500
person increase in the number of people living in nursing facilities, bringing
our total to about 984.

The clear national policy trend, both from a legislative court, as
well as financial perspective, is toward decreased reliance on state
institutions and increased supports for families. Eleven states have only one
institution. And as Assistant Commissioner Ritchey mentioned, 11 states
have no institutions. Those states-- The individuals who live in those
states are no less disabled than New Jersey citizens with developmental
disabilities. New Jersey is one of only 10 states that has over 2,000 people
in public institutions. Eight percent of the population in other states live in
institutions, 25 percent in New Jersey. We have a large absolute number of
people, we have a large percentage of people. And from a population

perspective, we have institutionalized more people.
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The level of intellectual disability -- and this speaks to one of
the things Mr. York raised -- of individuals who reside in New Jersey’s
developmental centers is very comparable to the level of intellectual
disability of institutions in other states. The one exception is that we have
a larger number of individuals who are classified as having profound
intellectual disability. However, I point out that our neighboring state of
Pennsylvania has the same proportion of people who function in that range,
and they have also, in contrast to our pace of developing community and
reducing institutions, been much quicker.

The other point I think needs to be-- And let me tell you all
some more. And we acknowledge that there are people in the
developmental centers with very severe needs. But I assure you that for
every person in a developmental center, there is a twin in the community
who has as significant a disability. The difference may be that the
population in the institution is slightly older. But for families who, through
the day training program, through public education, through SSI, were able
to keep their family members at home: There are families who have their
family member on ventilators, who get up during the night and provide
nourishment through feeding tubes, who deal with incontinence
continually, and with medical challenges. So no one is disputing the needs
of people in developmental centers. But let us be perfectly clear that we
have the same needs among the 70 percent of families who have their
family members at home.

As Commissioner Ritchey pointed out, in 1980 we had 7,262
people in New Jersey’s developmental centers, which we then called State

schools and hospitals. Between 1980 and 2008, we decreased the population
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by 59 percent. At the same time, the rest of the country decreased its
institutional population by 72 percent.  Our neighboring state of
Pennsylvania, who started out with the same level of population that Mr.
York referenced, decreased its large congregate settings by 82 percent in
contrast to our 59 percent. Our pace of reducing the size of institutions is
slower than the national average.

But I do want to turn now -- and I had already prepared this,
but I'm pleased to be able to respond to Senator Allen -- about our
experience in New Jersey, our database experience in moving people from
institutions to the community.

New Jersey has closed three institutions: Edison, which was a
very temporary, small institution that was only open for three years;
Johnstone Training Center, that Mr. Emmons mentioned where he had
lived. Our major closing was at North Princeton Developmental Center. It
was closed in 1998. When the closure process began, there were 512
individuals living there. Extensive documentation of the impact of this
closing on our New Jersey citizens was developed by the New Jersey
Institute of Technology, the Developmental Disabilities Planning Institute.
Through measuring the status of these individuals prior to the closing and
at regular intervals throughout, and comparing their experience and their
well-being to other individuals who remained in New Jersey institutions, the
Planning Institute demonstrated a couple of things that are very germane to
this conversation, and I'm abbreviating.

One is positive outcomes. There was no evidence associated
with increased mortality or other negative consequences -- New Jersey-

specific data. And despite initial opposition, there was eventual support for
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community living by a clear majority of North Princeton Developmental
Center families.

We heard earlier about psychiatric and behavioral needs. These
needs are often identified both as needs in the communities, deficiencies in
the communities, and they are. And, unfortunately, they are a cause of --
an entirely preventable cause of institutionalization. For this North
Princeton population that we measured, there were increased numbers of
individuals receiving a psychiatric diagnosis, an increased use of
antipsychotic medication, and a decreased use of behavior medication.
What that means to me -- and there is, in this population, a higher
incidence of psychiatric disorder and behavior problems -- and estimates
range from 30 to 75 percent of the population. What this means to me is
that when individuals move to the community, there was more address of
their psychiatric need rather than just using chemical restraint in terms of
behavior intervention. We don’t have enough psychiatric care in the
community, we don’t have enough behavioral care, but we have the capacity
to build that capacity. We do not have to put people in particular settings
in order to address their needs.

As you know, Medicaid Title 19 is the underpinning for long-
term care both in New Jersey and around the country. How we in New
Jersey use Medicaid has a unique history, and it really reflects, I think, our
pattern of service delivery. And I think we can do better with it.

The Intermediate Care Facility program that people mentioned
-- Title 19, which both provided Federal funding, and standards, and
improvements-- By 1977, 40 states had one ICF/MR. We did not, in New

Jersey, enter this program until 1978. But when we did, it became the
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impetus for reducing the institutional population by over 1,500 individuals,
21 percent of the population, in the five-year period between 1980 and ’85.
And Kathy Walsh, in her earlier testimony, talked about how The Arc of
Bergen and Passaic, and many others, developed services for those
individuals.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Doctor, I hate to
interrupt, but we have quite a few speakers. I just wanted -- if you could
wrap up.

DR. SPITALNIK: Sure.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

DR. SPITALNIK: I will be quick, but I hope to have as much
time with the data as Mr. York was able to have. (applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Please, I think
the applause is taking away your time as well. I would just like to have
equal time so that we can have Q and A afterwards.

DR. SPITALNIK: Of course. And I can stop now. But I do--
There are two charts that I want to call your attention to.

And I meant no disrespect by that, but rather my eagerness to
share New Jersey-specific data with all of you--

When we look -- and it’s Table 4 in what I've provided you
with -- that we have continued to lag behind. We are higher in institutional
expenses than the nation, and we are lower in Medicaid community
expenses. In New Jersey-- The other thing that I-- And so if you look at
Table 4 -- and I won’t commit the error of academics and belabor it -- but
when you look at where we put our resources, they are more heavily in the

institution.
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We also know that institutional per diem costs have risen
dramatically in New Jersey and that our per diem costs are higher than the
national average. Our per diem costs are, on the average, $219,987. In the
U.S., they're $128,000. The other I want to mention is that we have
tremendous variation, within our developmental centers, of cost. And I
think some of that may be accounted for by the fact that we are
maintaining exceedingly outdated, ineffective, capital systems to which we
continue to have to, of course, be responsive for their functioning. But
those moneys do not go directly to the care of citizens with developmental
disabilities.

I want to mention, in terms of the issue of choice, that choice is
an issue not at which -- I affirm for all people with developmental
disabilities and their families, but choice is an issue not only for individuals
who seek an ICF/MR institutional-level of care, but also for individuals who
seel a home- and community-based service level of care. This Legislature,
under Public Law 1997, asked the Department of Human Services to
develop a plan to end the waiting list in 10 years, by 2008. One of the
elements of that plan and the recommendations -- which was a compromise
brokered between the late, beloved Leila Gold, who was the head of the
parents at Hunterdon, and community parents -- was to close three
developmental centers in order to make those resources available to the
community.

I want to close with a note of hope and revenue, which is that
in the Patient Protection -- the Federal Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act there are three provisions that address long-term care, that hold

the promise for New Jersey of increased Federal revenue. These are the new
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State Balancing Initiatives Payment Program, which will be a four-year
program that will provide a temporary increase in Federal matching rates for
states that make structural reforms by decreasing the institutional
population and increasing the community population; by the Community
First Choice Option, which will enable assistance for people in the
community, including people with profound disability, for personal care, for
(indiscernible) and other kinds of supports -- such as people describe their
family members need. This could provide an additional 6 percent Federal
match for New Jersey Medicaid. And lastly, the extension of the Money
Follows the Person Rebalancing Act, which has been extended through
2016. One of our challenges is that New Jersey follow these, that we
position ourselves appropriately so that we can take advantage of these
increased Federal resources and provide opportunities for all our citizens.

Thank you for your patience. And may I ask -- any questions.
(applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Any questions
from the Committee?

SENATOR VITALE: I thank you Dr. Spitalnik. Thank you for
being here and for your ongoing advocacy and hard work.

DR. SPITALNIK: Thank you.

SENATOR VITALE: There’s been a lot of discussion today
about choice, and that’s appropriate. But respecting choice is certainly
important. What kind of effect would-- If it is that the majority of
individuals who currently reside in developmental centers -- their choice,

the choice of the families -- for them is to remain there, how difficult would
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it be to then close a developmental center or two in this state if the choice
was to stay for most people?

DR. SPITALNIK: Thank you for that question. I think one of
the issues that was pointed out earlier is that this Legislature asked the
Department of Human Services to make a commitment to move individuals
from the developmental center, under State law, and that the Division had
developed a plan that involved 250 people moving a year. We have never
had the available resources to move that number of people.

I would fight to the death for a family’s right to make a choice.
But I feel that the choice is for -- and it’s under Medicaid law-- The choice
is for an institutional level of care. It is not for-- There is nothing in
Federal law that says you are entitled to a particular location. And I think
the reality that we have is that we want to honor the choice of families and
individuals who want an institutional level of care. But unless we
consolidate, and rebalance the system, and take advantage of the home- and
community-based services waivers, and these new Federal moneys, we are
mitigating the choice of the 70 percent of families who are caring for their
loved ones at home, some of whom have turned down placements offered
because they are not the services they want for their family member.

Many of these families who are ill or aging are hanging on and
continuing to provide care not only out of their love and devotion for their
family member, but because the alternative to them of their family member
going to a developmental center is the complete abrogation of their life-long
choice. I mean, there is a range of abilities and needs, both in the centers
and at home. But I have recently been reading -- and I think it will be

available to you -- the list of things that families who have their family
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member -- their daily to-do list of what families are doing at home. And
there are families who are providing continence care, diapering, feeding,
feeding tubes, cleaning ventilators -- whatever it is. And there are other
families who can’t leave their family member alone because of their need for
supervision. We have to find a way to honor choice but to consolidate
and/or close so that we can appropriately balance the resources in the
community, and so that we can assure choice for all families. (applause)

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you very much. Thank you,
doctor.

DR. SPITALNIK: Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: I'm not sure you quite answered
the Senator’s question.

DR. SPITALNIK: I'm sorry.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: If a family chooses, as their
family choice, to stay within the developmental center, is it their right to
make that decision?

DR. SPITALNIK: I think it is their right to make that decision
on the advice of treatment, and also assuming that’s what their family
member wants.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Okay.

DR. SPITALNIK: But the question is--

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: No, I think the question that
was asked is what the question is. The question is: If the family member
chooses, along with the individual, to stay in the developmental center -- it
is their right to do that?

DR. SPITALNIK: Yes, I believe that’s what Olmstead says.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Okay. Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Excuse me.
I'm a family member, and unfortunately we have to leave. The bus is
leaving. Can I ask you one question, doctor.

SENATOR VITALE: I appreciate that. You can ask her
privately if you’d like to after she’s finished.

Thank you.

DR. SPITALNIK: Thank you for your time.

SENATOR VITALE: You can have a conversation on the side
if you’d like.

Thank you.

Joe Young, Disability Rights New Jersey; and Sue Gottesman,
New Jersey Council on Developmental Disabilities; and I think it’s Elaine --
I can’t read the writing.

Is Joe here? (affirmative response)

Joe, there you are.

Is Sue here? (no response)

Elaine Buchsbaum?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:  Alison
Lozano.

SENATOR VITALE: Pardon me? Can you come up to the
front table, please?
JOSEPH B. YOUNG, ESQ.: Alison Lozano from the Council is
speaking for Sue.

SENATOR VITALE: Okay. You can come to the front table

please.
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I just want to-- Those who are still scheduled to speak, I just
want you to know that it is 3:45, almost 3:50. And we’d like to get through
all of those who signed up to testify. I would rather have their -- reserve
their time to testify. And if we could just keep our comments as brief as
possible to summarize what it is that you’ve come to say. No more than
five minutes each, please.

Thank you.

ALISON M. LOZANO, PhD. I'mnot Elaine Buchsbaum.
Elaine had to leave to take care of a family matter.

I’'m Alison Lozano, and I'm the Executive Director of the New
Jersey Council on Developmental Disabilities.

I want to thank the Committee Chairs, Senator Vitale,
Assemblywoman Huttle; and the members of the Committee for this
opportunity to contribute to today’s discussion about how to best design
and deliver services to people with developmental disabilities in New Jersey
and their families.

The Council appreciates the economic realities of the times and
the budgetary challenges facing our State. These fiscal constraints make it
particularly important to examine the consequences of maintaining a system
in which nearly 35 percent of the Division of Developmental Disabilities’
budget is used to maintain seven large institutions that serve only 7 percent
of the state’s more than 400,000 eligible people.

In addition, DDD maintains waiting lists of over 8,000 people
who want community residential services or other supports that will enable

them to live outside the developmental centers. Thousands of families who
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care for a loved one at home do not get much in the way of family support
dollars or self-directed service dollars to make their situations manageable.

By way of a personal introduction, I raised my niece who has a
developmental disability. ~ She currently lives in a supported living
apartment five miles from our home in Mount Holly. She is part of her
community and enjoys her life as fully as anybody else who lives in the
community would do so. She, by the way, is supported in her community
and her life supports run a par with the rest of us who live in the
community, including social, medical, and psychiatric interventions.

The most important messages from families that they want you
to hear today is that we live with the constant fear that our children will
end up in an emergency developmental center placement, exactly where we
have sworn they will never go. And speaking on behalf of Elaine, who is the
parent of a 35-year-old man with autism, intellectual disabilities, and a
seizure disorder, Matt lives with Elaine and her husband long past when she
feels he should be doing so. He needs to have a place of his own separate
from his parents and be ready for a day when they are no longer alive. And
this is a great concern of Elaine’s, if I may speak on her behalf.

Any State approach to services that fails to provide real
community alternatives to institutional placement violates all that we
families spend our lives working for to ensure that our loved ones continue
to have a place to live and thrive in their community.

Attached to the written testimony that you have been given is
the Council’s response to information being circulated by an organization
known as Advocates for New Jersey Developmental Center Residents. We

believe that the group’s claims that 96 percent of guardians and family
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members prefer continued ICF/MR services over community services is
inaccurate, and we demonstrate its inaccuracy in the attachment that you
received.

In particular, based on information in the group’s own
publication, only roughly half of the total number of DC residents at the
time the survey was completed had a family member or guardian respond to
the survey at all. We have observed that the majority of New Jersey
families prefer to have their sons and daughters with developmental centers
(sic) live with them at home or near them in a community setting with
appropriate supports, just as my child is supported in the community.

New Jersey, like most other states in the nation, has direct
experience demonstrating the positive outcomes of closing large institutions.
A study of the results of the 1998 closing of North Princeton
Developmental Center, published by the American Association on Mental
Retardation in 2005, found that individuals who transitioned out of the
institutional settings have more friends, exhibited less challenging
behaviors, perceived their lives to be better, and demonstrated significant
increases in self-care skills over time. Significantly, the study also reported
convincing evidence that the people who remained in institutional settings
showed significantly decreased cognitive and social skills.

The United States Supreme Court, in the landmark Olmstead
decision, concluded: Confinement in an institution severely diminishes the
every day activities of individuals, including family relations.

Thank you very much for allowing me to make this

presentation.

SENATOR VITALE: Joe.
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MR. YOUNG: Good afternoon.

One of the advantages of being this far down in the order is
that I get to throw out my first couple of pages again.

Let me try to add-- I'm an attorney for Disability Rights New
Jersey. We actually have a suit at the moment going on against the
Division of Developmental Disabilities over this issue.

But if my staff will turn off their computers and stop listening,
let me indicate that we would-- The goal of the Olmstead is for the states
to develop a plan. Mr. York was here indicating that he was defending
states. We would be very happy-- We believe the floor below which the
State cannot go is a plan. The State of New Jersey has published a plan; we
would like to see the State of New Jersey fund the plan. If the State of New
Jersey funded that plan over the next five years -- the plan calls for eight,
but let’s just deal with five for the moment -- over the next five years, not a
single person in a developmental center now would -- who does not want to
leave would be asked to leave. In all practicality, they will probably never
be asked to leave. But there will still be hundreds of people living in
developmental centers who want to leave, and thousands of people living
with their families in need of community service.

So this hearing is not about forcing people out of
developmental centers. It’s unlikely that’s ever going to happen in New
Jersey. What do we need to do to get the people who are in there now, who
have been waiting from months to decades, to leave? What do we need to
do there now to help them get out?

And I will trust my written testimony for your summer reading

at the beach this summer. (laughter)
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SENATOR VITALE: Are there any questions from any
members? (no response)

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

We have some family members from the centers. I believe they
have either their sons, or daughters, or siblings. But I will call up Cindy
Bartman, the State Coordinator, to come up with -- I don’t know if they’re
all here, but I will call their names.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: They are.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Okay. Joanne St.
Amand, Philip Metta, Sisto Caponera, Carol Mastropolo, Annie Esposito,
Vito Colletti, Winnie Sekela.

Cindy, you’ll orchestrate where they sit and where they come
up, and if you want the second panel to come up after you. I think, Cindy,
you're the spokesperson.

CINDY BARTM AN: Yes, I'll start, I'll kick us off.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Just have maybe a

minute of--

Cindy, are you--

MS. BARTMAN: I can talk pretty loud.

SENATOR VITALE: Behind you there’s a mike on, I think --
the table behind you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Cindy, if each
member is going to speak -- if you could have maybe just your intro and

then have each member maybe take a minute or so.
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MS. BARTMAN: Okay. Thank you so much, Assemblywoman
Huttle.

Good afternoon everybody.

My name is Cindy Bartman, and I'm the President of the
Association for Hunterdon Developmental Center. Our panel consists of
representatives from all seven of our New Jersey developmental centers. On
behalf of myself and them, I would like to thank you for this opportunity
today to speak with you and share with you the stories of our families, in
their words.

We are the primary decision makers for our children the way
that any parent or family member is, and we are the stakeholders in this
matter of the future for our loved one’s homes.

Here are a couple of facts that I hope you will find compelling:
According to 2008 statistics, New Jersey is not number one, or two, or even
10th in the utilization of ICF/MR services as compared to each states’ total
population. New Jersey ranks 16th.

Secondly, you would think that with all this talk about the cost
of developmental centers that our direct care workers would be paid the
highest wages. Actually, in 2008, New Jersey came in as number 11 when
ranked alongside the other states with large state facilities. And though our
direct care staff are not the highest paid in the nation, New Jersey ranks
among the lowest in staff turnover rate. The status of those who work in
waiver homes is nowhere near as stable as this.

During Commissioner Velez’s Senate Judiciary confirmation
hearing this past March, she was asked to explain why providers of

community group homes were not required to rebid their contracts on a
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yearly basis. Ms. Velez replied, and I quote, “With respect to those served
in the DD world, it is hugely disruptive for families to come to learn that
the place where their son or daughter has been for a very long period of
time, by a provider agency that is working well, may now lose a bid to the
lowest bidder. That would be hugely disruptive to the system.” I actually
took some pain in explaining this to the Comptroller’s office that, in this
instance -- that if somebody is residing at a provider agency, and has done
so for decades, to uproot that person because of a lower bid would be very
disruptive for that family, for all families. And I still maintain that position.
The disruption -- it’s very unlike almost any other system. The continuity
for families really is paramount.

So I ask you, why would anyone think different for our family
members and their homes at the developmental centers?

You've already been introduced to who will be speaking, so I'm
going to give you an overview of Hunterdon Developmental Center and
excerpts from letters sent in by families. And you have packets in
testimonial form for both Senate and the--

SENATOR VITALE: We have all of that testimony.

MS. BARTMAN: You have all the testimony. You will have all
the testimony.

SENATOR VITALE: So it’s not necessary to read all those
letters, though.

MS. BARTMAN: We're not reading all the letters. We're
giving you excerpts so everybody can understand what our families are

going through. They’re short excerpts.
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The census at Hunterdon Developmental Center is 561. Fifty-
three residents have feeding tubes, seven have trachs, one is completely
ventilator-dependent, three residents use nighttime ventilators, two
residents have colostomy bags, nine have pacemakers, eight residents
require daily catheter treatments, 86 receive respiratory therapy, 55
residents are severely retarded, and 461 residents are profoundly retarded.
These represent 93 percent of Hunterdon’s population.

For the survey of choice that was compiled by the Advocates for
Developmental Centers residents, our return of responses to the survey was
516 from a census of 561. All but eight responses favored having their
loved ones stay at Hunterdon. And these are all of the returns that I have.
If anybody would like to see them, they’re welcome to them.

So now I'm going to read you a few of the excerpts. Anne M.:
“The developmental centers are needed and should not be closed.”

Mary F.: “We would never want our daughter moved into a
group home. This is our decision. We are her family, and we know what is
best for her. We are upset every year with these notions that we would
want community placement for our child. This attempt every year to
abolish a system that works so well contradicts the fact that New Jersey
cares for its most needy citizens.”

Bill C.: “Eddie was one of the first clients of Hunterdon
Developmental Center. The change in his life and our lives was miraculous.
After 40 years, we are still impressed with the extraordinary amount of care
that the clients of these centers receive. We know he has been happy, and
that makes us grateful. The facilities are resources to be nurtured, not piggy

banks to be cracked.”
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James H. says: “My son is at HDC, and the people working
with him do an amazing job. They always include me in the decision
making with everything he needs.”

Judith B. states: “I find it totally despicable that anyone could
even dream of closing my brother’s home, never mind the audacity to try
and close it. These special people do not adjust to change well. How cruel.
It would be like punishing them. Do you really think it would be progress?
No, they would regress. The ultimate decision maker should be the family.”

Emma P. states: “My son is 31 and has autism. He also has
fatal food allergies as well as severe environmental allergies which can also
be threatening to his health. My son’s doctors, his father, and I strongly
feel that my son is safest in a developmental center where there is on-site
medical attention.”

Tom B. states: “Most of the clients now in our developmental
centers have the mental functioning of a 2-year-old or less. During the mass
exodus from the centers in the ’90s, staff recommended those who could
benefit from waiver services. The providers then came and cherry-picked
the least difficult clients, leaving others behind. There are eyewitness
accounts of residents leaving and then returning to the centers after failed
experiences in the community. Of the past seven clients that staff were
recently pressured into sending out into waiver services, five have returned
to the Center in far worse medical shape than when they were initially
discharged from HDC. One girl only lasted 12 days before coming back on
a feeding tube because she did not eat anything for the entire 12 days that
she lived in the group home. Another girl who was very active at HDC

came back confined to a wheelchair. Another person came back with
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multiple fractures. Two others came back with feeding tubes. We also
know of a number of deaths.”

Jeff B. states: “I have been visiting HDC all my adult life and
have spoken to staff and families, and I believe that it is a fallacy that a
significant portion of the clients there wish to leave HDC or that their
families would prefer community placement.”

Maria A.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Cindy, I hate to
interrupt you again. The only reason I'm asking you to wrap it up is so that
each one of the family members has an opportunity. You know what?
We're losing our Committee as well because of the hour.

MS. BARTMAN: Yes, I know. As a matter of fact, we’ve lost a
lot of our parents.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: So that’s why -- if
we could wrap it up so that each one has an opportunity to say something.

Thank you.

MS. BARTMAN: Again, it’s excerpts of letters. You got the
gist of what we’re all about. You understand that we did our own survey of
families, guardians, parents, and siblings, and we have the cards here. And
that was all published in our residential choice survey.

Carol Mastropolo, from New Lisbon, who is also not feeling too
good.

SENATOR VITALE: Turn your mike off so she can turn her
mike on. (referring to PA microphone)

Just use one-- There’s one right in front of you.

MS. BARTMAN: Give her a chance, she’s--
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SENATOR VITALE: Take your time.
CAROL MASTROPOLO: It takes me a while.

SENATOR VITALE: For the record, just state your name and
where you’re from.

MS. MASTROPOLO: I'm sorry.

SENATOR VITALE: Just state your name and where you're
from.

MS. MASTROPOLO: Yes, I'm Carol Mastropolo, President of
New Lisbon Developmental Center (sic).

I'm not going to read all the excerpts either. You have it in the
packet.

I would just like to tell you about my son. He’s lived at New
Lisbon for 29 years. He’s happy there. He loves it. He’s home quite a bit,
but he never has a problem. We never have a problem with him going back.

Some people are under the impression that they languish -- the
residents languish in the developmental centers. My son does not languish
there. He is so busy. He goes to a workshop every day to make some
money. He participates in Special Olympics. He goes to hockey games,
and basketball games, and baseball games. And on the campus they always
have, like, field days, weather permitting; diversity day. We have a huge
family day picnic that everybody takes part in. He’s happy there.

I would ask you to please consider not closing the
developmental centers.

Thank you. (applause)

You don’t know how hard that was.

SENATOR VITALE: Is there anyone else who wanted to--
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MS. BARTMAN: Yes, we have--

JOANNE R. St. AMAN D: Yes, my name is Joanne St. Amand.

I am the sister of Rosemary, a profoundly retarded woman who
lives at Woodbridge Developmental Center for 35 years. She was not
expected to live past puberty. Rosemary cannot walk or talk, she cannot
feed herself nor take care of any of her most personal needs. Rosemary
turned 55 last month, which is a direct reflection on the excellent care that
she gets at Woodbridge Developmental Center.

I am also the President of the Woodbridge Developmental
Center Parents Association. I am here today to represent all of the families
at Woodbridge Developmental Center, and I am also going to read some
excerpts to you from many of the letters that were sent out for this hearing.
They are written from the hearts of these families. And I also thank you for
your attention to allow us to express these feelings here.

First, the results of the survey of choice conducted by the
advocates for the developmental center residents-- Our census was 404.
We received 255 postcard returns. Of these, all but 15 are opposed -- all of
them except for those 15 are in favor of the developmental centers. And I
challenged my previous speaker to show me the data that says that our
survey was not conducted properly. We did it from all but (sic) six of the
centers, and we have the cards here to show you. Ninety-four from
Woodbridge are in favor of staying at the developmental center. I want to
malke that perfectly clear -- 94 percent from me, yes.

The following are excerpts, and I won’t read them all to spare

you the time, but I will pick out a few.
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Leonard L. writes: “Several years ago an attempt was made by
Woodbridge Developmental Center to place Bobby in a family/community
placement. Bobby resisted and was quickly moved back to Woodbridge
Developmental Center. Residents of DCs are human beings with feelings
and emotions. Please do not let them be caught up in a political number-
crunching plan that may look good on paper but cannot truly reflect the
impact that closing these developmental centers or reducing the staff and
services at those centers will have on their lives.”

Juana M. writes: “I have always expressed my feelings about
not wanting my son to be placed in a community group home. Do our
choices carry any weight? Their homes are being threatened. Yes,
community life does exist in these centers.”

Thomas, Kathleen, Brandon, Ian, and Chelsea write: “Most of
the patients at the Developmental Center are not fortunate to still have
family and relatives to advocate for them. As a result, they have no voice,
no advocate, and no protector. There is an opportunity here for all
involved to make clear that here, in New Jersey, we are our brother’s
keeper.”

Gerry S., my mother, and 25 of my sister’s relatives write:
“We, the undersigned, recognize that the waiting list crisis in New Jersey
demands the expansion of community-based options. However, we are
against any expansion at the expense of the ICF/MR residents. One size
does not fit all.”

John P. writes: “If you read my brother’s Individual
Habilitation Plan, you will see references that say that he would like to be

put in a group home. There is a simple problem with that comment. My
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brother has never spoken a word in his life, nor would he be able to
understand group homes or communicate his desires in any other non-
spoken way. I raise the point because it makes me wonder how many other
residents’ files contain similar statements that may cause decisions to be
made that are not in the best interests of these individuals.”

Anne D. writes: “We oppose the raising of the cost-of-care
contributions. They do not receive enough money as it is, and they will live
at the poverty level. Also, Maximus is a waste of State dollars, and the
contract with New Jersey should be terminated.”

Louis and Teresa write: “Our son has been in one-to-one care
for years at Woodbridge due to his history of self-abuse. But we just heard
that he is being taken off this one-to-one service due to the fine efforts of
the staff at Woodbridge Developmental Center.”

Please, I ask for all the residents and their families, keep all of
our developmental centers open.

Thank you. (applause)

WINNIE SEKELA: Can you hear me?

SENATOR VITALE: Yes.

MS. SEKELA: I'm Winnie Sekela. I'm from Wayne. My son
is Andrew Sekela. He’s from North Jersey, and he lives there, and he loves
it.

I have a long story which I will bring to--

These 8,000 people out there -- I was one of them. Maybe
there were 5,000, but there were no facilities. So my life was hell. My son
was always in danger. He lived in psychiatric units. He did not live at

home. He would honeymoon and then have to go right back.
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The neighbors: The neighbors the group homes have went to
the police. They came to my house and said, “Why doesn’t this woman get
rid of him?”

I kind of came into the system backward because Whitman was
saying he is eligible but not entitled. And then she said, “You can’t say that
to people anymore.” Nothing more was done. So he went into a group
home -- which were absolutely smashingly, wonderful people. But my son
was not group home material. They tried every way to get him-- He has a
behavioral problem. But he’s neurologically impaired. Of course he’s
retarded. At that point he was like 30 -- but he was about 5 years of age.
He never improved.

Group homes look at them as what they think the person
should do. This group home was very good. They tried everything. And
toward the end they’d ask me to take him for the weekend because they
were having a party or something.

It was then agreed-- He went to-- Again, Elizabeth psychiatric
unit. They couldn’t contain him. Finally we agreed he’d go to North
Jersey. And when he entered North Jersey, his priority on IHP was
behavior. In three years they civilized him. His neurological condition --
any little thing that was wrong with him was taken care of immediately. He
was absolutely ready for group home. I figured he was civilized now and it
might work. He wanted to.

When he came out, the IHP and the proposal from the group
home matched, which was great. But it didn’t when he moved in there. He
was alone in there. He had his own room. That was wonderful. But there

was no congenial mixture. The choices of friends just weren’t there for him.
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He did things like -- he ran and jumped into the railroad tracks down in
Wayne Mountainview. The train could have been coming. The staff
couldn’t get down to him. They called the police, who just about told

U

them, “You better get him out of town.” He took a bus. He was gone from
3:00 in the afternoon. At probably 5:00 or 6:00 the staff got a little worried
and they started letting people know. At 10:00 I got a call saying, “We
understand you took your son.” I didn’t. They were terribly annoyed. He
finally told the bus driver. He rode New Jersey Transit. He has a great
personality. And they dropped him off at Wayne General Emergency
Room. And they were mad because he was eating ice cream. I mean, how
close to 5 years old can you get?

There were so many incidents. One time the staff member --
duh -- put him on a bus in the middle of a blizzard because she had to go
and do something. And it turns out the police were called. He was smart
enough to go to people at the same railroad station he jumped in to tell --
he doesn’t know what to do next. The police came. They reported it to the
State, and this agency had to account for that.

But nobody was fired. I never saw anyone hanging their head.
And it went on. But mostly my son was alone in this community placement
-- alone. And they didn’t offer him activities that were appropriate for him.
And they centered him because he wouldn’t go to things that he did not
like -- like the Medieval thing, you eat this way? -- totally not him. He
didn’t have the choices. He did go back to North Jersey and, again, I can’t
tell you how amazing these people are. I have seen them work with
someone who was very, very -- not alive -- just fighting out -- and turn him

into an acceptable human being. Andy has-- He goes to work, he gets paid.
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He doesn’t think of it in cash, but he thinks of it as two cans of Pepsi and
an apple. He gets it twice a week, and he enjoys it. He does the gardening,
he does so many things.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE:  Thank you,
Winnie. But I see that Phil came up as well, so I think he’s patiently
waiting. And we have a few more members. But I appreciate your stories.
We all do appreciate your stories.

MS. SEKELA: Some of the things I heard today make me
angry, because they’re not true.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Okay. Thank
you.

MS. SEKELA: And the fact that we’re late.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE:  Thank you,
Winnie. But we have some more family members. But we appreciate it.

Thank you so much.

MS. SEKELA: By the way, thank you for having us.
PHILIP METTA: My bus is waiting for me. I was just told that, so
I said, “Let me hurry up.” That’s why they moved me up here.

My name is Phil Metta. I'm the President of the Family
Members and Friends of Green Brook.

Assemblywoman, before I present this, I have to say something.
My daughter Phyllis went into the group home five years ago. She’s
retarded, has epilepsy, she’s in a wheelchair, she’s in diapers, and can’t talk,
etc. We had her home for 46-and-a-half years. Our doctor said she had to
go. I'was 79 years old. He said I had to go. Today I'm 84. But by God, I
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said to myself, “This is amazing.” So for five years she’s there. So the first
time-- We had her home for 46-and-a-half years.

So what I did was, when we brought her there, we went to visit
her 30 days in a row. We drove 170 miles one way, stayed five hours, then
drove back. We never left her before, and we had to find out what it was all
about at this group home. I never heard of it. I knew of institutions, but
never--

And then all of a sudden I started to feel good. I backed it off
to four days a week, and now we’re doing three days a week. But we’re
going to stay at three days a week. We travel 140 miles, we stay four hours
up there, and then we come home. Why? Because I see what they do up
there. Some of the stories you hear today -- not up there. By God, I'll tell
you what.

My wife and I went away for the first time in 50 years. Our
vacation, our first cruise, was just a couple of years ago. We went away for
10 days. Why? Because we were so comfortable knowing that my daughter
was going to be well cared for at this group home. By God, I just praise
these people and I thank these people. And that’s why I became the
President, so I can actually voice for these people and fight for them.

And now I'm going to get to what I came for. What I decided
to do was, I decided to approach this a different way. Instead of talking
about my daughter, I'm going to talk to you about--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Mr. Metta, may I
just clarify? Where is your daughter. You're saying a group home. Where
is she?

MR. METTA: I'm sorry, she’s in Green Brook.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Okay, thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: You meant
Green Brook, not the group home.

MR. METTA: Oh, I'm sorry. Oh my God, pull that out of me.
Oh God. I'm glad you pulled it out of me. (laughter) She’s in a group
home. I goofed big time. I mean, this is the first time she left us.

I approach this differently.  Governor Corzine (sic) says
everything is money, money, money. Okay, I want to talk about money. I
found out there is an appropriation book. I went to the appropriation book
and found out how much it costs for Green Brook. This is what it costs.
Now, we have the smallest place. It’s $113.4 million for Green Brook. I
said, “Wow, okay.” There’s only 84 people. We had 96. They died. I
think two went to group homes, but the rest died because they’re all old.
Now, that’s still a lot of money for 86 people.

But then I found out that our place is federally funded. Now,
what does that mean? To me it means this: that if I write a check and give
it to this worker with this hand, with this hand I say to the Governor -- 1
mean the Federal government -- “Give me the money to take care of that
check.” That’s what federally funded means to me. So that means that the
salaries, which are $11.7 million up there, is paid by the Federal
government. So now this is not such a big number anymore. It becomes
$1.6 million.

By the way, I recycle paper too. That’s why I got it back--
(laughter)

Now, $1.6 million is for building maintenance, food, and

lodging.
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So then I was told by the business administrator, “Mr. Metta”--
They all call me Mr. Metta there, by the way; they’re polite. They call me
Mr. Metta and my wife Mrs. Metta for the five years we’ve been there, and
nothing else. I appreciate that.

Anyhow, the Federal government says, “Let me pick up half of
that.” “Wow,” I said to myself. Now the Federal government says, “I want
to pick $800,000 -- pick up half of that maintenance bill.” My God, they
already said they’re going to pick up this much money, this much money,
and this much money. Look what I did. I went out and bought a red pen
so I can show you in red. The Federal government picks up $12.5 million.
That’s 94 percent of our tab up there, 94 percent. By God, I said to myself,
“I've got a good cash cow here. He’s called the Federal government, and
he’s taking care of it.”

So that means all the State pays is $800,000, not the $13.4
million -- $800,000. Now, there are 84 people there, and I divided it here.
And I got -- it costs $9,500 a year to take care of my daughter and all the
other residents in Green Brook -- $9,500 a year.

As I presented this once, just recently, somebody said, “Yes, but
Governor Christie said, ‘I need the money. Give me the $800,000.”” I said,
“Okay. Give him the $800,000.” So let’s continue with the scenario.
Everybody stops right here. Not me.

We have 246 workers up there. Theyre going to demand
unemployment compensation. Now, Governor Christie is very clear on
that. “I've got no money left. We have so much unemployment, I have no
more unemployment compensation.” So their answer to him is, “Do what

Christie Whitman did, and Jon Corzine. Go borrow it and add it to the
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deficit. We don’t want to know that. We want to get paid.” And look
what they’re going to get paid: $7.9 million. He’s pulling out $800,000.
He’s going to save $800,000, but this is what it’s going to cost him when
he closes us down. When he closes us down it’s going to cost this much
money. I'm a magician. Do you want to see this ugly thing go away? Put
this back in there, open us up, by God, and this disappears. (applause)

And I'll tell you what, I did this for Woodbridge too -- the
whole scenario. And the end thing with -- Woodbridge is going to be closed
in January. Now, they pulled back $8 million, and they’re going to pay $42
million in unemployment compensation. Now, that doesn’t make sense.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Mr. Metta, you
should give those numbers to Assemblyman Malone since he’s on the
Budget Committee. (laughter) And I think he might have some questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: The question is--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: And I apologize
for calling you Phil, Mr. Metta. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: And I met Phil, and his wife,
and his daughter, and his granddaughter last Sunday, and it was great.

MR. METTA: TI'll tell you what. If you're my friend, you can
call me Phil.

ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Let me say this to you: I didn’t
know that Green Brook -- other than some comments that had been made
by Assemblyman Greenwald -- was being closed. It’s not being closed. So
the issue of whether Green Brook is closing or not-- Unless somebody
knows something I don’t know, Green Brook is not slated to be closed.

MR. METTA: No, no more.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MALONE: Maybe Mr. Ritchey can confirm
that.

MR. METTA: Okay, I have to run. The bus is waiting.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you, Mr.
Metta. Thank you so much. (applause)

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RITCHEY:  Senator and
Chairwoman, there are no proposals in the Fiscal Year "11 budget to close
Green Brook developmental center. There are no plans in the State Fiscal
Year budget for 11 -- but it’s under consideration to close Green Brook
developmental center.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.

Second panel, if you want to introduce yourselves again.

Thank you.

And after this panel, we have three more panels.

Welcome.

VITO COLLETTI: My name is Vito Colletti. I'm here as a
representative of the Vineland Developmental Center. I'm going to read
you excerpts from the letters that were sent to this group today. It is
spoken from the hearts and minds.

For the survey of choice that was compiled by the Advocates for
Developmental Center Residents, our return of response to the survey was
168 from a census of 441. All but 10 want the Developmental Center to
stay open. I have all the letters here. If you want to look at them, you can
get names.

Now, from the excerpts: Barbara A., “Our daughter has been in

Vineland DC since January 22, 2010. She was having major behavior
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problems with elopement, and hurting of staff in her day program with her
efforts to get out of the door. At home she had been constantly running out
of the door and down the street to the point where safety was a major
concern. She went to Trinitas Hospital and then was admitted to Vineland.
A group home had been identified to take her, but not for a month at least.
At Vineland she has received excellent care. The staff is great. There are
enough people available when she attempts to elope. She is a big girl, so it
takes a couple of people to get her back into the building, sometimes with
her fighting all the way. She has been attending a day program and is doing
well enough. She had previously failed out of the four day programs in
Ocean County due to her behavior. Thank God for the availability of
Vineland. Where else are you going to go for a emergency placement of a
developmental disabled person when it is needed fast? As a parent, I feel
secure knowing that there are developmental centers available for my child
and others when they are needed. I also know there are individuals who
could not thrive in a community setting. The centers are there to serve
them. What if my daughter fails in her group home? At least she has
Vineland to fall back on. The mental staff is also great. They are able to
get exams and lab work done on my daughter that, in the past, had to be
done in an emergency room with her medicated and strapped down with six
people to hold her. I guess you have to have the right people with the right
training. Keep the DCs open and do not cut their budgets. They need
every penny to continue caring for the developmentally handicapped in a

respectful, careful manner, giving them the lives they deserve.”
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Robert G.: “I feel that nonverbal people and those who present
difficulties to the standard care would be placed at an increased risk of
abuse and neglect.”

Vito and Mary C. -- this is my daughter: “As of now, my
daughter resides in Jones Cottage on the West Campus. Unfortunately,
rumor has it that Jones will be closing in the near future. This is going to
present a major problem as my daughter is autistic and deathly afraid of
moving to strange buildings. She’s also retarded in the effect that she
doesn’t talk, doesn’t write, doesn’t read, cannot bathe herself, cannot feed
herself -- with a little help, she does -- can’t brush her teeth, can’t take a
shower. In fact, she’s retarded. She does not belong in an apartment
building or a group home. And don’t even mention the word nursing home.”

Pat S.: “My daughter was put into a group home and then was
moved to three homes before coming to Vineland. The first group home
placement did not last due to my daughter’s screaming. The second group
home was not a good place. And in the third group home, my daughter
refused to do anything at all. She ended up in the hospital because the staff
at the group home did not give her the medication she needed.”

Carol G.: “Our family has always been secure in the knowledge
that our sister was safe at Vineland, well cared for and encouraged to live up
to her potential. It is very disturbing to me that there is a possibility that
she and so many like her could be deprived of the environment that has
nurtured them for so many years. It may look good on paper, but I foresee
utter chaos. As for group homes, I have often wondered about those who
send questionnaires about group homes and if they are even remotely

acquainted with the residents in question.”
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Ruth B.: “I'm 82 years old, and I am a widow. To have this
emotional situation confront our family at this time is extremely upsetting.”

Helen W.: “I am 85 years old. I do not want my daughter to
move. She is happy.”

Linda C.: “My sister now lives at Vineland DC. She was
forced out into the community during the Whitman administration and
wound up in countless group homes. In the last placement, she was beaten
and a lawsuit was filed. Fortunately, that agency no longer serves New
Jersey. My sister has done well at Vineland, especially now as she needs the
medical care as she battles a recurrence of breast cancer.”

France W.: “We have been repeatedly asked and given
information concerning community placement, and we know that is not
what is best for her. We hope that the Committees understand how
important it is to keep the developmental centers open so the residents are
not forced into a situation that their guardians are totally against for them.”

Heather J.: “My siblings and I have made it clear that our sister
is not a candidate for community placement. It is in her best interest to
remain at Vineland DC where she receives professional care from
competent staff who know her extensive medical needs and daily routines.”

Karen G.: “I am my daughter’s legal guardian, and I know what
is best for her. I know my daughter does not want to leave Vineland. And
by forcing her to do so is in violation of her rights as a citizen.”

Thank you.

SENATOR VITALE: Okay. Who would like to speak next?

You can use that mike. (referring to PA microphone) That’s

fine. Just turn that one off.
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ANNIE ESPOSITO: You can hear me, right?

SENATOR VITALE: You have to turn that one off before you
can turn that one on.

MS. ESPOSITO: How is that?

My name is Annie Esposito. I'm from Montville, New Jersey,
and I am my brother Joseph Ciccolella’s (phonetic spelling) guardian, along
with my brother David. My mother is 75 years old and my father has
passed away, so we are his legal guardians.

I, too, have all the letters. I'm sure you got that by now. So we
have them from North Jersey, as well.

I am here as a representative of North Jersey Developmental
Center families. I am going to read you excerpts from the letters, but they
will be short, I promise -- to this group today. It is spoken from the hearts
and minds of families. They include residents from Green Brook and those
who did not identify themselves with a center in their letter. Thank you for
allowing our voices to finally be heard.

Carol C.: “My son went into a group home at the age of 22.
He had been in a residential school prior to that and developed a caffeine
addiction due to the reward system that included coffee and soda. It was
good to have him closer to home, but the staffing was less. And his
addiction to coffee and biting was too much to contend with. My son was
on the local town’s police blotter for sneaking out of his group home and
entering neighbors” homes looking for coffee. When they put an alarm on
the door, he went out a window on the second floor and fractured his ankle.
He still managed to get into the neighbor’s house. He finally got to NJDC

where he is safe. There are no neighbors to bother, and staff know how to
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get him from place to place. An autistic man such as my son needs sanity
and predictability, and a developmental center is where he is best served.”

Before I tell my personal story, I want to tell you that it does
warm my heart to hear from those residents who are thriving in
communities. However, my brother will never be able to live that reality.
He has the mentality of a 7 year old. He is unable to get his point across.
He speaks with a cleft palate, so you cannot understand him.

This is his story: My brother Joseph Ciccolella has been in
developmental centers for the past 40 years. As difficult as it is not to have
him home with us, we know that NJDC is his home. The care he receives is
more than we can ask for. I come from a family of seven brothers and
sisters. We grew up with Joey’s disability in our lives. And, yes, at times it
was difficult. But it has made all of our lives richer, fuller, better knowing
that we are Joseph’s voice and that we can be the voice of hundreds with no
family to speak for them.

These developmental centers are not only necessary but the
only existence these residents know. Think of taking anyone’s young
children and ripping them from their home, and telling them that they can
never go back home again. If we must fight for something in this world it
should be the rights of the disabled.

I thank you for your time. Please consider keeping these
developmental centers open.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you.
SISTO CAPONERA: My name is Sisto Caponera. I'm

representing Green Brook Regional Center.
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First, I'd like to thank everyone who was involved in returning
our clients back to that facility.

I will go on. I am here as a representative of Green Brook
developmental center and their families. I am going to read you excerpts
from the letters that were sent to this group. It is spoken from the hearts
and minds of the families. They include residents from Green Brook and
those who did not identify themselves with a center in their letter. Thank
you for allowing our voices to finally be heard.

For the survey of choices that was compiled by the Advocates
for Developmental Centers residents, our return of responses to the survey
from Green Brook was 65 -- 65 votes -- that was 65 family members who
wanted their clients to remain in the facility out of 91 returns. So that kind
of explains the residents or the family members -- what they want.

I'm going to read five excerpts of the letters that I received.

This is Ms. Jessica H.: “By closing down the centers, they
would be creating a lot of heartache and pain for the individuals in them,
their families, as well as the thousands who have not been accepted into
facilities. I think the State should leave them open and show more support
to the cause, because as it is, there is not enough support for them and their
families.”

Mr. Joe H.: “My brother has been in both group homes and
developmental centers. He currently resides in a developmental center, and
I can tell you, unequivocally, that there is no substitute for the level of care
and medical attention provided by developmental centers for an aging
person with mental retardation. In each of the group homes he lived in,

there were frequent staff turnovers. This precluded an in-depth familiarity
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with the residents’ physical and medical needs, and prevented the
development of any emotional bond.”

Mr. William S.: “My sister is currently a resident at Green
Brook developmental center. There was a time when she lived in a
sponsored home. The first one was very good, but the family moved away
and my sister was transferred into a home under her care. This was the
most miserable time in her life. The lady had to move and took residence
in a second-floor, four-room apartment in western Newark. The crowded
conditions aided-- My sister’s walking difficulties led to many injuries
including a broken hip. And finally, after a long hospitalization, my sister
was sent to Green Brook. She is now comfortable in a clean, maintained
room with another resident. She receives proper nutrition prepared and
serviced to fit her health and abilities to digest. Medical services are
available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. To remove her and other
residents from this, their only recognizable home, would be tragic and
unforgiving.”

No. 4 letter, Ms. Mary M.: “My sister is now 80 years old and
lives at Green Brook Regional Center. She has never spoken nor has she
been able to function herself. She has lived in Green Brook for 20 years. I
am familiar with the group home and know they are well-run. My sister’s
needs are a different kind of care. There are also many like her in the world
who desperately need such centers.”

And No. 6 (sic), Mr. Terry and Judy W.: They have asked us to
spealc about the contributions of care and the fact that raising the
contributions to 100 percent -- which I think was originally 40 percent --

will cause great damage not only to their son and others who live in their
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supervised apartments, but those in the group homes and developmental
centers. And the letter is in your packet.

And my own personal story: My brother was a resident at
Green Brook Regional Center, whom I visited every Sunday for 10 years.
Since his passing, I have been obligated to the staff and to the clients at
Green Brook to pursue the beneficial part of Green Brook. I've joined the
Human Rights Committee. I've been a member of that for over two years
since his passing. I also was instrumental in organizing the Families and
Friends Association at Green Brook -- just before we had that tragic
happening there, which most of you are well aware of.

Again, I thank you for helping bring them back to their home.

I'd like to thank, also, the staff members and also the doctors
who take care of the patients -- I call them residents -- at Green Brook.
Those of you who have visited Green Brook can attest to the well-being of
all their clients.

And I thank you again for bringing them back to Green Brook.
Please don’t close all the facilities. We need them. And if there are 3,000
people waiting for placement in these residences, please let them in. Don’t
hold back and leave some beds open. We need them. And if we don't,
we’re going to be in trouble as a state. Don’t follow the other states. We
don’t know the results of some of those -- what’s happening in those states,
as far as where these people have gone, their situations. We don’t have any
written statistics saying, “A certain so-in-so is living okay. This one
disappeared, we don’t know where he is at.” We don’t have those statistics.
If we want to, we should, before we make any decisions as far as closing

these facilities.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Thank you very
much, Sisto.

I just want to thank all the family members who came out
today from all of the seven centers. I've been very impressed with your
passion, your advocacy. And I thank you very much for sharing your
personal stories. It’s not easy, and we appreciate that.

Next panel: we have Kim Todd.

And, Kim, we also have-- I know you have two other people --
Ann Martinelli and Monique Wilson -- with you.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: No, I think
they’re--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: We have Cindy
Harris and John Vega. Would that be correct?

We have Cindy and John--

KIM TODD: We have more.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: But if you want
to speak on behalf of the community care providers, you can do that. And
then we have a self-advocate, and we have a parent. [ think that’s
sufficient.

MS. TODD: We've given you a packet of information that has
a wealth of knowledge in it. We hope you take the time to review it.

I’'m going to be very brief, because I would really like for you to
hear from the people who have waited here all day. We have two family
members who are from the community, we have several self-advocates, and
also a best-practices expert who has been involved in many, many closures.

I am going to yield my time.
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But I would like to say to you that I think you face a Solomon’s
task. I think that there’s an inordinate amount of information and wealth
of knowledge that has preceded these discussions. I think the national
agenda is set. I think Dr. Spitalnik laid that out very clearly. But I do
believe that if New Jersey does not change its course of action, we do not
have the fiscal resources to continue doing what we do. We have to
embrace a new positive direction, and I respectfully ask that you consider
the price that each person pays who is waiting for services in the
community. We asked them to wait patiently while New Jersey continues
to debate something that has already been decided nationally, while we
maintain the status quo at 49th in the nation.

And with that, I'd like to yield my time to Judy Gran.
(applause)

SENATOR VITALE: Turn your mike off, Kim, please.
JUDITH A. GRAN, ESQ.: Thank you.

My name is Judith Gran. I'm a lawyer with Reisman, Carolla,
Gran in Haddonfield.

I have represented institutional residents in 14 class action suits
around the country in nine different states that have resulted in the closure
of eight institutions, with two more scheduled to close this year. All of
those cases also involved fix-up orders in which the institution had to
improve services for people while they were there. And as a result, some of
those states poured enormous, enormous resources into the institution with
very little result.

An example is Arlington Developmental Center, near Memphis,

in Tennessee, which is currently the most expensive institution in the
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country, with a per diem of $1,200 per person, per day. And there are 50
people left there. It’s going to close. And the state’s own compliance
reports show that it is woefully out of compliance with the most basic
components of the settlement agreement that the state signed in that case.
So I think we’ve seen that it is very difficult to create a silk purse out of a
sow’s ear. The congregate environment is just not conducive to the
individualized services and active treatment that people with significant
disabilities need.

I want to make three points about the lessons of those cases
that have resulted in institutional closure and, at the end, say a few words
about what I see the State’s responsibility here in New Jersey is.

The first lesson is that everyone can be served in the
community. In most of my cases, every single person who left the
institution went to a community living arrangement. And I'm not talking
about group homes. I'm talking about highly individualized, personalized
arrangements that might be called supported living, which is not a service
only for people with mild disabilities. ~Everyone can be served in a
supported living arrangement in which the team builds supports around the
person to live where he chooses to live, with people whom he chooses to live
with, and get all the support that that person needs to live his chosen and
desired life.

Most of the people who moved to the community had severe
and profound intellectual disabilities. Many of them had multiple physical
disabilities, many of them had complex medical needs, all of the disabilities
that people have talked about here -- tube feeding, tracheotomies, seizure

disorders, brittle diabetes, cardiac conditions, cancer. Whatever it might be,
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those people moved to the community and flourished there. People with
extremely challenging behavior moved to the community and did better
there because they were able to live a desired life, which reduced the
challenging behavior. People with significant psychiatric needs moved and
did well.

The second lesson is that people are significantly better off in
the community. There is actually much more than anecdotal evidence of
this. In the cases that resulted in court orders and consent decrees, court
monitors followed every single person, every year, and looked at how well
they were doing. In several of my cases, research studies were done on how
people did when they moved from the institution to the community and
found that they gained skills, that their challenging behavior lessened, that
they were happier, that their families were happier and more satisfied. And
I want to emphasize that: families liked the community. They found that
people were safe, that people’s healthcare needs were met.

SENATOR VITALE: Excuse me, did you-- Is this all in the
documents that you provided to us -- the written testimony?

MS. GRAN: No, no, this is in addition. This is not in the
document.

SENATOR VITALE: You don’t have anything that you want
to add?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Actually, may I
just interrupt?

Kim, we have a list of speakers. I don’t know if you are on the

list. I want to give those who submitted their list. I don’t have her on the
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list. I apologize. So I just want to give time to those who have prepared
their time for the list to come up.

MS. TODD: When I was asked to present on Wednesday
afternoon, I was not aware -- I was never informed that I was able to have a
panel. And what we had to do very quickly was choose some of the group.
Our original group, of course, was Monique Dujue Wilson and Ann
Martinelli.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: That’s fine. I
don’t want to take up time. If we can just move to the rest so this way all
your speakers can have a minute or so.

Thank you.

MS. TODD: Perfect.

I'd like to introduce Mrs. Johnson, who is the parent of Reggie.
And she is going to talk for probably 30 seconds. (laughter)
PATRICIA DAVIS JOHNSON: Good afternoon.

I am Patricia Davis Johnson, the mother of Reggie. I'm here
today just to brag a little bit about my son.

First and foremost, Reggie was a resident at a DC for over 20
years. But today, since leaving New Lisbon, Reggie has made enormous
strides. He is now the Chief Engineer of Environmental Services at his
corporate office. Simply put, he’s on the rise. Reggie is an active member
of his community, and he loves exploring his neighborhood.

If Reggie continued to remain at New Lisbon, I fear he would
not be the Reggie that we know today.

I love my son. And needless to say, I am very, very proud of

him, and I am completely satisfied in his present support system.
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Thank you. (applause)

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you very much. I'm sure that
you’re very proud of him and he has made great progress. Thank you for
sharing that story.

Can you turn that one mike off so the other mikes can work?

Thank you.

Can you introduce yourself please.

CINDY HAYES (phonetic spelling): Yes, my name is Cindy
Hayes. I'm a parent of a 19-year-old son with autism.

You have a lot of information there, but I will just really quickly
kind of go through the highlights.

When my son was diagnosed at 2, which is pretty typical, I got
very, very involved in advocacy and really looking at how I could create his
future for him so that he could have every opportunity that my other two
children had. So I started several nonprofits. I got very, very involved. I
moved up here to New Jersey. I think he had outstanding support. I had
been working on developing a program with -- actually it was at NPDC, on
the property there, for a community-based program.

When he was about -- well, about a year-and-a-half ago, he
started really showing a lot of very serious behaviors. Honestly, we were at
St. Barnabas Hospital. They told me to take him to a developmental
center. I said no. I then followed him to Baltimore and did everything I
could do to keep him out of the center.

We finally ended up at Hunterdon Developmental Center.
And I will tell you that I do appreciate everything they’ve done for him.

They probably saved his life. But about two months into that visit we got
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behavioral support. And I have been trying for over a year -- about a year
and two months on Mother’s Day -- to get him out of that Center, which is
where we're spending over two times as much money on him for less
appropriate services.

So I guess I'm here to say that if I felt this was the right
placement for him, I would fight like crazy to keep him there, but it clearly
isn’t. So I know there are a lot of people like me trying to keep their kids at
home with very little support. And only through an emergency and a crisis
situation are they getting support. We need to think about, obviously, not
just fixing the system, but putting together a community infrastructure that
will allow us to address these needs long before they hit crisis as my son did.
I think if I would have had different levels of support, he’d probably still be
living with me now.

Thank you. (applause)

SENATOR VITALE: You have a microphone back there. You
can certainly stay in your chair and spealk from there.

Can you introduce yourself please, and where you’re from?

HEARING REPORTER: Excuse me, sir.

You do have to come up here. I cannot record you there. I'm
sorry.

ANN C. MARTINELLI: Good afternoon, everyone.

Thank you for this opportunity.

My name is Ann Martinelli. I am the parent of a young man,
Joe, who is 25, with developmental disabilities. I'm also the President of
Advocates for Alternatives, which is a grassroots education advocacy group,

and we educate on self-direction.
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For wus, it’s very simple. We are all the same. Everyone
belongs. Everyone has the right to live in a community, we all do.
Everyone in this room lives in a community. We do not segregate because
someone has a developmental disability. We cannot segregate in the
education, in our workplace, or anywhere else in our communities.

The people who live in New Jersey’s seven developmental
centers should have the right to remain there if they want to or if their
family wants them to. However, for every person with significant needs
living in a DC, there is someone living in the community with the same
needs, with supports in their own home, a group home, or in their family
home. The same services available in a DC -- medical, dental, mental
health, assistive technology, durable medical equipment -- are available in
our communities.

Our families are a new generation.  Our children with
significant needs attend local schools and participate in community
activities. Our education system invests millions to fully include our
children and empower them to become contributing citizens. When our
children leave the education system as young adults, we expect them to
continue to be part of the community. Yet many families place their loved
one’s name on a waiting list for community services and do just that: wait,
sometimes for decades. They wait because they want their loved one to live
in the community.

My family was one of the lucky ones. When my son Joe
graduated from school in 2005, he was offered the opportunity by the
Division to self-direct his supports and services. He has been doing that for

almost five years now. He is fully included in the community.
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My son’s needs are significant. He needs help getting up in the
morning, he needs help toileting, he needs help getting dressed. I feed him.
My husband gets up in the middle of the night to turn him when he calls.
His needs are great, but he is an active member of our community.

We believe our state can change. We must change. Public
policy is not about making people happy, it’'s about serving citizens
equitably. Right now, our public policy for people with developmental
disabilities is not equitable. It must be changed. It’s time we raised the bar
and invest in the citizenship of all by developing a system that serves people
when they need it and where they want it in the community of their choice.

Thank you. (applause)

MONIQUE DUJUE WILS O N: Good afternoon.

My name is Monique Dujue Wilson, and I'm the parent of a
23-year-old man who is currently self-directing.

We are not affiliated with any provider agency. At this point in
our life, we are doing it on our own.

I think it’s really important that you know that a lot of the
descriptions that were mentioned here about the people who reside in
developmental centers absolutely fit the description of my son who, at 16
years old -- I was put in a position to put him in a developmental center or
nothing else. I refused, and we piloted real-life choices or self-direction in
New Jersey. He is now 23 years old, and he is living at home, and thriving,
and becoming the young man that he was supposed to be.

I remember 15 hearings held throughout the state. Forty hours
of transcribed, archived testimony from people with developmental

disabilities and their families telling their stories to New Jersey legislators
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and leaders in the disability community. The message: keep us together.
We thought you understood. We thought you finally heard us after years
of dwindling family supports, and the increase of more and more families
choosing to support loved ones at home and wanting different choices in
the community other than just centers and group homes.

In 2006, families and people with disabilities rallied, testified
by the hundreds, wrote letters, sent pictures, thousands signed petitions to
make it clear that people were thinking differently. Families wanted
resources available to keep their families together rather than making a
choice of group homes or institutional care. And I have an attachment to
everything. Most of you will probably remember these hearings that were
held in 2006. There are excerpts that you have copies of, of families who
are not here to represent themselves, even family members that, today,
probably six years later, have transitioned into adulthood. And most of us
are still waiting.

These are actually the copies of the petitions.

MS. TODD: [I'd like to clarify. These are the new petitions
that have been collected to ask you to close the developmental centers.

MS. DUJUE WILSON: I'm talking about a set of petitions
that came at this time. So this is not new information. Actually, I even
included something that showed the disproportion of how funding -- and
where people were living back in 2006.

Without needed supports, our family members-- The majority
of funding was going to the residential and community placements, out of
sync for families growing up in an educational system full of expectation

and the promise of fulfilling adult lives for our family members, regardless
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of their disability. Without needed supports, our family members were not
living. And now, most families involved in that pivotal movement have
joined the wait-listers, needing transition and adult services so that they can
continue to go to school, to volunteer or work.

When waiting becomes impossible, unwanted placements out
of the home become inevitable and common, not by choice. Crisis led to
placements in developmental centers because there were no other choices
given at that time. The overwhelming cry of information shared by families
to the decision makers, to the DD system, and to the providers who support
people within the system -- that people and families with developmental
disabilities were moving in a different direction. Our thinking was heard
loud and clear. In 2006, New Jersey moved toward self-directed services
and began to recognize people wanted to be supported differently than in
the past.

In 2010, the lists have grown. The misappropriation of where
people live and where the money goes continues to be wickedly unbalanced.
The climate within the disability community is tense and mistrusting. It is
sad to see that the real issues of people and families -- have choice -- has
been forgotten and lost in an ugly mesh of politics, selfishness, special
interests, and egos that have nothing to do with the voice of the people.

I cannot understand how such a documented event in 2006,
that created a historical shift in the thinking and the expectations of people
with disabilities -- where they choose to live, go to school, and play -- can be
ignored. The information is not new. Why do we continue to play the

game of surprise while people wait and die to live?
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Monique, do you
have that in writing? Is that part of your testimony? Because we do have,
as I say, two more panels.

MS. DUJUE WILSON: Yes, this is my testimony.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Are you wrapping
up?

MS. DUJUE WILSON: T just have one more paragraph to go.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Are you wrapping
up? Because we do have--

MS. DUJUE WILSON: Okay, great. What the majority--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: Is John speaking,
IGim? Is John Vega speaking?

MS. TODD: Okay.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: We want to save
some time for John.

MS. DUJUE WILSON: I have one paragraph.

SENATOR VITALE: Go right away.

MS. DUJUE WILSON: Can I continue?

SENATOR VITALE: Yes, you may.

MS. DUJUE WILSON: Thanks.

What the majority of people in the state want cannot be
disputed. It is to live within a community with supports and services
available to sustain a productive and happy life. There should not be an
exclusion of choice to remain in a developmental center. But today, that

option is not the majority, made clear for so many years.
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People are being born with disabilities, surviving, growing up in
families who challenge them to live life. The numbers grow, yet the support
center resources cannot keep up. Why do we continue to support this
archaic way of thinking? Who are we supporting?

Please rebalance this system so we can support a plan that
allows opportunity for choice. I do not want to find myself here four years
from now having the same stagnant conversation. We cannot continue to
wait.

Again, my name is Monique Dujue Wilson. I am the parent of
IKChary Dominique Wilson. He is 23 years old, and he is striving to live.
(applause)

JOHN VEGA: My name is John Vega.

I live in Voorhees. I used to live at New Lisbon, but now I'm
out of New Lisbon.

There was too much crime and trouble -- stealing and fights.
But now I have my own room, my own privacy. I can do--

This is my friend Reggie Davis.

I can do what I want to do. I can go anywhere.

This is my staff. They help me out, treat me nice.

And whoever wants out from New Lisbon to the community --
if they want to.

MS. TODD: Thank you, John.

MR. VEGA: You're welcome. (applause)

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you, John.

MR. VEGA: You’re welcome.

GARY RUBIN (phonetic spelling): Hello, my name is Gary Rubin.
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I lived at Johnstone Training and Research Center for six-and-a-
half years. I now live at Community Access Unlimited up in Plainfield. I
have my own condo above Ms. Adelaide Daskam, who you heard from
much earlier today. I have my own apartment. I live by myself. I'm in a
relationship with a woman down this way. And, you know, life, to me, has
been pretty good.

I also wear hats. I'm on a statewide network as far as our self-
advocacy. I'm the Vice President of that in (indiscernible), up there near
me. And I wear many hats, so to speak.

But hearing some of the things that I heard here today, like the
word retarded-- Apparently people don’t have enough respect for their own
kind to be using that word everywhere. We just had a campaign, and
believe me, we busted our tails trying to get pledges and everything else. So
I can’t believe some of the words I heard in here today.

Other than that, I'm free to do what I want, when I want. I live
like everybody else -- like you guys -- when you leave home, go to bed at
night, wake up the next day. It’s wonderful. It’s a wonderful feeling.
People try to play God, like some of the DCs, and I don’t buy that. This is
the 21st century. It’s time to wake up. Like my friend Monique said, it’s
time to change the state -- the course of everything -- and not have some of
these people, against their will, living in these DCs locked up like they’re at
the Bronx Zoo, or the Turtle Back Zoo, or something.

That’s that. I mean, I care about other folks, as well. And I am
a true advocate. We need people like us out there so we can help the

weaker ones, so to speak.
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So I thank you for letting me speak today. Have a good night.
(applause)

MS. TODD: I would just like to close with something. As I
said, you have a Solomon’s task in front of you. I think that the wealth of
research that precedes this, the innovative practices that have been tried
and true, the missteps of the nation-- We have the opportunity -- at being
just about dead last -- to not repeat it. And I ask us not to be afraid of
change.

In New Jersey, we closed North Princeton. I have the unique, I
guess, position of having worked at North Princeton. I joined the
Department of Human Services as a guardianship worker. And the people I
supported were at North Princeton and New Lisbon Developmental Center.
I got to know them very, very well. And I have also kept in touch with
them over the last -- all this time. They’re doing well. I ask us not to be
afraid.

I hold in my hand the key -- one of the last keys that closed
North Princeton. I ask you to think about it as you sit in your chairs and
make decisions about our future.

Thank you. (applause)

SENATOR VITALE: Jenelle Blackmon.

Is Jenelle here? (no response)

You’re not Jenelle.

DONALD L. KLEIN: And I'm not Carolyn Wade either.

SENATOR VITALE: Well, we’re thankful for some miracles.

MR. KLEIN: I’'m Don Klein, Executive Vice President of CWA
Local 1040.
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Carolyn apologizes. She had a family emergency. You have her
testimony.

Due to the lateness of the hour, I am going to be brief.

Local 1040 represents Human Services’ institutions,
Corrections, Veterans Affairs, Juvenile Justice. But we also represent
residential care centers for the developmentally disabled in the community.
And I know you’ve heard how polarized this issue is.

We’ve hired various experts over the years, both at Greystone
and other facilities, who the Union has employed to consult with. And the
overwhelming opinion of these experts is: You need a continuum of care.
Yes, we need residential group homes, supervised apartments, and
developmental centers. So we’ve seen both sides of the coin.

One of the big problems with the community now is that there
are not services in place for them. As far as the developmental centers -- in
the past 10, 12 years, they have not had capital improvements. So people
can call them warehouses and say that they’re dark places. But as you
heard the parents say, this is their community.

But I just want to-- You have Carolyn’s testimony. I just
wanted to make some notes here to really make this Committee aware of
some of the not-so-known intricacies of this fight between community and
developmental centers. And it should not be a fight.

But several years ago, $1 an hour was allocated by the
Legislature and signed by the Governor for direct care salaries to be
increased in the community. Well, as a Union, we had to fight for that
dollar to go into the hourly rate of staff. They wanted management--

Management wanted that buck-an-hour. We have to fight for our people
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who work in community care centers for $10 an hour. We can’t get a
$0.25 raise.

Unfortunately, a lot of folks really care for the developmentally
disabled. However, there are a lot of unscrupulous providers out there.
There are corporations who run group homes who, if they do not turn a
profit, they leave and abandon clients.

SENATOR VITALE: Don, if you could, try to wrap up so we
can finish up.

MR. KLEIN: Just some of my other points are--

Someone asked the question of who makes the decision. Well,
it’s different. I worked in a developmental center as a clinical psychologist.
And the team made the decision. But now the teams are being dictated to
by DDD. Everyone is community-ready. And it’s wrong to take the care
from the professionals to the bureaucrats who give these orders.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you.

Jenelle.

JENELLE BLACKM O N: Again, we want to thank you all for
allowing us to speak before you today. I just want to reiterate Don’s point
that CWA'’s position is that we’re not against community placement, we are
for the care of these residents and choice. And this is a community that we
need to address as that.

And I have, to my right, a social worker from Green Brook
developmental center, and her name is Michelle Brito. I just want her to
address the Committee for one second.

MICHELLE BRITO: Thank you.

I will be quick.
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I am a Social Worker at Green Brook Regional Center.
Previous to my employment, I was -- I did work at an agency for group
homes. And I do get involved with meetings in the facilities -- Olmstead’s --
I'm out there (indiscernible). You name it, I see it. I'm on the front lines.

So I can tell you that, yes, I have seen placements that have
been appropriate. Keep in mind that is with team interdisciplinary
meetings. It’s very involved. Those placements do fair well. We’ve also
had some failures at our facilities, and pretty high-profile at that.

But my concern is, these clients don’t have families to represent
them. So when we speak for them, are we being heard? And I fear that
there’s a lot of neglect going on, and I see it.

Also being that we are-- We do care for our clients, and I do
want to reiterate that. I'm not going to repeat myself, because there was a
lot covered today. I don’t want to repeat. Just to be heard, we do have very
good, hard workers, as does the community. But we do need to make sure
that it is per choice, and appropriate placements.

Thank you.

MS. BLACKMON: Thank you so much. We appreciate it.
(applause)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: I think we have
one last panel, if the members would like to hold their questions. And then
we can have some statements at the end.

The one last panel-- I'd like to call up Robin Sims and Rocco
Mazza to close the hearing -- or close the panel, I should say.

Thank you.

Welcome, Robin.
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ROCCA A MAZZA: Ibelieve my testimony was written and
distributed to everyone on the panel, so I am not going to read my
testimony.

SENATOR VITALE: That’s when we clap.

MR. MAZZA: All I ask of you is-- I'll do you a favor and not
read it, if you just do me a favor and read it. That would be great. Thank
you.

And I've attached to that testimony some newspaper articles
which underscore my points in the testimony, which is simply that
privatization of the developmentally disabled is not a safe, and secure, and
healthy idea. And these news articles prove that.

I will now defer to my partner here, Robin Sims.

ROBIN SIMS: Thank you.

Thank you, Senator Vitale; and thank you, Assemblywoman
Huttle.

This is a wonderful opportunity. It’s the first time that our
voices in the developmental center community have been heard. So we
applaud you for that.

For a very long time, families and those who are advocates for
those who live in developmental centers have been trying to get someone to
listen, someone to understand that the Olmstead plan for the State of New
Jersey is based upon the lie or the myth that claims that thousands of
residents of our centers wanted to leave. Nothing could be further from the
truth. The Division of Developmental Disabilities knows it, those who are
here to selfishly promote their own agencies know it, and now you all know

it.
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We have done the best we can through our various family, and
friends, and associations of parents from our centers to ask the question of
all primary decision makers regarding their choice: Where do they feel their
loved one can get the best care according to their needs? They spoke, and
they have said in overwhelming numbers that they wanted their loved one
to remain in their current home in the developmental center.

Assemblyman Greenwald proposed a bill, but he never saw a
developmental center prior to him making that proposal. He was
persuaded, I think, by Kim Todd, who was here today, to put forth a bill
that would close five of the seven developmental centers. But the big
question is: Why? I mean, organizations like New Jersey Association of
Community Providers and ABCD are actually lobbying organizations.
Their dues are determined based on their DDD contracts, which basically
means that you, the State holders of taxpayers’ dollars, are paying for
lobbying.

Well, I've had enough. The ICE/MR program started in the
State of New Jersey in the late 1970s. And the Federal court created a
standard of care and continues to monitor each center. Here is a study --
annual study of the ICF/MR surveys. They walk into our centers, they go
through everything from top to bottom -- cabinets, how somebody is fed,
how somebody is positioned -- and the standards are here.

According to the Federal funding source for ICF/MRs or
developmental centers, a person must be in need of active treatment, which
I think is something that Tom talked about. In order for a person to leave a
center, they must no longer need this care. What we call developmental

centers or ICF/MRs is our community. The community waiver is called
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Home and Community Waiver, but nobody ever talks about the word
waiver. What you are waiving is the ICF/MR standard of service. It means
you don’t need that level anymore. You are waiving it. Bye-bye service.
And that’s good for the people who can do that.

There is no way for a parent, at this moment in the State of
New Jersey, to go and look at the option of developmental centers the way
they go and look for schools for their children when they are school age.
They are told from the Division things like -- and case managers -- “You
don’t want that choice. The centers are terrible.” The environment of fear
has kept people at home longer than families can bear. We need to allow
those on the waiting lists to see the centers -- at least see them -- receive
information about services and supports in the centers in an unbiased way,
and let families think and decide for themselves.

I serve on the DD Council -- me, as the lone voice for those in
developmental centers. But somehow they believe that their mission is to
advocate for closure. But, again, nothing could be further from the truth.
The DD Act is the Federal law that established and helps to fund the DD
councils, the Boggs Center -- as Debbie said, the Center of Excellence -- and
the New Jersey Protection and Advocacy, which is now called Disability
Rights New Jersey.

How interesting is it that Elizabeth Boggs herself had a son at
the Hunterdon Developmental Center, and now the center named for her
wants to close them? What must she be thinking?

When the DD Act was drafted, Congress made sure -- and this
is, again, a Federal Act that needs to be reauthorized. It hasn’t been

reauthorized in 10 years. But when the Act was drafted, Congress made
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sure that it was clear that programs under the Act understood that
individuals with developmental disabilities and their families are the
primary decision makers regarding services and supports -- and such
individuals and their families -- that they receive, including regarding
choosing where the individuals live from available programs -- and play
decisions -- which is what Tom talked about before -- in making roles (sic) in
policies and programs that affect the individuals.

But they also went on and they said -- they made further
language. This was, at the time, Henry Waxman, who was in charge of the
Energy and Commerce Committee-- And it said the Committee would
caution that goals expressed in this Act to promote the greatest possible
integration and independence for some individuals with developmental
disabilities not be read as a Federal policy supporting the closure of
residential institutions. It would be contrary to the Federal intent to use
language or resources of this Act to support such actions, whether in the
judicial or the legislative system.

So we now have -- the DD Council, in its policy statements --
which I'm including in the packet -- which basically are promoting closure.
We have the New Jersey Protection and Advocacy suing the State. Here is
a State entity suing the State and filing class action suits that the
stakeholders never have the opportunity to opt out of. And it’s really quite
a concept. The Council that promotes policies that are not part of their
mandate -- but they claim they are -- under the DD Act, the words “work to
close developmental centers,” does not appear. And yet it appears in the

Council’s various public policy statements.
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Families and friends of those in developmental centers have
fought this fight over and over again. This myth started -- and a lie,
however -- in 2001. At that time, there was a memo stating that every one
-- every single resident of an ICF/MR -- was eligible to live in the
community unless they were either dangerous to others by having a criminal
record; or two, they said in their own words that they wanted to stay.
According to that memo -- which we love to call the smoking gun memo --
state that this was to be done no matter what the team or the family
wanted. It didn’t matter if the person could not talk when it came to
moving out. But it sure did count when it came to staying. We would
move a nonverbal person out. But unless you could actually talk and say
you wanted to stay, you were determined eligible to live in the community.

When the DDD Planning Institute at NJIT went and
interviewed people about this topic, they determined-- They went to people
who said they wanted to leave the centers, they thought. But only a small
number of those people who said they wanted to had the cognitive
understanding of what community meant. Many stated they wanted to
move but not to a group home. Some had been in group homes but did not
want to return.

So what are we left with? An organization or two of lobbyists
trying to get work for their members, parents not being given the
opportunity to explore their choices of centers, parents and family members
of DC residents who live in a state of anxiety and uncertainty. These folks
whose children live in the developmental centers have our-- We have our
phone calls monitored and counted, our visits counted, and the attendance

at our annual planning meetings counted.
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This is not what individuals in community group homes, or
supervised apartments, or even at home have to do. They are considered
smart enough to make those decisions for their loved ones. And yet we are
sent letters that state if we are opposed to community placement, it must be
due to the fact that we need some training. News flash: Our families are
teachers, doctors, therapists, lawyers, etc. We have made our choice
knowing full well what options are available and have chosen ICF/MR
because it is the place our loved ones can and will live the most complete
life.

The lobbyists and some community parents are trying to make
our loved ones the scapegoats for their lack of movement from the waiting
list. Our Federal reimbursement rate, as has been said here today, from the
ICF/MRs is greater than those in the community care waiver. So our loved
ones who move into the community will cost more in State dollars when
moved into community settings when they get the same or better services.
And the waiting lists will grow, and no emergency placements will then be
available. People will die with inappropriate care, and this has been proven
time and time again. It was mentioned, when Senator Allen was here -- was
talking about the mortality study and asked about it -- if it had been done
in New Jersey. The fact of the matter is, it has been done by the
Developmental Disability Planning Institute at NJIT. They did this at the
closing of North Princeton Developmental Center. But what did they say?
They said, “If the time period was extended” -- and they only looked at this
for 27 months -- “more persons would have died in the final model, and the
final model might have been different.” So we are now asking: Why are we

not doing a 10-year look-back and see how many of the folks who left in the
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same study are still alive? We had Dr. Katzman (phonetic spelling) here. I
don’t know if he’s still here. But he volunteered to do this for the State at
no charge. He would do the research, we would do a look-back, and we
would know 10 years down the road where these people are. DDD refuses
to do the follow-up study. What are they afraid of? Did they lose the
former residents of North Princeton? Can this Joint Committee please
compel them to do it? We need to know what happens to those who are
leaving today. And it’s important to track how many homes and other
placements they go to once they leave the center. How many die? How
many return to centers in damaged condition? And how many move to
more than one home?

We must declare a moratorium on all movement until these
questions are answered. This is particularly important for those living
without family members. And the Bureau of Guardianship Services did not
participate in our survey for choice. We wanted to know from them how
many of the people they represented were they recommending to move or
recommending to stay. It is our belief that the Bureau of Guardianship
Services has tremendous caseloads and are unable to really effectively
advocate when the system tells them one thing -- State employees being
told by the Division -- sorry I keep pointing at you Ken -- to do something,
and they are then in this position of: “What do I do? Do I keep my job, or
do I advocate for the person I'm supposed to advocate for?”

SENATOR VITALE: Robin, thank you.

You're doing a terrific job. Do you have something that you

can submit to us by way of--
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MS. SIMS: I don’t have it quite finished, but I do want to
bring up just two more points.

SENATOR VITALE: Could you just kind of wrap it up then?

MS. SIMS: T will.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you.

MS. SIMS: Speaking of spending, why can’t anyone at DDD
or the office of the Treasury tell us how much money is being spent on
Maximus? Maximus is the contracted company that does the billing for the
contribution of care for residents of developmental centers and group
homes, among other things. We in the State of New Jersey hired Maximus
at the same time that New York fired Maximus for -- citing them with
fraud. And there are no other bidders now for this service. It just revolves
every single year. We need to look into Maximus.

There’s also one more survey. We brought you some questions
here. Again, NJIT, DDD, Planning Institute sent out a survey that they’re
going to claim is for choice. The question of choice appears at Question 21
and 20, and it’s buried down in here. The rest of this survey-- And we ask
you, if you’re presented with the survey itself -- we will present these
questions to you to be shared with the Committee -- but it’s about how
many times we visit, what do we know about the community. We are
harassed daily, monthly, weekly. Our individual plans for our children have
been written in the first person. My daughter doesn’t speak. My daughter
cannot articulate. But it says, “My name is,” “My mother said,” “I like a
puppy,” “Blah, blah, blah.” She didn’t say a word of it. So these
documents are fake. And now that we’ve finally begun to change it, the

Division is not allowing parents to know that prior to meetings.
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Lastly, I want to thank my son Benjamin, who has Fragile X
syndrome, who came here today. He’s 23 years old. He lives at home with
his father and I. He came here because he loves his sister and because he
wanted to tell you to leave his sister alone. And so he’s been sitting here all
day long.

I thank you, Benny. You’re my best guy. (applause)

Thank you all very, very much.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you, Robin.

MS. SIMS: Thank you.

SENATOR VITALE: Thank you.

Are there any closing comments from any of the members? (no
response)

I want to thank you for your time and your patience.

Commissioner Ritchey, would you like to say a few words at the
end? We also want to thank you for being here and spending the entire day
with us.

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RITCHEY: At the risk of
having everybody say, “Why is he saying anything,” listening through
everybody’s comments, as all of you have done, it’s clear-- And I'm pleased
with the fact that our DCs are doing a good job for the people they serve.
We would certainly be at a different place if we were also upset about their
services. It is equally as clear that there has been -- well-documented by the
families -- the good job our community providers are doing.

Clearly we will have, on occasion, problems in either setting.
Neither should paint that setting with a bad brush. I think that the families

that I've heard -- and I've spoken to many of these people since I've been
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here over the last three-plus years -- believe strongly in where their son or
daughter is, or where their son or daughter should be.

I can’t say how appreciative I am that so many of you have sat
here all day to listen to comments. In my public career, this is the first time
I've ever had a legislator, such as Assemblywoman Huttle, ever visit every
center in the state. (applause)

I commend you for that, Assemblywoman, and for the rest of
you who have visited one or more. Because most of the time-- And I think
if I could say for the Commissioner, who would have loved to have been
here but could not, we care deeply about the folks, the families, the
individuals we care for in every setting. We want people to be where it’s
appropriate, where they want to be while safe.

And I think, in summary, we are grateful to this bipartisan and
joint Senate and Assembly review, because I think this is the first time I've
ever been in a gathering where you got to hear everything. I don’t think
you got the answers today in every case. But at least we’ve given you an
opportunity, and you've taken advantage of it to learn the issue from both
sides.

And finally -- last comment -- Assemblywoman, thank you so
much for mentioning the abuser registry.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: If there are no
concluding remarks--

I just truly want to thank my Committee on the Assembly side

(laughter) -- not that we’re showing off to the Senate side -- but my
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Assembly members, I think you get an A in attendance. (applause) I had to
get that--

SENATOR VITALE: The Senate is just older, and they’re very
sleepy when they get-- (laughter) They had to take their nap this afternoon.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN VAINIERI HUTTLE: And for staying
the -- quite -- I didn’t realize we’d be this long. But of course, even with the
interruption of our fire drill -- I think we went out in a very orderly-- I
mean, that was a first for me.

But thank you to the members who sat all the way through the
hearing.

I just want to say that this is certainly not the end. It is a start
for, I think, the State. And I want to repeat what I said -- that the State has
a moral obligation to find the resources. And we should have a steady
funding. I think if we had the funding, I don’t think there would be any
real battle here or debate, because we could have everything completely
funded, and the resources in the community, and continue to keep the
centers, where I saw -- which I don’t think anyone brought up, but I was
surprised -- one of the centers had a great medical facility where they had
doctors trained at the center to treat this type of population in a very
sensitive way. They had dental care, they had 24-hour care. And that’s a
model.

And I really want to commend Assistant Commissioner
Ritchey, because you sat through all the testimony. And I know that
together with Commissioner Velez and our Committees here, that we can

really now address this within a timeframe. Because I think what I heard
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today is the waiting list and the resources needed to reallocate into the
community and to keep providing for our vulnerable population.

So with that, I think we’re all a bit tired. But we have your
testimony in writing. We will read it, go through it, and perform our due
diligence as legislators.

And I really want to thank everyone for their passion. I truly
appreciate you coming here and spending the day with us in Trenton.

Thank you so much. (applause)

(MEETING CONCLUDED)
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Testimony of Kathy Walsh, CEQ, The Arc of Bergen & Passaic Counties
‘Before the Assembly & Senate Human Services Committees
May 7, 2010

Senator Weinberg, Assemblywoman Huttle and members of the joint committees, thank you for
the opportunity to participate in the conversation on this very important issue. My name is
Kathy Walsh and I am the CEO of The Arc of Bergen and Passaic Counties.

The Arc in New Jersey had its roots in Bergen and Passaic Counties back in 1947. In the early
days of The Arc movement one of the top issues for parents was the expansion of Developmental
Center beds. At that time there were no other alternatives and families needed a safe place where
their children would be well cared for. The Arc fought hard to secure additional beds throughout
the state. On the weekends The Arc ran bus trips down from Bergen and Passaic Counties to the
Centers which were far away. The buses would bring parents and siblings down to visit their
loved ones at Vineland, Woodbine or New Lisbon.

By the early 1970’s parents were starting to think about other alternatives. They had had some
success in getting school, work and camp programs going in the community and they began to
see that residential supports could also be provided closer to home. From this idea the Arc
opened the first community residence in NJ, in Paterson, in the early 70’s followed by the first in
Bergen County, in Hackensack in 1980. I moved into the home in 1981 as the manager. Both the
home and I are still at the Arc all these years later.

The Arc and organizations like it developed many homes in the 1980’s and early 90’s spurred on
by parents who wanted their children closer to home. These homes all had a mix of individuals
who came from the Developmental Centers and those from the community. They were
successful and we all became better equipped to support individuals with greater and greater
challenges. The Developmental Centers originally housed very capable individuals, many of
whom are now living fairly independently in the community, however over time, the Centers
have come to serve individuals with greater challenges. So too has the community. We are both
light years ahead of where we were back in the 70°s and 80°s when I was starting out in the field.

So if the community has come so far, why do people still end up in the Developmental Centers?
The answer is resources. New Jersey has not built a community infrastructure with adequate
resources to meet all the needs. By this I do not mean that community agencies don’t have the
willingness and the expertise, what I mean is that the community doesn’t have enough beds,
enough professionals or enough staff to meet the need. As a result families go into crisis, there
are not beds available and their loved one ends up in a Developmental Center.

So what is the solution? New Jersey needs to invest in the community and this can only be done,
given the resources, by closing some of the Developmental Centers and ensuring that the funds
that were tied up in those Centers are NOT diverted elsewhere. That they are used to develop the
programs and resources needed so that when a family does have a crisis the resources are
available in the community to meet that need. And the resources to ensure that individuals who
move out of the Developmental Center receive equal or better care.
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Studies have linked community living with_better quality of life in the areas of community
participation, family contact, self-care, freedom, utilization of mental health care,
productivity, personal choice and autonomy and safety of the person and their possessions.
We need to take a moderate and rational approach to community transition and the subsequent
closure of a facility. We need to allocate the proper time and funds to do it right, but we must do
it. We need to give people the opportunity to live full lives.

Back in the 80’s one of my Arc responsibilities was visiting the Developmental Centers to meet
individuals and facilitate their transition to our Arc’s community residences.

Every year around the middle of February, I receive a call from the staff at our Teaneck Group
Home simply saying “Andrea wants to talk to you” at which point Andrea gets on the phone. She
is a woman of few words so the conversation goes something like this “me, you, dinner, no more
old school.” And so we set up dinner for sometime around mid March which is Andrea’s
anniversary. It is the anniversary of when she moved from North Jersey Developmental Center to
our Teaneck Group Home back in the early 80’s. Ever year since that time Andrea and I go out
to dinner to celebrate her anniversary. And while we are at dinner, usually after we order, Andrea
points at my cell phone and says “call” which means I need to dial the number for Mary, who
was the other staff member involved in transitioning Andrea from North Jersey. Mary hasn’t
worked at Arc Bergen-Passaic since about 1987, but every year we call Mary and Andrea gets on
the phone and thanks her for the group home. It is over 20 years since Andrea moved to the
group home, yet the anniversary is something she doesn’t forget, it is the date her life changed.

And mine too, because Andrea reminds me every day that we all, each of us, can help someone
change their life for the better. It is well within our grasp, we just need to collectively take that

first step.

Thank you.
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Testimony of Lowell Arye, Executive Director
at the Joint Hearing on the Care Options for People with Developmental Disabilities

I want to thank the Chairs, Senator Weinberg and Assemblywoman Huttle, and the other members of the
Senate Health, Human Services and Senior Citizens and Assembly Human Services Committees for
providing me with the opportunity to testify today. Discussion about the future options of care for
people with developmental disabilities, including the future of the Developmental Centers, is an
important issue to people with developmental disabilities, families, and providers.

My name is Lowell Arye and I am the Executive Director of the Alliance for the Betterment of Citizens
with Disabilities (ABCD). ABCD is an association of non-profit organizations in New Jersey whose
mission is to affect the development and implementation of public policy and to support the member
organizations whose specific purpose is to improve the lives of people with multiple physical and
neurological developmental disabilities so that they have the opportunity to attain the highest level of
purpose and dignity. ABCD’s member agencies provide a broad array of community-based services to
more than 10,000 people with complex developmental disabilities and their families.

ABCD’s vision is for people with complex developmental disabilities to have significant relationships,
access to full participation, and inclusive options in their communities, with quality supports. ABCD is
committed to empowering people with complex developmental disabilities through the advancement of
beneficial public policy and successful supports. Our core values demonstrate that we are here to serve
the best interests of the individuals and their families who do not always have a voice in the policy
development process. ABCD’s core values are: 1) Person-Centered Thinking: Persons with complex
developmental disabilities will continue to develop personal competencies, gain and maintain satisfying
relationships, and have opportunities to fulfill valued roles and live with dignity; 2) Inclusion:
Individuals with complex developmental disabilities will be present and fully participate in community
life; and 3) Choice: Persons with complex developmental disabilities will express preferences and make

choices in everyday life.

The individuals served by ABCD’s member agencies in the community have similar or more complex
disabilities than people who currently reside in the State’s Developmental Centers. Specifically, most of
the individuals served by ABCD members in community-based settings are in wheelchairs, need
assistance in bathing, feeding and toileting, many of these individuals are unable to communicate
verbally and have behavioral and complex medical issues such as trachea tubes. Later in my testimony
I will provide specific information related to assessments which were done on behalf of the Division of
Developmental Disabilities (DDD) on the people who live in the Developmental Centers. As you will
see, the people served by ABCD member agencies have needs as complex as those living in the

Developmental Centers.
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For more than 30 years, federal and state disability policy changes have been implemented that break
down the barriers of exclusion, dependency, and segregation. The 1999 Olmstead Supreme Court
decision interprets the most recent of these changes, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and provides a
framework for developing comprehensive plans for community integration for people with disabilities.
The goal of community integration is that no one should have to live in an institution if they can live in
the community with the proper supports. According to the Supreme Court, people with disabilities have
the right to receive benefits and supports in the most integrated settings appropriate to their needs. By
issuing this decision, the Court gave legal weight to accelerating policy and systems changes to expand
opportunities for people with disabilities to live with dignity and on an equal basis with others in their
homes and communities.

New Jersey continues to serve more people with developmental disabilities in state institutions than
almost every other state in the country. Studies show that, proportionate to its population, New Jersey
serves more individuals with developmental disabilities in large, state institutions than all but three
states. Approximately 2,800 individuals with developmental disabilities live in seven Developmental
Centers in New Jersey. New Jersey needs to move forward on ensuring the rights of individuals to live
in the most integrated setting appropriate to their needs.

With this in mind, ABCD calls upon the Governor to announce that a Developmental Center will be
closed within the next two years. We look forward to working with the Administration and Legislature
to adequately fund a plan, build the necessary community infrastructure, and fully utilize all federal
funds to ensure that people may move into the community.

Background

In 1999, the US Supreme Court ruled in Olmstead v. L.C. that people had the right to live in the most
integrated setting appropriate to their needs. The decision provides a process that a state can take if it
does not wish to be sued for violating an individual’s rights to live in the community. The process
includes having a “comprehensive, effectively working plan for placing qualified persons in less

restrictive settings...”.

Path to Progress

ABCD joined with The Arc of New Jersey to propose, draft and advocate for a bill that mandated the
State move forward on a plan in compliance with the Olmstead Supreme Court decision.

In 2006, P.L. 2006, C. 61, was enacted into law in New Jersey, and mandated that the Division of
Developmental Disabilities (DDD) develop an Olmstead plan. The plan, entitled Path to Progress,
established benchmarks to ensure that any individual wishing to move from a Developmental Center
into the community would have the right and access to do so within eight years.

In May of 2007, Path to Progress was published by DDD, with public input, which explained how the
Division would take more than 1,850 individuals out of the Developmental Centers over an eight-year
period, ending by Fiscal Year 2015. The plan called for moving 250 people per year out of the
Developmental Centers, beginning in Fiscal Year 2009. Despite the calls from ABCD and others
within the community, the plan did not call for closure of any of the Developmental Centers. Given the
costs associated with maintaining seven large Developmental Centers and the civil rights issues, it is
critical that New Jersey decide to close and consolidate the Developmental Centers. The plan did
provide an implicit acknowledgement that every two years 500 people would move into the community,
in effect the size of one Developmental Center, but an explicit statement to close these institutions is

needed.
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As I explained earlier in my testimony, the characteristics of the individuals in the Developmental
Centers are identical to the individuals already served by ABCD members in the community. According
to the plan, the individuals left in the Developmental Centers have the following characteristics: on
average 50 years old, 57% with a psychiatric diagnosis, 24% with cerebral palsy, 18% with autism, 39%
with visual impairment, 40-60% with health conditions; 39% using a behavioral specialist, 45% using a
wheelchair, 40% taking psychotropic medication; 14-21% could benefit from environmental
modification.

The plan has never been fully funded. In FY09, there was only funding for 125 individuals. In FY’10,
funding was included in the budget for 62 individuals. In the Governor’s proposed FY 11 budget there

is again funding for 62 individuals. ABCD believes that the State simply needs to commit to providing
the funding for moving 250 people out each year and then follow the Plan.

Need for Community Infrastructure

In 2007, the Developmental Disabilities Planning Institute at the New Jersey Institute of Technology
(NJIT) performed a study for DDD. The study demonstrated that community infrastructure must be
increased significantly in order to advance the rights of people with developmental disabilities and
enhance their ability to live in the community.

For many of us in the community one issue of particular concern is that the front doors of the
Developmental Centers remain open. Continuing to admit people into the Developmental Centers on an
emergency basis cancels out the positive gains made when moving people into the community. The
primary reasons for individuals from the community being admitted for non-respite purposes into the
State’s Developmental Centers are: 1) lack of barrier-free housing opportunities; 2) significant
behavioral and psychiatric problems; and 3) medical needs that are not currently being met in the
community. Clearly the NJIT study showed that rather than increasing admittance rates among
individuals into the Developmental Centers, the State should expand community resources and create
alternatives and other living options, including emergency options, for consumers with significant
mental and physical needs or other profound disabilities.

From 1997-2007, on average, there were more individuals admitted into Developmental Centers from
the community than people moving out of the Developmental Centers. Fortunately there has been a
significant change in the past few years. In FY 2009 only 43 people were admitted into the
Developmental Centers and as of March of this year only 28 people were admitted in this fiscal year. In
this fiscal year alone, if the Plan had been fully funded to move 250 people there would have been a net
reduction of 222 people in our Developmental Centers. If there had been full funding of the Plan since
FY2009, we would have had a net reduction of 429 individuals in the Developmental Centers. That
means that the net number of people moving out of the Developmental Centers would have equaled to or
been close to the number of people in either Woodbridge (410 residents), North Jersey (400 residents),
or New Lisbon (440 residents) Developmental Centers.

For years, ABCD has been at the forefront of advocating that funds from the Community Care Waiver
must be reinvested back into community services. Literally millions of dollars of federal funds from the
Community Care Waiver have been used by the State for other purposes. For example, in FY 2007, the
State received more than $194 million in retroactive funds from the federal government. Over a three
year period, only $50 million of those funds were provided for the Division of Developmental
Disabilities; meaning that $144 million were used by the State for other purposes.
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Last year, the Division of Developmental Disabilities amended the federal Home and Community-based
services Waiver, called the Community Care Waiver, to allow the State to claim for federal funding for
additional services. The Division assumed approximately $6-$9 million in additional federal funds. The
Treasury sequestered these funds for governmental purposes other than community services to people
with developmental disabilities.

Budget language has been in place for the past six years which caps the amount of funds from the
Community Care Waiver that the State can use for community services. This budget language must be
eliminated and replaced with language that reinvests all federal dollars from the waiver and any savings
from consolidating/closing Developmental Centers (including the selling of the land of the
Developmental Centers) back into community services.

Closure of A Developmental Center in Two Years

Earlier in our testimony we stated that ABCD calls upon the Governor to announce that a
Developmental Center will be closed within the next two years. This request is based upon our view that
New Jersey should support the civil rights of individuals with developmental disabilities as expressed in
the Supreme Court’s decision on Olmstead and in ABCD’s core values of Person Centered Thinking,

inclusion and choice.

The request for the Governor to announce that a Developmental Center will be closed within the next
two years is also based upon an ABCD analysis of how long it has taken other states to close
Developmental Centers as well as New Jersey’s history with North Princeton Developmental Center.

Based upon this analysis we believe that it will take approximately two years to close Developmental
Centers with 400 to 500 residents. For example, we learned from discussions with the provider
association in Maryland that it took approximately 17 months from the date of announcement to closure
of a facility with 153 individuals eligible to live in the community. Massachusetts is estimating that it
will take approximately five years to close four institutions with a total of 476 residents. California
estimated that it will take 5 years to move 350 people into the community from one of its Developmental
Centers. Indiana took 18 months to move 120 residents from its Developmental Center into the
community. The announcement to close North Princeton Developmental Center with approximately

488 people was in 1995 and its doors did not close until 1998. Announcing that a Developmental Center
will close within the next two years falls well within these estimated and documented timeframes of

already closed or closing Developmental Centers.

Conclusion

ABCD supports the right of all individuals with developmental disabilities to live in the most integrated
setting appropriate to their needs, as laid out in the U.S. Supreme Court decision.

ABCD’s member agencies serve some of the most medically and neurologically complex individuals
with developmental disabilities in the community. We believe that individuals currently living in the
Developmental Centers, all of whom have similar characteristics to those already served in the
community, can and should live in the community.

We urge the Governor to announce that a Developmental Center will be closed within the next two
years.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify. I am happy to answer any questions which you may have.
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Testimony before the Senate and Assembly
Human Services Committees
May 7, 2010
Stephanie Rosati-Pratico
640 Paxson Avenue
Hamilton, NJ 08619
sarpl@optonline.net

Good afternoon. Thank you for the opportunity to speak with you today and share my story.

As a parent of two children with Down syndrome, it seems like a lifetime away that I will have
to concern myself with where they will live as adults. However, my son will soon be 17. The
past 16 years have gone by in a flash, meaning the reality of his adult life is around the corner.
My son makes no bones about the fact that he “is looking forward to living on his own". To
simplify his enthusiasm, when asked why he wants his own apartment he confidently answers:
"so I can walk around in my underwear." Who can argue with that!? Thank God, my daughter is

five years behind!

I am also the guardian for my 64 year old aunt with severe developmental disabilities.
Community living has recently become a reality for her after 49 years of living in an institution.
When she was 12 and still living at home, my grandfather had a massive heart attack and almost
died. As a result, he and my grandmother made the very hard decision to place my aunt in a
developmental center. In the 60’s, there were no other options. There was no such thing as
community-based supports and services. My grandfather, being a wonderful provider and
protector, did not want to leave my grandmother as sole caregiver and provider for three young
children, one with significant needs. The day they made that extremely difficult decision - a
piece of them was gone forever.

I can remember as a child driving with my pop-pop to pick her up from "school" and take her
back after her long weekend’s home several times a year. I would sit quietly in the back seat of
the car with tears running down my face hiding them from him because I did not want to make
his heartache any heavier. Sadly, the environment of the developmental center had changed
drastically over the past several decades. The effects were wearing and I saw my aunt’s spirit

begin to diminish.

Initially she seemed happy, but being apart from her family must have left a void. It certainly
would for me. When I was given the opportunity to explore a move for her, I was nervously
excited. Was it the right thing to take her from the place she knew as her home for the majority
of her life? But her visits home and my visits there had a sobering effect that left my heart in
turmoil. What may have worked in the past, and may have been the only option, no longer
measured up. The frenzied atmosphere of the developmental center had no harmony. I began to
realize she would hold her ears while curled up on the couch as a comfort zone which she created
to cope. This was not the home I wanted for her; nor what my grandparents would have wanted.
She was entering her golden years and deserved peace and tranquility to enjoy that last stage of
life. We decided to take a leap of faith and community living has brought many positive changes

Page 1 of 2

Q.



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

for her. I know they were looking down with tearful smiles as my aunt transitioned over the past
year and a half to an apartment in our home town.

Today, there needs to be only one option. My children do and will continue to live in the
community. The concerns I have are more about the practical aspects. Who will provide their
care? Will they be trained professionals? Know how to administer medications correctly?
Obtain proper medical care? Provide an appropriate diet? Continue to maintain their hygiene?
Make sure they dress appropriately? Encourage them to stand up for themselves? Encourage
them to be involved in their community and establish relationships? Make sure they keep their
job? Manage their money correctly? Take a vacation? Will they even understand them and take
the time to really get to know their needs? The list would be infinite if I included all my

concerns.

Although I believe community living is the answer, there is a perception that a developmental
center offers an additional layer of protection from the outside world. Transitioning to the
community has many challenges and community living doesn’t look the same for every person.
The real dilemma is finding security in the supports offered to be able to live comfortably and
safely in the community. The answer is establishing stable support structures in the community
that families can trust and rely on. This is what my children will need as they become adults.
This is what people like my aunt need to successfully transition out of developmental centers
into community living. This is what families need — what I need — in order to have peace of
mind and know that when I am gone, my family will be okay.

Page 2 of 2
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Thomas Baffuto, Executive Director
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May 7, 2010

Good Afternoon. My name is Tom Baffuto and I am the Executive Director of The Arc
of New Jersey. The Arc of New Jersey is the largest statewide advocacy organization for
individuals with intellectual and other developmental disabilities and their families. We
advocate on behalf of, and alongside, the more than 160,000 individuals with
developmental disabilities living in New Jersey and their families. I would first like to
thank Chairwomen Weinberg and Vanieri-Huttle, as well as the other members of the
Committees, for the opportunity to testify today on this critically important issue. We
are particularly grateful that you have taken such a strong interest in these issues and we
thank you for your ongoing commitment to people with developmental disabilities

throughout the state.

At the outset, it is important to be clear: The Arc of New Jersey believes in community
services. We work tirelessly to ensure that individuals with intellectual and other
developmental disabilities in New Jersey are provided with the necessary supports and
services to live as independent a life as possible in their communities. We want people to
have the same opportunities as everyone else- living, working and recreating with their
families, friends and neighbors. In fact, we are constantly reminded by our members,
some of whom are here today, about how important it is to them to have social
interactions and proximity to their friends and relatives.

With that said, one of the core principles at The Arc of New Jersey is empowering people
with developmental disabilities with choice. To that end, we respect that some people
will choose to continue to reside in developmental centers and some people will choose
to move into the community. At the end of the day, we see it as our job to make sure that
people with developmental disabilities are given the appropriate information to make
informed choices about their own lives.

While we certainly respect our institutional partners, there is absolutely no doubt that our
service system is imbalanced. The state is continually investing large amounts of funding
into seven large developmental centers rather than building community infrastructure
that is sorely needed to serve people — particularly people with complex medical and
behavioral needs — in community-based settings. If we are going to make sure that

Enbancing the quality of life of children and adults with intellectual and developmental disabilities and
their families through advocacy, empowerment, education and prevention
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individuals and their families really have a choice, we absolutely have to invest in the
community too. We need to do more for those who want community options, and for

their families.

The reality is clear: we just simply do not need seven large institutions anymore. People
with developmental disabilities — even those with complex needs — absolutely can be
served safely and happily in their communities. We see it done every day. We must
begin to reduce the excessively large number of developmental centers and reinvest that
money into community-based supports and services. This will create a more balanced
services system where consumers will still have the choice to reside in a developmental
center or to choose community placements.

Along with my written testimony, I have included a copy of a white paper that we
recently drafted, which lays out the background and our specific recommendations on
this issue. I hope this will be helpful to you in your deliberations and I encourage you to
reach out to us if we can answer any additional questions you may have.

I want to again thank you for holding this hearing and thank you for the opportunity to

testify. I'd like to turn it over now to the families and the self advocates to tell you first-
hand about their experiences with institutional and community-based supports.
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The Future of Individuals with Developmental Disabilities
and New Jersey’s Developmental Centers

Executive Summary

The Arc of New Jersey believes that all individuals with intellectual and other developmental
disabilities have a right to live, and be fully included, in communities of their choosing. There
must be an array of diverse, high quality community resources available to ensure the
opportunity for community living, as well as a spectrum of residential options from which
individuals with developmental disabilities can choose. Adults with developmental disabilities,
in conjunction with their families, should have the opportunity to self-direct and individualize
their services to the extent possible and should not be “placed” into a program or facility. The
Arc of New Jersey also holds that any individual currently residing in a developmental center
who has an expressed desire and ability to move into the community must be given that
opportunity without further delay. Resources must be made available to ensure that individuals
experience a smooth transition from developmental centers to community living, and large
congregate facilities should eventually be eliminated. While they continue to exist, however, the
health and welfare of the residents and the quality of services delivered, including staffing ratios,
must remain priorities. This white paper outlines the key issues relevant to institutional closure
and makes specific recommendations regarding the successful closure of five of New Jersey’s

developmental centers.

Over the past several decades, there has been an abundance of national and state-specific
planning, legislation and litigation geared toward significantly reducing the number of
individuals with developmental disabilities served in large congregate institutional settings.
Unfortunately, New Jersey has lagged seriously behind national trends in providing community-
based supports and services to individuals with developmental disabilities. For most other states,
it is not a matter of “if,” but “when and how” they will close their institutions. While New
Jersey has made some efforts to begin changing the way supports and services are provided,
there has not yet been a true philosophical or fiscal commitment to eliminating state-operated

institutions.

The Arc of New Jersey calls upon the state to immediately implement the following
recommendations:

1. Review and strengthen the Path to Progress plan (see page 6) and fully fund its
implementation to ensure that individuals can continue to move out of institutions
without delay if they desire to do so.

2. Ensure that a full array of medical, mental health, behavioral and related services are
available to those leaving institutions by implementing the recommendations from The
Arc of New Jersey’s white paper, Community Infrastructure Needs for People with

Enhancing the quality of life of children and adults with intellectual and developmental disabilities and

their families through advocacy, empowerment, education and prevention
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Developmental Disabilities Who Are Leaving Developmental Centers: Medical, Mental
Health, Behavioral and Ancillary Service Areas (see Appendix A).
Create a bridge fund to cover the dual costs that will exist prior to actual closure.
Reform case management to ensure continuity and support as individuals transition from
developmental centers to community living.
Fully fund The 10% Solution (see page 9) to ensure no new admissions to developmental
centers occur unless absolutely necessary.
Collect, update and disseminate critically-necessary data on people with developmental
disabilities in New Jersey.
Form a task force to develop and oversee the implementation of a plan to close five of
New Jersey’s seven developmental centers over the course of 12-15 years. Two
developmental centers should remain open to ensure that individuals who have lived in
an institutional setting for many years and prefer to remain there can choose to do so.
The task force’s plan should include:
a. A plan to close two of the five centers over the course of the first four years,
followed by one every three years until all five have been closed.
b. An individual plan for each developmental center closure.
c. Well-planned and targeted placements for individuals currently residing in
developmental centers.
d. An order of developmental center closures based, at least in part, on the age and
condition of the structure.
e. The examination and monitoring of community infrastructure.
f. A system for evaluating each closure.
Assist developmental center staff to become Medicaid qualified providers to ensure their
ability to continue to provide services after an individual transitions into the community.
Reinvest all savings realized from developmental center closure into community-based
services for people with developmental disabilities.
Direct all federal funds received through the Community Care Waiver and the ICF/MR
program back to the New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities.
Ensure an appropriate annual cost of providing care increase for community providers
based on the CPI-Urban Wage Earner Index for the Northeast.
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The Future of Individuals with Developmental Disabilities
and New Jersey’s Developmental Centers

Background

Institutions for individuals with intellectual and other developmental disabilities are known in
New Jersey as developmental centers. While any facility housing more than 16 individuals with
developmental disabilities is considered an institution, most of New Jersey’s developmental
centers house closer to 500 individuals.

The first state-operated 1nst1tut10ns for individuals with developmental disabilities in the United
States were opened in the 1850s." New Jersey’s first developmental center was Vineland State
School which was established in 1892. The national trend toward the institutionalization of
individuals with developmental disabilities increased after World War II and throughout the
1950s. In 1967 the nation’s institutional census peaked with 240 state facilities serving
195,000 residents.> Since 1968, however, the number of individuals served i 111 state institutions
has declined nationally by an average of 4% each year for 39 consecutive years

Current trends promoting community-based services over institutional settings evolved out of
parent advocacy movements in the 1950s and 1960s.> In the 1970s and 1980s, segregating
individuals with developmental disabilities in large institutions became a national civil rights
issue.’ By 1980, many states had begun implementing community services initiatives involving
the development and funding of group homes, supervised apartments, family support programs
and supported employment in an effort to integrate 1nd1v1duals with developmental disabilities
into their communities and support their 1ndependence In 1981, the part of the Social Security
Act dealing with Medicaid was amended, creating the 1915 (c) option for states. This option
allowed states to apply to the federal government for “waivers” of some of the Medicaid rules
and gave states the option to provide Medicaid services in community settings rather than
institutions. The waiver program for individuals with developmental disabilities, known in New
Jersey as the Community Care Waiver, caused a substantial push toward the development and
utilization of community-based services in New Jersey during the 1980s.

In this day and age, it is widely believed that institutions enforce an unnatural, isolated and
regimented lifestyle that is neither appropriate nor necessary. Studies show that community
living increases the quality of life of individuals with developmental disabilities. Furthermore,
two of New Jersey’s developmental centers, New Lisbon and Woodbridge, were investigated in
2002/2003 by the Department of Justice and found to have patterns of abuse and neglect, as well
as conditions and services that did not meet generally accepted professional standards of care.?
Finally, while the cost of providing services to individuals with developmental disabilities is not
always less expensive in the community than the cost of providing services in an institutional
setting, national data shows that when an institution is closed there is a savings of anywhere from

9% to 45%.’

The Arc of New Jersey, March 10, 2010 1
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National Efforts to Move Individuals out of Institutions

The nation’s reliance on the use of residential settings for 16 or more persons has been declining
since 1968.1° The trend toward closing institutions for individuals with developmental
disabilities gained momentum during the recession of the early 1980s and has continued since
then.!! The creation of the Medicaid waiver program in 1981 as well as strong advocacy from
the developmental disabilities community resulted in developmental center depopulation during
the 1980s through present day. From 1990-2006, the number of residents in institutions housing
16 or more people declined 41% from 171,821 people to 101,416. 12 Dr. David Braddock, the
Executive Director of the University of Colorado’s Coleman Institute for Cognitive Disabilities
and a nationally recognized expert in the field of developmental disability research and policy,
predicts that this trend will continue, “As the nation’s institutional census continues to fall and
average daily costs increase, there will be continued pressure on states to close institutions. 13

States continue to close developmental centers each year and there are only ten states left that
have never closed an institution, with five of those states operating only one institution. 4 The
majority (70%) of the 7% decline in the national census of state institutions from 2004-2006
occurred in ten states: California, Indiana, Wisconsin, Louisiana, Georgia, Missouri, Ohio,
Florida, Illinois, and North Carolina.”” In 1991, New Hampshire became the first state to
prov1de serv1ces to individuals with developmental disabilities exclusively in community
settings.'S Now New Hampshire, Vermont, Rhode Island, Alaska, New Mexico, West Virginia,
Hawaii, Maine, Indiana and the District of Columbia provide serv1ces to individuals with
developmental disabilities without utilizing any state-operated institutions.'

Currently, three states are in the process of closing institutions: Florida, Massachusetts and
Tennessee. The most recent developmental center closure was that of the Fort Wayne
Developmental Center in Indiana in April of 2007, making Indiana the most populous state in the
pation without any institutions for people with developmental disabilities. '® Fort Wayne
Developmental Center had 120 residents at the time its closure was announced in October
2005." It took Indiana one year and six months and $95 million to close Fort Wayne

Developmental Center.”

Developmental | Location Date of | Number Cost Length of time
Center Closure | of Residents from
announcement
to closure
Fort Wayne Indiana 2007 120 $95 million October 2005 —
contract to April, 2007
manage 1 ¥ years
transition
Agnews California 2009 350 $170 million* | Julyl, 2004 —
March, 2009
5 years
Gulf Coast Florida 2010* | 306 Unknown January 1, 2005
Center — present
> 4 years

The Arc of New Jersey, March 10, 2010
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Rosewood Maryland 2009 153 $14.4 million* | January 2008 —
Center June 30, 2009
1 % years
1. Fernald Massachusetts | 2010* 162 $40 million for | December 2008
2. Monson 2012* | 136 all four — present
3. Templeton 2013* | 123 developmental | Estimated 5
4. Glavin 2013* |55 centers™® years for all
Total of all four
four developmental
developmental centers
centers is 476
Arlington Tennessee June 30, | 128 Unknown June 30, 2007 —
Developmental 2010* present
Center > 2 years

* Projections according to state plans

David Braddock was also commissioned to do a study for North Dakota in 2006 where he
reported on the possible closure of Grafton Developmental Center. In this report, Dr. Braddock
estimated “dual costs” of $10.4 million for a three-year implementation period to move the 150
residents of Grafton and close the center.’! Dual costs are the costs of maintaining an institution
while at the same time serving individuals from that institution in the community as the
institutional population is reduced prior to closure.

New Jersev Efforts to Move Individuals out of Institutions

Unfortunately, New Jersey lags significantly behind national trends in rates of community
placements of - individuals with developmental disabilities from institutions. New Jersey
continued to develop additional institutional capacity through 1969, with the opening of
Hunterdon Developmental Center, and the state’s institutional census did not peak until 1980
with 7,317 individuals living in developmental centers throughout the state.”> While there has
been some improvement, New Jersey still falls seriously behind national progress and currently
ranks 49" nationally in terms of utilization of state-operated institutions to serve people with
developmental disabilities.”” In FY 2006 New Jersey’s average daily s%)ending per person in
state-operated institutions reached $494, an increase of 9% from FY 2004. 4

There are currently 2,747 individuals with developmental disabilities living in seven
developmental centers throughout New J ersey.”

Developmental Location Date Founded | Number of
Center Residents”®
Green Brook Green Brook 1981 83
Regional Center Somerset
County
Hunterdon Clinton 1969 553
Developmental Hunterdon
Center County
The Arc of New Jersey, March 10, 2010 3
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New Lisbon New Lisbon 1916 414
Developmental Burlington

Center County

North Jersey Totowa 1928 392
Developmental Passaic County

Center

Vineland Vineland 1892 427
Developmental Cumberland

Center County

Woodbine Woodbine 1921 477
Developmental Cape May

Center County

Woodbridge Woodbridge 1965 381
Developmental Middlesex

Center County

The Division of Developmental Disabilities is attempting to implement the Path to Progress
plan, a State plan to move 1,850 individuals out of developmental centers and into community
placements by state FY 2015. However, no developmental center closure or consolidation is
currently proposed in the Path to Progress plan. Additionally, Path to Progress has not been

fully funded and is not being fully implemented.

State Total cost Doltars Number of people | Actual Number | Number of
Fiscal | (per Pathto | allocated to move (per Path | of people people admitted
Year Progress) to Progress) moved out of to developmental
developmental | centers
centers
2008 $33.6 million | $30 million | 100 121 47 (from January
2008 - June 2008)
2009 $61.8 million | $30 million | 250 112 41 (in calendar
year 2009)
2010 $44.3 million | $9.3 million | 250 42 (thus far)

The Path to Progress plan calls for $44.3 million in FY 2010 to move 250 people into the
community. The Governor’s proposed FY 2010 budget provides $9.3 million to move 62 people
from developmental centers into the community. Currently, New Jersey faces significant fiscal
problems in the face of the global economic crisis. It is unclear how this will affect individuals
with developmental disabilities in the FY 2010 budget and future state budgets.

Another obstacle in reducing the number of individuals with developmental disabilities residing
in developmental centers is that individuals are continuing to be admitted. The current policy of
the Division of Developmental Disabilities is that admission to the developmental centers is
permitted only when an emergency exists, as defined in Division regulations N.J.A.C. 10:46B 3-
3, and no community placement is available. Unfortunately, due to the lack of funding for
residential supports and services for people living at home with aging caregivers, the unmet
support needs of individuals living in the community and the lack of infrastructure to serve
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individuals in the community, the only placements that occur are emergencies. In an emergency,
with no community placements available, individuals are being admitted to developmental
centers from the community. Without funding to begin serving the over 8,000 people in the
community on a waiting list for services, there will continue to be emergency placements and
New Jersey will never be able to truly close the front door to its developmental centers.

Developmental Center Closures in New Jersey

Only three developmental centers have been closed in New Jersey: Edison, Johnstone and North
Princeton.?’ In 1988, New Jersey closed Edison developmental center, with a population of 70
residents at the time the closure was announced.”® In 1992, New Jersey closed Johnstone
Training and Research Center, which had 229 residents at the time its closure was announced in
1991.% Most recently, in 1998, New Jersey closed North Princeton Developmental Center,
which had 512 residents at the time its closure was announced and took three years to shut its

30
doors.

There has been significant follow-up on the quality of life of the former residents of North
Princeton, including three reports by the Developmental Disabilities Planning Institute (DDPI) at
the New Jersey Institute of Technology (NJIT). According to these reports, nearly 75% of those
who left North Princeton are residing in community settings including group homes, supervised
apartments and skill development homes while about 25% ended up in a developmental center,
nursing home, or other institutional setting.”!

The studies done by the DDPI show no evidence of an increase in mortality or any other negative
consequences of deinstitutionalization.®® Despite opposition to the closure of North Princeton by
some family members, the DDPI studies show that there is now strong support for community
living by a clear majority of family members.®®>  Additionally, the DDPI reports show that
consumers living in the community are doing “equal to or better than” their institutional
counterparts, with strong empirical evidence linking community living with a better quality of
life in the areas of community participation, family contact, self-care, freedom via lower social
controls, utilization of mental health care, productivity, personal choice and autonomy, and
safety of the person and their possessions.>*

Olmstead v L.C.
On June 22, 1995, the United States Supreme Court issued a landmark decision for individuals

with developmental disabilities, recognizing community living as a civil rights issue. In
Olmstead v. L.C., the Court determined that the unjustified institutionalization of people with
disabilities violates the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). Specifically, the Court
ruled that states are required to provide community-based services for individuals with
disabilities who are residing in institutions if the appropriate professionals determine that the
individual is capable of residing in the community, the individual does not oppose community
living, and the placement can be reasonably accommodated by the state.

Governor’s Task Force
In November 2001, a Governor’s Task Force on the Olmstead v. L.C. Decision was convened to

guide New Jersey’s efforts to shape a comprehensive plan for the community integration of
people with disabilities. In December 2002, the Department of Human Services, in conjunction
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with the Governor’s Stakeholder Task Force on Olmstead issued a report titled “Achieving
Community Integration for People with Disabilities.” This report contained 62 recommendations
addressing issues and barriers to community integration, and emphasized the need for a sustained
commitment in the State budget to support the diversion of people with disabilities from
institutions and the transition of people with disabilities from these settings to their communities
with appropriate supports. Unfortunately, the recommendations contained in this report were not
implemented and many of the issues identified by the Task Force, and the recommendations
contained in its report, reappear in the 2007 Path to Progress plan.

Public Law 2006, Chapter 61
On August 2, 2006 Governor Corzine signed into law Senate bill 1090/Assembly bill 2947, now

P.L. 2006, c.61. This law required the Division of Developmental Disabilities to develop a plan
with established benchmarks to ensure that within eight years (State FY 2008 through State FY
2015), each resident in a developmental center who expresses a desire to live in the community
and whose individual habilitation plan so recommends, is able to live in a community-based
setting. In developing the plan, the Division of Developmental Disabilities was required to
1) establish criteria to identify those who are appropriate candidates for community-based living
2) identify the resources needed to provide those individuals with community-based services and
supports and 3) set forth how the necessary funding, services and housing are to be provided.

Additionally, this law required the Division of Developmental Disabilities to solicit public input
in developing the plan, including four public hearings which were held throughout the state in
January, 2007. This plan was completed and released by the Division of Developmental
Disabilities under the direction of Assistant Commissioner Kenneth Ritchey on May 2, 2007, and
is called Olmstead Plan “Path to Progress.” Public involvement continues through an Olmstead
Implementation and Planning Advisory Council that includes a variety of stakeholders who
advise the Division of Developmental Disabilities on various aspects of the Path to Progress

plan and its implementation.

Path to Progress
The DDPI has already assessed all individuals living in New Jersey’s seven developmental

centers and the Division of Developmental Disabilities has a statewide database which includes
information regarding the abilities, preferences and support needs of each resident of the seven
developmental centers. The Division of Developmental Disabilities has identified 2,303
individuals who are eligible to move from a developmental center into a community placement.
This includes 1,005 individuals whose families/guardians do not oppose such a move, and 1,298
whose families/guardians do oppose a move even though the interdisciplinary team and the
individual do not. Path to Progress proposes moving the 1,005 individuals whose move is
unopposed first, while providing education and preparation to the families of the other 1,298
individuals for movement thereafter.

The Path to Progress plan outlines the individual planning and transition process, methods for
assessing and expanding community infrastructure and capacity, and the cost of implementing

the plan. The Path to Progress plan covers State FY 2008 through State FY 2015 and involves
moving 100 individuals the first year and 250 individuals each of the following seven years, for a
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total of 1,850 individuals in eight years. It is important to note that Path to Progress does not
discuss the closure of any developmental centers.

Litigation

In 2004, Disability Rights New Jersey (formerly New Jersey Protection & Advocacy) filed suit
against the New Jersey Department of Human Services, charging that the State has long failed to
provide community-based services or to develop an adequate assessment tool for identifying
individuals who are appropriate for living in non-institutional settings. The complaint further
charges that the State has unnecessarily and illegally segregated individuals with developmental
disabilities in institutional settings such as developmental centers. The lawsuit cites violations of
mandates and requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the Rehabilitation
Act (Section 504) and the Social Security Act Title XIX (Medicaid).

With the lack of full funding and implementation of the Path to Progress plan, Disability Rights
New Jersey has amended and re-filed the complaint. The purpose of the lawsuit is to get a
permanent injunction that stipulates that community residential services will be provided within
a reasonable timeline and that places a stringent burden of proof upon anyone seeking to commit
and retain an individual to a developmental center. This case is ongoing and has not yet been

heard by the court.

Conclusion & Recommendations

As evidenced by the above discussion, there has been a great deal of national and state level
litigation, legislation and planning in an effort to begin significantly reducing the number of
individuals with developmental disabilities served in institutional settings, and toward the
elimination of institutions altogether. The Olmstead decision and subsequent state efforts to
comply have moved us into an era where services can, and should, be provided in one’s
community. Unfortunately, New Jersey has not yet made the philosophical and fiscal
commitment required to ultimately eliminate the need for large congregate institutions. The Arc
of New Jersey believes that the time for this change is long overdue, and calls upon the state
to immediately implement the following recommendations to ensure that individuals with
developmental disabilities in New Jersev have the opportunity to be full participants in

their communities:

1. Review and strengthen the Path to Progress plan and fully fund its implementation to
ensure individuals can continue to move out of institutions without delay if they desire to do so.
This means moving no less than 250 individuals into the community each year at an average cost
of $150,000 per person. This will require allocating at least $37.5 million in New Jersey’s FY
2011 budget. Path to Progress explicitly states that “It is important to note that the ability to
properly execute this plan is contingent upon the availability of appropriated funding over its

lifetime.” (p. 58)

2. Ensure that a full array of medical, mental health, behavioral and related services are
available to those leaving institutions by implementing the recommendations from The Arc of
New Jersey’s white paper, Community Infrastructure Needs for People with Developmental
Disabilities Who Are Leaving Developmental Centers: Medical, Mental Health, Behavioral and
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Ancillary Service Areas (see Appendix A). In order for developmental center closure to occur
safely and effectively, medical, mental health, behavioral and ancillary service infrastructure
must be developed in the community. We have detailed information on the support needs, and
preferences which clearly shows the need for additional infrastructure and community-based supports
and services to serve individuals from developmental centers in the community. For example:

All People
Living in the
Developmental
Centers™
Average age (years) 492
% female 40
% with a psychiatric diagnosis 53
% tube fed g
% with catheters 4
% who use wheelchairs 47
% needing physical therapy )
% needing speech therapy 60
70

% needing occupational therapy

% needing a behavioral specialist 56

% needing counseling 27
% needing nursing 95
% receiving special food preparation 65
% fed by staff 73
% with intensive behavioral supports 31.6
% who bang their head 12
% who run away/wander 15
32

% who hit others

Given these needs, the lack of professional infrastructure in the community to meet the medical,
mental health, and behavioral support needs of the individuals currently living in New Jersey’s
developmental centers is a critical problem and there must be substantial efforts to expand these
vital services in order to ensure the health and safety of individuals as they move into the
community. A robust community support system with a wide array of supports and services is
needed in order to appropriately and successfully serve individuals with developmental
disabilities in the community. In May, 2006 The Arc of New Jersey released a white paper titled
Community Infrastructure Needs for People with Developmental Disabilities Who Are Leaving
Developmental Centers: Medical, Mental Health, Behavioral and Ancillary Service Areas. This
paper provides a series of health-related recommendations that should be implemented in order
to adequately serve individuals from developmental centers in the community.

3. Create a bridge fund to cover dual costs that will exist prior to actual closure. Additional
funding will be needed to maintain an institution while at the same time serving individuals from

that institution in the community as the institutional population is reduced prior to closure.
Advocates believe that dual costs will be approximately $15 million per year per institution
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leading up to closure. Once the first two institutions are closed, assuming the savings are
reinvested, there should be sufficient funds available to cover the dual costs of the remaining

institutional closures.

4. Reform case management to ensure continuity and support as individuals transition from
developmental centers to community living. Case managers should be the lifeline of information
and services from the Division of Developmental Disabilities. Currently, the Division of
Developmental Disabilities has caseloads of hundreds of individuals being served by one case
manager. This is unacceptable. Individuals transitioning out of developmental centers need their
case manager to be an active presence in brokering and linking them to the services they need.
The support of a case manager is paramount to the individual’s achievement of his/her desired
outcomes and the safety and success of his/her transition into the community. In addition,
quality case management could serve to prevent many of the emergency admissions to
developmental centers by assisting individuals in obtaining the supports and services needed to
avoid an emergency, as well as plan for foreseeable life changes in a way that keeps individuals
supported in their communities even when their circumstances change. Knowledgeable case
managers with suitable case loads and the time to understand and meet the individual needs of
their clients are key to the implementation of any initiative of the Division of Developmental
Disabilities.  Specifically, The Arc of New Jersey recommends that the Division of
Developmental Disabilities: 1) clearly define and communicate the role of case managers, 2)
utilize adequate, up-to-date information technology (IT), 3) put in place clear guidelines for case
management, 4) put in place mechanisms for evaluating the success of case management, and 5)
where feasible, allow consumers choice in determining their case manager. More detailed
information on this issue and these recommendations can be found in The Arc of New Jersey’s
fact sheet on reforming the Division of Developmental Disabilities’ system of case management.

5. Fully fund The 10% Solution to ensure no new admissions to developmental centers occur
unless absolutely necessary. The only way to prevent future admissions to developmental
centers is if there is capacity in the community to serve not only individuals with significant
medical, mental and behavioral health needs, but also those needing emergency placements.
New Jersey must develop the capacity to deal with emergencies by utilizing community services
rather than developmental center placements, and the waiting list for the Community Care
Waiver must be addressed in order to prevent emergencies. There are currently 8,170
individuals in New Jersey on the Community Care Waiver waiting list for services because there
is neither the funding nor the capacity to provide these individuals with services. Additionally,
in 2006 there were an estimated 22,658 individuals in New Jersey with intellectual and
developmental disabilities living with a caregiver age 60 or older.”® For many of these
individuals waiting for services and/or living with aging caregivers, it is simply a matter of time
before their situation becomes an emergency. The Division of Developmental Disabilities
consistently places approximately 350 individuals each year who are in emergency situations.
When there is truly a crisis (such as the primary caregiver dying or a situation of neglect) and
someone needs a place to go, they will be placed in a developmental center if there are no
services available for them in the community. In 2007, The Arc of New Jersey proposed The
10% Solution to address the Community Care Waiver waiting list and increase the community
capacity to serve individuals with developmental disabilities. The 10% Solution proposes
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serving 10% of the priority category of the waiting list each year; in FY 2011 this would mean
providing services to 499 individuals at an approximate cost to the State of $20.6 million.

6. Collect, update and disseminate critically-necessary data on people with developmental
disabilities in New Jersey. It is impossible to create any sort of successful plan without accurate
and up-to-date data. There should also be an ongoing review of the current assessment tool used
for data collection to ensure that it accurately reflects the support needs of the individuals being
assessed. In 2007 the DDPI released a report “Descriptive Characteristics of All Consumers
Residing in New Jersey’s DD Centers.” This report contains very specific data on the needs and
preferences of every individual living in a developmental center in New Jersey. Unfortunately,
as far as we know this data is not being tracked over time or updated as individuals move in and
out of the developmental centers.  Also, while Path to Progress states that there has been an
assessment of available community resources, including the quality of those resources and their
capability for meeting the demand, we have been unable, despite requests, to obtain this data.
This information is critical in order to create and implement a responsible, fact-based plan for
developmental center closure. It is also imperative that aggregate data be easily accessible and
available to the public so that planning can be done, progress can be monitored, and stakeholders
can provide informed input with regard to the process and outcomes.

7. Form a task force to develop and oversee the implementation of a plan to close five of
New Jersey’s seven developmental centers over the course of 12-15 years. Two
developmental centers should be identified at the outset as the ones that will remain in operation
at the end of the 12-15 year period. Leaving two developmental centers open will ensure that
individuals who have lived in an institutional setting for many years and prefer to remain there,
can choose to do so. The task force developed to oversee and implement a plan for closure

should include:

e Chair, or designee, of the Senate Budget e A representative from a labor union
and Appropriations Committee e A medical consultant/expert
e Chair, or designee, of the Senate Health, e A national expert on developmental
Human Services and Senior Citizens center closure
Committee ¢ A behavioral consultant/expert
e Chair, or designee of the Assembly e The Arc of New Jersey
Budget Committee e The New Jersey Council on
e Chair, or designee of the Assembly Developmental Disabilities
Human Services Committee e The Boggs Center on Developmental
o The State Treasurer, or designee Disabilities
e The Commissioner of Human Services e Disability Rights New Jersey
e The Assistant Commissioner of Human e Two appointees of the Commissioner
Services in charge of the Division of of Human Services’ choosing
Developmental Disabilities e Alliance for the Betterment of Citizens
o Two self-advocates with Disabilities (ABCD)
e A representative from a developmental ¢ The New Jersey Association of
center family organization Community Providers

e Two family members of people who
have transitioned to community living
from a developmental center
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The task force’s plan for developmental center closure should include:

a. A plan to close two of the five centers over the course of the first four years, followed
by one every three years until all five have been closed. This is in line with national
timeframes for developmental center closures when the number of residents is taken into
account. David Braddock suggests a conservative timeframe and a date range for closure
because it eliminates or invalidates a significant amount of the opposition to closure.

b. An individual plan for each developmental center closure. Every developmental
center is slightly different. Because of this, there needs to be an individualized plan for
closure for each developmental center. These individualized plans need to take into
consideration the residents and their needs, the staff, the services provided by the
developmental center, the community capacity to serve individuals from the
developmental center, the physical structure and the community where the developmental
center is located. The task force should develop and oversee the implementation of these
individual developmental center plans for closure.

c. Well-planned and targeted placements for individuals currently residing in
developmental centers. There must be 250 community placements from developmental
centers each year. All those eligible for community placement in the developmental
center targeted for closure next should be moved into the community first. If there are
not 250 or more individuals remaining in the developmental center targeted for closure
who are eligible for community placement, individuals from one of the two
developmental centers that will remain open at the end of the 12-15 year period who are
eligible for community placement should be served next. Those not currently eligible for
community placement should be transferred to one of the two developmental centers
slated to remain open after the 12-15 year closure period. Every person who moves,
regardless of where they are moving to should have an individualized transition plan
outlining when and where they will be moving and how their transition will be supported.
If the individual chooses, current developmental center staff serving that individual
should be a part of the transition plan and process and continue to be a regular part of the
individual’s life for a period of time after they move into the community. The amount of
disruption of individuals® lives should be minimized to the extent possible and no
individual should have to move more than once. As much as it is practicable, resident
groups, friends, and staff should be kept intact when an individual moves.

d. An order of developmental center closure based on, at least in part, the age and
condition of the structure. In determining which developmental centers to target next
for closure, the task force should consider the necessity for capital improvements, cost of
maintenance, needed repairs, and any other foreseeable building or grounds maintenance
and repair costs. Developmental centers with greater repair needs should be considered
for closure first to avoid sinking additional money into institutional infrastructure costs.

e. The examination and monitoring of community infrastructure to ensure that the
supports and services needed by those transitioning out of developmental centers are
available and appropriate. The community infrastructure and its ability to support
individuals leaving developmental centers should be consistently monitored to make
certain that the development of community supports and services keeps pace with the
needs of individuals moving into the community. There should be a reassessment of the
community infrastructure after each closure to ensure that there is the capacity to
continue moving individuals into the community and a plan to create additional capacity
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in areas where insufficient capacity is anticipated. The availability of community
services to meet the support needs of those leaving developmental centers is imperative
to the health, safety and successful community living for all individuals transitioning out
of developmental centers.

f. A system for evaluating each closure. Each closure should be evaluated systematically
and longitudinally as was done with the closure of North Princeton Developmental
Center. The evaluation of developmental center closures should include the perspectives
of residents, their families, impacted staff, and the local community. Evaluation should
begin at the time the closure is announced and continue for at least two years after the last
resident has moved out. The evaluation and assessment information should be utilized by
the task force to modify the plan or implementation as appropriate based on this data.

8. Assist developmental center staff to become Medicaid qualified providers to ensure their
ability to continue to provide services after an individual transitions into the community.
Currently, those leaving developmental centers are given an individual budget which they can
use to purchase services and supports from any Medicaid qualified provider, whether that is an
individual or an agency. If staff of the developmental centers become Medicaid qualified
providers, they can be hired using the individual budgets of those transitioning into the
community from developmental centers. This would allow individuals who have developed a
close relationship to their staff to bring them into the community and would allow staff to
maintain their employment and relationships.

9. Reinvest all savings realized from developmental center closure into community-based
services for people with developmental disabilities. These funds are desperately needed to
expand services to individuals with developmental disabilities and their families. The
developmental disabilities community has a wide range of unmet needs due to lack of funding.
The overall lack of community-based medical, behavioral and psychiatric supports is a consistent
impediment to individuals with developmental disabilities in New Jersey being able to move out
of large institutions and off long waiting lists. Any savings realized from developmental center
closures should be used to strengthen and expand the infrastructure in place to ensure the needs
of individuals with intellectual and other developmental disabilities are appropriately met and to
develop capacity to serve additional individuals and support future developmental center

closures.

10. Direct all federal funds received through the Community Care Waiver and the
ICF/MR program back to the New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities.
Currently, when surplus federal matching funds are received by the State of New Jersey under
the Community Care Waiver or the ICF/MR program, those funds are allocated to the State’s
General Fund. This allows the State to utilize these funds for other areas of the state budget that
do not necessarily benefit people with intellectual and other developmental disabilities. Given
the dire needs of the developmental disabilities community in New Jersey, all federal revenue
brought in under the Community Care Waiver or the ICF/MR program must be reinvested into
community based supports and services and used to expand community infrastructure and serve
additional individuals from developmental centers and the waiver waiting list.
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11. Ensure an appropriate annual cost of providing care increase for community providers
based on the CPI-Urban Wage Earner Index for the Northeast. The only way that the
community infrastructure can fully support people moving out of developmental centers with
quality supports and services is if there is an annual cost of providing care increase built into the
funding for community based supports and services. Although the costs associated with
providing services, such as health insurance, transportation, utilities, and worker’s compensation,
have increased dramatically; community provider agencies have not received an adequate
contract increase in nearly 15 years. New Jersey gives its State Departments increases every
year to address the mandatory increase in costs associated with providing services; however
community providers, which provide the actual community services on the State’s behalf, do not
receive an annual increase. In order to sustain and grow the community infrastructure to serve
additional individuals with developmental disabilities in the community, the cost of providing
care must be fully funded with mandatory yearly increases commensurate with the CPI-Urban
Wage Earner Index for the Northeast.
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Community Infrastructure Needs for People with Developmental Disabilities

Who Are Leaving Developmental Centers:
Medical, Mental Health, Behavioral and Ancillary Service Areas

The Arc of New Jersey Planning White Paper
May, 2006

1. HEALTH CARE AND MEDICAL NEEDS

Research, current experience in New Jersey, and a recent U.S. Surgeon General’s Report

demonstrate that access to health care, especially specialized primary health care, is restricted for
individuals with developmental disabilities. Additionally, extreme access problems exist in
relation to various specialty practitioners (such as dentists, psychiatrists, gynecologists,
cardiologists, and others) as well as for ancillary services such as occupational, physical, and
speech therapies. The barriers to care are many and can be considered together as deficiencies
in the professional infrastructure that exists in community settings. To begin to address these
issues, The Arc of New Jersey has identified a number of actions designed to enhance and
expand this service infrastructure.

Recommendations:

1.

Discharge Planning Process. A comprehensive, interdisciplinary, and documented pre- and
post-discharge process needs to be established to provide appropriate transition services to
individuals leaving New Jersey developmental centers (DCs). This process should begin well
before discharge and continue well after initial placement. Transitional waiver funding should be

explored (see # 5, next page).

Medical Records. As individuals leave DCs, they should be accompanied by a complete medical
record and medical history that includes: (1) a comprehensive, standardized summary document,
(2) necessary original source documents, (3) a history of specific procedures and illnesses and (4)
complete information on current medication/therapies, as well as on-going health care needs. The
process of compiling the record should be integrated with the discharge planning process; the
Division should empanel an expert committee, including community providers, to develop the
format of this record.

Integrated Nursing-Health Care Specialist Model. Workable, community-based, provider-
centered, DDD-funded nursing/health care specialist or support models and/or networks should
be developed to provide residential support for health care. Nurses and similarly credentialed
providers need to be made available as staff positions in residential providers of size and through
other network arrangements as needed for groups of small providers or skill home providers.
Nurses working in this model should be included in the discharge planning process to link with
health care managers in Medicaid managed care.
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4. Service Expansion. The Division needs to promote efficient, broad-based, and entrepreneurial
primary health care delivery models by providing market analyses, technical assistance, training
assistance, business planning, access to Division of Medical Assistance and Health Services
(Medicaid) expertise and programs and, possibly, pilot project support to enhance the capabilities
of existing providers and engage new providers. The Division should avoid purchasing services
that are available through Medicaid.

5. Transition Waiver and Strategic Planning. The Division needs to explore “transition waiver”
possibilities for the discharge and placement of DC individuals into adequate community settings.
Furthermore, the Division needs to develop and formalize interdisciplinary, expert, strategic
planning groups that include appropriate constituent representatives, in order to develop
integrated, long-term, appropriate, efficient, and effective health care networks and system
components for individuals with developmental disabilities. These efforts need to include
assessment and re-examination of existing funded models, opportunities for pilot programs with
needed start-up funding, and potential for integration into current Medicaid managed care market

structures.

II. MENTAL HEALTH AND BEHAVIORAL SERVICES

It 1s well known that 30% to 40% of individuals with developmental disabilities also
exhibit mental health disorders according to DSM criteria. Furthermore, studies in New Jersey
have shown that up to 50% of individuals remaining in developmental centers live in so-called
“behavioral cottages.” Unfortunately, in community settings there have never been sufficient
numbers of mental health professionals with experience in co-occurring disorders (i.e., “dual
diagnosis”). This problem will be exacerbated in future transfers of DC individuals to
community settings. Additionally, there is no well-established system of mental health supports
that welcomes and well-serves adults with developmental disabilities and even fewer supports
for children with developmental disabilities. Medicaid fee-for-service mental health providers
have been generally unresponsive to this population.

Recommendations:

1. Integrated MH Service Delivery Teams. Develop multidisciplinary, community-based mental
health teams (e.g., mental health practitioner, behaviorist, health care manager) with 24/7
responsiveness that are integrated into the developmental disabilities community (i.e., DDD
providers) as well as existing mental health structures (via DMHS providers). Explore existing
reimbursement structures and potential inclusion under Home and Community Based Services
(HCBS) waiver (e.g., as service alternative under traditional targeted case management program)
and/or as part of other services under the waiver (e.g., family support).

2. Integrated Behavioral Model. The Division needs to explore and establish workable,
community-based, provider-centered behavioral models and/or networks to provide residential
supports for behavioral plan development and implementation. Behaviorists need to be made
available as staff positions in residential providers of size and in other network arrangements as
needed for groups of small providers and skill home providers. Behaviorists working in this
model need to be included on integrated teams as well as in the discharge planning process for
former DC residents, and need to link with health care managers in Medicaid managed care.

3. CPST Linkage. The Division should explore the potential linkage between above teams and
existing CPST program consultants with the goal of adapting CPST as required to allow it to
function seamlessly with integrated teams (#1 above) and integrated field behaviorists (#2 above).
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4. Service Expansion. The Division needs to explore service expansion strategies in this area
including additional contracting and/or network development opportunities, expanded training
supports, and personnel development. To the extent possible, services should be funded under
waiver structures. Services need to include specialized therapy and counseling opportunities in
addition to traditional psychiatry and behavioral interventions.

5. Highly Specialized Settings. A limited number of highly specialized, time-limited placements
need to be developed, outside of traditional mental health settings, for complex mental health and
behavioral cases (often with co-occurring mental health disorders) and those inpatient mental
health discharges that require step-down transition. These settings need to have system
components that foster integration with general DDD community residential and health care

providers.

6. Strategic Planning. The Division needs to develop and formalize interdisciplinary, expert
strategic planning groups including appropriate constituent representatives to develop integrated,
long-term, appropriate, efficient, and effective mental health care and behavioral support
networks and system components for individuals with developmental disabilities. These
deliberations need to include assessment and re-examination of existing funded models,
opportunities for pilot programs, and potential for integration into current or expanded HCBS
waivers or Medicaid managed care.

III. ANCILLARY SERVICES NEEDS

As a group, people with developmental disabilities exhibit more co-occurring disabilities
than the general population and often have specialized treatment needs even in typical services.
For example, people with developmental disabilities exhibit proportionally more sensorimotor
and ambulation problems and more speech and hearing and visual disabilities. Additionally, this
group requires more complex dental procedures than the general population with many
procedures needing to be accomplished in surgical settings. Additionally, some ancillary service
needs are either not available in fully integrated settings or difficulties are encountered in
adapting the settings to serve this group because of the dearth of providers or complex system
and payment barriers. Thus, in developmental center settings some of these services are
routinely available through the ICF/MR (intermediate care facility) model, but are exceedingly
difficult to access in community settings under current waiver and/or Medicaid provisions, a
problem perhaps exacerbated in New Jersey due to the lack of numerous small ICF/MR settings.

Recommendations

1. Service Continuity. Ways must be found to duplicate the range of ancillary services (such as
occupational therapy, physical therapy, speech therapy, counseling, nutritional services) that were
available to individuals in developmental center settings. Although the current Community Care
Waiver is intended to provide such needed services, it has fallen short. Regardless, the levels of
needed services should be identified in the integrated discharge planning process to assure service
continuity for all individuals.

2. Service Expansion. The Division needs to explore service expansion strategies in these areas
including additional contracting opportunities and/or network development, expanded training
supports, and personnel development. To the extent possible, services should be funded under
waiver structures. Services need to include specialized therapy and counseling opportunities in
addition to traditional psychiatry and behavioral interventions. The Division needs to empanel an
expert, interdisciplinary workgroup to explore these models, including possible inclusion or
adaptation of the current CPST program. A critical goal of such a work group is to provide
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financial and other business incentives to expand the market to attract providers to work with
individuals who have developmental disabilities.

3. Waiver Review. The Division needs to seek competent waiver consultants with unique
capabilities who are able to bring fresh ideas to current New Jersey developmental disabilities
waiver programs. One focus would be to identify waiver-funded opportunities to enhance the
delivery of ancillary therapies and services (including, for example, clarifying rules and
definitions vis a vis habilitation vs. rehabilitation).

IV. Conclusion

In its advocacy role, The Arc of New Jersey has identified and collected information and
perspectives from a diverse group of providers across the state in regard to the upcoming so-
called Olmstead initiatives to move individuals from state-run developmental centers to
community-based settings. The consensus of expert opinion is that the present programs of the
NJ Division of Developmental Disabilities are not sufficient to assure the success of this
relocation process going forward. Of concern in this white paper is the level, or general lack of,
professional infrastructure to provide adequate health care, mental health care, behavioral
services, and ancillary support services as well as competent individuals to carry out such
services. It is the position of The Arc of New Jersey that the Division must directly address
infrastructure issues at the time it embarks on the relocation of individuals from developmental
centers. In doing so, The Arc of New Jersey urges the Division of Developmental Disabilities
to consider the recommendations contained in this white paper.
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Tes;timony before the Senate and Assembly Human Services Committees
May 7, 2010
Deborah Legutko

Good afternoon. Thank you for the opportunity to share my story with you today. My name is Debbie
Legutko and | am the mother of two young men, Frank and Derek, both with developmental disabilities.
My older son Derek, who has autism, is now 24. He works 20 hours a week at two different part time
jobs. He is very verbal, and extremely knowledgeable about sports, music, and movies. Derek has been
on DDD's priority waiting list for over 9 years.

My younger son Frank turned 23 on April 9, 2010. He has been living at Hunterdon Developmental
Center for almost 14 months. Frank had been living at home with 24-hour nursing for 22 years. Frank
is autistic, on a ventilator and oxygen, and has had aggressive behaviors for many years. Early last year,
we became unable to manage his behaviors at home and he became a constant danger to his caregivers
and himself. Our only options were to find him a nursing home or an emergency developmental center

placement.

Before our situation became an emergency, he had been on the waiting list for residential services for
over 5 years. In fact, you may remember me testifying before you in March of 2008 about the waiting
list and how much we needed help. That help never came and when our situation finally became an
emergency, a developmental center or nursing home were the only options. After spending 21 years
in the community it was very upsetting for Frank and our family to see him be admitted to Hunterdon
Developmental Center. | cannot even consider what might happen to Derek should our family face
another emergency situation.

Frank lives on a hospital ward with 14 other men, most are over the age of 50. There is no social
interaction between the residents and he considers the staff his "friends". Since his admission his
behavior has greatly improved and his medical care is very good. His last trip into the community was
in March, and trips are rare because of the staff he needs to accompany him. He cannot participate in
Special Olympics for the same reason, something he really enjoyed in school.

For 21 years, Frank enjoyed being a part of the
community. We gave him every opportunity to
be out and about just like anyone else. He has
traveled to Disney World, seen Broadway
shows, and tried his luck on the slot machines
in Atlantic City. He loves amusement parks and
the excitement of the Jersey Shore
Boardwalks. He is always "talking" about fire
trucks and Santa Clause.

His life now is not what | envisioned for him,
but at the time we really had no other choice.
k| always hoped he could live in a community




You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

with other people needing the same level of
care. People in our state are living longer with
complex medical conditions, and its time to be
innovative. | really want to see Frank in a
community placement.

So for now Frank and | do what we can to
enjoy our twice-weekly outings. His favorite
waitress at Crackerbarrel calls him “my friend
Frank" and he likes to blow her kisses. They no
longer ask for his ID at the Sands Casino, and
the owner of the local ltalian restaurant buys
him lunch. He asks to ride past the local fire
house. He is happiest when he is out and
about. As long as it's physically possible, | will
continue our weekly routine and drive the
120-mile round trip. Hopefully it won't be for
too long and he will have a home living with
others as a member of a community.

Deborah Legutko
1 Hare Place
Ringwood, NJ 07456
(973) 962-9426
mtanddi@aol.com
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Testimony of Adelaide Daskam
Developmental Center Hearing
May 7, 2010

My name is Adelaide Daskam; | was in North Jersey training school
for five years. | didn't like the way | was being treated by the staff. |
was told what to eat and what time to go to sleep. | had to stand at
the back of the line in order to eat.

| am very happy living in the community. | have my own apartment, a
cat and a boyfriend. | also work as a secretary assistant and | get a

pay check every two weeks.

| would choose the community over an institution any day because |
have FREEDOM, | have PRIVACY and | have RIGHTS! | am active in
my self- advocacy group and | own a business that help people with
DIFFERENT ABILTIES advocate for themselves

The institution was the WORST years of my life and no human being
should have to live there! | am asking you to give them their

FREEDOM.
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Testimony of Todd Emmons
Joint Human Services Committee Hearing
May 7, 2010

Hello, my name is Todd LeRoy Emmons. I am here to talk to you about my experiences
living in the developmental center and living in the community. Back in 1972 I was
placed by my family to New Lisbon State School — Home for Boys. Which everybody
said that this would help me with my living skills.

My day at the DC center was planned out for me:

0
0
Y

They decided what time I woke up and what time I went to Bed

They decided what time my meals where and what I was going to eat

They decided how I was going to spend my free time and what activities I was going
to do.

I did make some friend but I was not able to make any friends outside of the DC
center

Many times I was treated unfair and not kind at all. The staff was very abusive.
They would ridicule me and call me names over and over again like “Retarded Boy”
And this hurt me extremely bad and made me very upset.

This made me feel like I didn’t have choices in my life time and that I did not matter. I
was very sad. And did not know at that time all the things I could do for myself. I felt
helpless and very alone. I did manage to leave the DC center with help from my family
and case manager. They believed in me and agreed that I did not need to be in there. So
we looked for a place for me to live in the community. Thankfully I gained an
opportunity to live in a Community based program with Bancroft.

Now my days go like this:

%
0
0

< O

I decide what time I wake up and what time I go to bed

I purchase and prepare all my meals independently.

I chose the places I want to go and who I'want to go there with me or sometimes I
go by myself.

I have been employed and made my own money which I control.

I travel independently on New Jersey Transit

I decide who my friends are and now I even have a girlfriend that we spend a lot of
time together. She is very special to me.

Rl A
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0 1am now on the New Jersey Council On Developmental Disabilities, a chairperson
for Monday Morning Network. Our own Self Advocacy group Chairperson and

many other groups.

I feel very, very happy to be a valued and contributing citizen. I vote in all elections. 1
live in 2 wonderful townhouse in the great community with a roommate. We get along
very well. My family and I are very proud of all my many accomplishments so far and 1
am looking forward to so many more achievements.

Everybody needs to live in the Community and be giving a chance for Happiness.
Thank You.

27
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WRITTEN PUBLIC TESTIMONY SUBMITTED TO:

THE SENATE HEALTH, HUMAN SERVICES AND
SENIOR CITIZENS COMMITTEE AND
THE ASSEMBLY HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE

Friday, May 7, 2010 at 1:00 PM
Committee Room 4, 1st floor,
State House Annex, Trenton, New Jersey

Testimony of:

Thomas B. York, Esquire

York Legal Group, LLC
3511 North Front Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17110
(717) 236-9675

Introduction

Good afternoon committee members, thank you for this opportunity to offer
testimony on these important issues. I was formerly a Deputy Attorney General with the
Office of Attorney General in Pennsylvania, and subsequently the Chief of Litigation for the
Pennsylvania Department of Public Welfare, although I am now in private practice. For
nearly 20 years | have been assisting states in designing and defending comprehensive
systems of services and supports for persons with developmental disabilities, including
preserving a choice for those who feel that they are best served in an ICF/MR.

[ am a strong advocate for the right of individuals, or in the case of many individuals,
their families and/or guardians, to choose the setting that is best for them, including ICF/MR
settings in state-run developmental centers. I will outline a number of reasons that have led me
to this position in a moment, however, I would like to note three important elements of my

thinking at the outset.

First, access to ICF/MR level of care is, in effect, an entitlement. Medicaid regulations
are such that if a state offers ICF/MR services through its Medicaid State Plan, then individuals
who qualify for such services have an entitlement to them and, by Medicaid rules, are required to
be given a choice of setting, including an ICF/MR facility.

Second, Olmstead preserves the right of individuals to continue to receive services in an
ICF/MR if they choose to do so. It was not the intent of either the ADA or the Supreme Court’s
Olmstead decision to force individuals from institutional facilities if they did not want to leave or
to necessarily cause the closure of these institutions.

Third, many guardians of individuals who have lived in developmental centers, including
a substantial number of individuals in New Jersey, desire their loved ones to continue living in

1
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these facilities. Most of the individuals who are advocating for the closure of institutions are not
the guardians, the parents, the family members, or even the individuals themselves. Rather those
:ndividuals who are advocating for institutional closure have no stake in what happens to an
individual who loses access to necessary services. It is important that we hear the voices of
guardians, the parents, the family members in this discussion.

Problems arise when individuals from developmental centers are moved to the
community without sufficient supports. For example, one state recently moved 47 individuals to
the community with little planning with the result that half had died within 15 months.
Community services must be able to address the medical, psychiatric, and behavioral needs of
the residents of ICF/MRs if these individuals are to be successfully relocated to the community.
New Jersey is fortunate, and set apart from other states, because it has access to provider
organizations such as Developmental Disabilities Health Alliance, which specializes in meeting
these needs. DDHA operates a medical home for persons with developmental disabilities,
providing primary health care, mental health and other services on a statewide basis.! However,
DDHA does not offer behavioral services, which seem to be in dire need in New Jersey.

Critical Facts

In addition, I believe there are some very good reasons why we should be very cautious
in calling for the closure of developmental centers. Here are some points that I think your
committee should carefully consider.

1. Heterogeneity of the Population. Individuals with intellectual and other developmental
disabilities (IDD) vary more than the general population, more than most people '
understand or realize, ranging from individuals little different from the general population
to individuals who need constant care.

People with mild intellectual disabilities who need only minimal supports to live in
community settings are barely distinguishable in the general population. The vast majority of
such individuals, if not all of them, who are often thought of as having mild cognitive
disabilities, already live in community settings. They are our co-workers, friends and neighbors
and need only minimal services and supports to succeed in community settings. In the distant
past, many of these individuals were inappropriately placed in state institutions; for the most
part, unless they have associated mental health or behavioral problems or were placed in such
settings by court order following criminal behavior, these individuals are no longer residing in

large state facilities.

However, people with severe and profound disabilities are far different in their needs.
These individuals are quite different from the general population, often consisting of individuals
who have no self-help or adaptive skills, who require personal assistance for all areas of their
life, who have associated multiple disabling medical conditions, and who are often quite fragile
and in need of constant and pervasive services and supports (that is, round-the-clock care).
These are the individuals who, by far, make up the bulk of individuals in the remaining
developmental centers in America, including the seven in New Jersey.

! Kastner, T.A. & Walsh, K.K. (2006). Medicaid managed care model of primary care and health care
management for individuals with developmental disabilities. Mental Retardation, 44, 41-55.

2

9.



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

2. Facility Residents are a Tiny Percent of the IDD Population. Although many people do
not realize it, only about .76%, or three quarters of 1%, of individuals with IDD continue
to reside in state-run institutions of 16 or more beds. This is a very small fraction of the
population of individuals with intellectual and other developmental disabilities.

As noted, the vast majority of individuals who continue to reside in ICF/MR
developmental centers and/or state-operated facilities are those who can be said to have severe
and profound disabilities. At present there are just under 40,000 such individuals residing in
large (16+ bed) state-operated facilities. What is often not fully understood is the scope of this
figure with respect to the larger population of individuals with IDD. Standard estimates of the
population of individuals with intellectual disabilities (that is, not including other developmental
disabilities) are that this group makes up between 1% and 3% of the American population. 2

Using the middle figure of 2%, there are 6 million such individuals based on a general
United States population of nearly 300 million (US Census Bureau estimate, July, 2003). Using
these estimates only .66% (or less than three-quarters of 1%) of individuals with IDD currently
reside in institutions. Because estimates also show that approximately 5% of people with
cognitive disabilities, or about 300,000 (using the two percent estimate), could be considered to
have severe and profound disabilities, only one in more than seven individuals with this level of
disabilities is institutionalized. It does not seem reasonable that such a small percentage of
individuals results in such a contentious and continuing debate relative to their care. Thus, it is
likely that the issue has been kept in the public eye more by the ideology of pro-community
advocacy groups than by professional decisions about service locations.

3. Costs Savings Are Not Assured in Facility Closures. A recent review of selected literature
did not validate the firm conclusion that cost comparisons between institutions and group
homes showed cost savings in community settings.

An important published research study conducted by individuals from your own state of
New Jersey” reviewed selected cost comparisons between institutions and community settings.
One of the conclusions reached by this study was that cost savings, in the shift from institutions
to community settings, were not necessarily assured, other things being equal. More on these
findings and conclusions can be found in the published report — in general it was found that costs
are shifted from one area of state government (i.e., the health care costs in developmental centers
would be shifted, in your case from DDD to Medicaid).

4. Pervasive Supports Are Needed. Because of the small number of individuals (#2 above)
and the lack of obvious cost efficiencies (#3 above), it is likely that the current level of
institutional use is reasonable.

2 That is, “intellectual disabilities” is the current term of preference for individuals that were formerly known as

“mentally retarded.”
3 Walsh, K.K., Kastner, T.A., & Green, R.G. (2003). Cost comparisons of community and institutional residential

settings: Historical review of selected research. Mental Retardation, 41, 103-122.
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Although many community advocates argue that the “institutional model” is an outdated
and repressive system and is better left as a relic of the past, they often reach such a position
ideologically, based on outdated information, rather than through a review of current empirical
evidence from modern congregate ICF/MR settings. The remaining individuals in sucii set* s
are generally quite restricted in their functioning level, not at all independent und require
constant care and supervision.

It is likely that the “usitive goals of deinstitutioniu:...ivil (€.8. removing individuals
from instif:i.-ms when they do not belong in them) has largely been achieved in nearly all states,
including New Jersey. It is possible, because of the larger number of institutions in New Jersey,
that there still may be some individuals who desire to leave such centers and may benefit from
community placement. By all means, these individuals should be given the opportunity to live in
community settings. However, for individuals who do not want to move, they should not be
forced to.

I believe it is important that New Jersey explore what is the correct level of ICF/MR beds
for your state. That is, I believe it would be grossly inappropriate to simply close all of the
facilities based on the considerations that I am raising in this testimony. In fact, it is the fear on
the part of parents/families/guardians in New Jersey as elsewhere in America that this valuable
resource will no longer be available and that their loved ones will receive inferior services in the
community to their great detriment. The parents and family members of individuals in
institutions are strongly advocating for the continuance of some of these facilities. I believe that
legislators in New Jersey need to seek and seriously consider the views of those who are closest
to the individuals receiving services, and who are typically their legal guardians.

5. Individuals and Families Have Choices. The Social Security Act, Medicaid regulations,
and the Supreme Court Olmstead Decision all provide for choice of ICF/MR settings or
institutional placements.

It would be erroneous to interpret the growth in Medicaid HCBS Waivers in comparison
to the contraction of institutional services as signaling the lack of efficacy of the ICF/MR model.
First, many families, especially those with family members who have pervasive needs and
complex disabilities, desire ICF/MR level services. Second, specific Medicaid regulations [42
CFR §441.302(d)] assure such a choice, as follow:

When a recipient is determined to be likely to require the level of care provided in a
hospital, nursing facility, or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, the
recipient or his or her legal representative will be

(1) Informed of any feasible alternatives available under the waiver, and

(2) Given the choice of either institutional or home and community-based services

(emphasis added)

Similarly, the Supreme Court decision in Olmstead, contrary to the belief of many, does
not provide a mandate for deinstitutionalization. Rather it clarifies the definition of
““discrimination” under provisions in Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act. As stated in

&)/
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the CMS Guidance on Olmstead*: “there is no requirement under the ADA that community-
based services be imposed on people with disabilities who do not desire it” and community
services are only appropriate when the “person does not oppose such placement.”

6. Positive Outcomes Are Not Always Assured. When individuals with severe and profound
disabilities are moved from ICF/MR facilities the positive outcomes of increased
integration, community involvement, and exercise of free choice, are not always observed.

Outcomes for many mildly disabled individuals leaving institutions for community
settings may be truly positive for them and result in an improved quality of life. However,
severely and profoundly disabled individuals receiving highly professional, complex ICF/MR
level professional services within institutions who are then placed in HCBS Waiver settings, may
have difficulty gaining access to these services, especially medical care, psychiatric care, and
behavioral supports which are often difficult to access or sometimes simply unavailable.’

When adequate health and other professional services are not as readily available as they
are in ICF/MR settings, research and practice shows that individuals run increased risk of death,
mental health crises, inappropriate placement in nursing homes, lack of access to needed
services, and so forth. It would seem most appropriate at present to retain complex individuals in
ICF/MR settings (if they choose them), in which these services are available and accessible, until
such time as the service infrastructure for these individuals can be sufficiently developed in
community settings. It does not appear, in my opinion and from my experience litigating cases
in several states, that any state has been able to fully develop all the networks of such services
(i.e., comprehensive medical, behavioral, psychiatric, and ICF/MR-like habilitative services) in
community settings that are reliably responsive to individuals with complex disabilities at a
severe, and especially, profound level. In fact, it is likely that this is becoming more difficult as
economic difficulties continue to plague most state budgets, including New Jersey.

Conclusion

In my opinion, it would be rash to close IDD facilities in New Jersey that are certified to
provide ICF/MR services when substantial numbers of individuals with severe and profound
disabilities are currently benefiting from such services and appear to require them. I do
recognize that some consolidation may become possible among your developmental centers.
However, in my view it would be wrong to begin on a program designed to close all
developmental centers in favor of community-based services. ~ The heterogeneity of the
population is such that the simple message of anti-institutional ideologues that all facilities need
to be closed is simply erroneous considering the overall facts. Furthermore, such facilities (i.e.,

* cMs. (2002). Olmstead Fact Sheet Enclosures: (1) Developing Comprehensive Effective Working Plans Initial
Technical Assistance Recommendations and (2) Assuring Access to Community Living for the Disabled.
Washington: CMS Office of Public Affairs; attachments to letter of Timothy M. Westmoreland, CMS, January 14,
2000 (website accessed: 10/24/03: www.cms.hhs.gov/states/letters/ smd1140a.asp); last modified, October 30, 2002.

5 Surgeon General of the United States. (2002). Closing the Gap: A National Blueprint to Improve the Health of
Persons with Mental Retardation. Report of the Surgeon General’s Conference on Health Disparities and Mental
Retardation. Washington, DC: US Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health Service.
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ICF/MR settings) are part of the Medicaid entitlement to individuals, the choice of which is
assured to families and individuals receiving services, in both the Medicaid regulations and in
the Olmstead Decision. The law on parental rights and guardianship rights, along with the
history and tradition of our great country, further supports the rights of parents/guardians to
make residential decisions for their loved ones, who are too disabled to decide for themselves.
The good judgment of these caring, informed, and involved parents/guardians should not be
easily supplanted by others.

Jva.o
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Senate Vitale, Assemblywomen Huttle, Distinguished Members and
guests, I am honored to have the opportunity to testify before you today at this
joint meeting of the Senate Health, Human Services and Senior Citizens
Committee and the Assembly Human Services Committee.

My name is Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D. and I am a Professor of
Pediatrics at UMDNJ-Robert Wood Johnson Medical School, where I am also
Executive Director of The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental
Disabilities. The Boggs Center as New Jersey’s University Center for Excellence
in Developmental Disabilities Education, Research and Service, is a third party
reviewed program, funded under the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and
Bill of Rights Act.

One of our federal mandates is to advise policy makers on issues of
importance to individuals with developmental disabilities, their families and
service systems. It is in that capacity that I come before you today. My goal is
to place our experience, our concerns and our opportunities for supporting
individuals with developmental disabilities in New Jersey in a national context.

The information I am sharing with you today comes from national data
bases and state sources, and is referenced. There may be slight variations in
actual numbers due to variations in the time frames of the data bases, but all
the trends are constant.

It is also my deeply felt goal to contribute to a dialogue that
acknowledges and affirms that we are all people of goodwill with a shared
commitment to the well being and opportunities for individuals with

developmental disabilities and their families.

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Disabilities
A University Center for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities Education, Research, and Service
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The Direction of Federal and State Policy

There is, and has been for over 30 years, a clear direction in federal and
state policy toward community living for individuals with developmental
disabilities. The first major movement in deinstitutionalization occurred under
President Nixon, although the nature of data gathering at that point did not
make these shifts visible until later. It is been clear over time that these issues
and the needs of people with developmental disabilities are bipartisan
concerns.

This orientation towards community is apparent in the DD Act, in that
Individuals with developmental disabilities have access to opportunities and
the necessary support to be included in community life, have interdependent
relationships, live in home and communities, and make contributions to their
families, communities, and States, and the Nation; !

The thrust of national policy toward the community is also seen in the
evolution of Medicaid funding for long term services, as reflected in the growth
of Home and Community Based Services waivers (HCBS). The findings of the
US Supreme Court in Olmstead v L.C. that “unnecessary institutionalization is
a form of discrimination”, the activities of the Office of Civil Rights and the
federal declaration in 2009 of “The Year of Community Living” in recognition of
the 10t anniversary of the Olmstead decision, lend further evidence to the
strength of this policy trend.

The long term care enhancements that are part of health care reform,
embedded in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, P.L. 111-148,
unequivocally support increased developm.ent and reliance upon community

services. These provisions (referenced in the final section of this testimony) also
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hold the promise of increased federal funding for New Jersey, but only for

community based services and supports.
Where Do People with Developmental Disabilities in NJ and the US live?

The majority of the 41, 645 individuals, 2 70% of the caseload of the
Division of Developmental Disabilities, live at home with their families. The
number of individuals who live at home with their families significantly exceeds
the 57.4% of individuals who live with their families nation-wide.3 Also of note
is New Jersey’s Waiting List, comprised of 8,170 individuals living with their
families. The Waiting List is classified by the following categories: “Priority”
4,994 individuals; “Priority Deferred” 249 individuals; and “General” 2927
individuals.

As demonstrated in Table 1, more NJ citizens with developmental
disabilities live in out-of-home placements (22.1%), compared to their peers
nationwide (16.1%). Fewer NJ citizens with developmental disabilities live in
homes of their own, apart from the family home. 3

Table 1
Where People with Developmental Disabilities in NJ Live
Percentage of Individuals Receiving

Residential Services by Living Arrangement
New Jersey and USA 3

- T AT

New Jerswy : 70 1% :

‘United States  16.1% 26.5%  57.4%

-
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For people who utilize residential placements in New Jersey, in contrast
to the US as a whole, we have a smaller percentage of people who live in
smaller community living arrangements of 1-6, such as group homes: 60.4%
compared to 74.5%.3 In New Jersey, 2,725 individuals live in state operated
developmental centers.2 In NJ, 32.2% of residential service utilization is in

- settings of 16+ people, in contrast to 13.2% nationally.
Table 2

Utilization of residential settings by size
New Jersey and USA 3

Percentage of Percentage of | Percentage of

residents in 1-6 | residents in 7- residents in 16+
sized residential | 15 sized sized residential |
settings residential settings

United States  74.5% 12.2% 13.2%

New Jersey also has the largest number of individuals in out-of- state
residential placements of any of the states. Seven-hundred and thirteen (713)
individuals, 2% of the DDD caseload, are placed out of state.?

Of additional concern, as we look at the range of service settings, is the
500 person increase over the past ten years of individuals with developmental

disabilities living in nursing homes.3 DDD reports that there are 984
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:individuals who are clients of the Division, who are in Skilled Nursing
Facilities.?
New Jersey and the National Trends in Large State Institutions

The clear nationwide trend is to decrease reliance on large state
institutions for the pfovision of residential services. There are now 11 states
that no longer have any state operated large institutional settings: Alaska, the
District of Columbia, Hawaii, Maine, Michigan, New Hampshire, New Mexico,
Oregon, Rhode Island, Vermont and West Virginia. 3 Eleven states now have
only one state institution.*

New Jersey is one of only ten states that have over 2,000 people living in
public institutions. 4 In New Jersey, 2,725 individuals live in state operated
developmental centers. 2 Proportionately, this represents three times the
percentage of individuals who reside in large state-run facilities across the
country.

Table 3

Percentage of total residents in 16+bed state-run facilities
New Jersey and USA3

Number of Total Percentage
residents in residents of residents

16+ stat—run in 16 state-

United States 35,035 436,866 8.0%

In addition to having a large number and high percentage of individuals

residing in state facilities, New Jersey has a high rate of institutionalization
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from a population perspective: 33.4 persons per 100,000 of population, in
contrast to 11.8 persons per 100,000 nationally.>

The level of intellectual disability of the residents in New Jersey’s
developmental centers is generally comparable to the level of intellectual
disability of individuals in large state institutions nationwide. There are a larger
percentage of individuals, 65.6%, classified in the profound range of
intellectual functioning, which is higher than the US average of 51%, but
comparable to Pennsylvania’s population at 68%. Functionally, the group of
individuals in NJ’s developmental centers has similar needs and abilities in
understanding verbal requests, toileting, and transferring [from wheelchair]
compared to the institutional population nationally. A smaller percentage of NJ
residents in developmental centers cannot communicate verbally or who need
assistance with walking or eating compared with the national averages, but the
percentage in NJ who need assistance or supervision with dressing is higher.3
There is a slightly higher percentage (36.5 %) of individuals age 55yeérs or
older in NJ’s developmental centers, compared to the US as a whole (30.6%). 3
The Experience with Deinstitutionalization in NJ and the US

In 1980, 7,262 resided in New Jersey’s developmental centers, 3 then
called “State Schools and Hospitals”. In the period between 1980 to 2008, the
population living in developmental centers decreased by 59.4% while the
population in large state facilities nationally, decreased by 72.8%. Our
neighboring state of Pennsylvania, whose institutional population in 1980 was
comparable to ours at 7, 290 people, from 1980 to 2008 decreased the number

of people in large congregate settings by 82.4%, while we in New Jersey only in
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decreased our population by 59.4%.3 New Jersey’s pace of reducing the
numbers of people living in state run institutions has consistently been below
the national rate. In the period 2005-2008, New Jersey decreased its
institutional population by 4.8%, Whﬂe nationally, the institutional population
decreased by 11.8%.

Of the three state institutions closed by the Department of Human
Services, North Princeton Developmental Center, which closed in 1998, was the
largest with 512 residents. (Edison which opened in1981 and closed in 1988,
housed 70 individuals; Johnstone Training Center, closed in 1992, housed 239
individuals). Extensive documentation of the impact of the closing of North
Princeton Developmental Center (NPDC) was conducted by the Developmental
Disabilities Planning Institute at NJIT. Through measurement of individuals’
status prior to closing, at regular intervals up to two and a third years after
closure, and in comparison to individuals continuing to reside at other
developmental centers, the Planning Institute demonstrated: 1) positive
outcomes; 2) no evidence associated with increased mortality or other negative
consequences; and 3) despite initial opposition, eventual strong support of
community living by a clear majority of NPDC family members. For psychiatric
and behavioral needs, often identified as areas of concern about community
living, important positive findings were demonstrated. The increased numbers
of individuals who received a psychiatric diagnosis, the increased use of
antipsychotic medication and decreased use of medication to control behavior,
suggest a pattern of more appropriate and individualized, person centered

address of needs and treatment upon movement to the community.”
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How We Utilize Available Resources in New Jersey

Medical Assistance (Medicaid), Title XIX of the Social Security Act, is the
federal financial underpinning for Developmental Disabilities services in New
Jersey and for all other states. How we utilize Medicaid for long term care
services has both a unique history in New Jersey, and is reflective of how our
state has structured supports and services for individuals with developmental
disabilities. In 1971, the Intermediate Care Facilities program of Title XIX was
amended to serve individuals with mental retardation/intellectual disabilities
and became the ICF/MR program. By 1977, 40 states had one ICF/MR
certified facility,3 which enabled the state to draw down partial federal
reimbursement for institutional services. New Jersey did not enter the ICF/MR
program until 1978, considerably later than most other states. Entrance into
the ICF/MR program was the impetus for New Jersey’s significantly reducing
its institutional population by 1,557 individuals (21%) in the five year period
between 1980 and 1985, and developing a system of community residential
and day services.

Home and community based services(HCBS) waivers came into being
through the 1981 Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act which gave the
«Secretary of Health and Human Services the authority to waive certain
existing Medicaid requirements and allow state to finance ‘non-institutional’
services for Medicaid eligible individuals”.3 HCBS waivers were designed to
provide community services to people with ID/DD, “[W]ho, in the absence of
alternative non institutional services, would remain in or would be at risk of

being placed in a Medicaid facility [i.e. a Nursing Facility or an ICF-MR](p.87).3
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The national trend toward community supports is powerfully
defnonstrated by the historical changes in Medicaid expenditures. From 2002
to 2008, ICF-MR expenditures increased nationally by only 5%, while HCBS
waiver expenditures increased 70%.8

In the 15 year period between 1993 and 2008, there was a decrease in
the number of Medicaid recipients served in large institutions (ICF-MRs) and
an increase in those served through HCBS waivers. In New Jersey the DDD
Home and Community Based Services waiver is often referred to as the
“Community Care Waiver” or “CCW”. Although this shift is seen in both New
Jersey and nationally, as presented in Table 4, significant disparities persist in
the rate of change, as well as the pattern of expenditures for community
services and for large institutions, between New Jersey and the rest of the
nation. The change in the percentage of Medicaid recipients receiving HCBS
nationally increased more than the percentage of Medicaid recipients receiving
HCBS services in New Jersey. The percentages of expenditures for community

(HCBS) services also increased more nationally than in New Jersey.
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Table 4

Percentage of Total Medicaid ICF/MR and HCBS
Recipients and Expenditures
in HCBS and ICF/MR, 1993 and 2008
New Jersey and USA 3

mICF/MR OHCBS

100% -
90% -
80%

70% - 71.6%
60% - | [e3.0%
50% - 55.6%

51.8% 28.4% 37.0% 19.2% 77.7% 44.4% 84.9% 65.1%

80.8%

40% - 48.2%

30% - 34.9%

20% - 22 3%
10% - 15.1%

0% -+ . . -— ... N ... S— : .
Recipients Expend. Recipients Expend. Recipients Expend. Recipients Expend.

New Jersey USA New Jersey USA

1993 2008

The decrease in the percentage of Medicaid recipients served in large
institutions (ICF/MRs) was more dramatic for the nation than in New Jersey.
New Jersey’s expenditures for ICF-MR services continued to remain higher.

In New Jersey, per diem costs in developmental centers have risen
dramatically, especially since FY 2001, as demonstrated in Table 5.2 New
Jersey’s per diem costs in FY 08 were $641 as compared with the US weighted
average of $514.35.3 It is noteworthy that there is a significant variation in
costs across NJ’s developmental centers, from Hunterdon Developmental

Center’s cost of $390 per diem, to Woodbridge Developmental Center’s cost of

$803 per diem.3
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Table 5

Average Per Diem of NJ State Institutions 3

$700

$600

$500 /
$400 .//
$300 M//

$200 -

$100 /
/

77 82 87 89 91 94 96 98 00 C2 04 06 08

Per Diem Costs

$0

Year

There are significant disparities in our spending in New Jersey for
Medicaid recipients depending upon whether they are receiving ICF/MR
services or HCBS services, as demonstrated in Table 6. Average annual
spending for ICF/MR recipients in New Jersey is $219,987; for HCBS recipients
it is $50,348.3 ICF/MR per recipient spending has tripled in the past 15 years
while HCBS spending has less than doubled. Our costs in each category of
Medicaid long term care expenditures are higher than the US average costs,

with New Jersey’s ICF/MR spending being dramatically higher.
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Table 6
Changes in Per Recipient Expenditures for HCBS, ICF/MR and combined

HCBS and ICF/MR Recipient Between 1993 and 2008,
New Jersey and the USA 3

$219.987

$225,000 -
01993
$200,000 - m 2008
$175,000
$150,000 -
$128.406
$125,000
$100,000 $88,177
$73536
$75,000 $62.180 -
433
$50,348 :
$50.000 $42.460 $49.477 $48 505
$25.000 4 $27.134 $§i°§.
$0 : .
1993 2008 1993 2008 1993 2008 1993 2008 1993 _ 2008 1993 2008
HCBS-NJ HCBS-US ICFMR-NJ ICF-MR-US Combined-NJ Combined-US
Medicaid HCBS Medicaid ICF/MR Medicaid HCBS+ICF

The Challenge of Waiting Lists and Choice Across the System

The DDD Waiting List, formerly a “Waiting List for Residential Services”
has now become a “Waiting List for Waiver Services”, with the HCBS Waiver,
now providing in-home supports in addition to community residential and
other services. A “supports” waiver, an additional HCBS waiver, is being
planned by the Division of Developmental Disabilities. The increased reliance
on HCBS waivers to provide services to individuals living with their families,
especially those on the waiting list, creates a more urgent imperative to address
the disparities in the availability and utilization of Medicaid funds for services
to individuals with developmental disabilities in New Jersey.

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Disabilities
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The issue of choice and its importance to and for individuals with
developmental disabilities and their families is an issue of import to all
families, independent of the services they have or want or need ,and is also an
issue of equity. Families of individuals who live with their family, who are on
waiting lists have long been deeply concerned about the wait for community
service. For these families their long term interest and their deepest fears are
that community services will not be available for their family member when
they are no longer able to provide care, when the family ages, becomes ill or
dies.

These concerns were addressed by the New Jersey legislature through
P.L. 1997, Chapter 17 which required the Department of Human Services to
develop a “plan to eliminate the waiting list for community residential services
from the Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD) by the year 2008”.% The
resulting plan recognized the need to realign the use of resources to address
the disparity in access to community services. A compromise, reached through
the dedicated efforts of the late Leila Gold- a parent leader in the developmental
center parents group with community parent leaders, was the proposal to close
three developmental centers in order to utilize those resources more broadly in
the community. That recommendation was embedded in the 1998 “Plan to
Eliminate the Waiting list”.?

The issue of choice is resonant for all individuals and families across the

system: for those who choose HCBS services as well as those who choose

ICF/MR services.
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Moving Forward: The Possibilities for Enhanced Federal Resources

Of great benefit to individuals with developmental disabilities, to states

and service systems, are the provisions of the federal Patient Protection and

Affordable Care Act, P.L. 111-148, which address long term care.

These include:

The New State Balancing Incentives Payments Program,
Section 10202, to be in effect 10/1/11 -9/30/15.

This will provide a temporary increase in the federal Medicaid
matching rate for states that make structural
reforms to increase community services over ICF services

New Jersey should be eligible for a 2% increase, given that our
level of Medicaid expenditures for HCBS is 44%, below the
minimum federal target of 50%.

Community First Choice (CFC) Option, Section 2402, will take
effect 10/1/11.

A new Medicaid state plan option for comprehensive home and
community based services for people eligible for an institutional
level of care (including ICF)

This could provide a 6% additional federal match for CFC services

Extension of Money Follows the Person Rebalancing
Demonstration Program, Section 2403 through 2016

Provides an increased Federal Medical Assistance Percentage
(FMAP) for individuals moving to the community from an
institution

This allows states to cover institutionalized individuals 90 days
before they move to the community

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Disabilities

A University Center for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities Education, Research, and Service

14

Y &%



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

It is essential that New Jersey monitor the implementation of these
provisions to ensure that the state is prepared and well positioned to comply
with the requirements of these funding sources, and to aggressively pursue
these federal resources.

It is also essential that there be continued reinvestment of federal
resources drawn into the state to permit the expansion of services to

individuals with developmental disabilities who are on the waiting list.
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(From the Cxeeutive Director

Friends,

I always appreciate welcoming you to this report, and the opportunity this letter provides to
reflect on the past year and look towards the future.

It is a source of great sadness that all of us lost two irreplaceable friends with the deaths of
Eunice Kennedy Shriver and Senator Edward Kennedy. Mrs. Shriver’s tireless efforts helped
families transcend the historical stigma of having a family member with intellectual disability,
and move early onset disability into the arena of federal policy. She had a deep conviction about
the importance of training personnel to work with individuals and their families. This vision
helped create University Affiliated Facilities, which have now become University Centers for
Excellence in Developmental Disabilities, the designation The Boggs Center is proud to hold for New Jersey. Senator Kennedy was
central to federal health and human services legislation for the past four decades - improving the lives of all of us, especially the more
vulnerable among us. In his life, and in his death, Senator Kennedy reminds all of us that policy and government can be the vehicle

by which we hold each other dear.

In the past year, we have worked to find enhanced ways to utilize the expertise and perspectives of our Consumer Advisory Council.
The impact of this deeper involvement and the generosity of spirit and time given by our CAC members is reflected in our redesigned
website, program evaluation strategies, and many other aspects of The Boggs Center program. As we look toward the New Year, we
are excited to be part of the Alliance for Full Participation and the national goal of enhancing employment for people with
developmental disabilities, especially those with significant disabilities. We draw energy from teaching our student trainees and their
contributions to creating more valued futures for people with disabilities, their families, and those who work on their behalf.

The economy continues to create great sulfering for so many people and make it so much more difficult for individuals with
disabilities and their families to receive the services and supports they need. In our education, research, and service roles we have
always worked to provide state of the art information, contribute to a vision of full community life, and support the development of
capacity to realize that vision. As we continually learn from individuals and their families, these times challenge us to find ways to

innovate, to preserve what is essential, and together, find new ways create a more just society.
Thank you for your support of The Boggs Center.

Warm regards,

Ledorets MA

Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D.
Executive Director
Professor of Pediatrics
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Mission of The Lizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental ‘Disabilities

Wew. (Jersey's University Center for Cxcellence in Developmental Disabilities

béth M. Boggs Center, as a University Center for
Excellence in Developmental Disabilities, values uniqueness
and individuality and promotes the self-determination and
full participation of people with disabilities and their families

in all aspects of community life.

As a catalyst and resource, The Boggs Centet, through
partnerships and collaborations, builds capacity in
organizations, systems, and communities in a culturally
competent manner. The Boggs Center prepares students
through interdisciplinary programs, provides community
training and technical assistance, conducts research, and

disseminates information and educational materials.

The Elizabeth M. Boges Center on Developmental Disabilities Annual Repost Fiscal Year 2000 .. .
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Dizabeth M. Bogags, Ph.CD.
April 5, 1913 - (January 27, 1996

Elizabeth Monroe Boggs, Ph.D., parent and internationally renowned policy maker, was New Jersey’s foremost scholar
and advocate for people with developmental disabilities. To honor her contributions, the University of Medicine and
Dentistry Board of Trustees designated The University Affiliated Program of New Jersey as “The Elizabeth M. Boggs
Center on Developmental Disabilities” in late 1997.

Elizabeth Monroe Boggs was born in
Cleveland, Ohio. In 1941, Elizabeth
married Fitzhugh Willets Boggs (1911-
1971). Their son, Jonathan David Boggs,
was born in 1945 and it was recognized
soon after birth that he had developmental
disabilities. He eventually resided at the
Hunterdon Developmental Center in
Clinton, near were Elizabeth lived in
Hampton, New Jersey. David passed away
in 2000.

In 1935, Elizabeth graduated from Bryn
Mawr College, summa cum laude, with
distinction in Mathematics. She earned a
Ph.D. in Theoretical Chemistry from
Cambridge University, England, in 1941.
Subsequently, Elizabeth was awarded
honorary degrees from the University of
Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey,
Kean College, and The Ohio State

University.

With David’s birth in 1945, Elizabeth
shifted her focus, from the career in
Mathematics for which she had prepared,
to advocacy and the development of public
policy for people with disabilities. A
founder of the National Association for
Retarded Children, Elizabeth served as the
Association’s first woman President.
Throughout her career, she had

The Ehizabeth M. Bopps Center on Developmental Disabilities Annual Report Fiseal Year 2000 .

continually been involved with The Arc’s
Governmental Affairs Committee and its

activities.

Elizabeth’s involvements and
contributions were far-ranging. They
included serving on the President’s Panel
on Mental Retardation and as Vice-Chair
of The Task Force on the Law, 1961-1963,
and on the Presidents Committee on
Mental Retardation. Working with the
International League of Societies for the
Mentally Handicapped, she was a
principal author of the United Nations
Declaration of General and Special Rights
of the Mentally Retarded. With Justin
Dart, Elizabeth co-chaired the
congressionally appointed Task Force on
Rights and Empowerment of People with
Disabilities, an important impetus to the
passage of the Americans with Disabilities
Act. Elizabeth served on the SSI
Modernization Project and, at the time of
her death, was serving on the Social
Security Administration’s Task Force on

Representative Payees.

Elizabeth’s many national awards and
recognitions include the Kennedy
International Award for Leadership, the
Distinguished Public Service Award from
HEW, the Distinguished Service Award

,,,,, IAIA\I .

from UCPA, the Wallace Wallin Award
from CEC, and the N. Neal Pike Prize for
Service to People with Disabilities. She

was also recognized by the American
Association of University Affiliated
Programs, The Arc-US, and the President’s
Committee on Employment of People with
Disabilities. Elizabeth was a Life Fellow of
AAMR (now AAIDD), and an Honorary
Fellow of the American Psychiatric
Association and the American Academy of
Pediatrics.
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National Metiwork of University Centers Jor Cxeellence

The Boggs Center is part of a national network of University
Centers for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities Education,
Research, and Service sponsored by the Administration on
Developmental Disabilities, Administration for Children and
Families, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

The purpose of University Centers in Developmental Disabilities,
as outlined in the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill
of Rights Act, is to provide a leadership role in the promotion of
independence, productivity, self-determination, and opportunities
for full participation in community life for people with develop-

mental disabilities and their families.

analyses

University Centers in Developmental Disabilities implement their
purpose through these mandated activities, delivered in a cultural-

ly competent manner:

V] ADD Vetwork

% Interdisciplinary education of students and fellows at the grad-
uate, postgraduate, and undergraduate levels

% Continuing education for individuals who support or assist
individuals with developmental disabilities and their families

% Community and family education, technical assistance, and
model demonstration activities

% Applied research and policy analysis

% Dissemination of information and research findings and policy

The federal Developmental Disabilities
Assistance and Bill of Rights Act estab-
lishes three distinct entities that comple-
ment each other‘s efforts in promoting
“sel{-determination, independence, pro-
ductivity, and integration and inclusion
in all facets of community life” for indi-
viduals with developmental disabilities
and their families.

In each state, the Administration on
Developmental Disabilities (ADD)
Network, as these three entities are

known, is comprised of:

University of Medicine

% University Center of Excellence for
Developmental Disabilities Education,
Research, and Service, which provides
community and student training and
technical assistance, conducts
research, and disseminates information
to a wide variety of stakeholders

% Council on Developmental Disabilities,
which engages in advocacy and capaci-
ty building

+ Protection and Advocacy system,
which protects the legal and human
rights of individuals with developmen-
tal disabilities

The three partner agencies that make up
the New Jersey ADD (NJ ADD) Network
are The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on
Developmental Disabilities, the New
Jersey Council on Developmental
Disabilities (NJCDD), and Disability
Rights New Jersey (DRN]J). The NJ ADD
Network is working collaboratively to
address the shared priorities of cultural
competence. (coordinated by The Boggs
Center), self-advocacy (coordinated by
NJCDD), and emergency preparedness
(coordinated by DRNJ) for people with
disabilities and their families.

and Dentistry of Wew- (Jersey

Created by the State Legislature in 1970,
the University of Medicine and Dentistry
of New Jersey (UMDN]) is a statewide net-
work of academic health centers that
includes eight schools on five campuses.
UMDN] is dedicated to the pursuit of
excellence in the education of health pro-
fessionals and scientists, the conduct of
research, the delivery of health care, and
service to the people of New Jersey.

UMDN] is the largest institution of its kind
in the nation. (UMDN] 2007-2008
University Report).

The Boggs Center, an integral component
of the UMDN]J-Robert Wood Johnson
Medical School Department of Pediatrics,
works with the Robert Wood johnson
Medical School Department of Family
Medicine and other UMDN] departments

to address the needs of children and adults
with disabilities. Based within the medical
school, The Boggs Center promotes a com-
munity-based, capacity-building approach
to the delivery of health care and commu-
nity supports for people with developmen-
tal disabilities. The Boggs Center repre-
sented 38% of the grant support funding of
the Department of Pediatrics in FY 2008.

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental stablhtles Annual Repnrt Flscal Year 2009
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History of The Llizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Disabilities

As New Jersey’s federally designated University Center on Developmental Disabilities (UCEDD), The Boggs Center has
played an important role in accessing federal and other external resources to address the needs of people with develop-
mental disabilities and their families throughout the state. Since 1985, these resources have helped to both inspire inno-
vative thinking and build the statewide capacity necessary for people to live fully integrated, meaningful, and valued

lives in their communities.

4 Student training is one of the core func-
tions of UCEDDs that is mandated by the
federal Developmental Disabilities Act.
Since its inception, The Boggs Center has
provided intensive, year-long traineeships
for students from a variety of disciplines,
including social work, education, pastoral
care, and psychology. Regardless of their
chosen professions, students who com-
plete these traineeships have brought to
their work a deeper understanding of,
and commitment to addressing, the chal-
lenges confronting people with develop-
mental disabilities and their families. In
addition, Boggs Center faculty members
reach students from a range of disciplines
by teaching courses and serving as guest
lecturers for a number of New Jersey uni-
versities.

+ Since 1984, The Boggs Center’s
Developmental Disabilities Lecture Series
(DDLS) has provided a unique venue for
bringing nationally renowned leaders in
the field of developmental disabilities to
New Jersey. The DDLS is free and open
to the public, and has become common
ground for the sharing of new informa-
tion, collaborative problem solving, and a
forum for the development and refine-
ment of state disability policy.

02
R4

The Boggs Center has long recognized
the critical importance of Direct Support
Professionals to the lives of people with
disabilities. Over twenty years ago, with
funding from a federal Administration on
Developmental Disabilities Training
Initiative Project, The Center developed

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Pisab

the New Jersey Statewide Training
Network. This network has continued to
provide a vehicle for active collaboration
between The Boggs Center, the state, and
provider agencies. In addition, for the
past two years, with a grant from the NJ
Council on Developmental Disabilities,
The Center has facilitated the use of the
College of Direct Support (CDS), in com-
bination with onsite mentors, in a unique
Career Path pilot program with agencies.

% In the early 90s, in a program that was

also funded through a federal Training
Initiative Project, The Boggs Center intro-
duced Person-Centered Planning (PCP)
to New Jersey. Since then, The Center
has provided ongoing training and tech-
nical assistance on person-centered
approaches for the closure of North
Princeton Developmental Center, the
Self-Determination Initiative, and New
Jersey’s current efforts in Self-Directed
Supports with funding from the NJ
Division of Developmental Disabilities. In
addition, with funding from the NJ
Division of Disability Services’ federal
Real Choice Systems Change grant, The
Boggs Center developed and disseminated
Keeping It Real: How to Get the Support
You Need for the Life You Want, a curricu-
lum designed to teach young adults how
to advocate for, and manage their own
disability-related supports.

% Community building activities have

grown over the years, with an increased
focus on faith-based groups as a source of
community support. The Boggs Center’s

YA L'

R
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efforts in this area include the national
accreditation of our unique Clinical
Pastoral Education program, which — in
collaboration with community provider
agencies — provides chaplaincy students
an opportunity for education and experi-
ence in the field of developmental disabil-
ities. The Boggs Center also facilitates the
New Jersey Coalition of Inclusive
Ministries, and has published several
guides related to faith-based supports,
including When The Call Comes (funded
through a federal Traumatic Brain Injury
grant) and Autism and Faith: A Journey
Into Community (funded by the Daniel J.
Fiddle Foundation).

Employment has been a high priority for
The Boggs Center for many years. In

addition to our training courses for

employment specialists, faculty and staff
have been involved in a number of initia-
tives that aim to raise awareness about
the importance of employment for people
with disabilities, as well as to build the
statewide capacity for providing employ-
ment supports. A five-year federal
System’s Change Grant to the Department
of Labor and a partnership with the NJ
Division of Developmental Disabilities
initially funded The Boggs Center’s sup-
ported employment work. Boggs Center
faculty and staff serve on the board of the
state chapter of national APSE: The
Network on Employment, and The
Center has co-sponsored 17 state confer-
ences on supported employment with NJ
APSE. The Boggs Center is also a consor-

ilities: Annual Report Fiscal Year 2009 ... page 8
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tium partner in the National Technical
Assistance and Research Center to
Promote Leadership for Increasing
Employment and Economic
Independence for Adults with
Disabilities with the Heldrich Center on
Workforce Development, and is also
coordinating New Jersey’s efforts for the
national Alliance for Full Participation,
an Alliance of national disability organi-
zations that has made cmployment its
top priority.

With initial funding from the
Department of Education’s federal
System’s Change and State Improvement
Grants, The Boggs Center has worked
for many years to build the capacity of
schools to include students with disabil-
ities through such initiatives as the
training of paraprofessional educators,
the Inclusion Facilitators Network and,
most recently, the Positive Behavior
Support in Schools (PBSIS) project.
PBSIS has provided more than 70 New
Jersey schools the opportunity to learn
and implement national best practices
for addressing behavioral challenges
throughout the school.

The Boggs Center has worked in part-
nership with the New Jersey
Department of Education, Office of
Special Education Programs; the
Division of Vocational and
Rehabilitation Services; and the
Division of Developmental Disabilities
to address transition to adult life.
Efforts were initially funded through a
federal System’s Change in Transition
Grant and then the State Improvement
Grant to the New Jersey Department of

¢
o’

*

Education. Current efforts focus on
teaching school personnel how to pro-
vide effective Community-Based
Instruction.

For 25 years, through the
Developmental Disabilities Lecture
Series, ongoing training courses, techni-
cal assistance, and statewide confer-
ences, The Boggs Center has promoted
the underlying philosophy and skills for
implementing Positive Behavior Support
(PBS) in community settings.

Currently, through Division of
Developmental Disabilities’ Children’s
Placement Enhancement Project
(CPEP), Boggs Center faculty and staff
are providing PBS training and technical
assistance so that provider agencies are
better able to serve children with behav-
ioral challenges within the state and
closer to home.

% In collaboration with the UMDN]-

Robert Wood Johnson Medical School
Department of Family Medicine, the
Family Practice Center, and with initial
support from the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation, The Boggs Center created a
program that 20 years later continues to
ensure that all Family Practice resident
physicians provide health care to people
with disabilities as part of their training,
In addition, every graduate of UMDN]J-
Robert Wood Johnson Medical School
in New Brunswick receives training in
family centered care and developmental
disabilities that includes individual vis-
its to the homes of families with chil-
dren with developmental disabilities.

o

*

% The Center helps facilitate a statewide

Culitural Competence Collaborative of
the Administration on Developmental
Disabilities programs in NJ, the Division
of Disability Services, the Division of
Developmental Disabilities, SPAN, and
other organizations. The Collaborative
organized a Latinos and Disabilities
Conference and a South Asians and
Disabilities Conference, and is planning
similar events for the future. In addi-
tion, The Boggs Center is involved in
cultural competency efforts through the
national Association of University
Centers on Developmental Disabilities,
and in 2002, organized a training of
state personnel by the Georgetown
University’s National Center for
Cultural Competence.

Boggs Center efforts in the area of
health care include the development
and dissemination of the Managed
Health Care Curriculum: Supporting
People with Disabilities to Utilize
Managed Health Care funded through a
federal Project of National Significance
grant. Children with Early Hearing Loss
and Existing Comorbid Conditions in New
Jersey: State Data and The Experience of
Families is a research partnership
between The Boggs Center and The NJ
Department of Health and Senior
Services, Division of Family Health
Services, Early Identification and
Monitoring Program. The project is
funded by the Center for Disease
Control’s National Center on Birth
Defects and Developmental Disabilities,
under a cooperative agreement with the
Association of University Centers on
Disabilities.

For 26 years, through all these and many other activities, including service on committees, pre-
sentations, and research, The Boggs Center has worked to promote a system of supports that is
responsive to both the dreams and challenges of people with disabilities and their families. It is
this vision, along with an unwavering commitment to the right of every individual to be fully
included in their community, that continues to guide all of The Boggs Center’s efforts.

' The Elizabeth M. Beggs Center on Developmental Disabilities Annual Report Eiscal Year 2009 ... page 9
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Training, Jechnical Assistance, Fnformation Development and

The federal Developmental Disabilities
Act, which designates the Boggs Center as
New Jersey’s University Center for
Excellence in Developmental Disabilities
Education, Research, and Service
(UCEDD), mandates that we perform the
core functions of training, technical assis-
tance, research and evaluation, and infor-
mation development and dissemination.
The Boggs Center, in planning projects
and activities, utilizes these core functions
as the modalities to address our state con-

text and needs.

This pie chart, while presenting the hours
of activity in each core function and the

percentage of our overall efforts they each
represent, does not fully convey the depth

Research and
Evaluation: 4%
388 hrs.

Information Development
and Dissemination: 22%
2,008 hrs.

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Deve]opmenta}‘g‘

and the interconnections of The Boggs
Center program. There is a constant inter-
play between core functions — they are not
performed in isolation.

Boggs Center training programs prepare
students and resident physicians and pro-
vide continuing education and in-service
training to professionals, paraprofession-
als, people with disabilities, and family
members. Through a broad array of train-
ing activities, The Boggs Center builds
capacity to support people with disabilities
in full community living.

Technical Assistance, representing nearly
half of our efforts, reflects how we work to
ensure that the benefits of training pro-

Core Function Level of Effort

grams are transferred to the settings where
those trained work, so that these new
skills and approaches have an impact on
life quality and opportunities for people
with disabilities and families. Technical
Assistance is also the modality through
which we contribute to the development
of public policy, provide consultation and
bring people together in partnerships to
solve problems.

As research efforts at The Boggs Center
and across the field contribute to the evi-
dence base, we incorporate new knowl-
edge and state-of-the-art information into
training and technical assistance, and dis-
seminate that information to enhance
practice and services.

Technical Assistance: 48%
4,248 hrs.

Training: 22%

1,966 hrs.
Student Training: 4%
388 hrs.
jlities Annual Report Fiscal Year 2009 ... page 11




raining

Training activities include training cours-
es, workshops, and conference presenta-
tions. Continuing education recognition
for many training courses and conferences
is available to participants.

% Over 14,779 participants attended
Boggs Center training courses, work-
shops, and presentations during
Fiscal Year 2009.

< The Boggs Center presented 366 train-
ing events throughout the state of New
Jersey as well as nationally and interna-
tionally. Faculty and staff presentations
are listed on page 19.

% The Boggs Center taught ongoing cours-
es for community provider agencies as
part of our quarterly training calendar,
including Employment Specialist,
Person Centered Thinking, Essential
Lifestyle Planning, Positive Behavior
Support, and Management. See
http://rwjms.umdnj.edu/boggscenter/

Technical Assistanee

for our current schedule and online reg-
istration.

% During Fiscal Year 2009, eight sessions
of the Developmental Disabilities
Lecture Series (DDLS), were presented.
More than 1,600 people attended the
series.

% The Boggs Center conducted extensive
training in Positive Behavior Support in
Schools and Community-Based
Instruction for school districts as part of

Training Participants

Legislators/Policymakers:
2

Adult with Disabilities:

310

Classroom Students:
644 839

a Memorandum of Understanding with
the NJ Department of Education, a con-
tinuation of efforts begun with a
Statewide Improvement Grant.

% Two major conferences were coordinat-
ed by The Boggs Center, including the
17th Annual Facing the Future
Conference, focusing on employment
for people with disabilities, and the 8th
Annual Self-Directed Supports
Conference.

Professionals &
Para Professionals:

/ 12,183

Family Members and
Caregivers: 801

Members of General Public:

Technical assistance (TA) activities involve
helping organizations in planning, policy,
and program development. The Boggs
Center’s faculty and staff contribute to sys-
tems change efforts at all levels throughout
New Jersey through the extensive provision
of technical assistance.

* In Fiscal Year 2009, The Boggs Center
conducted 927 technical assistance activi-
ties, including consultations and advisory
meetings with state and community agen-
cies, school districts, and families. Boggs
Center service on boards and committees
is listed on page 24.

+ The Boggs Center joined other UCEDDs
from New York, Puerto Rico, and the
Virgin Islands at a regional Act Early
Summit sponsored by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention and the
Association of University Centers on
Disabilities. Hosted by the New York

UCEDDs, the Summit addressed the
development of state plans to enhance sys-
tems for identifying and serving young
children with Autism Spectrum Disorder
(ASD), and related developmental disabili-
ties

% The Boggs Center coordinates the Career
Path Pilot Project funded by the NJ
Council on Developmental Disabilities,
which utilizes the online College of Direct
Support in combination with onsite men-
tors and tiered, competency-based salary
increases.

% The Boggs Center provided extensive
technical assistance to community
provider agencies serving individuals with
challenging behaviors as part of the
Community Positive Behavior Support
and Children’s Placement Enhancement
Project of the NJ Division of
Developmental Disabilities.

% In an effort to promote person-centered

services in the community service system,
The Boggs Center, under contract with the
Division of Developmental Disabilities,
has provided significant technical assis-
tance in the area of Self-Directed Supports,
as described on page 30.

% The Boggs Center works extensively with

the NJ Office of Special Education
Programs and local districts on positive
behavior support in schools, and the tran-
sition from school to adult life, as illustrat-
ed on page 31.

% Two recent films were aided by technical

assistance from The Boggs Center. Praying
with Lior tells the story of a young man
with Down Syndrome preparing for and
going through his Bar Mitzvah. Unlocking
Autism on Discovery Health presents con-
versations with researchers and families of
individuals with autism.

The Elizabeth M. Bogas Center on Developmental Disabilities Annual Report Fiscal Year 2009 ........ page 12
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Research and lvaluation

Research and Evaluation activities
include research projects and program

evaluation.

« Utilizing a Participatory Action
Research approach, The Boggs Center
is studying the experience of Children
with Early Hearing Loss and Existing
Comorbid Conditions in NJ: State
Data and The Experience of Families,
a partnership between The Boggs
Center and the NJ Department of
Health and Senior Services.

% The Boggs Center is studying the
factors associated with school
personnel adopting Positive Behavior
Support as an intervention approach
to behavior support in school settings.

% The Boggs Center continued to refine
its capacity to collect and analyze
consumer satisfaction across ail
training, dissemination, and student
activities. As part of continuous efforts
to refine its services, follow-up surveys
of in-service training participants are
now a standard part of the Center’s
program evaluation efforts. The web-
based surveys assess the usefulness of
the training and materials, and aid in
the improvement of training offerings.
A technical assistance evaluation
instrument is being piloted with
agencies participating in the CPEP
initiative

TInformation Development and Dissemination

Information Dissemination includes the
development and production of curricu-
la, training guides, reports, and other
educational materials in addition to com-
munity outreach and responding to

requests for information,

Walcrme to The Boggs Center
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% The Boggs Center’s web site
http://rwjms.umdnj.edwboggscenter,
was dramatically re-designed during
FY 2009 with input from the
Consumer Advisory Council. The new
design, which uses the Robert Wood
Johnson Medical School template,
features numerous photos of people
with disabilities. Particular attention
was paid to the accessibility of the
site. The new web site contains Boggs
Center news and announcements;
faculty and staff information; training
opportunities and upcoming events;
student opportunities; descriptions of
all of our projects; products and
publications; and links to national and
state disability resources.

In July 2008, The Boggs Center
started a Writers’ Group for Family
Caregivers, to give family caregivers of

words. A selection of stories is posted
on The Boggs Center web site at
http://rwjms.umdnj.edu/
boggscenter/projects/Writers_
Group.html.

% A total of 270,131 copies of 40 prod-
ucts were disseminated in Fiscal Year
2009. In addition to the new publica-
tions listed on the next page, many
prior publications continued to be dis-
seminated, including Autism and Faith:
A Journey into Community; Brain
Injury: When the Call Comes; and
Dimensions of Faith and Congregational
Supports Resource Guide.

% The Boggs Center also responded to
information requests and provided
resources to state and community
agencies, people with disabilities, fam-
ily members, university students and

S e voRE ¥ ! cler A
gftanmm&fi“: g Th individuals with developmental dis- &
Tk that iy 3
mre Tt ower e @AUCD abilities an opportunity to tell their
i
own stories, in their own
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(Funding Sources (Fiseal Year 2009

State:
$2,622,599

%

The Boggs Center has particular expertise in
developmental disabilities and a strong net-

work of relationships with other compo-

nents of the disability community. The
Boggs Center provides services to federal
and state agencies, community provider
agencies, school districts, and other entities,
through core funding, funded projects, and

fee-for-service, including per diem consulta-

| ~_

tions.
Fee For Service: Federal
i eaerat:
Total = $3,682,387 $ 7;*’;29 UMDNJ Matching Funds: $804,558
0 $173,333 22%

5%

PBoggs Center Grants and Contracts (Fiseal Year 2009

Administration on Developmental Disabilities, Administration for New Jersey Department of Human Services

Children and Families, US Department of Health and Human Division of Developmental Disabilities contract

Services

University Center for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities New Jersey Department of Education - Office of Special Education
Core Grant Programs

Department of Education Memorandum of Understanding
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center on
Birth Defects and Developmental Disabilities/ Association of
University Centers on Disabilities

Children with Early Hearing Loss and Existing Co-Morbid Conditions
in New Jersey: State Data and The Experience of Families Research

Pennsylvania Council on Developmental Disabilities
Faith Community Leadership: A Collaborative Project between
New Jersey and Pennsylvania

University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey Foundation
Adoption and Intervention to Improve The Social Condition of School

National Institute of Child Health and Human Development/
Settings Research

University of British Columbia

Transforming Coercive Relationships in Family Routines Research )
US Department of Labor, Office of Disability Employment Policy/

Rutgers University, Heldrich Center on Workforce Development

New Jersey Council on Developmental Disabilities
National Technical Assistance and Research Center

Reducing Direct Support Professional Turnover in New Jersey:
Career Path Pilot
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FAcuLTY
Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D. .......

Michael Knox, Ph.D

Daniel J. Baker, Ph.D..................

William C. Gaventa, M.Div. ........
Sharon Lohrmann, Ph.D. ............

Nancy Razza, Ph.D
Philip Smith, Ph.D......................

PROGRAM STAFF
Ziba Arjmand, B.S........................
Robyn Carroll, M.SW..................
Melissa Cheplic, M.PH
Caroline Coffield, M.S................
Shellyann Dacres, M.A. ..............
William Davis, M.Ed
Joyce Jelley, BA. .............
Wendy Kuziemski
Bret Li-Vaks, M.B.A. ......
Mary Malieckal, B.A. .....
Kathi Morley, A.S.............
Colleen McLaughlin, M.Ed...
Scott McMahon, M.S.W. ...
Kathy Roberson, M.S.W.
Sunne-Ryse Smith, Psy.D
Michael Steinbruck, M.A.............
Ina White, M.A. ...................

Executive Director

Professor of Pediatrics

Associate Professor of Family Medicine

Deputy Director

Assistant Professor of Pediatrics

Director, Community Positive Behavior Support, Transition, and
Supported Employment Projects

Associate Professor of Pediatrics

Director, Community and Congregational Supports
Associate Professor of Pediatrics

Director, Positive Behavior Support in Schools
Assistant Professor of Pediatrics

Adjunct Assistant Professor of Pediatrics

Assistant Professor of Pediatrics

Data and Technology Coordinator
Communications Manager

Training and Consultation Specialist
Project Coordinator

Training and Consultation Specialist

.... Training and Consultation Specialist
... Training and Consultation Specialist
....Event Coordinator

... Training and Consultation Specialist
....Financial Analyst

....Management Assistant

...Training and Consultation Specialist

Training and Consultation Specialist
Policy and Information Coordinator
Training and Consultation Specialist
Program Administrator

...Community Outreach Coordinator

Alice Walsh, M.Div. ..................... CPE Supervisory Candidate

PROGRAM SUPPORT

Gail DiPane Office and Project Support Staff

Ann Marie McVay ... Project Support Staff
Elizabeth Ong, B.S....................... Project Support Staff
Carole Ramirez, B.S..................... Project Support Staff

AFFILIATED FACULTY AND PROGRAM ASSOCIATES

Cathryn Heath, M.D..................
Dolores Matlock, L.PN. ...............

Secretary, Department of Family Medicine

Parent Advocate, Medical Student Seminar on Family Centered Care
and Developmental Disabilities

Clinical Associate Professor, Department of Family Medicine
Primary Care Manager, Department of Family Medicine

Clinical Associate Professor, Department of Pediatrics;

Uday Mehta, M.D
Associate Medical Director, Children’s Specialized Hospital

Associate Professor, Department of Pediatrics;

Section Head, Section of Developmental Behavioral Pediatrics,

Division of Child Neurology and NeuroDevelopmental Disabilities;

Program Director, Developmental Behavioral Pediatrics Fellowship Program

Kapila Seshadri, M.D. ................

INTERDISCIPLINARY TRAINEES

Boone Clayton, M.Div.................. Master of Social Work Intern
Nikki Hasandras, B.A. ................. Master of Social Work Intern
Joanne Van Sant, BA. ................ Master of Pastoral Care Intern
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Ellie Byra, Chair................co....... Parent Advocate

Lowell Arye....cccoooviiiiicninn Alliance for the Betterment of Citizens with Disabilities (ABCD)

Diana Autin ...........ccoovvevveveeeeee... Statewide Parent Advocacy Network (SPAN)

Thomas Baffuto.................c..... The Arc of New Jersey

Virginia Bryant, Esq.................... Parent Advocate

Flaine Buchsbaum..............c........ Parent Advocate, Chair, NJ Council on Developmental Disabilities

Barbara Coppens..............coc.cu..... Advocate, Disability Rights New Jersey

William A.B. Ditto ...................... NJ Division of Disability Services, NJ Department of Human Services

Lorraine D’Sylva-Lee.................. Parent Advocate

Chin-Lin Fong, Ph.D................ Parent Advocate, Chinese Autism Resource Center

Gail Frizzell..........c.oooooi Parent Advocate

Harold Garwin, Esq. .................. Community Health Law Project

Barbara Geiger-Parker................. Brain Injury Association of New Jersey

Jeanne Hoffner ... Parent Advocate

Jane Horowitz..........ocooooeeeieiinnnn Parent Advocate

Rabbi Evan Jaffe...................... Flemington Jewish Center; Professional Consultation Committee, Boggs Center CPE Program
Samuel Jenkins............................ Advocate, NJ Self-Advocacy Project

Eric JOice .ccoovvrviiiiiii Family Resource Network

Rose Kardashian ....................... Multi-Lingual Center, Catholic Family and Community Services

Sandra Lopez ......ccccoeeieiennnnn, Parent Advocate

Alison Lozano, Ph.D................. NJ Council on Developmental Disabilities

Julia McConnell ........................ Spina Bifida Resource Network

Joanne McKeown..........cc.cceuneae. Parent Advocate, Statewide Parent Advocacy Network (SPAN)

Uday Mehta, M.D., M.PH........... Parent Advocate, Children’s Specialized Hospital, Robert Wood Johnson Health System
Linda Meyer, Ed.D., M.PA.......... Autism New Jersey

Jack M. Mudge ....coovveviniiinnnnne, Advancing Opportunities

Safiyyah Muhammad ................. Parent Advocate

Hazeline Pilgrim...........ccccoeeee. Parent Advocate

Sandra Pinkerton, Ed.D............. Advocate, Special Educator

Kenneth Ritchey................... NJ Division of Developmental Disabilities, NJ Department of Human Services
Carrie Schepisi............cooeviis Advocate, Arc of Morris

Sarah Vazquez .................... Advocate

Michele Wernsing ...................... Our House, Inc.

Derrick Williams....................... Advocate

Roberta Wohle, Ph.D. ................. New Jersey Office of Special Education Programs, NJ Department of Education
Celeste Andriot Wood ............... Division of Family Health Services, NJ Department of Health and Senior Services
Jane Ye ..o Parent Advocate

Joe Young, Esq......cccoovviininin Disability Rights New Jersey
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Awards Cfiseal Year 2009

The Boggs Center
The Boggs Center, along with New Jersey Administration on Developmental

Disabilities Network partners (NJADD), the NJ Council on Developmental
Disabilities and Disability Rights New Jersey, were each honored with Partners
in Advocacy Awards by The Arc of New Jersey. The Partners in Advocacy
Awards to the members of NJ ADD Network and other honorees were
presented at The Arc of New Jersey’s 60th Anniversary on June 19, 2009 in

Princeton, NJ.

Dan Baker, Ph.D.
Dr. Dan Baker was presented with the Rebecca McDonald Leadership Award by

NJ APSE-The Network on Employment in March 2009 in Somerset, NJ. The
award recognized Dan Baker’s leadership and The Boggs Center as a center of

excellence in the field of supported employment.

Bill Gaventa, M.Div.
Rev. Bill Gaventa was honored by the Union Theological Seminary Alunmni/ae

Council with the Unitas Distinguished Alumni Award for outstanding ministry
for 2008 on October 17, 2008 in New York, NY. Stetson University awarded Rev.
Bill Gaventa the Distinguished Alumni Award for 2009 for his outstanding
achievements in his profession and life, which has brought distinction and spe-

cial recognition to Stetson University. The award was presented on March 21, in

Deland, FL.

Sharon Lohrmann, Ph.D.
The New Jersey Association of School Psychologists awarded Dr. Sharon

Lohrmann the Dr. Irwin A. Hyman Service to Children Award. The award was
presented at the The New Jersey Association of School Psychologists’ 50th
Anniversary on June 6, 2009 in Jamesburg, NJ.
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Selected (Faculty and Stadf Presentations

Faculty

Deborah Spitalnik, Ph.D.

Spitalnik D. (2008, November). “Disability
Policy 1ssues” (Workshop) Rutgers School
of Social Work, Certificate Program in
Developmental Disabilities, Piscataway, NJ.

Spitalnik D. (2009, March). “Autism in New
Jersey: A Brief State of the State”
(Presentation). Association of University
Centers on Disabilities Act Early Summit,
Bronx, NY.

Spitalnik D., & Lewis-Day, L. (April, 2009).
“The DDD Community Care Waiver: What
it Means for Services and Supports”
(Workshop). The Boggs Center Conference
on Self Directed Supports, Somerset, NJ.

Spitalnik, D. (May, 2009). “Trends and
Challenges” (Closing Keynote).
Community Options “I Matter”
Conference, Princeton, NJ.

Spitalnik D. (2009, June). “The Evolution of
University Centers for Excellence: Some
History and Some Essential Challenges”
(Keynote). Federal Administration on
Developmental Disabilities Technical
Assistance Institute, Washington, DC.

Spitalnik D. (2009, June). “Supports, Social
Capital, and People with Developmental
Disabilities: Some Antidotes to Deadly
Medicine” (Keynote). Oklahoma Science
Museum in conjunction with the US
Holocaust Memorial Museum traveling
exhibit, co-sponsored by The Jewish
Federation of Greater Oklahoma City and
The Oklahoma Health Sciences Center,
Oklahoma City, OK.

Daniel Baker, Ph.D.

Baker D. (2008, July). “Positive Behavior
Support” (Workshop). National APSE
Conference, Louisville, KY.

Baker D. (2008, September). “Positive

The Elizabeth M. Bogps Center on Developmental

Behavior Support” (Keynote). School to
Work Transition Conference, Nashville,
TN.

Baker D. (2008, September). “Stress
Management” (Workshop). The Boggs
Center Conference for Direct Support
Professionals, Somerset, NJ.

Baker D. (2008, October). “Positive
Behavior Support” (Keynote).
Intergenerational Management. Northwest
Conference on Disability, Portland, OR.

Baker D. (2008, October). “Mental Health
and Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities” (Workshop). New Jersey
Association of Mental Health Agencies
Conference, Princeton, NJ.

Baker D. (2008, October). “Supporting
Youth with Disabilities in the Transition to
Adult Life” (Workshop). Rutgers School of
Social Work, Certificate Program in
Developmental Disabilities, Piscataway, NJ.

Baker D. (2008, November). “Positive
Behavior Support: Therapy and Positive
Support” (Workshop). National Association
for Dually Diagnosed National Conference,
Niagara Falls, Canada.

Baker, D. (2009, April). “Positive Behavior
Support: Fitting into Public Settings”
(Workshop). The Boggs Center Conference
on Self Directed Supports, Somerset, NJ.

Baker, D. (2009, April). “How to Help
Students Find a Way from School to a
Work Life” (Guest lecture). Current
Perspectives in Developmental Disabilities
Course. Rutgers School of Social Work,
New Brunswick, NJ.

Baker, D. (2009, June). “Positive Behavior
Support: Sexual Health Instructions from a
Positive Behavior Support Perspective”
(Workshop). American Association on
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities

-20. .

Conference, New Orleans, LA.

Baker D. (2009, June). “Understanding and
Managing Problem Behaviors.”
(Workshop). Rutgers School of Social
Work, Certificate Program in
Developmental Disabilities, Piscataway, NJ.

Gaventa W. (2008, July). “Spiritual

Supports and Developmental Disabilities”
(3 Keynotes). North American Faith and
Light Network Conference, St. Paul, MN.

Gaventa W, (2008, August). “Aging and End
of Life: Strategies for Addressing the
Spiritual Needs Near the End of Life and
the Challenges for Service Providers”
(Workshop). The International Association
for the Scientific Study of Intellectual
Disabilities 13th world Conference,
Capetown, South Alfrica.

Gaventa. W, (2008, September). “Building
Community Connections With the People
You Support” (Workshop). The Boggs
Center Conference for Direct Support
Professionals, Somerset, NJ.

Gaventa. W, (2008, September). “Spiritual
Supports and Developmental Disabilities”
(Keymnote). Inclusive Ministries Conference,
Holland, MI.

Gaventa. W, (2008, September). “Spiritual
Supports and Developmental Disabilities”
(Workshop). National Health Ministries
Conference, Lake Junaluska, NC.

Gaventa. W, (2008, October). “Spiritual
Supports and Developmental Disabilities”
(Keynote). Lutheran Conference,
Minneapolis, MN.

Gaventa. W, (2008, October). “Clinical
Pastoral Education Program: Integrating
Disability Issues in CPE Programs”
(Workshop). Association for Clinical
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Pastoral Education National Conference,
Richmond, VA.

Gaventa. W (2008, October). “Cultural
Competence and Diversity: The Stone
Game” (Workshop). Association for
Clinical Pastoral Education National
Conference, Richmond, VA.

Gaventa. W (2008, October). “Inclusive
Ministries: Hospitality and Sanctuary in
Faith Community” (Keynote). Presbyterian
Conference, Stony Point, NY.

Gaventa. W (2008, October). “Inclusive
Ministries: Biblical Themes and Issues
Related to Disability” (Workshop).
Presbyterian Conference, Stony Point, NY.

Gaventa. W (2008, October). “Inclusive
Ministries: Creative Strategies for Inclusion”
(Workshop). Presbyterian Conference,
Stony Point, NY.

Gaventa W. (2008, October). “Aging, End
of Life, and Developmental Disabilities: An
Opportunity to Walk the Talk” (Keynote).
Aging and Developmental Disabilities
Conference, Wilmington, DE.

Gaventa. W, (2009, January). “Ministries
with People with Disabilities and Their

Families” (Seminary Course). Princeton
Theological Seminary, Princeton, NJ.

Gaventa, W (2009 February). “Ethics and
Inclusive Ministries: Where Professional
and Personal Meet” (Workshop). Kenney
Center, Nashville, TN.

Gaventa, W, (2009, February). “Ethics and
Faith” (Guest lecture). Current Perspectives
in Developmental Disabilities Course.
Rutgers School of Social Work. New
Brunswick, NJ.

Gaventa, W, (March, 2009). “Workforce
Development” (Keynote). MAX Conference
for Developmental Disability and
Behavioral Health Professionals, Blue Bell,
PA.

Gaventa, W. (March, 2009). “Inclusive
Ministries: Day of Respect, Welcoming
People with Disabilities” (Keynote).
Connecticut Developmental Disabilities
Council Conference, Hartford, CT.

Gaventa, W (March, 2009). “Inclusive
Ministries: Making Inclusion Real”
(Keynote). Ecumenical Conference,
Birmingham, ML

Gaventa, W, (April, 2009). “Instructions and
Invitations: Keys to Community
Connections” (Workshop). The Boggs
Center Conference on Self Directed
Supports, Somerset, NJ.

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Di

Gaventa, W (May, 2009). “Inclusive
Ministries” (Keynote). Katy Autism Support
Group Conference, Katy, TX.

Gaventa. W (2009, May). “Cultural
Competence, Diversity, and Spirituality”
(Guest lecture). UMDN]J-School of Health
Related Professions, Scotch Plains, NJ.

Gaventa W, (2009, June). “Community
Building” (Workshop). American
Association on Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities Conference,
New Orleans, LA,

Gaventa W, (2009, June). “Multicultural
Perspectives in Developmental Disabilities”
(Workshop). Rutgers School of Social
Work, Certificate Program in
Developmental Disabilities, Cherry Hill, NJ.

Sharon Lohrmann, Ph.D.

Lohrmann, S. (2008, October). “Functional
Behavioral Assessment for the LDT-C”
(Workshop). The Association of Learning
Consultants Fall Symposium, Bridgewater,
NJ.

Lohrmann, S. (2008, December).
“Designing Individualized Behavior Support
Strategies: Applications for K-12 Students”
(Pre-Conference Workshop). TASH
Conference, Nashville, TN.

Lohrmann, S. (2008, December).
“Supporting Change: Lessons Learned
About Overcoming Barriers Encountered
Implementing PBS In Schools”
(Workshop). TASH Conference, Nashville,
TN.

Lohrmann, S. & Martin, S. (2009, March).
“The Process of Change: Resolving Barriers
to Universal Intervention Implementation”
(Workshop). International Conference on
Positive Behavior Support, Jacksonville, FL.

Lucyshyn, ]., Fosset, B., Binnendyk, C.,
Cheremshynski, C., Khan, S., Miller, L.,
Lohrmann, S., & Elkinson, L. (2009,
March). “Transforming Coercive Processes
in Family Routines: Experimental Analyses
of Family Centered PBS” (Workshop).
International Conference on Positive
Behavior Support, Jacksonville, FL.

Borgmeier, C., & Lohrmann, S. (2009,
March). “Open Session for Network:
Coaching Systems” (Workshop).
International Conference on Positive
Behavior Support, Jacksonville, FL.

Bambara, L., Lohrmann, S., Nonnemacher,
S., & Goh, A. (2009, March). “Moving
Beyond Buy-In: Helping Team Members
Adopt Individualized Student Practices”

(Workshop). International Conference on
Positive Behavior Support, Jacksonville, FL.

Lohrmann, S., Davis, W., Martin, S., Smith,
S.R., Berk, B., Muscott, H., Mann, E., &
Richter, M. (2009, March). “Coaching the
Coaches: Activities and Strategies to Build
Strong and Effective Coaches” (Workshop).
International Conference on Positive
Behavior Support, Jacksonville, FL.

Lohrmann S. (2009, March). “Positive
Behavior Support in Schools” (Guest lec-
ture}. Current Perspectives in
Developmental Disabilities Course. Rutgers
School of Social Work. New Brunswick, NJ.

Michael Knox, Ph.D.

Knox, M. (2008, September). “Adult
Medicaid Beneficiaries with Developmental
Disabilities and Epilepsy: Profiles of Service
Use and Costs” (Presentation). Pediatrics
Case Conference, UMDNJ-Robert Wood
Johnson Medical School, New Brunswick,
NJ.

Knox, M. 2009 (January — May). “Current
Perspectives in Developmental Disabilities”
(Course). Rutgers School of Social Work,
New Brunswick, NJ.

Nancy Razza, Ph.D.

Razza, N. (2008, October). “Overview of
Developmental Disability and
Psychotherapy” (Guest lecture). William
Paterson University, Wayne, NJ.

Razza. N. (2008, December). “Overview of
Developmental Disability and
Psychotherapy” (Guest lecture). Monmouth
University, West Long Branch, NJ.

Razza, N. (2009, February & March).
“Psychopathology and Intellectual
Disability” (Guest lectures). Current
Perspectives in Developmental Disabilities
Course. Rutgers School of Social Work,
New Brunswick, NJ.

Razza. N. (2009, May). “Overview of
Developmental Disability and
Psychotherapy” (Presentation). Monmouth
Medical Center, Long Branch, NJ.

Phil Smith, Ph.D.

Smith, P (2009, May). "Positive Behavior
Support: Psychopathology and Intellectual
Disability" (Presentation). Monmouth
Medical Center, Long Branch, NJ.

Smith, P (2009, June). "Positive Behavior
Support" (Workshop). Statewide Clinical
Consultation and Training Conference,
Edison, NJ.
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Staff

Carol Britton, M.S.W.

Britton, C. (2008, September). “Addressing
Workforce Development Issues Through
the College of Direct Support and the
Career Path: What Agency Administrators
Need to Know” (Workshop). The Boggs
Center Conference for Direct Support
Professionals, Somerset, NJ.

McLaughlin, C., Britton, C. (2008,
November). “Direct Support Workforce
Development” (Workshop). Association of
University Centers on Disability
Conference, Washington, DC.

Britton, C. (2009, January). “The Truth
About Sexuality and Adults with
Developmental Disabilities” (Guest lecture).
UMDN]-Robert Wood Johnson Medical
School Sexual Awareness in Caring for
Underserved Populations, New Brunswick,
NJ.

Britton, C. (2009, February). “Person-
Centered Thinking” (Guest lecture).
Current Perspectives in Developmental
Disabilities Course. Rutgers School of Social
Work, New Brunswick, NJ.

McLaughlin, C., Britton, C. (2009, March).
“Statewide Rollout of the Career Path and
the College of Direct Support” (Workshop).
American Network of Community Options
and Resources Conference, San Francisco,
CA.

Britton, C. (2009, March). “Sexuality and
People with Developmental Disabilities”
(Guest lecture). Current Perspectives in
Developmental Disabilities Course. Rutgers
School of Social Work, New Brunswick, NJ.

Britton, C. (April, 2009). “Take Me Out to
the Ball Game: The Role of the Direct
Support Professional as a Community
Connector” (Workshop). The Boggs Center
Conference on Self Directed Supports,
Somerset, NJ.

Britton, C. (June, 2009). “Exploring the
Myth of the Perpetual Child:
Understanding Sexuality and
Developmental Disabilities” (Workshop).
Rutgers School of Social Work, Certificate
Program in Developmental Disabilities,
Piscataway, NJ.

Anthony Camuso, B.A.

Camuso, A. (2008, July). “Hiring the Right
People for the Right Jobs” (Workshop).
National APSE Conference, Louisville, KY.

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Dlsabllmes Annual Report Fiscal Year 2009 .,

Camuso, A. (2008, September).
“Communication Skills for Effective
Teambuilding” (Workshop). The Boggs
Center Conference for Direct Support
Professionals, Somerset, NJ.

Camuso, A. (2009, March). “Customized
Employment for People with Challenging
Behaviors” (Workshop). Facing the Future
XVII: NJ APSE and Boggs Center
Conference on Employment, Somerset, NJ.

Camuso, A. (2009, April). “Community
Connections: Keep the Fire Burning”
(Workshop). The Boggs Center Conference
on Self Directed Supports, Somerset, NJ.

Melissa Cheplic, M.PH.

Cheplic, M., Li-Vaks, B. (2009, ApriD). “Tell
Me How You Really Feel: Finding Your
Own Voice in the Community, at Work,
and in Relationships with Others”
(Workshop). The Boggs Center Conference
on Self Directed Supports, Somerset, NJ.

Bret Li-Vaks, M.B.A.

Li-Vaks, B. (2009, March). “Top 10 Business
Topics for Non-Profits to Survive the
Economy” (Workshop). Facing the Future
XVII, NJ APSE and Boggs Center
Conference on Employment, Somerset, NJ.

Li-Vaks, B. (2009, March). “Methodologies
to Support Students & Adults on the
Autism Spectrum” (Course). Bergen
County College, Hackensack, NJ.

Cheplic, M., Li-Vaks, B. (2009, April). “Tell
Me How You Really Feel: Finding Your
Own Voice in the Community, at Work,
and in Relationships with Others”
(Workshop). The Boggs Center Conference
on Self Directed Supports, Somerset, NJ.

Li-Vaks, B. (2009, May). “Autism
Awareness: Where is it for our Adults with
Autism?” (Workshop). YAI National
Institute for People with Disabilities
Conference, New York, NY.

Colleen McLaughlin, M.Ed.
McLaughlin, C. (2008, September). “The
Career Path — Skills, Recognition, and
Relationships” (Workshop). The Boggs
Center Conference on Direct Support
Professionals Conference, Somerset, NJ.

McLaughlin, C., Brition, C. (2008,
November). “Direct Support Workforce
Development” (Workshop). Association of
University Centers on Disability
Conference, Washington, DC.

o1,

McLaughlin, C., Britton, C. (2009, March).
“Statewide Rollout of the Career Path and
the College of Direct Support” (Workshop).
American Network of Community Options
and Resources Conference, San Francisco,
CA.

McLaughlin, C. (2009, March). “Supports
Intensity Scale” (Guest lecture). Current
Perspectives in Developmental Disabilities
Course. Rutgers School of Social Work,
New Brunswick, NJ.

McLaughlin, C. (2009, April). “Don’t Just Sit
There, Do Something!” (Workshop). The
Boggs Center Conference on Self Directed
Supports, Somerset, NJ.

McLaughlin, C. (2009, June). “Supporting
Enviable Lives through Great Direct
Support: New Jersey’s Career Path”
(Workshop). American Association on
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
Conference, New Orleans, LA.

Kathy Roberson, M.S.W.

Roberson, K. (2008, November). “Keeping it
Real Transition Curriculum” (Workshop).
Down Syndrome Conference. Princeton, NJ

Roberson, K. (2008, November). “Families
in a Person Centered System: Beyond the
Money” (Workshop). Association of
University Centers on Disabilities Annual
Meeting, Washington, DC.

Michael Steinbruck, M.A.

Steinbruck, M. (2008, July). “New Edition
of PCT Trainers manual” (Workshop). The
Learning Community for Person Centered
Practices Conference, Portland, OR.

Steinbruck, M. (2008, July). “Graphic
Facilitation and Recording” (Workshop).
The Learning Community for Person
Centered Practices Conference, Portland,
OR.

Steinbruck, M. (2008, September). “Sharing
What You Know: Tapping DSP Knowledge
to Improve Person Centered Supports”
(Workshop). The Boggs Center Conference
for Direct Support Professionals, Somerset,
NJ.

Steinbruck, M. (2009, April). “Third Places:
Find and Create Opportunities to Move
from Presence to Contribution in our
Communities” (Workshop). The Boggs
Center Conference on Self Directed
Supports, Somerset, NJ.
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Selected (Faculty Publications (Fiscal Year 2009

Baker, D.J. (2009). Identity
Development, Intellectual or
Developmental Disabilities, and
Person-First Language.

The NADD Bulletin, 12, 3-8.

Baker, D.J., Nicholas, R., &
Spitalnik, D.M. (In press).
Utilizing Generic Community
Supports for People with
Intellectual or Developmental
Disabilities. Systems Advocacy
and Social Change.

Gaventa W. (2008). Rekindling
Commitment: Reflections from a
Pastoral Counselor Enmeshed in
Direct Support Professional
Workforce Development and
Person Centered Supports.
Journal of Intellectual Disability
Research, 57 (7), 598-607.

Gaventa W. (2008).
Transformers: The Lived
Experience. Journal of Religion,
Disability, and Health, 12 (1), 1-3

Gaventa, W. (2008). Children
with Disabilities and Poverty:
Breaking Free of Limiting
Conditions. The Christian Citizen,
2, 4-5.

Gaventa W. (2008). The Unity in
Diversity, Complexity and
Disability. Journal of Religion,
Disability, and Health, 12 (2),
101-104.

Gaventa W. (2008). Creative
Ministries Before the Big Bang!
The Arc Insight, 2, 3-4.

Gaventa W. (2008). Families and
Faith Communities: The Promise
and Power of the Pastoral Role.
Frontline [Ireland], 73, 20-22.

Gaventa W. (2008). Meeting the
Spiritual Needs of Children with
Special Needs. The Children’
Corner, Fall/Winter 2008, 13.

Gaventa, W. (2009).Hearing the
Call: Discovering Vocation
Through Inclusive Ministries. The
Arc Insight, 3, 6.

Gaventa, W. (2009). Spirituality
and Spiritual Connections. Assess
it, Train it, and Practice it.
National Alliance of Direct
Support Professionals, Frontline
Initiative, 8-2.

Gaventa, W. (2009). Spirituality,
Honoring the Heard and the Call
of Direct Support. National
Alliance of Direct Support
Professionals, Frontline Initiative,
8-2.

Gaventa, W. (2009). Top Down
and Grassroots Up: Two
Initiatives in Cultural
Competence. TASH Connections,
Spring 2009, 19-21.

Gaventa, W. (2009). When
Spirituality Does Not Equal “Get
me to the Church on Time.” Spirit
Brief, 4-5.

Razza, N.J. (2008). Meeting the
Mental Health Needs of People
with Intellectual Disabilities. New
Jersey Psychologist, 58 (2), 36-38.

Razza, N.J. (2009). Mental
Health and Intellectual Disability:
Toward a Therapy for All. Healthy
Times, 20 (2), 1-2.

For information or to obtain copies
of Boggs Center educational mate-
rials and publications, please visit
http://lrwjms.umdnj.edu/
boggscenter or call The Boggs
Center at 732-235-9317
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PBoggs Center Editorial Positions (Fiseal Year 2009

Daniel Baker, Ph.D.

» College of Frontline Supervision (Board of Editors). University of Minnesota

« Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (Consulting Editor). American Association on Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities

« National Association for the Dually Diagnosed Bulletin (Editor). NADD

o Research in Developmental Disabilities (Consulting Editor). Elsevier

William Gaventa, M.Div.

* Exceptional Parent Magazine, Spiritual and Religious Supports Series (Advisor)

« Insight Newsletter (Columnist). The Arc of the United States

« Religion and Spirituality Newsletter (Editor). American Association on Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities

« Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (Consulting Editor). American Association on Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities

o Journal of Religion, Disability, and Health (Editor). Taylor and Francis

Sharon Lohrmann, Ph.D.

o Journal of Positive Behavior Interventions (Editorial Board Member). Hammill Institute on Disability
e Research and Practice for Persons with Severe Disabilities (Editorial Board Member). TASH

e TASH Connections (Editor and Chair, Editorial Committee). TASH

Nancy Razza, Ph.D.
o Mental Health Aspects of Developmental Disabilities (Editorial Board Member). Psych - Media of NC Inc.

Kathy Roberson, M.S.W.
e People and Families (Editorial Board Member). NJ Council on Developmental Disabilities

Deborah Spitalnik, Ph.D.
o Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (Consulting Editor). American Association on Intellectual and

Developmental Disabilities
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Public Policy

The Boggs Center actively influences public policy at national and state levels. Through education and outreach, The Boggs
Center helps to ensure that people with disabilities, family members, service providers and policy makers have the information

they need to shape policy at the state and national levels in ways that will improve the lives of people with disabilities.

(Faeulty and Staff Appointments and Conmittees

Active participation on boards and committees provides a mechanism for Boggs Center faculty and staff to share

best practices information and work collaboratively with the larger community to build capacity and create

systems change

NATIONAL APPOINTMENTS AND COMMITTEES

% American Association on Intellectual + Coalition on Ministries in Specialized % National Council of Churches,
and Developmental Disabilities, End of Settings/The Network Committee on Disabilities; Task Force
Life Action Group; Religion Division on Genetics
(Executive Commiittee) “ College of Direct Support National
Advisory Board % TASH (Board Member); Training and
% Association for the Scientific Study of Outreach Committee
Intellectual Disability, Quality of Life % Council on Quality and Leadership
Special Interest Research Group; (Vice Chair) % The Learning Community for Person
Aging/End of Life Affinity Group Centered Practices (Board Member):
+% National Alliance for Direct Support Community Connections Training
% Association of University Centers on Professionals, Education and Training Curriculum Workgroup (Chair);
Disabilities (Past President), Annual Committee Contference Agenda and Planning
Report Template Workgroup; Council of Committee; Material Development
Community Education Coordinators, < National Association for the Dually Committee (Chair); Plan Facilitation
Dissemination Committee; Council on Diagnosed (Board of Directors); Training Curriculum Workgroup
Research and Evaluation; Data Training and Conference Committee; (Chair)
Coordinators; Dissemination Professional Certification Committee;
Coordinators; Health Care Workgroup; Direct Care Staff Certificate < World Council of Churches, Ecumenical
Legislative Affairs Committee; Subcommittee Disability Advocacy Network

Multicultural Affairs Council
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NEW JERSEY APPOINTMENTS AND COMMITTEES

% Alliance for the Betterment of Citizens
with Disabilities, Staff Day Conference
(Planning Committee)

% Autism New Jersey and The Boggs
Center, Autism and Faith Task Force

% Boggs Center Clinical Pastoral
Education Program, Professional
Consultation Committee (Chair)

% Cultural Access Network of New Jersey

% Cultural Competence Collaborative,
Steering Committee

% Developmental Disabilities Coalition

+ Disability Rights New Jersey, Protection
and Advocacy for Developmental
Disabilities Advisory Group; Assistive
Technology Advocacy Center Advisory
Committee (Co-Chair)

% Family Support Coalition (Vice
President)

# Governor’s Council on the Prevention of
Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities (Gubernatorial
Appointment)

% Interagency Transition Group

< Middlesex Educational Services
Commission Transition Advisory
Committee

% NJ Advisory Council on Traumatic Brain
Injury (Gubernatorial Appointment)

% NJ Aging and End of Life in
Developmental Disabilities Network
(Coordinator)

% NJ Alliance for Full Participation (State
Team Co-Chairs)

% NJ APSE — The Network on
Employment (Board of Directors, Vice
President, Conference Co-Chair);
Conference Planning Committee

% NJ Coalition for Inclusive Ministries
Steering Committee

% NJ Coalition for the Advancement of
Rehabilitation Technology (Board of
Trustees)

% NJ Council on Developmental
Disabilities, Member (Gubernatorial
Appointment); Education Committee;

Public Policy Committee; Planning
Committee

% NJ Statewide Independent Living
Council (Gubernatorial Appointment)

% NJ Department of Community Affairs,
Barrier-Free Subcode Committee

% NJ Department of Education, Office of
Special Education Programs,
Stakeholders Group

% NJ Department of Human Services, Dual
Diagnosis Task Force, Member; Adult
Best Practices and Crisis Response
Subcommittee; Adult Collaborative
Services Subcommiittee

% NJ Direct Support Professional
Workforce Development Coalition
Leadership Council

< NJ Division of Developmental
Disabilities, Dialogue Group; Family
Support Task Force; Individual Budget
Assessment Committee; Olmstead
Implementation and Planning Advisory
Council; Olmstead Sell Advocacy and
Family Partnership Workgroup;
Olmstead Quality Improvement
Workgroup; Olmstead Service Delivery
Workgroup-Employment; Olmstead
Service Delivery Workgroup-Housing;
Olmstead System Redesign Workgroup
(Co-Chair); Quality Management
Steering Committee; Self Directed
Supports Conference and Training
Workgroup; Self Directed Supports
Health and Safety Workgroup; Self
Directed Supports Policy Committee;
Self Directed Supports Provider
Qualification Training Subcommittee;
Service Plan Outcomes Training
Curriculum Workgroup; Statewide
Training Advisory Committee; Systems
Transformation Grant, Access and
Public Awareness Workgroup
(Facilitator); Systems Transformation
Grant, Assessing Family Education
Efforts Subcommittee (Chair); Systems
Transformation Grant, Nursing
Facility/Intermediate Care Facility
Transitions and Diversions Workgroup;
Trainers Network

% NJ Division of Medical Assistance and
Health Services, Medical Assistance
Advisory Committee (Chair)

% NJ Partners in Justice Healthy Sexuality
Training Advisory Committee (Co-Chair)

+ NJ Sexual Assault Task Force

# NJ Transit ADA Task Force

s+ Robert Wood Johnson Medical School,
Community Oriented Primary Care
Summer Assistantship (Co-Director)

< Robert Wood Johnson Medical School,
Distinction in Service to the
Community Advisory Committee

% Robert Wood Johnson Medical School,
Department of Pediatrics,
Neurodevelopmental Disabilities
Collaboration Committee; Strategic
Planning Committee

% Rutgers School of Social Work, Field
Education Committee; Gerontology
Consortium

% Rutgers School of Social Work, Institute
for Families, Office of Continuing
Education, Certificate Program in
Developmental Disabilities Advisory
Council (Chair); Non-Profit and Public
Management Advisory Council

% Small Business Development Center-
Entrepreneurial Achievement Center
(Board Member)

% Social Security Alliance

% State Special Education Advisory
Council

“ Statewide Network for Cultural
Competence, Steering Committee

% Statewide Parent Advocacy Network,
Family to Family Health Information
Resource Center/Family Voices-NJ
Parent to Parent Leadership Team
Advisory Committee

< The Greater Raritan Workforce
Investment Board Disability Committee

% Union County, Advisory Board on
Persons with Disabilities; Senior
Citizens and Disabled Persons
Transportation Advisory Board

< YMCA Stand Against Racism Task Force

% United Methodist Church, Greater NJ
Annual Conference, Special Needs
Committee; Compassionate Advocates
Team; Mental Health Task Force
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Community Supports

DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
LECTURE SERIES

The lecture series is a community and con-
tinuing education program provided for
Division of Developmental Disabilities
staff, community provider agencies, people
with disabilities, and family members to
enhance their knowledge and skills in
innovative approaches and state-of-the-art
practices for people with developmental
disabilities. Eight sessions are held each
year, four in the fall and four in the spring.
Nationally known speakers with expertise
in their field serve as faculty for the pro-
gram, each conducting a morning presen-
tation and providing technical assistance in

an afternoon forum.

% Following the October 10, 2008 morn-
ing session, The Boggs Center coordinat-
ed the Dual Diagnosis Task Force Report
Presentation with the NJ Department of
Human Services.

< The 200th session of the Developmental
Disabilities Lecture Series was celebrated
at the November 18, 2008 lecture by
Nancy Thaler.

< The Developmental Disabilities Lecture
Series was attended by 1,600 people
during Fiscal Year 2009.

Very informative - | appreciate all of
the ‘thmkmg m:ttmde the box’ to create
. meamngful hvmg spaces for all people
-BRAVO>

f‘The ? mmars areé so valuable 1o par:

‘ 4‘ s W th‘a; DD famlly member. We

_need ongomg dlrectmns and ways fo
advocate for our farmly members
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The Fall 2008 and Spring 2009
Developmental Disabilities Lecture Series
sessions and afternoon technical assistance
forums included:

Fall 2008

« Engineering Independence presented by
George Braddock

% From Diagnosis to Treatment Planning:
Where Does the Diagnostic Manual —
Intellectual Disability Fit In? presented
by Jarrett Barnhill, M.D.

% The Future is Now: Improving Job
Outcomes for People with Disabilities
presented by Dale Dileo, M.Ed.

% Building a New Paradigm: A Values-
Based Response to Demographic and
Economic Realities presented by Nancy
Thaler, M.S.

Spring 2009

« Planting Two Trees with One Seed:
Communication Supports for Problem
Behavior presented by Pat Mirenda,
Ph.D.

% The Dance of Change in a Perfect Storm
presented by Renee Pietrangelo, Ph.D.

% A Delicate Balance: Supporting Choice
While Minimizing Risk presented by
Sharon Krevor-Weisbaum, Esq.

< Lessons, Issues, and Next Steps in
Healthcare Decision Making: Care at the
End of Life presented by Leigh Ann
Kingsbury, M.PA.

Project Coordinator/Contact:

Robyn Carroll

robyn.carroll@umdnj.edu % 732.235.9310
Program Staff: Wendy Kugziemski, Ziba
Arjmand

Support Staff: Gail DiPane, Carole Ramirez
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DIRECT SUPPORT WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT

In initiatives to enhance the Direct
Support Workforce, The Boggs Center col-
laborates with a number of public and pri-
vate provider agencies and networks on a
variety of strategies to strengthen recruit-
ment, retention, and supports for direct
support professionals. The Boggs Center
provides primary coordination for the New
Jersey Direct Support Prolessional
Workforce Development Coalition. With
the Coalition, The Boggs Center developed
and coordinates the Career Path Pilot
Project. The Boggs Center provides tech-
nical assistance to and facilitates quarterly
meetings with the participating agencies,
administers the College of Direct Support,
and collaborates with stakeholders in the
DSP Coalition on the development of a
sustainable plan. The Boggs Center facili-
tates and provides technical assistance for
the New Jersey Training Network, a
statewide network of trainers who lead
preservice training for direct support pro-
fessionals in agencies serving people with
developmental disabilities. The Boggs
Center offers a series of three training
courses for managers: Survival Skills for
Managers in Community Supports,
Leadership Skills for Managers in
Community Supports, and Personal Skills

for Managers.

% The Boggs Center staff continued to
coordinate the pilot and statewide roll-
out of the College of Direct Support
(CDS), funded by a grant from the New
Jersey Developmental Disabilities
Council. Nine agencies across New
Jersey are in the pilot. More than 179
Direct Support Professionals participat-
ed in the Career Path, with 180 addi-
tional agency staff taking CDS courses
on a lesson by lesson basis.

% The pilot agencies have developed a
variety of {inancial and other rewards
for successful completion of the certifi-
cate levels, including pay raises, bonus-
es, and employee recognition.

The Flizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Disab

% DSPs have many positive things to say
about their participation in the Career
Path. In DSP meetings held throughout
the state, many DSPs affirmed their
appreciation for the opportunity to
learn more, their increased ability to
provide better supports, and for recog-
nition of their hard work and dedica-
tion to the field.

% Making a Difference: A Direct Support
Professionals Conference was held on
September 25, 2008 and offered skill
building workshops for DSPs across the
state and a recognition ceremony for
the 64 direct support professionals who
have completed Level 1 of the College
of Direct Support.

R
*

As a result of the Career Path pilot and
work conducted by the NJ Direct
Support Professional Workforce
Development Coalition, the NJ Division
of Developmental Disabilities has start-
ed the process for implementing use of
the College of Direct Support and the
Career Path statewide.

% Project Coordinators have been invited

to present at multiple national confer-
ences to present the NJ Career Path as
an example of best practice in work-
force development for direct support
professionals.

o
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% The Boggs Center conducted 24 train-
ing sessions for more than 600 partici-
pants in the Management series.

Project Director/Contact:

Rev. William Gaventa

bill. gaventa@umdnj.edu < 732.235.9304
Faculty: Dan Baker, Ph.D.

Program Staff: Colleen McLaughlin,
Shellyann Dacres, Bret Li-Vaks

Support Staff: Elizabeth Ong, Carole

Ramirez
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CurturAL COMPETENCE

The Boggs Center initiated the
development and continues to provide
coordination of the New Jersey Statewide
Network on Cultural Competence. The
Network’s mission is “to strengthen
culturally competent services in the state
of New Jersey for people with diverse
needs, and to facilitate access by
individuals, families, providers, and
professionals to these services.”

< The collaborative has begun to develop
relationships with Middle Eastern
communities in New Jersey. The Center
has begun to prepare for a conference
on issues of concern to Middle Eastern
communities in New Jersey.

% The Boggs Center continued to support
the New Jersey Statewide Network on
Cultural Competence
(http://www.state.nj.us/njsncc/index.sht
ml) by serving as coordinator of the
statewide listserv, which has continued
to expand.

% The Boggs Center taught a three-hour
class on Diversity and Spirituality for
the UMDN]J-School of Health Related
Professions Psychosocial Rehabilitation
Program.

Project Director/Contact:
Rev. William Gaventa

bill. gaventa@umdnj.edu

% 732.235.9304

Support Staff: Elizabeth Ong

FAITH BASED SUPPORT

Faith Based Supports include activities

related to the New Jersey Coalition for

Inclusive Ministries, coordinated by The

Boggs Center, to encourage congregations

to include and support members with dis-

abilities, and other efforts to promote spir-
itual supports. Activities of the New

Jersey Coalition for Inclusive Ministries

include coordination of training and tech-

nical assistance events; sponsorship of

Conferences in cooperation with New

Jersey organizations; educational events in

congregations; distribution of resources to

clergy and lay leadership; educational
opportunities for seminarians; and quarter-
ly forums for the Coalition.

4 In a project funded by the Pennsylvania
Council on Developmental Disabilities,
The Boggs Center is working with semi-
naries to integrate disability issues and
perspectives in their curricula.

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Disabilities Anmual Report Fiscal Year 2000 ...

< Boggs Center faculty taught a course in
Ministries with People with Disabilities
and Their Families at Princeton
Theological Seminary.

% Boggs Center faculty conducted 32 pre-
sentations on congregational supports
for people with disabilities and their
families, including plenary sessions in
Connecticut, Georgia, Michigan, New
York, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and
Wisconsin.

% Nearly 1,500 copies of the Autism and
Faith: A Journey into Community were
disseminated to congregations in New
Jersey and around the country. More
than 7,000 copies of the guide have
been disseminated since its publication
in May 2008.

< Rev. Bill Gaventa continued to serve as
Editor of the Journal of Religion,
Disability, and Health.

Ql

Project Director/Contact:

Rev. William Gaventa

bill. gaventa@umdnj.edu

% 732.235.9304

Program Staff: Rev. Alice Walsh
Support Staff: Elizabeth Ong




POSITIVE BEHAVIOR SUPPORT

IN THE COMMUNITY

Problem behaviors are often an ongoing
and severe challenge for care providers

of children and adults with intellectual or
developmental disabilities. Positive
Behavior Support (PBS) is an evidence-
based practice for addressing problem
behavior among persons with intellectual
or developmental disabilities. PBS is a
problem solving approach that focuses on
improving the quality of life for individu-
als with challenging behavior instead of
just reducing the frequency of the unde-
sired behaviors. The Boggs Center pro-
vides extensive training and technical
assistance for community provider agen-
cies to support people with challenging
behaviors who are participating in the
Child Placement Enhancement Project
(CPEP). The CPEP project is funded by
the NJ Division of Developmental
Disabilities to increase community capaci-
ty to support children who present
extremely challenging problem behaviors
who either are currently placed out of
state, or are at-risk for placement out of

state.

O
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Faculty and staft from The Boggs
Center complete an evaluation of each
child participating in CPEP. The assess-
ment includes the relevant and critical
information for designing an environ-
ment in which the child will be success-
ful, and recommendations for support
strategies that should be used with the
child.

The Boggs Center offers three training
courses in Positive Behavior Support:
Basic Positive Behavior Support,
Applied Positive Behavior Support, and
Mental Health Supports. The Boggs
Center’s extensive activities in Positive
Behavior Support in Schools are
described on page 31.

The Boggs Center conducted training
for community agency staff in Positive
Behavior Support. More than 700 peo-
ple participated in 31 training sessions
in Fiscal Year 2009. The five day train-
ing series addressed Basic Positive
Behavior Support, Applied Strategies for
Implementing Positive Behavior
Support, and Mental Health Support for
Individuals with Intellectual or
Developmental Disabilities.

In Fiscal Year 2009, The Boggs Center
provided more than 1,300 hours of
training and technical assistance to
agencies participating in CPEP.

The Boggs Center provided extensive
training and technical assistance to
CPEP agencies serving 50 children in
New Jersey who were at risk of being
placed out of state, at greater distance
from their families and at greater cost to
the State.

% The success of CPEP provides a demon-
stration of the efficacy of individualized
PBS for the most challenging children
and youth with intellectual or develop-
mental disabilities. It is anticipated that
this model will be used for other chil-
dren and adults with intellectual or
developmental disabilities.

Project Director/Contact:

Dan Baker, Ph.D.
dan.baker@umdnj.edu % 732.235.9312
Faculty: Phil Smith, Ph.D.

Program Staff: Melissa Cheplic,

Joyce Jelley, Bret Li-Vaks

Support Staff: Gail DiPane
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SELF-DIRECTED SUPPORTS

The Boggs Center provides the Training and
Technical Assistance component of New
Jersey’s Self-Directed Supports efforts.
Under contract with the Division of
Developmental Disabilities, The Boggs
Center conducts training for families, peo-
ple with disabilities, agency staff, and oth-
ers who are interested in the self-directed
supports and self-determination processes.
The Center provides training in Person
Centered Thinking and Essential Lifestyle
Planning, the planning process being used
by families, individuals, and support coor-
dinators in the development of a plan of

care.

< The Boggs Center conducted 22 training
sessions in Person Centered Thinking
and Essential Lifestyle Planning for 333
agency staff, individuals with disabilities,
and family members.

+ In April 2009, The Center coordinated
New Jersey’s 81 annual Self-Directed
Supports Conference, Together is
Better: Connecting to the People and
Places in the Community for the Life
You Want. One hundred and eighty-eight
people with disabilities and their families

participated in the event.

< The Boggs Center provided extensive
technical assistance in person-centered
approaches and self-directed supports to
the Division of Developmental
Disabilities, provider agencies, individu-
als with disabilities, and families and dis-
seminated information about Person
Centered Thinking and Self-Directed
Supports.

% The percentage and number of families
with children aging out of school servic-
es, who request self directed options con-
tinues to increase. A growing number of
agencies are asking The Boggs Center for
customized training and technical assis-
tance to support their capacity to offer

self directed supports.

« Staff from The Boggs Center have played
a key role with the Learning Community
in updating national curricula in Person
Centered Thinking and Essential
Lifestyle Planning and in developing a
new course on community inclusion.

Project Director:

Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D.
Faculty/Contact:

Rev. William Gaventa

bill. gaventa@umdnj.edu < 732.235.9304
Program Staff: Michael Steinbruck, Colleen
McLaughlin, Shellyann Dacres

Support Staff: Elizabeth Ong

WRITERS’ GROUP FOR FAMILY

CAREGIVERS

In July 2008, The Boggs Center started a
Writers” Group for Family Caregivers. The
purpose of the group is to give family
caregivers of individuals with developmen-
tal disabilities an opportunity to tell their
own stories, in their own words. The
group meets every other month, and a list-
serve provides group members who are
unable to make it to meetings an opportu-
nity to share their work with one another.

% Writing Our Journey: Poems and Essays
by Family Givers may be found on The
Boggs Center’s website at
http://rwjms.umdnj.edu/boggscenter/
projects/Writers_Group.html

Project Coordinator/Contact:
Kathy Roberson
kathy.roberson@umdnj.edu

% 732.235.9317
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NEW JERSEY POSITIVE BEHAVIOR
SUPPORT IN SCHOOLS

New Jersey Positive Behavior Support
in Schools (NJPBSIS) is a collabora-
tion between the New Jersey
Department of Education, Office of
Special Education Programs and the
Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on
Developmental Disabilities. NJPBSIS
is funded through 1.D.E.A. Part B
Funds. The NJPBSIS initiative sup-
ports the inclusion of students with
disabilities within general education
programs. This initiative develops the
capacity of schools to address school-
wide, classroom, and individual stu-
dent problem behavior using current
research-validated practices in Positive
Behavior Support. The Boggs Center
also developed and maintains The
New Jersey Positive Behavior Support
in Schools website, www.njpbs.org,
which explains PBSIS, offers resources
to parents and school personnel, and
lists upcoming events.

% The PBSIS project team provided inten-
sive training and technical assistance to
the 28 participating schools in urban and
suburban districts across the state in FY
2009. Since the inception of the initia-
tive, more than 70 schools have received
training.

% In Fiscal Year 2009, nearly 1,200 admin-
istrators, specialized staff, special educa-
tion teachers, and general education
teachers participated in PBSIS training.
Nearly 500 hours of technical assistance
was provided to schools.

% Curricula on topics including functional
behavioral assessment and classroom
management were disseminated to
school personnel in Fiscal Year 2009.

< Following implementation of Positive
Behavior Support, school personnel
report a number of positive outcomes
including: reductions in office referrals
and suspension; reduction in special

education referral rates; increases in posi-

tive student behaviors; increases in staff

and student perception of school climate;
and greater openness to the inclusion of
students with disabilities.

Faculty/Contact:

Sharon Lohrmann, Ph.D.
sharon.lohrmann@umdnj.edu

% 732.235.9306

Program Staff: Bill Davis, Scott McMahon,
Sunne-Ryse Smith, Psy.D.

Support Staff: Ann Marie McVay

POSITIVE BEHAVIOR SUPPORT IN

EDUCATIONAL SETTINGS

The Boggs Center conducts research, con-
tractual and community fee-for-service
training and technical assistance on the
implementation of Positive Behavior
Support practice in educational settings
for children and youth.

% With funding from the UMDN]J
Foundation, The Center conducted a
study on understanding the practices
that help schools adopt intervention
approaches to improve the social condi-
tion of school settings for children and

youth.

% The Boggs Center conducted fee-for-ser-
vice training on Functional Assessments
and Behavior Intervention Planning for
organizations such as Long Branch
School District in NJ and Fairfax School
District in VA.

Project Director/Contact:
Sharon Lohrmann, Ph.D.
sharon.lohrmann@umdnj.edu

& 732-235-9306

Support Staff: Ann Marie McVay
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* Districts participating in these efforts report a
tremendous number of positive outcomes
from their participation. These outcomes
include establishing and expanding CBI
Programs in their schools/districts, for exam-
ple, increasing the number of community
sites for CBI and increasing numbers of stu-
dents participating or broadening areas of
instruction. Participants are funding these
service expansions from a variety of different
sources, including the American
Reinvestment and Recovery Acts (ARRA).

% During this year, The Boggs Center dramati-
cally increased local school and district
administration involvement in the CBI train-
ing and technical assistance efforts by includ-
ing the use of mandatory administrator tele-
conferences for all participating schools and

Co . ITY_BIQSIED INSTR,UCTIQN districts and the requirement for administra-
Community-Base l‘lStI’llCtl-O? is a critical com- tor presence at onsite technical assistance ses-
ponent of a successful transition from school to sions

adult life for many students with disabilities.
With funding from the NJ Department of
Education, Community-Based Instruction (CBI)
training and technical assistance efforts assist
school districts in providing instruction for stu-
dents in community-based settings. These
efforts include: providing training and informa-
tion to districts through workshops, sharing
successful efforts currently occurring in New
Jersey school districts, and offering direct tech-
nical assistance to school districts addressing
CBI strategies, training needs, and necessary
administrative supports. All activities are
designed to create positive, observable outcomes
for students.

Faculty/Contact: Dan Baker, Ph.D.
dan.baker@umdnj.edu < 732.235.9312
Support Staff: Ann Marie McVay

« The Boggs Center conducted a series of
regional one and two-day workshops; 1,047
personnel from school districts across the
state participated in the training. Seventy one
hours of technical assistance in community-
based instruction was provided for 629 school
personnel.




NATIONAL TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
AND RESEARCH CENTER (NTAR)

The Boggs Center is a consortium partner
in the National Technical Assistance and
Research (NTAR) Center to Promote
Leadership for Increasing Employment
and Economic Independence for Adults
with Disabilities led by Rutgers
University’s Heldrich Center for Workforce
Development. The consortium also
includes the Delaware University Center
for Excellence in Developmental
Disabilities. The purpose of the NTAR
Leadership Center is to promote better
connections for people with disabilities to
educational opportunities and work in the
mainstream labor market.

< The Boggs Center provided technical
assistance to the states selected for the
State Leadership Development Institute
in Fiscal Year 2009.

% The Center collaborated on the devel-
opment of a literature review of
employer initiated and market driven
approaches to recruiting, hiring, and
retaining employees with disabilities.

< Three participating states, Connecticut,
Maryland, and Minnesota, have made
substantial improvements in their con-
nection of workers with disabilities into
generic workforce systems.

The NTAR Center’s research efforts
focus on identifying means for effective
business-led collaborations with disabil-

R
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ity supports, with significant dissemina-
tion of the findings in 2010.

Project Director/Contact:

Dan Baker, Ph.D.

dan.baker@umdnj.edu % 732.235.9312
Affiliated Faculty & Program Associate:
Robert Nicholas, Ph.D.

Support Staff: Gail DiPane

SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT TRAINING
AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

Boggs Center Supported Employment
Training and Technical Assistance activities
increase employment opportunities for
people with disabilities by developing com-
petence among service providers in all
areas related to assisting people with dis-
abilities to choose, obtain, and maintain
employment. The Boggs Center offers two
levels of supported employment training:
Employment Specialist Introduction and
FEmployment Specialist Advanced. Both
courses are two days in duration.

% The Boggs Center provided 16 two-day
training sessions in Fiscal Year 2009.
The Center trained more than 427 indi-
viduals in its introductory and advanced
employment specialist courses.

% The Center provided training sessions
requested by individual agencies.
Presentations included 2 workshops at
the national APSE conference, a NJ

Council on Developmental Disabilities
Partners in Policymaking session, and a
guest lecture in a Special Education class
at The College of New Jersey.

+ In collaboration with NJ APSE - The
Network on Employment, The Center
coordinated the 17t annual Facing the
Future Conference, a two-day confer-
ence focusing on employment and tran-
sition. Two hundred employment service
providers attended the conference, even
with the economic challenges of the
time.

%+ The new Boggs Center Supported
Employment Training Manual was com-
pleted and disseminated. The new man-
ual was designed for enhanced readabili-
ty and interest, and contains both estab-
lished practices and cutting edge strate-
gies to support greater rates of employ-
ment.

< The Boggs Center is coordinating the
state team for the national Alliance for

K.

Full Participation, which will focus on
employment.

Project Director/Contact:

Dan Baker, Ph.D.

dan.baker@umdnj.edu < 732.235.9312
Program Staff: Bret Li-Vaks

Support Staff: Gail DiPane, Carole Ramirez
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CHILDREN WITH HEARING LOSS
AND EXISTING COMORBID

CONDITIONS IN NJ

With funding from the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention- National Center for
Birth Defects and Developmental Disabilities’
Cooperative Agreement with the Association
of University Centers on Disabilities Research
Topics of Interest, The Boggs Center is con-
ducting the study “Children with Early
Hearing Loss and Existing Comorbid
Conditions in New Jersey: State Data and The
Experience of Families,” in collaboration
with the NJ Department of Health and Senior

Services.

The project will identify the prevalence of
early hearing loss in children with existing
comorbid conditions and who fail
newborn/initial hearing screening, identify
the impact of existing comorbid conditions
on follow-up of failed initial hearing screen-
ings, describe the experience and needs of
families of children with early hearing loss
and comorbid conditions, and determine the
knowledge and experience of audiologists in
evaluating and providing services to children
with early hearing loss and co-occurring

conditions.

Within a Participatory Action Research
design, a family advisory committee, com-
prised of parents of children with a hearing
loss and another disability, participated in the
creation of a survey instrument that reflects
the issues they identified as being of greatest
importance to families.

% During Year Two of the project, the initial
family survey was approved by the NJ
Department of Health & Senior Services
and UMDN] Institutional Review Board
(IRB), and approximately 350 surveys in
English and Spanish were mailed. Another
87 will be sent to families of children born
in 2007.

% The survey of audiologists regarding servic-
es to children with multiple disabilities is
near completion and will be submitted for
IRB approval early in FY 2010.

Project Director/Contact:

Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D.
deborah.spitalnik@umdnj.edu % 732.235.9326
Program Staff: Carrie Coffield,

Kathi Morley, Kathy Roberson
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AGING AND END OF LIFE ISSUES
WITH ADULTS WITH DEVELOPMENTAL

DISABILITIES

With support from the Division of
Developmental Disabilities, The Boggs
Center provides customized training and
technical assistance and presents work-
shops on coping with gricf and end of life
issues for agencies and people supporting
adults with developmental disabilities.

# In collaboration with UMDN]J-
University Behavioral Healthcare’s
Comprehensive Services on Aging and
Statewide Clinical Consultation and
Training, The Boggs Center coordinated
a one day workshop, Aging Well:
Supporting the Physical, Emotional, and
Spiritual Needs of Adults with
Developmental Disabilities and Their

Caregivers.

e
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The Boggs Center presented two work-
shops for New Jersey provider agencies
on Aging, Grief, and Loss and
Developmental Disabilities.

% A keynote for a conference in
Wilmington, Delaware was presented
on End of Life Issues.

% A workshop was presented on Aging:
Spirituality at the End of Life: Strategies
for Addressing the Spiritual Needs Near
the End of Life and the Challenges for
Service Providers at the International
Association for the Scientific Study of
Intellectual Disabilities (IASSID)
Conference in Capetown, South Africa.

% The afternoon technical assistance
forum following the Developmental
Disabilities Lecture Series session on
End of Life Planning led to a major
expansion of the New Jersey Aging and
End of Life listserv.

Project Director/Contact:

Rev. William Gaventa
bill.gaventa@umdnj.edu < 732.235.9304
Program Staff: Rev. Alice Walsh
Support Staff: Elizabeth Ong

PriMARY HEALTH CARE PROJECT

In collaboration with the UMDNJ-Robert Wood Johnson Medical School Department of
Family Medicine, The Boggs Center facilitates a medical home for adults with developmental
disabilities by supporting care coordination for adults with developmental disabilities at the
Family Practice ambulatory care site in New Brunswick. A resource unit provides care coordi-
nation and supports faculty and resident physicians in caring for patients with developmental

disabilities.

% Care coordination was provided for 133 adults with disabilities at the Family Medicine

Resource Unit.

Project Director/Contact:

Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D.

deborah.spitalnik@umdnj.edu < 732.235.9326

Affiliated Faculty and Program Associates: Cathryn Heath, M.D., Dolores Matlock, L.EN.
Program Staff: Linda Breen, Kathi Morley
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The Boggs Center provides a variety of educational experiences for students, fulfilling the federally mandated Core Function of interdisci-
plinary education of students and preparing future generations of professionals. In addition to the student programs described below,
Boggs Center faculty and staff teach courses; serve as guest lecturers; supervise practica, student projects, internships and field

placements; and advise on papers, theses, and dissertations.

COMMUNITY ORIENTED PRIMARY CARE

The Center co-sponsored the Summer 2009 Assistantship in
Community Oriented Primary Care with UMDN]J-Robert Wood
Johnson Medical School, Department of Family Medicine.
Community Oriented Primary Care (COPC) provides an interdis-
ciplinary opportunity for medical, physician assistant, and gradu-
ate social work students to gain experience in providing basic
services in healthcare and education to underserved communities
in central New Jersey. Through the Center’s efforts, the COPC pro-

gram’s didactic sessions and field placements included content and

opportunities in developmental disabilities.

% Five students had internships and conducted health education
projects at agencies serving people with developmental disabili-
ties, including The Arc of New Jersey, The Arc of Monmouth
County, and the Statewide Clinical Consultation and Training

program.

Project Co-Director/Contact:

Deborah Spitalnik, Ph.D.
deborah.spitalnik@umdnj.edu % 732.235.9326
Program Staff: Carrie Coffield, Kathi Morley

MEDICAL STUDENT SEMINAR ON
FaMiLy CENTERED CARE AND
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
All medical students at UMDN]J-Robert
Wood Johnson Medical School in New
Brunswick receive an introduction to

+ The Boggs Center continued to coordi-
nate the Developmental Disabilities
seminar for all third-year medical stu-
dents in the pediatrics rotation One
hundred and five students participated
in the seminar in Fiscal Year 2009.

family centered care and developmental
disabilities through the Developmental
Disabilities Seminar, a required compo-
nent of the pediatrics rotation. The Boggs
Center coordinates the seminar 8 times
each year in collaboration with the
Department of Pediatrics at UMDN]J-
Robert Wood Johnson Medical School. A
key component of the seminar is visits to
families in their homes, to increase
awareness of and sensitivity to the
strengths and needs of families who have
a child with a developmental disability.

Project Director/Contact:

Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D.
deborah.spitalnik@umdnj.edu

% 732.235.9326

Affiliated Faculty and Program
Associates:

Uday Mehta, M.D., Kapila Seshadri, M.D.,
Sheryl White-Scott, M.D., Kathy Gabry
Program Staff: Carrie Coffield, Kathi
Morley
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CuLiNicAL PASTORAL EDUCATION
The Clinical Pastoral Education (CPE)
Program is a unique preservice training
program initiated by the Center, in collab-
oration with three seminaries in New
Jersey and community based provider
agencies, which serve as placement sites
for chaplaincy students in the program.
The goals of the CPE program are to
enhance the skills of seminarians, clergy,
and laypersons in the delivery of spiritual
supports to people with disabilities and
their families and to strengthen their skills
in advocacy and developing community
supports. The CPE program is accredited
by the national Association for Clinical
Pastoral Education, Inc. The Boggs Center
is the only University Center for
Excellence in Developmental Disabilities
with an accredited CPE program and the
only CPE program based in community

agencies serving people with disabilities.

% Seven chaplaincy students graduated
from the Clinical Pastoral Education
Program in Fiscal Year 2009.

% In Fiscal year 2009, The Center expand-
ed its CPE capacity by adding a supervi-
sor in training position. Rev. Alice
Walsh is participating in the Eastern
Pennsylvania Institute for Clinical
Supervision in Philadelphia, PA and is
being mentored by Rev. Bill Gaventa.

Project Director/Contact:

Rev. William Gaventa
bill.gaventa@umdnj.edu

% 732.235.9304

Program Staff: Rev. Alice Walsh
Support Staff: Elizabeth Ong

The Elizabeth M. Boggs Center on Developmental Disabilities

INTERDISCIPLINARY TRAINEESHIP
The Interdisciplinary Traineeship provides
opportunities for students to learn about
developmental disabilities through partici-
pation in traditional scholarly activities,
research, and training. The Traineeship is
open to all undergraduate or graduate stu-
dents including, but not limited to, those
majoring in the following disciplines:
education, nursing, physical therapy, psy-
chology, public health, and social work.
The traineeship typically spans an academ-
ic year, Fall through Spring. Often stu-
dents are able to obtain academic credit
through their home academic institution
for work completed during the trainee-
ship. Students are paid a quarterly stipend
to support their activities, and receive a
certificate of completion at the end of the

academic year.

Annual Repott [

iscal Year 2009 -

< In Fiscal Year 2009, a doctoral student
in Divinity graduated from the
Interdisciplinary Traineeship program at
The Boggs Center.

Project Director/Contact:

Deborah Spitalnik, Ph.D.
deborah.spitalnik@umdnj.edu

% 732.235.9326

Faculty: Michael Knox, Ph.D.
Program Staff: Carrie Coffield, Robyn
Carroll, Kathi Morley, Kathy Roberson




RUTGERS SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK

CURRENT PERSPECTIVES IN DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES COURSE

During FY 09, Boggs Center faculty taught a graduate social work course in developmental disabilities, Current Perspectives in
Developmental Disabilitics. The course will be one component of a new disability area of emphasis, developed through the collabora-
tion of The Boggs Center and the Rutgers University School of Social Work.

* Seven students completed the course in FY 09. Self advocates and parents as well as other Boggs Center personnel were guest lec-

turers.

Project Director/Contact:
Michael Knox, Ph.D. % michael.knox@umdnj.edu % 732-235-9301

RUTGERS SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK, INSTITUTE FOR FAMILIES, OFFICE OF CONTINUING EDUCATION,

CERTIFICATE PROGRAM IN DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

The Certificate Program in Developmental Disabilities is co-sponsored by the Rutgers
University School of Social Work Institute for Families and The Boggs Center. It is
intended to enhance the skills and knowledge of professionals working in the field of
developmental disabilities and professionals working with people with disabilities in a
variety of settings. The Boggs Center chairs the Certificate Program Advisory Council.
Boggs Center faculty teach the workshops on cultural competence, disability policy,
transition, positive behavior support, and psychotherapy.

% In Fiscal Year 2009, 124 students participated in 5 day-long workshops conducted
by The Boggs Center.

Project Coordinator/Contact:

Robyn Carroll < robyn.carroll@umdnj.edu % 732.235.9310

Faculty: Deborah M. Spitalnik, Ph.D., Dan Baker, Ph.D., Rev. William Gaventa, Sharon
Lohrmann, Ph.D., Nancy Razza, Ph.D.

Program Staff: Kathy Roberson, Kathi Morley

STRATEGIC PRESERVICE INITIATIVES FOR MENTAL HEALTH CLINICIANS TO SERVE PEOPLE

WITH INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

In 2007, The Boggs Center initiated a project to improve the education of graduate students in psychology, social work, and counseling
with regard to the mental health needs of people with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD). Rarely do academic programs

for clinical professionals include coursework or practica regarding the unique vulnerabilities of people with IDD. Similarly, advances in
therapeutic techniques for people with IDD have not been incorporated into graduate curricula. Through this project, lectures are pro-

vided, [ree of charge, to university programs, thus addressing a longstanding gap in education, and ultimately, service provision, to peo-

ple with IDD in need of mental health treatment.

% In FY 09, The Boggs Center guest lectured for graduate students at William Paterson University; Monmouth University, taught Clinical
PsyD students at the Rutgers University Graduate School of Applied Psychology, and presented to staff of Monmouth Medical Center;

* Articles on the mental health needs of people with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD) were written for New Jersey
Psychologist and The Arc of New Jersey’s Healthy Times.

Project Director/Contact:
Nancy Razza, Ph.D. < nancy.razza@umdnj.edu < 732.235.9300
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Our thanks to the individuals and families whose photos are featured in this report
and also our colleagues at the NJ Council on Developmental Disabilities
for contributing some of the photographs.
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Senator Weinberg, Assemblywoman Huttle, and Committee Members:

Disability Rights New Jersey (DRNJ) is the designated protection and
advocacy system for people with disabilities in New Jersey, which includes
the Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Developmental Disabilities
program (PADD), 42 U.S.C. § 15041 to 15045.i Services provided to
individuals with developmental disabilities under the PADD program include:
(1) information, referral, and advice; (2) individual and family advocacy;
(3) legal representation; and (4) assistance in self-advocacy. The federal
protection and advocacy system was established by Congress in the mid-
1970s in response to the reported abuses of persons with developmental
disabilities living in state-operated institutions. DRNJ]'s staff, which includes a
former developmental center resident, makes regular visits to New Jersey's
developmental centers and responds to allegations of neglect, abuse, and
discrimination in both the developmental centers and the community.

Today's hearing is an opportunity to focus on the future of services for
people with developmental disabilities in New Jersey. This requires us to ask
not whether we should keep what we've got, but how do we get to where we
want to go. When we focus on the future, there is no question that

New Jersey must develop a comprehensive continuum of services that is

firmly anchored in the community.

Internationally, the expectation that people with disabilities have the right to
five in the community was first formally voiced in the United Nation's
Declaration on the Rights of Disabled Persons in 1975 and has been
reaffirmed in the 2008 Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities,

which seeks the recognition of “the equal rights of all persons with

Page 2 of 5
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disabilities to live in the community, with choices equal to others” and calls
upon governments to “take effective and appropriate measures to facilitate
full enjoyment by persons with disabilities of this right and their full inclusion
and participation in the community . . . by ensuring that . . . [p]ersons with
disabilities have access to a range of in-home, residential and other
community support services, including personal assistance necessary to
support living and inclusion in the community, and to prevent isolation or
segregation from the community.” Convention on the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities, Art. 19 (2008).

Nationally, the legal expectations are also clear. The United States Supreme
Court's 1999 decision in Olmstead v. L.C., 527 U.S. 581 (1999), as
important to people with disabilities as Brown v. Board of Ed., 347 U.S. 483
(1954), was to African Americans forty-five years before, declared that
unjustified institutionalization and segregation of persons with disabilities

was discrimination and violated Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act.
Id. at 597.

The Court did us no favors, however, by muddying the waters between
declaring the right to integration and enforcing it. Within the Third Circuit,
which has jurisdiction over New Jersey, the expectations are a bit clearer
than in other parts of the country. Here, the federal courts require the states
to develop a plan that “at a bare minimum should specify the time-frame or
target date for patient discharge, the approximate number of patients to be
discharged each time period, the eligibility for discharge, and a general
description of the collaboration required between the local authorities and
the housing, transportation, care, and education agencies to effectuate
integration into the community.” Frederick L. v. Dep't of Pub. Welfare of Pa.,

Page 3 of 5
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422 F.3d 151, 160 (3d Cir. 2005). But, developing and publishing a plan is
simply not enough. The states "must be prepared to make a commitment to
action in a manner for which it can be held accountable by the courts.”

Frederick L. v. Dep't of Pub. Welfare of Pa., 364 F.3d 487, 500 (3d Cir.
2004).

It is here where New Jersey falls short. After some struggle, New Jersey
ultimately published a plan. New Jersey's goal of moving 250 persons a year
out of developmental centers is relatively modest, particularly when
compared to the recent order in New York requiring that state to develop
1,500 new supported housing units a year for the next three years to move
its residents with mental illness out of large institutional adult homes.
Disability Advocates v. Paterson, 03-CV-3209, Memorandum and Order
(E.D.N.Y. Mar 1, 2010).

However, New Jersey's “commitment to action” has not kept pace with its
promise, currently progressing at only 25% of its promised rate; while
simultaneously continuing to admit more persons to the developmental
centers. Virtually none of the new admittees chose to live in a developmental
center. Rather they find themselves in an institution after years of
community living because of the current absence of an appropriate

community-based program.

The extended delay in rebalancing New Jersey's system of services for
persons with developmental disabilities has also contributed to a waiting list
for community-based services more than three times greater than the
census of the developmental centers, while causing considerable anguish for

aging parents and siblings, fearful that there will be no community program

Page 4 of 5
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for their loved one when the family can no longer maintain their heroic effort

to retain the individual at home.

Of even greater concern to me are the hundreds of individuals currently
residing in developmental centers who have experienced decades of delays
and disappointments. Individuals who, despite their perceived disabilities
and isolation, are fully aware that there is a world beyond the boundaries of
the developmental centers of which they are not a part. Every time staff
from DRNJ go to a developmental center at least one resident will approach
them and ask when will they be able to leave. I recently received a letter
from some twenty individuals who have been living in developmental centers
from a few months to more than twenty years asking me to come to meet
with them to explain why they have not moved to the community. I have no
acceptable answer. New Jersey must do better, starting by fully committing

to meet its promises to these individuals.

iOther programs incorporated within the protection and advocacy system
include:

» Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental Iliness (PAIMI), 42 U.S.C.

§8§ 10801 to 10851

Protection and Advocacy of Individual Rights (PAIR); 29 U.S.C. § 794e

Client Assistance Program (CAP); 29 U.S.C. § 732

Protection and Advocacy for Assistive Technology (PAAT); 29 U.S.C. § 3004

Protection and Advocacy for Beneficiaries of Social Security (PABSS); 42 U.S.C.

§ 1320b-21

e Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Traumatic Brain Injury program (PATBI),
42 U.S.C. § 300d-53

e Protection and Advocacy for Voter Access (PAVA); 42 U.S.C. §§ 15461 and 15462.

Page 5 of 5
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Comments of the NJ Council on Developmental Disabilities

Submitted before the Joint Legislative Meeting on
Developmental Centers and Community Care Options

May 7, 2010

The New Jersey Council on Developmental Disabilities (Council) thanks Chairwomen Weinberg
and Vanieri Huttle and the members of the committees for this opportunity to contribute to
today’s discussion about how to best design and deliver services to people with developmental
disabilities in New Jersey and their families.

The Council’s statutory mission includes the responsibility of informing government decision-
makers about the lives of people with developmental disabilities and advocating for services and
supports that remove barriers to self-directed, included, safe and rewarding lives as participating
members of their neighborhoods and communities.

The Council appreciates that, particularly this year, the state has insufficient fiscal resources to
fully provide all residents with developmental disabilities the services and supports they need.
This persistent shortage of funds and personnel requires us to question the wisdom of
continuing to support a system in which nearly 35% of the Division of Developmental Disabilites
(DDD) budget is used to maintain seven large institutions that serve only 7% of the state’s more
than 40,000 eligible people. Indeed, DDD maintains a waiting list of over 8,000 people who want
community residential services or other supports that will enable them to live outside of
developmental centers. The Council believes that the resources used to support seven large
institutions could be more effectively used to meet the needs of DDD’s caseload, the vast
majority of whom want services in a community setting.

| am the parent of a 35 year old man with autism, intellectual disabilities and a seizure disorder.
| used to say | was the parent of a young man but that is no longer so. Matt continues to live
with his father and me long past when he should do so for his well being. He needs to have a
place of his own, separate from his parents, to ready him for the day when we are no longer
able to care for him. | would like to be around while he makes that change, to help make it a

smooth and positive transition.

The most important message families want you to hear today is that we live with the constant
fear that our children will end up in emergency developmental center placements, exactly where
we have sworn they will never go. Any state approach to services that fails to provide real
community alternatives to institutional placement violates all that we families have spent our
lives working for: to ensure that our sons and daughters continue to have a place to live and
thrive in their community as they have always had while living in our homes.

The maijority of NJ families prefer to keep their loved one with developmental disabilities at
home or in a community setting with appropriate supports. The thousands of families who care
for a loved one at home do not get much in the way of Family Support dollars or Self-Directed
Services dollars to make their situations manageable.

P.O. Box 700, Ttenton, NJ 08625 Tel.: 609-292-3745 <> Fax: 609-292-7114 <> TTY: 609-777-3238
WWW. NICDD.Org
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An organization known as Advocates for New Jersey Developmental Center Residents has
advised us that they collected mailed-in responses to a single question from family members of
institutional residents. The group claims that their survey demonstrates that “96% of guardians
and family members prefer continued ICF/MR services over community services.” There are
several issues with this report that make this claim completely inaccurate.

Based on information in the group’s own publication, only roughly half of the total number of DC
residents at the time the survey was completed (1,417 out of 2,819) had a family member or
guardian respond to the survey at all. A summary of the Council’'s concerns about the accuracy
of this survey is attached to this testimony.

By way of contrast to arguments against the redistribution of resources to the community, New
Jersey, like most other states in the nation, has direct experience demonstrating the positive
outcomes of closing large institutions for people with developmental disabilities. A study of the
results of the 1994 closing of North Princeton Developmental Center in New Jersey, published
by the American Association on Mental Retardation in 2005," found that the individuals who
transitioned out of the institutional setting:

had more friends

exhibited less challenging behaviors

perceived their life to be better

demonstrated significant increases in self-care skills over time

> & o o

The study also reported “convincing evidence” that the multi-cognitive scores of people who
remained in institutional settings, including social skills, significantly decreased from 1994-2001.

There are many other peer-reviewed studies showing the benefits of less restrictive settings.
Indeed, the Unites States Supreme Court, in the landmark O/mstead decision, observed:

Confinement in an institution severely diminishes the everyday life activities of
individuals, including family relations, social contacts, work options, economic
independence, educational advancement, and cultural enrichment... [Moreover,]
segregation perpetuates unwarranted assumptions that institutionalized people
are incapable or unworthy of participating in community life.

Given the research, experience and legal requirements, how can we continue to maintain a
system of residential services where the vast majority of eligible children and adults remain in
their family home without sufficient funds to meet their service and support needs, where
thousands of adult children live with aging parents who can no longer properly care for their
children, and where the only foreseeable future for families is to have a son or daughter ripped
out of a family home when the parents die and placed in a restrictive, institutional “Center”.

! “Longitudinal Changes in Adaptive Behavior of Movers and Stayers;” Lerman, P., Apgar, D., Jordan, T.
Mental Retardation Journal, American Association on Mental Retardation. February 2005, pp. 25-42.
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The Council, along with the broader DD community of self-advocates, family members,
providers and organizations, stands ready to work with the Legislature and other stakeholders to
ensure the safety and quality of community services and supports and to resolve the economic
concerns of institutional employees, vendors and other institutional stakeholders about the
possible closing of some of the state’s seven developmental centers.

Please feel free to contact our offices for further information about these critical matters from
staff and from affected individuals and families. Thank you.

Respectfully submitted,

Elaine Buchsbaum
Chair
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NJCDD Comments on “Report on Residential Choice Survey”
Published by Advocates for New Jersey Developmental Center Residents

There are several issues with this report that make the findings unreliable.

Claim:
“96% of guardians and family members prefer continued ICF/MR services over community

services.”

Fact:
Only roughly half of the total number of DC residents at the time the survey was completed

(1,417 out of 2,819) had a family member or guardian respond to the survey.

Fact:
In three developmental centers, less than half of the residents had a family member or guardian

submit a response to the survey. One center, Woodbine, was not included in the survey.

Percent of Residents for whom a Response was Received
Green Brook — 70% (65 responses out of 91 residents)
Hunterdon — 91% (516 responses out of 561residents)
New Lisbon — 48% (218 responses out of 432 residents)
North Jersey — 46% (195 responses out of 403 residents)
Vineland — 36% (168 responses out of 441 residents)
Woodbine — not part of survey

Woodbridge — 59% (255 responses out of 404 residents)

Claim:
The survey is an accurate assessment of family preferences.

Fact:
The questionnaire is not anonymous and it looks as if it is an official document.

o Across the top in capitals are the words “NOTICE OF CHOICE.”.

o It gives the impression that the document is a formal decision

o It asks for the name, address and contact information for the person completing
the form and for the name and DC of the resident.

o It states that the person filling out the form will provide written notification if they
change their mind.

P.O. Box 700, Trenton, NJ 08625 Tel.: 609-292-3745 <> Fax: 609-292-7114 <> TTY: 609-777-3238
WWW. NJCDD.Osg
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Fact:
The survey’s single yes or no question, “I am opposed to community placement for my family

member/ward” was embedded in information that could be expected to have influenced the
responses to the survey:

“YOUR IMMEDIATE RESPONSE IS NEEDED!”

“While we realize that some families may be currently seeking community placement, we
believe that the majority of families feel that their loved ones are best and appropriately serviced
in their current home at  Developmental Center...... we are attempting to get a more accurate

count so that the myth of the 2,400 requesting community placement will finally be dispelled.
We would like to show that plans to downsize and / or close the developmental centers are not
based on what our families want.”

Fact: ,
The letter accompanying the questionnaire used value laden language vilifying DDD (Division

of Developmental Disabilities.) “Over the last 8 years the Division of Developmental
Disabilities (DDD) has aggressively and purposely overstated stated (sic) the number of
individuals residing in developmental centers who want community placement.”

Fact:
Families at the Hunterdon DC were given the survey at a family meeting at which the issue of

closing institutions was discussed. This group had the highest percentage of responders
indicating their opposition to community placement.

Claim:
Residents of state run ICF/MR’s would be denied their rights to an individualized treatment plan

if they live in the community.

Fact:
All individuals living in the community are required to have an IHP (Individual Habilitation

Plan) that is an extensive plan for treatment and life in the community.

See N.J.S.A. 30:6D-10 (every agency, organization or institution providing DDD services must
prepare written THP for persons served); N.J.S.A. 30:6D-12.4(b) (DDD must prepare written IHP
for all individuals receiving self-directed supports).

The concern that all community residents may not have an IHP is a programmatic problem not a
policy issue.

/A%y
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Claim:
Developmental Center staff members who evaluated residents for community placement were

given “the misleading impression that community placement is an appropriate option for all
residents of New Jersey’s Developmental Centers.”

Fact:
The memo relied on to support this claim recognizes that not all residents of developmental

centers are eligible for community placement. Attachment A is a memo from Hunterdon DC
administration to staff. There is no indication that staff in other DCs was similarly instructed.

The memo instructs staff to list an individual as “eligible for community placements unless they
represent a serious danger to others.” There follows instructions that if the individual is deemed
a serious danger to others for other than specified examples there must be a notation as to why
they individual is not eligible for community placement

Research Demonstrates the Benefits of Life in the Community

The arguments for community living and the closure of institutions are based on decades of
evidence about what works in the real world.

A study of the results of the 1994 closing of North Princeton Developmental Center in New
Jersey, published by the American Association on Mental Retardation in 2005,' found that
people who transitioned out of the institutional setting:

* had more friends

* exhibited less challenging behaviors

* perceived their life to be better

* demonstrated significant increases in self-care skills over time

The study also reported “convincing evidence” that the multi-cognitive scores of people who
remained in institutional settings, including social skills, significantly decreased from 1994-

2001.

The study compared individual’s who transitioned to the community to individuals who
remained in the center, and matched them according to age, gender, cognition, social-emotional
functioning, self-care, mobility, and challenging behaviors.

Numerous other peer reviewed studies are available from across the country with similar
findings.

! “Longitudinal Changes in Adaptive Behavior of Movers and Stayers;” Lerman, P., Apgar, D., Jordan, T.
Mental Retardation Journal, American Association on Mental Retardation. February 2005, pp. 25-42.
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NJ COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
POSITION STATEMENT ON DEINSTITUTIONALIZATION

BACKGROUND

Legal Mandates

The Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act establishes "the policy of the
United States that ... individuals with developmental disabilities, including those with the most
severe developmental disabilities, are capable of self-determination, independence, productivity,
and integration and inclusion in all facets of community life."

Consistent with this vision, the guiding principle of the United States Supreme Court decision in
Olmstead v. L.C., 527 U.S. 581 (1999), is the inherent right of an individual to be free from
unnecessary segregation from the general public. The Court made it clear that unnecessary
institutionalization is a form of discrimination under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA),
and explained that “segregation perpetuates unwarranted assumptions that institutionalized
people are incapable or unworthy of participating in community life.”"

The Justices also concluded that “confinement in an institution severely diminishes the everyday
life activities of individuals, including family relations, social contacts, work options, economic
independence, educational advancement, and cultural enrichment.”> Accordingly, the Court
reasoned that people with disabilities cannot be required to give up the benefits of full
participation in their communities in order to obtain needed medical services and supports.®
Therefore, states must make services available in inclusive, community based settings.

New Jersey Facts

Nearly 3,000 people with developmental disabilities live in our seven large State-run
developmental centers, which are referred to under Medicaid law as Intermediate Care Facilities
for the Mentally Retarded* (ICFs-MR). In many respects, this practice leaves New Jersey
significantly out of step with the nation:

. Half of the states in the country (25) have a total statewide institutional population of

less than 1,000.
Nearly half of the states in the country (24) have two or fewer such institutions.

Nine states have no state institutions at all.®

'1d. at 597, and 600-01.
2 1d. at 600-01.
®d. at 601.

4 The Council recognizes that this term, found in federal Medicaid statutes, is outdated and offensive. it is only
included here to identify the specific provisions of the federal Medicaid statute that govern New Jersey's
developmental centers.

% As of 2008, the following states reported no large residential institutions for people with developmental disabilities:
Alaska, Hawaii, Indiana, Maine, New Hampshire, New Mexico, Rhode Island, Vermont and West Virginia.

P.O. Box 700, Trenton, NJ 08625 Tel.: 609-292-3745 <> Fax: 609-292-7114 <> TTY: 609-777-3238
WWW. NJCDD.Org
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The Council finds as follows:

1.

New Jersey continues to rely on large institutions as a default placement and has not
committed sufficient resources to free people with developmental disabilities from
unnecessary confinement in large restrictive institutions.

The National Conference of State Legislators correctly concluded that, “[als long as
states continue to operate large public facilities, state funds will be used to support those
facilities, per capita costs of operating facilities will continue to increase, and expansion
of community services will decline. ©

New Jersey's over-reliance on institutional settings for emergent and long-term care
significantly hinders the State’s ability to develop the resources needed to provide quality
community-based services and supports.

The State has a legal and social imperative to act immediately to develop a community
infrastructure of housing, health care, direct care, transportation, along with behavioral,
recreational, educational and vocational supports to ensure that our State has the
capacity to serve all DDD-eligible individuals who seek home- and community-based

services and supports.

Based on all of the above, the Council calls upon the State to:

1.

2.

3.

Develop the capacity to provide persons with developmental disabilities with self-
determined, safe and effective services in community settings.

Develop a plan and timetable to:

close developmental centers

reduce the population in developmental centers that remain open

prevent new admissions to developmental centers

redirect some of the funds currently used to maintain seven large developmental
centers to the development of safe and effective self-directed, home- and

community-based services and supports

aooTow

Immediately allocate federal and State funds to meet the following goals:
a. stop new admissions to developmental centers of people who could be served in
the community by, among other things, meeting emergency requests for services
in less restrictive settings

b. increase the pace of transitioning to the community the more than 2,000
developmental center residents whom the State has identified as waiting for less

restrictive settings

c. annually meet the needs of at least 10% (400) of the current number of people
on the State’s growing priority waiting list for community based services and
reduce the presently unacceptable length of time people remain on the priority
waiting list for community services.

REVISED POLICY ADOPTED: March 20, 2009
This revised policy replaces all previously adopted policies on deinstitutionalization.

& Davis, DeWayne Fox-Grage, Wendy and Gehshan, Shelly. Deinstitutionalization of Persons with Developmental
Disabilities: A Technical Assistance Report for Legislators. National Conference of State Legislatures. May 19, 2000.
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CONTACT
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ADVOCATES FOR NEW FRRSEE -
DEVELOPMENTAL CENTER RESIDENTS

REPORT ON RESIDENTIAL CHOICE SURVEY

" EXECUTIVE SUMMARY _ :

The Supreme Court has found that Title IT of the federal Americans with Disabilities Act requires that
states serve persons with disabilities in community settings rather than in institutions only when three
conditions are met: (1) the State’s treatment professionals have determined that community placement
is appropriate; (2) the transfer from institutional care to a less restrictive setting is not opposed by the
affected individual; and (3) the placement can be reasonably accommodated, taking into account the
resources available to the State and the needs of others with mental disabilities.

The State of New Jersey operates seven public intermediate care facilities for persons with mental
retardation (ICF/MRs), also called developmental centers, as an option under its State Medicaid Plan.
These centers serve more than 2,819 of New Jersey’s most fragile citizens.

During the past several years, the New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities the state agency
that oversees services for the Developmentally Disabled wherever they live, instructed its treatment
teams to state that all current residents of developmental centers can live in community settings,
thereby denying residents of the state Tun ICE/MR’s their right to individualized treatment planning.
As a result of this memo Attac ) the Division then stated “There are 2,4 individuals who
have a recommendation for Community Placement in their THP.” (Attac The Path to

Progt 1) 1 A

rogress,” page tl)- These statements give the misleading impression that community placement isan
appropriate option for all residents of New Jersey’s developmental centers. However, the Division has
never surveyed parents, family members and guardians regarding their preferences for services and
have disregarded the recommendations of those who directly provide for the care and treatment of
those individuals

The “Advocates for New Jersey Developmental Center Residents” undertook a study of the opinions
of developmental center residents’ guardians and family members in order to determine treatment
preferences. Three findings are made:

(1) 96% of guardians and family members preferred continued ICE/MR services over community

services,

(2) the conduct of the Division of Developmental Disabilities in requiring treatment professionals to
recommend community living, violates the requirement for individualized treatment planning; and

(3) theuse of state employees in the Bureau of Guardianship Qervices as “advocates” for persons

receiving [CE/MR services is a conflict of interest and should be suspended immediately.

The findings of this study suggest that ongoing investments will need to be made in order to maintain
federal certification of New J ersey’s ICE/MRs. In addition, the conduct of the Division who requires

its treatment professionals 1o recommend community living violates the right for individualized
treatment planning. Also, these recommendations do not consider the wishes of the individuals’
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family as the primary decisionmaker. This practice jeopardizes federal financial participation and
should be suspended. Finally, the use of state employees in the Bureau of Guardianship Services as
“advocates” for persons receiving ICF/MR services is a conflict of interest and should be suspended

immediately.

The Parents/Families Associations at each developmental center is pleased to offer its assistance to the
Division in identifying family members and alternative guardians to address this need.

ADVOCATES FOR NEW JERSEY
DEVELOPMENTAL CENTER RESIDENTS
REPORT ON RESIDENTIAL CHOICE SURVEY
BACKGROUND:
The 'integration mandate' of the Americans with Disabilities Act requires public agencies
to provide services "in the most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of qualified
individuals with disabilities." In 1999, the United States Supreme Court affirmed the

right of individuals with disabilities to live in their community in its 6-3 ruling against the
state of Georgia in the case Olms

The Court found that Title II of the federal Americans with Disabilities Act requires that
states serve persons with disabilities in community settings rather than in institutions
when three conditions are met: (1) the State’s treatment professionals have determined
that community placement is appropriate; (2) the transfer from institutional care to a less
restrictive setting is not opposed by the affected individual; and (3) the placement can be
reasonably accommodated, taking into account the resources available to the State and
the needs of others with mental disabilities.

The high court upheld that mandate, ruling that Georgia's Department of Human
Resources could not segregate two women with mental disabilities in a state psychiatric
hospital long after the agency's own treatment professionals had recommended their
transfer to community care.

The State of New Jersey operates seven public intermediate care facilities for persons
with mental retardation ICF/MRs), also called developmental centers, as an option under
its State Medicaid Plan. In choosing 10 do so, New Jersey is required to offer ICF/MR
services to all Medicaid-eligible individuals who qualify for services. The hallmark of
ICF/MR level of care is Active Treatment. Active Treatment refers to aggressive,
consistent implementation of a program of specialized and generic training, treatment and
health services. Active Treatment does not include services to maintain generally
independent clients who are able to function with little supervision or in the absence of a
continuous Active Treatment program. (42 CFR 483.440(2))
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Fach client in an ICF/MR receives an annua progrﬁ%{\'f)"‘!aﬁ%aﬁembmmdividual
Habilitation Plan (IHP), which serves as a guide to treatment planning. In contrast,
services int community settings funded by the Home and Community-B ased Waiver are
not required t0 meet the Active Treatment standard. Inmany instances the individuals
living in group homes or other settings under the Home and Community Based Waiver
(HCBW) do not even have an [HP as seen in recent audits of DDD contracts.

STATEMENT OF NEED:

The overwhelming majority of the families and guardians of individuals receiving
ICE/MR services ate concerned that the New Jersey Division of Developmental
Disabilities has embarked on a process which will result in its meeting the three Olmstead
criteria for all persons currently receiving ICE/MR services but without attention to their
continued need for individualized {reatment SErvices (Active Treatment program).

Fundamental Alteration:

Over the past ten years the New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities
has expanded the capacity of the Home and Community-B ased Waiver. However, most
of this new capacity has been given t0 moving current residerts of developmental centers
into the community. In fact, during the past 10 years the number of persons receiving
1CE/MR services in New Jersey has decreased by about 1,000. At the same time,
however, the Division did not make any significant headway il addressing the lengthy
waiting list for waiver services among persons with developmental disabilities living in
the community. During the same period, the waiting list has grown {o more than 5,000
persons. This practice creates tension between families of individuals living in ICF/MRs

and those on the waiting list for community services.

Treatment Professionals:

n 2001, the New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities instructed
treating professionals in its developmental centers to include 2 statement in each client’s
individual habilitation plan that the resident could be served in the community- The only
exceptions to this statement Were for individuals who are considered dangerous to others
(by virtue of having a criminal record) Of individuals who could verbalize their desire t0
remain in their placement. Having extermi Jated independent professional judgment at its
developmental centers, the Division promulgates the belief that no freating professionals
support continued placement in an ICF/MR. In its publication «The Path to Progress,
page 117 the Division notes «There are 2,457 individuals who have a recommendation for
Community Placement in their THP.” Obviously, this statement reflects the influence
DDD has to advance their agenda by ignoring the federal requirement for individualized

treatment planning and family choice.

Consent of the Individual: ,

Many individuals living in New Jersey ICE/MRs do not have family guardians
and are instead, served by employees of the New Jersey Division of Developmental
Disabilities through the Bureau of Guardianship Services (BGS)- As per instructions
from the New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities, individuals served by BGS
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and those without a guardian were listed as not opposing community placement in their
HPs regardless of level of need or mental capacity. See Attachment A

In fact, within the last two years, the Division changed the IHP documents to further push
the alleged community. preference. The THP was changed to a person centered plan
(PCP), a planning document now written in first person Janguage. The PCP contains a
template for language expressing such a choice so that all of the PCPs read the same. As
a result, the PCPs contains an explicit statement of the client’s preference in what appears
to0 be the client’s own words, for community or ICF/MR services, regardless of whether
the client has been deemed competent to makes such a determination. In reality, many of
the clients who have allegedly made statements regarding their preference are non-verbal
or unable to make such a determination. This procedure is coercive and denies guardians
of their legal right to make treatment decisions on behalf of their loved ones.

Based on these changes in state policy some community advocates with the tacit support
of the Division, have argued that the entire population of individuals served in ICF/MRs,
that is more than 2,400 individuals, is being inappropriately served through the program
and that, as a result, all JCF/MRs in New Jersey should be closed. In direct contrast,
many parents and guardians 0ppose community placement, and believe that the ICF/MR
continues to be the most appropriate setting for providing care to their loved ones. There
was a petition distributed to the friends and families of the residents of the Hunterdon
Developmental Center in late 2006. Over 2,300 signatures were collected, bound and
presented to the Governor and State Leaders indicating their overwhelming opposition to
the forced removal of residents from the Developmental Centers and a request for
legislation that would review the policies of DDD and resume admissions to the centers
when the individuals needs required the level of care available only at an ICF/MR (SEE
Attachment B). 4

Unfortunately, no survey of guardians and family members has ever been undertakén by
the Division and requests to read the THP or PCP documents to see what the family’s
preferences are have been ignored. The current proposals to move all developmental
center residents into the community do not take into account the actual level of services
required for each individual. This in turn represents a challenge to policy makers and
state government because they cannot adequately determine the level of financial support
required to provide an appropriate level of funding for New Jersey ICF/MRs nor to those
who will be moved when federal transition dollars disappear under the Money Follows
the Persorn. MFP dollars are federal dollars that increase an individual’s budget for 12
months after leaving and ICF/MR. The Center for Medicare and Medicaid (CMS)
requires the states assurance that those dollars will be available through state resources
when the federal dollars expire. :
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METHOD:

Each of the seven ICF/MRs operated by the State of New Jersey maintains an active
parents/family group. In order to ascertain the preference of parents and non state
guardians for ICF/MR versus community services, the presidents or representatives for
each parent/family group convened a Task Force to conduct a survey of all parent and
non state legal guardians of residents at the centers. The Task Force, named Advocates
for Developmental Center Residents, designed a survey with a single question: “Are you
in favor or opposed to community placement for your loved one?” The survey was
mailed to all of the families at six of the seven centers, which comprised the membership
of the parent/family group at each facility (Attachment D1 and D2). The seventh center,
- Woodbine Developmental Center was unable to participate due to the failing health of

their parent/family group leadership. The center would not allow the Task Force to
prepare the mailings in an effort to protect confidentiality. ‘

The Task Force contacted Kim Friend, Director of the Bureau of Guardianship Services
with a request to send the survey to the state-employed workers at BGS in an attempt to
have state-appointed guardians participate in the process. As of the writing of this report-
she has not responded.

Funding for the mailing was obtained through donations from the parent/family group
associations.

RESULTS:

Data were collected from parents and guardians at six of seven facilities. We will revise
this report when data for the Woodbine Developmental Center are collected.

Results show survey responses are overwhelmingly in favor of continued ICF/MR
(developmental center) services (Table 1). We received a total of 1,417 responses. Of
these, 1,359 responses are in support of continued ICF/MR services and 58 responses are
in favor of community placements and services through the HCBW. In percentage terms,
this represents 96% in support of contimued ICF/MR services and only 4% in favor of
community placements.
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TESTIMONY
MAY 7, 2010

Representative of Hunterdon Developmental Center- Cindy Bartman

Census at HDC 561

T am here as the renregentative of the Hunterdon Develonmental Center
families. I am going to read you excerpts from the letters that were sent to
this group today. It is spoken from the hearts and minds of families. Thank
you for allowing our voices to finally be heard.

For the Survey for Choice that was compiled by the Advocates for
Developmental Center Residents our return of responses to the survey was
516 from a census of 561. All but 8 responses favored having their loved one

stay at Hunterdon.

Anne M — the developmental centers are needed and should not be closed

Mary F. — We would never want our daughter moved into a group home.
This is our decision, we are her family and we know what is best for her. We
are upset every year with these notions that we would want community
placement for our ch1ld ThlS attempt every year to abohsh a system that

3 e gy ~ e m Pl L‘
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Bill C — Eddie was one of the first clients of the Hunterdon Developmental
Center. The change in his life and our lives was miraculous. After 40 years
we are still impressed with the extraordinary amount of care that the clients
of these centers receive. We know he has been happy and that makes us
grateful..... The facilities are resources to be nurtured, not piggy banks to be

cracked!

James H- my son is at HDC and the people working with him do an amazing
job. They always include me in decision making with everything he needs.

Judith B. — I find it totally despicable that anyone could even dream of

closing my brother’s home. Never mind, the audacity to try and close it.
There special people do not adjust to change well. How cruel! It would be
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like punishing them. Do you really think it would be progress? No they
would regress. The ultimate decision maker should be the family.

Emma P.- My son is 31 and has autism. He also has fatal food allergies and
well as severe environmental allergies which can also be threatening to his
health. My son’s doctors, his father and L, strongly feel that my son is safest
in a developmental center, where there is on- site medical attention.

Tom R- Mogt of the clients now in our developmental centers have the
mental functioning of a two year old or less. During the mass exodus from
the centers in the 90’s and staff recommended those who could benefit from
waiver services. The providers then came and “cheery picked” the least
difficult clients leaving others behind. There are eyewitness accounts of
residents leaving and then returning to the centers after failed experiences in
the community. Of the past 7 clients that staff were recently pressured into
sending out into waiver services, 5 have returned to the center in far worse
medical shape than when they were initially discharged from HDC. One girl
only lasted 12 days before coming back on a feeding tube because she did
not eat anything for the entire 12 days that she lived in the group home.
Another girl who was very active at HDC came back confined to a
wheelchair. Another person came back with multiple fractures. Two others
came back with feeding tubes. We also know of a number of deaths.

f.orm T hamn wieitiae BT 2!l mo e dolt B o have annken ta ot fF
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and families and I beheve that is a fallacy that a 51gn1ﬁcant portlon of the
clients there wish to leave HDC or that their families would prefer

community placement.

Maria A- I have gone to visit without announcing my visit in advance and I
have not been disappointed in the condition I found my daughter in. They
treat her like a human being, a child, a special child that she is.

Joe and Anne B- When my twin boys entered HDC 40 years ago they were
promised that this would be their home for their lifetime. How can you break

a promise to a child?
Maximus continues to provide inaccurate bills. We need to constantly call

and check the bill. Can’t NJ do this billing themselves and not take our
children’s Social Security money away from them to pay for this made

company?
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Gail S — We are telling you loud and clear to let us make the decisions for
the people we love who are unable to voice and opinion.

Teresa M. — The families of the residents of HDC are the primary decision
makers. Aren’t you the primary decision makers for your young children?

Nancy g- This is not the first time we have had this major stress in our lives.
We ag a familv do NOT want our sister moved to 2 groun home or what vou

may call community placement. We do not want her to leave the center.

Alexander T. — My daughter is 55 years old and functions like a child of 16
months. She is vision impaired and needs constant assistance in all daily
living tasks. She also has a tendency to wander off. She only has one kidney
and the remaining kidney has stones in it. She needs professional attention
and close supervision, plus medical monitoring on a daily basis.
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Testimony Against the Closing of Developmental Centers (ICF/MR)
MAY 7, 2010

Representative of Woodbridge Developmental Center — Joanne St. Amand
Census at Woodbridge 404

My name is Joanne St. Amand. I am the sister of Rosemary, a profoundly o~
retarded woman whose home has been Woodbridge DC for 35 years. ShW' :"’ sk
was not expected to live past puberty. Rosemary turned 55 last month. it WcUMJk
Rosemary cannot walk or talk; she canmot feed herself, nor take care of any

of her most personal needs.

I am also the president of the Woodbridge Developmental Center Parents
Association. I am here today as a representative of the Woodbridge
families. I am going to read to you excerpts from some of the many letters
sent to me for today’s hearings. They are written from the hearts and minds
of our WDC families. Thank you for allowing our voices to finally be heard.

First, the results for our “Survey for Choice”, conducted by the Advocates
for Developmental Center Residents are, for a census of 404, we received
255 returned responses. All but 15 responses favored having their loved ones
stay at Woodbridge Developmental Center.

The following excerpts are taken directly from the letters received from
families of WDC:

Leonard L. — Several years ago, an attempt was made by Woodbridge DC to
place Bobby in a family/community placement. Bobby resisted and was
quickly moved back to Woodbridge. Residents of DC’s are human beings
with feelings and emotions. Please do not let them be caught up in a political
number crunching plan that may look good on paper, but cannot truly reflect
the impact that closing the developmental centers or reducing the staff and
services at those centers will have on their lives.

Juana M. — I have always expressed my feelings about not wanting my son
to be placed in a community group home. Do our choices carry any weight?
Their homes are being threatened. ... Yes community life does exist in our
centers.

Joanne St. Amand
Woodbridge Dev Center
May 7, 2010
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Barbara S - My daughter cannot walk, has seizures, cannot speak and needs
around the clock care. She also has a tumor the size of a watermelon in her
uterus and it cannot be operated on. ... Why is it that the government always
wants to take from the most innocent and needy and give to the most

greedy?

Thomas, Kathleen, Brandon, Ian and Chelsea C- Most of the patients at
WDC are not fortunate to still have family and relatives to advocate for
them. As a result they have no voice, no advocate and no protector. There is
an opportunity here for all involved to make clear, that here in NJ we are our

brother’s keeper.

Gerry S and 25 family members - We the undersigned recognize that the
waiting list crisis in NJ demands the expansion of community based options.
However, we are against any expansion at the expense of the ICF/MR
residents. One size does not fit all.

John P- If you read my brother’s Individual Habilitation Plan you will see
references that say that he would like to be in a group home. There is one
simple problem with that comment- my brother has never spoken a word in
his life! Nor would he be able to understand questions about group homes or
communicate his desires in any other non-spoken way. I raise the point
because it makes me wonder how many other residents’ files may contain
similar statements that may cause decisions to be made that aren’t in the best
interests of these individuals.

Anne D- We oppose the raising of the “cost of care” contributions. They do
not receive enough money as it is, and they live at the poverty level. Also
Maximus is a waste of state dollars and the contract with NJ should be

terminated.

Louis and Teresa M- Our son has been in one- to- one care for years at
Woodbridge due to his history of self abuse, but we just heard that he is
being taken off the one- to- one service due to the efforts of those at WDC.

Elizabeth W. — My daughter is 45 years old. She takes a while to get
comfortable with her caregivers and will not eat for too many people. She is
in good hands at Woodbridge.

Please, I ask for all the residents and their families - keep all of our

Developmental Centers open. Thank- you
Joanne St. Amand
Woodbridge Dev Center
May 7, 2010
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Woodbridge Developmental Center April 22,2010 1:30 -3:00pm

Woodbridge Tour by Assembly Women Huttle, Tucker, McHose, & Guests

A. Welcome and Introduction to Woodbridge

The Woodbridge Developmental Center was founded in 1965 as the Woodbridge State School. The
design of the Center won awards. Twenty-one buildings were residential dorms and the Center had
approximately 500 staff. By the 1970’s, Woodbridge had a population of nearly 1000 people (with most
being young children and teens with moderate to severe medical issues and physical deformities).

In the past 40 years, there have been many changes and improvements at Woodbridge. Woodbridge
became a Developmental Center and it began to participate in the federal ICF-DD program in the 1980s.
We provide residential supports in 16 buildings and have 5 buildings assigned to programming. Our
individuals have aged (avg. age: 50 years) and we no longer provide services to children. The current
census is about 380 people who require 24/7 supervision and intensive supports (Services which are not
readily available in the community). We have approximately 1260 permanent employees on payroll.

Given the acute needs of the individuals now living at Woodbridge, we have a full compliment of
professional staff who provide on-site specialty services. Some of the services and programming
provided at WDC include: Adaptive Seating & Positioning, Behavioral Services, Dental Services,
Hearing and Vision evaluations, Nutritional Services, Primary and Specialty Medical Care, Psychology
Services, Recreation Activities, Wheelchair Maintenance, Vocational and Prevocational Training, etc. In
addition, we provide extensive training to our staff in every area of care.

B. Other Facts about Woodbridge:
WDC Census: 378 people, 232 (61.4%) Men & 146 (38.6%) Women (Age Range 27 to 68)
Ambulation: 275 people are non-ambulatory and require custom wheelchairs (highest in DDD)
40 use transport wheelchairs for long distances

103 are ambulatory but require supervision to ensure traffic and medical safety

Cognitive Level: 340 (90 %) have IQs in the Profound and Severe range (total care & supervision)
38 (10%) have IQs in the Mild or Moderate (behaviors & constant supervision)

Communication: 80 (21.1%) with moderate communication impairments
297 (99.8 %) with moderate or profound communication impairments

326 (86.2 %) with severe or profound hearing impairment (43 people are deaf)

Eating: 53 (14%) have G-tubes for nutritional support
300 (79.6%) have special mealtime programs and/ or supervision needs

Vision: 210 (55%) people with significant Visual Impairments
50 (13%) people who are blind

Seizures: 307 (81.2%) people with epilepsy and 167 (44.1%) receive Anti-Epileptic drugs
Psychiatric Care:60 (15.8%) people receive psychiatric medications (lowest in DDD)
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NJACP Testimony
Joint Hearing of the Assembly Human Services Committee
Senate Health, Human and Senior Services Committee
The Future of Developmental Centers and the Community Services System
May 7, 2010

NEW JERSEY ASSOCIATION OF
COMMUNITY PROVIDERS. INC.

NJACD—

cing Quality Senv
pl wihD elopment JD bh

On behalf of our board of directors, member agencies and the thousands of people we support,
thank you for the opportunity to testify today. My name is Kim Todd and | serve as the CEO of
the New Jersey Association of Community Providers. We welcome the opportunity to discuss
the important and challenging future of the system that supports people with developmental
disabilities in these difficult times. We hope as we move forward that decisions are based, first
and foremost’ on what works for people with developmental disabilities. We ask you to consider
the wealth of scientific research and successful and innovative approaches that have been
implemented in other states. We ask you to take the necessary actions to enable all people
with developmental disabilities to live quality engaged lives in the community and to craft an
array of services and supports that meets their needs.

As New Jersey struggles with meeting the needs of the people it is intended to support with
scarce resources, we find ourselves balancing the State’s budget next fiscal year with the SSDI
Personal Needs Allowance of people with developmental disabilities. Next year’s budget looks
equally grim. Staying the course is not a viable option as less and less resources become
available to address the challenges of the Developmental Disabilities system and the window to
use federal support to transition our system closes.

While New Jersey studies and debates, if and how, the rest of the nation has moved forward
leaving New Jersey at 49" in the nation, with one of the highest rates of institutionalization in the

country.

When compared to other states in national benchmarks including the following studies, New
Jersey languishes in the bottom tiers:

o “Residential Services for People with Developmental Disabilities: Status and Trends
Through 6/2007,” edited by Prouty, Smith and Lakin: University of Minnesota, August
2008

e “The State of the States in Developmental Disabilities: 2008 Study Summary,” by
Braddock et al at the University of Colorado: January 2008 and

e “The Case for Inclusion 2010,” by Tarren Bragdon, United Cerebral Palsy, Washington,
D.C.
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The public policy agenda on the role of institutions was determined long ago, shifting to one of
community inclusion. We are debating an issue that has been decided.

o Justice Ginsberg delivered the opinion of the Supreme Court in Qlmstead v. L.C. and
concluded that States are required to place individuals with developmental disabilities in
the most integrated setting appropriate to their needs as determined by themselves and
their treatment professionals. Justice Ginsberg and the Court maintained isolating and
segregating those living with developmental disabilities in institutions violates Title 1I of
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and constitutes discrimination based on a
disability. (Olmstead, 1999);

The Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000 (P.L.106-42 stated:

e “The goals of the Nation properly include a goal of providing individuals with
developmental disabilities with the information, skills, opportunities and support to make
informed choices and decisions about their lives; live in homes and communities in
which such individuals can exercise their full rights and responsibilities as citizens;
achieve full integration and inclusion in society, in an individualized manner, consistent
with the unique strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, and capabilities of
each individual”.

The Assistant Attorney General for Civil Rights, Thomas E. Perez at his Installation Ceremony
in 2009 said “Civil Rights in 2009 means working to create services, programs and public
facilities that are accessible to individuals with disabilities, recognizing that they have a vast
contribution to make to our society and our communities that can only be maximized if they
have equal access. It means recognizing that segregating people with disabilities in institutions
is every bit as bad and illegal as segregating children of color in inferior schools.

The national agenda of inclusion was reaffirmed by President Obama on the 10th anniversary of
the landmark Supreme Court decision in the case of Olmstead v. L.C.  President Barack
Obama celebrated that anniversary by launching "The Year of Community Living. He said " The
Olmstead ruling was a critical step forward for our nation, articulating one of the most
fundamental rights of Americans with disabilities: Having the choice to five independently”. "l
am proud to launch this initiative to reaffirm my Administration’s commitment to vigorous
enforcement of civil rights for Americans with disabilities and to ensuring the fullest inclusion of
all people in the life of our nation" he added.

While other states have moved forward to organize services and supports for people with
developmental disabilities in the community, New Jersey, at 49" in the nation is clearly out of
step with the rest of the nation.

The Division of Developmental Disabilities devotes 1/3™ of its $1.3B budget to support 8% of the
population it serves at a rate of $710 per person, per day for care. According to the NJ
Department of Human Services, the level of care exceeds need for 81% of those in institutions.
Our continued support and overreliance on institutional care has outpaced our ability to ignore
this issue. With costs escalating 9% annually, they will approach $1,000 a day, per person in
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four years. We will be forced to continue to allocate millions of dollars in costly upkeep and
maintenance offering less and less for those who wait for community services.

We can no longer afford to continue this course of action at the expense of the thousands who
continue to wait, often for decades for community services. This includes young adults
transitioning from the education system with little or no options and the generations to come.

Solutions, successful approaches, and the expertise clearly exist as well as offers of assistance.
At one step from last place, we are hardly pioneers, vanguards or trendsetters in transitioning
systems serving people with developmental disabilities. Our chailenges are not unique.
Although we recognize the concerns that change presents, we can avoid the missteps of those
that have gone before us by utilizing the successful approaches, the wealth of scientific
research and the experiences of other states to implement change safely and successfully.

We encourage New Jersey to embrace a positive new direction in step with the rest of the
nation by fully supporting community options for people with developmental disabilities and their
families. We respectfully ask you to consider the price they pay each day we delay. New
Jersey asks them to wait patiently while New Jersey continues to debate a course of action that
maintains the status quo, and its place at 49" in the nation.

NJACP is a statewide association committed to ensuring continuing progress toward the development of a consumer
driven system and greater quality of life for people with developmental disabilities. Our organization is comprised of
community based organizations that provide an essential foundation of services and supports including group homes,
supported living and a full range of community services to support individuals with developmental disabilities in
agency residences, at home with their families and in their own homes.

New Jersey Association of Community Providers
1005 Whitehead Road Extension — Suite 1B
Ewing, New Jersey 08638 Phone: 609-406-1400 — Fax: 609-406-1442 ktodd@njacp.org

www.njacp.org
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Opening
DOOI'S

by Brenda Considine

he name

"Krakowsky” is
engraved in script
on a brass knocker
mounted to the door
of a first-floor garden
apartment,
For the last 12 years,
the man who answers
that door is Bernard
Krakowsky.
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Krakowsky, 53, is proud of his home. With his
playful, dry wit, he offers a tour of his two-bed-
room condo, stepping slowly and deliberately
through each room. He stops to comment on his
coffee maker, which has been adapted so he can
use it easily every morning.

“I just pop the Folgers one-cup filter right
here, and then—coffee. It's that easy”

Outside his spare bedroom where he keeps
his treadmill and exercise bike, he jokes about not
working out as much as he should. And then, in
his bedroom, he points out the new flat-screen’
television:

“Got that last summer when the other one
went kafluie”

Finally, he makes his way to an overstuffed
chair in his living room:

“And this is where I lounge around.” Then he
stops and smiles. “And it’s all mine”

When the E.R. Johnstone Training and Re-
search Center closed in 1992, it became the first
large institution in New Jersey to be shut down by
the state. At the time, many of the 225 residents
were expected to go to community-based programs,
but Bernard Krakowsky was not among them.

Bernard at work at the DDD, with
co worker

PEOPLE & FAMILIES SPRING 2009

The staff of the developmental center had
identified a list of men who where deemed to be
too disabled to live anywhere but another institu-
tion. Krakowsky was on that list.

Robert Nicholas, former director of the state
Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD)
and currently a Senior Visiting Fellow at the John
J. Heldridge Center at Rutgers University, remem-
bers Krakowsky.

“I was told it was just not possible for Bernard
to live in the community;” said Nicolas. “Everyone
said he was ‘too this, or ‘too that I did not get it. I
kept asking: “‘Why?”

Another person who asked “Why?” was
Robert Stack, CEO of Community Options. Stack
convinced Nicholas to let his fledgling agency
serve Krakowsky and several others leaving John-
stone who were slated to go to other developmen-
tal centers.

Initially, Krakowsky lived in a group home in
Mercer County, but soon after, moved to a super-
vised apartment in the complex where he now
owns his home. Today, he continues to receive
support services, 20 hours a week through Com-
munity Options.

Once Krakowsky landed a full-time job, the
staff approached him with a question: “How
would you like to own your own place?”
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“I couldn't believe it,” Krakowsky recalled.

“I worked and saved up enough to buy my own
place and now, I pay the mortgage!” With a quick
clap in the air, he smiles and adds. “Yep! That’s
right! I pay the mortgage!”

When asked about the 18 years he spent at
Johnstone, Krakowsky’s demeanor softens and is
less animated. He recounts stories of working in
a small workshop, taking trips and classes, and

learning to use public transportation. As he rattles

off the names of people who worked there, he
adds:

“The staff were very kind to me. I remember
the good stuff. That’s all.

“But every night, we would go to bed at 10
oclock. Lights out. Even on Friday and Saturday.
10 oclock, lights out. Now I stay up till one in the
morning if I want. I watch TV. I like to sleep in
sometimes. I'll sleep till 10 oclock on Saturday”

But sleeping in for Krakowsky is strictly lim-
ited to the weekend. Monday through Friday, he
has arranged for Access Link to drive him to and
from work, commuting the 10 minutes it takes to
get to his job.

“I have them scheduled to come at 7:40,” he
says. “That way, if they are late, I am still on time”

Since 1994, Krakowsky has worked full time
as a receptionist at the central office of DDD,
where he answers the phone, and attends the
door, buzzing in guests and visitors. As part of his
job he knows everyone who works there and their
telephone extensions.

Robert Nicholas recalls hiring Krakowsky for
the position. “About a year after Stack first ap-
proached me about Bernard, we had a job open-
ing at the division for a receptionist. Who shows
up to interview but Bernard, dressed in his three-
piece suit, with a red tie and wing tip shoes.

He would be doing a complex clerical job—
the same work and the same salary as anyone
else,” said Nicholas. “Because Bernard is blind,
there were issues around accommodations to
consider. How would he dial the phones, and
handle the doors? But in the end, it was not a
problem.”

Krakowsky had done receptionist work in the
past. His résumé showed volunteer experience as
a receptionist at the Stony Brook Watershed in

Tamen

Bernard is the receptionist at the central office
of the DDD.

Pennington, and later, a part-time paid position at
a condo association.

“Tknew I could do it,” he recalled. “I re-
member when I got the job. It was like, Woooo
Hooo—YES! I did it

Barbara Booth is one of Krakowsky’s co-work-
ers. She has known him for more than 6 years and
although the relationship began at work, a friend-
ship has spilled well beyond the walls of the office.

“We go to concerts at Christmas, out to din-
ner. He even likes to spend time with my kids;”
said Booth.

“Bernard is an awesome guy who is always
kind. If you tell him something he never forgets,”
she adds. “He is always asking about me and my
family. He even knows my pets”

Booth says the friendship is very mutual.

“We always celebrate birthdays, so we threw
him a huge party when he turned 50. And he
takes me out on my birthday!”

Nicholas reflects on his experiences and views
Krakowsky as one of his teachers. “For years,
every day when I came to work the first person I
would see was Bernard. He was a daily reminder
that we must never say “can’t” [J1J
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QUICK FACTS ON NEW JERSEY’S
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY SERVICES

New Jersey, in comparison to other states, has lost ground as it continues to rely on historical
approaches depressing our ability to replicate the positive outcomes of other states. Across the
United States the trends in public spending over the past forty years have shifted away from
funding large public institutions, with a total of 140 closures having taken place in the nation
since 1969. New lJersey has closed two institutions, E.R. Johnstone Training and Research
Center in 1992 with a census of 239, that became a correctional facility; and North Princeton
Developmental Center in 1998 with a census of 512 people. New Jersey is not one of the 40

states with planned additional closures.

The following studies describe the trends in large public institutions over the last two decades
and provide data for comparisons between states including benchmarks for New Jersey:

o “Residential Services for People with Developmental Disabilities: Status and Trends
Through 6/2007,” edited by Prouty, Smith and Lakin: University of Minnesota, August

2008 (cited as “Prouty, 2008”) and

e “The State of the States in Developmental Disabilities: 2008 Study Summary,” by
Braddock et al at the University of Colorado: January 2008 (cited as “Braddock, 2008”).

e “The Case for Inclusion 2010,” by Tarren Bragdon, United Cerebral Palsy, Washington,
D.C. (cited as “UCP, 2010”).

Drawing on the findings of these researchers, work one can conclude that:

o Nationally, large state facilities continue to downsize and close. Between 2000 and
2007 the population of large public institutions nationally had dropped from 47,329 to
36,650, a decrease of 22.5% (Braddock, 2008). During the same period, New Jersey’s
institutional population dropped from 3,514 to 2,995, a decrease of 14.8% (Prouty, 2008),
two-thirds of the national effort. In New Jersey, this is an overall decrease of 519 people,
which includes 490 individuals who died while residing at the state run developmental
centers, indicating a passive reduction due to mortality (NJ DDD, 2008). The resulting
net discharge over those seven years of 29 people. New Jersey was ranked 49" in the
nation for having one of the highest rates of utilization of state institutions at 34.9 people
per 100,000 in population. The national utilization rate over this same period was 12.9

people per 100,000.

o It is possible to operate a state Developmental Disabilities Services and Supports
System without large state operated facilities. On June 30, 2007 nine states did not
operate any large (over 16 people) state facilities (AK, HI, ME, MN, NH, NM, RI, VT,
and WV) (Prouty, 2008). Since then, two more states have closed their final
developmental center (OR and IN), and the District of Columbia closed all of its state-

operated institutions.

o The cost per person in large state facilities continues to rise. In 2007 costs reached a
national average of $483 per day (Prouty, 2008). At that same point in time the average
cost per day of service in New Jersey’s large state institutions was $612 (Prouty, 2008).
According to NJ DHS this figure rose to $710 per day in FY 2009. The average
increased cost per year in New Jersey has been 9% over the last six years. Our fiscal

New Jersey - Quick Facts NJACP May 7, 2010 Page 1
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climate is unable to continue to support these increased costs. At the present rate of
growth, at the end of the present administration’s first term, costs will approach $1,000
per day, per person for institutional care.

The amount of spending on New Jersey’s state institutions, as compared to
statewide personal income, places us 6 highest among the states, yet our
community spending places us in 40™ place. New Jersey’s spending, per $1,000 of
personal income, on institutional care is among the highest in the nation, while our
spending on community services is less than 4/5™ of all states. When compared to our
neighboring states, New York and Pennsylvania, New Jersey is behind in our effort to
fund and prioritize community services. New Jersey is more comparable to the nation’s
poorest state, Mississippi, in how they fund services to people with developmental
disabilities.

As of June 30, 2007, more than two-fifths (41.9%) of the total number of large state
facility residents in the country lived in five states (California, Illinois, New Jersey,
New York and Texas), each with more than 2,100 residents in such facilities (Prouty,
2008). Since that time:

o California closed one developmental center (Agnews with 327 residents) and
projects that it will close another of its large state facilities (Lanterman with 393

people) in the next two years.

o The Western New York Developmental Center is scheduled for closure in 2010-
11 and will be fully decommissioned by 2011-12, and according to FY 2010-11
state budget documents it is expected that the remaining DCs will be fully
decommissioned by 2012-13.

o Illinois is in the final stages of closing Howe Developmental Center.

o While Texas continues to oversee the state's 13 developmental centers (or as they
call them, Supported Living Centers), in the last two legislative sessions,
lawmakers have made a concerted effort to fund more community living options.

On June 30, 2007, twenty of the forty-two states (including DC), still operating large
institutions, had 375 or fewer individuals in their entire state operated institutional
systems (AL, AZ, CO, DE, ID, IN, KS, KY, MD, MI, MN, MT, NE, NV, ND, OK, OR,
SD, UT, and WY) (Prouty, 2008). On that same date, six of the seven state operated
institutions serving individuals with development disabilities in New Jersey each housed
more than 375 people. “Operating Data for New Jersey Developmental Centers SFY
'06-°09,” shows the 2007 average daily census of each of the seven developmental
centers (the year for which comparable national data is available) one center served 103
people, while each of the other centers was above 394 (the range being 394 — 589).

Of the 49 responding states responding to a survey by the National Association of State Directors of
Developmental Disabilities Services (NASDDDS), 11 (22%) states reported that they had closed all
state operated institutions for persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD).

Of the 38 states still operating institutional programs that responded to the survey (unduplicated count):

New Jersey - Quick Facts NJACP May 7, 2010

4 (11%) states are planning to close one or more facilities and not downsize other programs or
facilities.
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e 14 (37%) states are planning to downsize existing facilities but not close any institutions.
o 5 (13%) states are planning to close one or more institutions and downsize additional facilities.

e 15 (39%) states have no plans to close or downsize state operated institutional programs.

Summarizing the results of the data from these 38 states reveals that:
o 9 states (24%) have plans to close one or more institutions.

o 19 states (50%) have plans to downsize programs, reducing the census of existing facilities.

Financial Impact
o 10 states (26%) made the decision to close and/or downsize IDD facilities due to financial
reasons.

o Of the 4 states with plans to close some facilities but not downsize others, three states are
closing the facilities for financial reasons.

o Ofthe 14 states with plans to downsize but not close facilities, three states are downsizing for
financial reasons.

o Ofthe 5 states with plans to both close and downsize existing facilities, three states made the
decision for financial reasons.

According to Braddock (2008), Person’s with I/DD in Out-of-Home Residential Settings, By
Size of Setting: for FY-2006. New Jersey had:
e 7,621 people, or 59% of the people served in Out-of-Home Residential Settings lived in
setting of 1-6 people, the national average for that year was 70%;
e 791 people, or 6% of the people severed in Out-of-Home Residential Settings lived in
setting of 7-15 people, the national average was 11%;
e 4,539 people, or 35% of the people severed in Out-of-Home Residential Settings lived in
setting of 15+ people, the national average was 19%.
The utilization rate by individuals with I/DD in settings for six individuals or fewer, in FY-2006,
found that New Jersey ranked 38", by state, with a utilization rate of 87 people per 100,000 in
population as compared with a national average of 126 people.

According to the findings of Bragdon (UCP, 2010), New Jersey’s usage of “Large State Facilities,”
ranked us toward the highest in all three categories noted.

e Percentage of the service population who are being supported in Large State Facilities; New
Jersey, as of the end of FY 2009 was supporting 7.7% of the people in DCs, while the national
average was 3.7%. This ranked NJ 47™ among states.

e  The number of residents in Large State Facilities, New Jersey had 2,897 people in DCs at the
time of reporting. Ranking NJ 50" out of 51 (including Washington DC).

e Regarding the number of Large State Facilities, New Jersey has 7, ranking it 43"

New Jersey - Quick Facts NJACP May 7,2010 Page 3
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The Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waiver (which provides access to
federal matching dollars): 1I/DD Participants and Spending in FY-2006 in New Jersey:
e There were 9,611 participants in the Waiver;
e Waiver spending as a percentage of total I/DD spending was 29%, as compared with the
national average of 45%;
e Waiver dollars per capita were $50, as compared with a national average of $66;

e New Jersey ranked 34™ on spending per capita.

The Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waiver data reported by Bragdon
(UCP, 2010), shows a continuation of these same patterns:

e New Jersey 77.7% of its service recipients on the HCBS Waiver, whereas the national average
was 84.9%, ranking New Jersey 42™ among the states.

e The percent of DDD expenditures New Jersey had on the HCBS Waiver was 44.4%. The
national average was 65.1%, ranking New Jersey 45™.

e The percent of DDD expenditures New Jersey had on community-based services and supports
was 60.7%, with the national average being 76.8%. This ranked New Jersey 48"

Supported Living Programs, I/DD Participants and Spending in New Jersey in FY-2006:
e There were 1,865 participants in Supported Living programs;

e This was a utilization rate of 21 people per 100,000 in population; as compared with a national
average utilization rate of 64 people per 100,000;

e Spending per capital on Supported Living Programs was $6.39 in New Jersey, as compared with
a national average of $16.36.

Family Support Programs and Spending in New Jersey for I/DD:
e New Jersey had 20,013 participants in Family Supports programs (Braddock, 2008):

e There were 228 family supported per 100,000 in population, which above the national average of
144. These figures were reconfirmed for FY-2009 (UCP, 2010);

e 81% of people being supported in either in their own home, family home, foster care (1-3 people)
or congregate care (1-3 people) (UCP, 2010). This is at the national average and ranks New
Jersey 16" among states.

e The average spending per family was $2,954, whereas the national average was $5,376
(Braddock, 2008);

o This rate of spending ranking New Jersey 31* among states (Braddock, 2008).

Residents with I/DD in Nursing Facilities in New Jersey — FY 2004-06:
e InFY 2004, 714 individuals with I/DD were being supported in Nursing Facilities;
e By FY 2007, this number had increased to 741 people;
e This was an increase of 4%. The national percent of change over that same period was 1%.

New Jersey - Quick Facts NJACP May 7,2010 Page 4
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Ranking among states of New Jersey’s spending on I/DD services per $1,000 of aggregate personal
income;:
e In total I/DD spending, New Jersey ranked 35" in FY 2004, and rose to 31% in FY 2006;
¢ In spending on community services and supports, New Jersey ranked 42™ in FY 2004 and 40" in
FY 2006;
e In institutional spending, New Jersey ranked the 6™ highest in both FY 2004 and 2006.

NJ Developmental Centers 1999-2010

Thirty six of the 42 states supporting institutions are reducing their census, including New
Jersey. However, mortality has played a major role in the reduction of the census (NJ Division
of Developmental Disabilities, 2010). Over the last twelve years, the census has been reduced by
904 people across all institutions of which 787 have been deaths. At the same time 882 people
were admitted from the community and 999 people moved to the community. This represents a
net decrease of 117 people when the statistics are adjusted for mortality across the twelve year
period. This is an average net decrease in census (adjusted for mortality) of 6 people per year,
over twelve years. See Chart Below

New Jersey - Quick Facts NJACP May 7,2010 Page 5
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Elliott Naishtat,

Texas State Representative
Room GW 16, Capitol Building
Austin, TX 78701

Patrick M. Rose,

Texas State Representative
Capitol Extension Room E2.602
Austin, TX 78701

March 27, 2010
Dear Representatives Rose and Naishtat,

I am not a constituent in your counties, however I have followed with interest your
legislative work on behalf of children and adults with developmental disabilities and their
families. I’'m retired now, but have a long history in that field. I was Deputy
Commissioner of Mental Retardation in Texas in the early eighties, and State Director of
Developmental Disabilities in Kentucky and Minnesota. But more importantly, I was
step father to Michael, who had multiple severe disabilities and lived with my wife and
me in Minnesota. He died at age 24, but the years that he and I lived together gave me
insight into the challenges faced by him and others. You have been very involved in
providing advocacy for our state’s institutional residents (I realize they are now called
state supported living centers) and I applaud your work on their behalf, As I read
different newspaper articles on the problems at Corpus Christi, Lubbock, Denton and
elsewhere I was struck by a sense of déja vu, that we are still discussing the need to close
institutions in this day and age. I was particularly interested in the Austin-Statesman
article today, March 27, 2010, referencing statements made by Thomas Perez, Assistant
Attorney General for Civil Rights in the U.S. Justice Department. He articulates a view
that is long overdue here in Texas.

I apologize in advance for the length of this letter but as you know this is a complex
subject that can’t be synopsized easily. In fact, that’s been one of the problems over the
years. Legislators and public officials used their common sense to create the system we
now have. Unfortunately it turns out that the assumptions that underpin the current
system aren’t supported by science and experience. Everyone seems to think the
argument for closure of institutions is just an ideological issue, with two equally valid
sides, but there aren’t always two sides to every issue. The arguments for closure of
institutions are not simply philosophical or legal or even moral positions. They are based
on a body of knowledge that has evolved...on what works in the real world.

Texans have struggled for decades with the question of how best to serve their children
and adults who have developmental disabilities. I use the terms developmental or
intellectual disabilities and mental retardation interchangeably, for simplicity sake,
although I know the definitions are distinct for each term. Parents and professionals
sincerely wanted to do the right thing for their sons and daughters. ..they wanted Texas to
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lead the nation in its demonstration of compassion and to provide what was considered
“state of the art care.” In the seventies and eighties, with help from legislators, state
officials and an oil rich economy, we built beautiful new buildings in Corpus Christi,
Lubbock, Amarillo and elsewhere to provide a protective environment that would let
parents rest easy, knowing that their sons and daughters would be cared for in a sheltered
community, served by caring professionals and direct care staff. Experts in different
architectural styles of institutions were used in advising Texans on the construction of
these buildings. Now, after years of debate, federal intervention, lawsuits alleging abuse
and neglect, and watching most other states move away from congregate care to smaller,
dispersed community services, doubt exists about the service delivery system we’ve

created.

At its peak these newly developed service systems were headed up by the Texas
Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation (TDMH-MR), which in turn was
led by Commissioners (e.g., David Wade, Gary Miller) whose professional training was
Psychiatry, i.e., mental health. Community Centers serving people with mental health
and developmental disability needs were also growing, but the lion’s share of state
resources was centered in the institutional system. The community centers were also,
usually, headed up by people whose background was in mental health rather than
developmental disabilities. Those from the field of mental health who were charged with
implementing policies on behalf of people with mental retardation were sincere,
dedicated people who did their best to carry out the mandates from the Executive,
Legislative, and Judicial Branches of Government in Texas. This is not a criticism of
their intentions or their deeds. In the sixties and seventies the field of mental health, (and
mental retardation as well) was plagued with exposes of horrible conditions, warehousing
of people with little or no meaningful treatment or training and violations of basic rights.
The field of mental health began moving toward de-institutionalization of
residents...which sometimes had unintended, negative consequences for the field of

developmental disabilities.

In the field of mental health there existed a bedrock assumption, held by some
professionals and policy makers, that all mental illness could be cured. The introduction
of medications to reduce or eliminate symptoms was hailed by mental health
professionals and their patients. The success of psycho-pharmacology aided the belief
that moving people out of institutions was the most humane thing that could be done.
Unfortunately, the mental health model with its belief in the ability to cure people, to
make them normal again, resulted in a failure to develop a comprehensive array of
community supports. That failure to assume some people would have lifelong
dependency and therefore would need continued support resulted in what came to be
known as “dumping,” and that in turn became the argument used by institution supporters
against closure of congregate mental retardation facilities. This was especially true in

Texas.

The assumption in the field of developmental disabilities was the exact opposite, that the
needs of the people we served were lifelong, While parents and professionals knew that
kids and adults who had mental retardation, epilepsy, autism, cerebral palsy and other
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problems were capable of much more independence than had been previously assumed
there nevertheless was a recognition that these conditions could not be “cured.” People
would need varying levels of support, depending on the severity of their disability...in
most cases for their lifetime. Thus, when community service systems for this population
were developed they spanned the life cycle, with programs that mirrored stages of
development from birth to old age. The spectre of homeless, vulnerable or fragile people
with severe disabilities almost never occurred in the field of developmental disabilities.

Why did professionals in most states abandon the institution or medical model for people
with developmental disabilities? The answer to that question requires an analysis of the
assumptions that drive public policy in this field:

Assumption: Congregation is necessary for people with complex needs. The theory was
that we can cluster specialized professionals together to focus on the “special” needs of
people who have disabilities. This is the medical model of service delivery. But the
reality is that the needs of this population are not usually acute and intense. They are
more often chronic or episodic. They are less in need of a hospital crash cart than they
are of consistent responses to the person’s needs. Talk with parents who have children
with multiple, severe disabilities, especially when their child can’t communicate their
needs with words. What you learn is that if you live with someone you eventually learn
to observe cues that can help you recognize moods, comfort level, happiness or sadness
...even if the child can’t talk, can’t control muscle movement, or has no self help skills.
Anyone who has done the “rumor” experiment in a communication class knows how
difficult it is to control information when it passes through large numbers of people.
And, mistakes in the case of people who are medically fragile can be deadly. So the rule
of thumb is that the more involved the person’s needs are, the fewer the number of people
interacting with them, consistent with respect for the needs of caregivers as well.
Conversely, shift patterns of staffing such as those that exist in institutions, almost
guarantee that there won’t be consistency over a 24 hour day. With staff vacations or
sick time, holidays, and covering three shifts for each living unit, getting to an intense,
personal relationship with each person is almost impossible. The same principle applies
with people who have severe destructive behaviors. ..changing those requires that there
be absolute consistency in programming.

Assumption: Families will have a major role in the lives of their loved ones. Even with
regularly scheduled team meetings, with family involvement mandated, experience has
shown that with few exceptions it’s difficult for families to stay in contact when someone
doesn’t live in the same community. This is true for all of us. “Absence (doesn’t
necessarily) make the heart grow fonder.” At first, despite the best of intentions, our
contacts are frequent but life intrudes and over time they become less and less frequent.
This is especially true when family members have to travel long distances to visit. It’s
more accurate to say “out of sight, out of mind.” Conversely, when people live in the
same community, it’s easier to stay in touch, to know what’s going on in each others’
lives. Institution supporters argue that this estrangement is the exception....it isn’t the
norm...but most facility employees know it is.
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Assumption: Institutions serve people community programs can’t serve, i.e., people with
severe or profound mental retardation, who are medically fragile, who have severe mental
illness/behavioral problems. A corollary assumption is that there is something so
remarkably different about this population that they require the services of uniquely
qualified “mental retardation” professionals. The reality is that community programs
throughout the country have been serving people who are virtual twins of institution
residents since the early 1970’s. Our neighbors in Oklahoma have some of the most
successful programs in the country, and the residents in those programs were all moved
out of the Sand Springs Hissom Memorial Center which was subsequently closed.
Oklahoma’s programs for people with medical/behavioral issues are among the best in
the nation. Professional schools of medicine, psychology, social work, etc. rarely offer
any training in this field. And, why would they? The needs of this population are no
different than those of the rest of us. What happens when a person becomes seriously ill
in our institutions? They are transferred to tertiary care hospitals in the community. It
i1sn’t surprising, given the location of many of our facilities, that recruitment and retention
of competent, skilled professionals has always been a major problem.

Assumption: People are safer and more protected in institutions. Let me be clear. This
letter is in no way a criticism of institution employees. I worked in an institution
(Glenwood, Iowa) for five years. The people who work in institutional settings are no
different than people who work in community programs. They’re just people doing the
best that they can, given the cards they were dealt. By and large we get a lot more heart
and soul from direct care staff than we deserve given their level of pay. Having said that,
there are at least two reasons institutions are not as safe as community residences. First,
institutions are often located in rural areas or relatively small towns. The community
depends on the facility for much of its revenue. The people who work in them are often
related. When abuse or neglect occurs there is a higher likelihood that it will be hidden
or ignored. Reporting one’s brother in law or neighbor for abuse is more difficult than
reporting a stranger. Second, dispersed, integrated, community homes/programs are
mistakenly assumed to be more anonymous, hidden away and therefore less likely to be
subject to scrutiny. The reverse is true. Strangers have no problem blowing the whistle
when they see a child or adult with disabilities being abused. Neighbors, people in
grocery stores, medical personnel, fellow workers, church members, and involved family
members are much more likely to see and report suspected abuse or neglect than the
closed community of congregate care personnel. During the past two decades the public
have become much more aware and sympathetic to the needs of people with disabilities.
Thanks to films like Rain Man, My Left Foot, and countless others, as well as television
shows that use people with disabilities in their casts (e.g., Corky, in Life Goes On) along
with high profile programs like Special Olympics and celebrity involvement, there has
been an outpouring of support from the general public. We’ve gone from a “there but for
the grace of God go I,” to seeing people as people, first and foremost. In the field,
advocates try to use “People First” language which reflects this view. There’s less
concern with what makes someone “different” or “special,” and more concern with our

shared humanity.

IS Sy



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

Assumption: Institutions are tried and true, and have been around forever, but
Community programs are new and untested. Actually, the reverse is true. Institutions are
a relatively new experiment. They didn’t exist in the U.S. until the mid to late 1800’s.

At that time they were small schools, however they grew in size and number, becoming
less concerned with education and more custodial in nature, until the exposes in the mid
twentieth century. Even at their peak they never served more than about 2 or 3% of all
people with developmental disabilities. Families have always been the main support for
this population. Community programs started in the 1950’s because parents couldn’t
bring themselves to place their children in institutions and, unlike the institutions, they
were unable to access state or federal funds, so they started their own schools and
vocational programs. Longitudinal studies like the Pennhurst Study (following people
who left the Pennhurst institution in PA), have shown virtually incredible improvement,
using any measure, when people move into community programs. Family satisfaction,
weight gain, self help skill development, etc. all demonstrate the power of moving people
into the community. States like Oklahoma (Hissom Memorial Center), Nebraska
(ENCOR), Connecticut(Southbury), and others have done similar studies which yield the
same positive results. The University of Minnesota has tracked trends and produced
numerous research reports describing the past forty years of growth in community
programs. The MN Governor’s Council on Developmental Disabilities website
(www.mnddc.org) has links to most of the significant research done during that time.

Assumption: “They need to be with their own kind.” It’s impossible to generalize about
kids and adults with disabilities. In fact, it’s the very uniqueness of their special needs
that makes them even more diverse, if that’s possible, than the population at large. But
perhaps the most important reason for not subscribing to this common misconception is
understanding how people learn, especially children and adults with cognitive problems.
It’s been said that people with mental retardation have difficulty understanding abstract
concepts, that they’re more receptive to concrete, functional ways of learning. We know
that it’s easier to learn in a real environment than a fabricated one. We know that the
most powerful way for any child to learn is through imitating others. As parents we
might not always like what our children learn from imitating us (or their friends, or
brothers, or sisters) but there can be little doubt that that is the way they learn much of
what they come to practice as adults. So, if our goal is to teach someone to talk, to walk,
to be toilet trained, or any of the other skills humans need to exist, why would we
surround them with people who can’t talk, who don’t walk, who aren’t toilet trained, and
on and on? But that’s exactly what we do in congregate environments. We put people
with the most severe disabilities together and expect a good outcome. Why? If it can be
said that what we want in terms of training/education is for this group to be “more
normal” then it makes sense to surround them with “normal” role models, not people who
share their disabilities. This underlies the current practice in special education of
“inclusion” (presence and participation) of children with disabilities side by side with

non-disabled children.

Assumption: By congregating people together we can serve them more cheaply. While
the principle of economies of scale and assembly line production might work with Henry
Ford, it doesn’t work with people who have special needs. The reality is that “per diem
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(per day)” costs for congregate environments are much more, often two to three times as
much, as community alternatives. The average cost per person per day for institutions is
more than $400 (about $146,000 per year). This difference in cost between community
and institutions was always true, even when the institutions had residents with less severe
disabilities. Supporting people in normal housing in typical neighborhoods has always
been far less expensive than institution construction and maintenance, even with
adaptations made for people who have severe physical disabilities. It means we don’t
have to replicate resources. We don’t have to build gyms, swimming pools, parks,
schools and the like because they’re already there. If a son or daughter lives with his/her
parents there is no need to provide any of the elements that make up a home....in-home
support is the least expensive way to serve. From a taxpayers point of view it always
makes sense to support, not supplant, the natural home, whenever possible.

Assumption: We can train or educate people better in a congregate environment. If
there’s one organizing theme in this letter it is that institutions don’t work for this
population because they are fundamentally flawed service delivery models. They are
structurally not set up to educate or train because they don’t provide opportunities for
imitation of “normal” behavior, non-disabled role models. They aren’t set up to educate
or train because, by definition, people with intellectual disabilities have trouble
transferring from artificial settings to real ones....they need concrete experiences in real
life situations. You learn to work on an assembly line in a factory on the actual assembly
line. You leamn to order at McDonald’s by actually going to McDonald’s.

Stephanie Goodman, from the Health and Human Services Commission says that “In
Texas we support choice.” But the choice she refers to is parental/familial choice not
necessarily what is in the best interests’ of those institutionalized. And, no, parents don’t
always know what’s best for their children. Sometimes public policy pits the rights and
needs of people who may be adversely affected by those policies against what is
considered the inviolate rights of parents. Whether it’s Child Protective Services or
Developmental Disabilities, when that happens policy makers like you become the

Solomon’s.

You didn’t solicit this letter but I have felt the need to express these views for a long
time. Thanks again for your work on behalf of people with developmental disabilities
and their families. If I can be of assistance please let me know.

Sincerely,

Ed Skarnulis, Ph.D.

337 Tall Forest Drive
Bastrop, TX 78602
eskarnulis @austin.rr.com
512-985-5527
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2007

2010 New Jersey Report

Overall Ranking (among all 50 states and Washington, DC, 1=best): 24

Promoting Independence

. Subrank
Community-based Data Value (1=Best)

Percent of Recipients with ID/DD on o
HCBS 77.7%42

Percent of ID/OD Expenditures on o
HOBS 44.4%45
Percent of ID/DD Expenditures on o,
non-ICF-MR 60.7%48

Subrank

Individuals Served by Size of
Vaiue (1=Best)

Residence Data

Percent in own home, family home,
family foster care (1-3 residents) and 81.1%16
congregate care (1-3 residents)
Percent in community settings (1-6

o
residents) ‘ 89.8%28
Percent in Large Settings (16+ 9% 37
residents)
Subrank

Large State Facilities Data Value( 1=Best)

Percent in Large State Facilities (16+ -, -,
residents) 7.7% 47

Number of Large State Facilities 7 43

Residents at Large State Facilites 2,897 50

Waivers that Can Promote Self-
Determination Data

http://medicaid.ucp.org/stats.php?state=NJ

1 Ul

Value Subrank (1=Best)

us
Average

84.9%
65.1%
76.8%
us
Average

80.8%

88.6%

5.8%

us
Average

3.7%
168
35,035

Source

Research and Trairing Cer
Living

Research and Traming Cer
Living

Coteman institute

Source

Research ang Tramming Cer
Living
Research and Training Cer
Living
Research and Training Cer
Living

Source

Research and Tranvng Cer
Living

Research and Training Cer
Living

Research and Tramning Cer
Living

US Source
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Independence Plus Waiver Yes
Other Self-Directed - 1115 or 1915(c) Yes
Waiver for ID/DD

Money Follows the Person - Award or

Apply

Yes

Quality and Safety

Quality Assurance Data Value Subrank (1=Best)
Council on Quailty and Leadership Yes

Lus\/LUL'T

19 Centers for Medicare ang Med
15 PAS Center

28 Centers for Medicare and Mec

US Source
24 Council on Quality and Le

participant

National Core Indicators (HSRI)

participant Yes 28 Human Services Researc
Noteworthy State QA Initiatives 13 Quality Mali

Safety Data Value  Subrank (1=Best) US Average Sou
Percent of all those served receiving o o o
protection from abuse services 03% 8 1% Cole
Family Support Data Value Subrank (1=highest) us

Families Served 20,013 [ 428,803

Total Spending $59,123,073 8 $2,305,149,428
Spending per Family $2,954 31 $5,376

Promoting Productivity

Medicaid Buy-in Data Value Subrank (1=highest) US Source

Enacted Yes 43 Centers for Medicare and

Enroliment 3,232 9 83,424 Centers for Medicare and

Supported or Competitive -

Employment Data Value Subrank (1=Best) us N

Participants 1,363 23 110,539 7

Spending $10,643,135 19 $708,872,399

Percent of all Individuals Served in ,

Competitive Employment 14% 38 21% '
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Source

Waiting Lists Data Value Subrank (1=Best) US
Waiting List for Residential Services 4,649 39 98,622 Research and Training Center
Percent Growth in Residential
Services Required to Meet Waiting  40% 34 23% Researcn and Training Center
List
Waiting List - [D/DD HCBS - Kaiser NA  N/A 253,306 Kaiser Family Founaatior
Percent Growth in HCBS Services o _
Required to Meet Waiting List NA N/A 49% Kaiser Family Foundation
Prevalence Data Value Subrank (1=highest) US Average Soul
Percent of Children with Mental o o
Disability 42% 45 5.1% us ¢
Percent of Adults with Mental o o
Disability 33% 50 4.8% Us

Value  Subrank (1=Best) US Average Sou
Individuals with ID/DD served per 1 Cole
100k of population Data

Value Subrank (1=Best) US Average
Ratio of Prevalence to Individuals o o
Served Data 13.2% 7 6.6%

Subrank

ICF-MR Data Vaiue (1=highest) us Source

Total Expenditures
Residents

Cost per Resident

HCBS Data

Total Expenditures
Residents

Cost per Resident

Unmatched State ID/DD Funds

Data
Total Expenditures
Percent of total ID/DD Spending

Overall Spending Data

ID/DD Spending per $1,000 personal
ncome

ID/DD Spending per capita

DNF = Did not furnish.

http://medicaid.ucp.org/stats.php?state=NJ

Research and
Community Liv
Research and

$633,120,5435 $11,962,854,423

2,921 1 94,846 Community Liv
Researcr ang
$216,785 6 $126,130 Community Liv
Subrank
Value (1=Best) uUs Source
Research ang Tre
$505,880,00012 $22'310’392’93580mmumty Living
Research and Trz
9,986 17 513,304 Community Living
Research and Tre
$50,661 14 $43,464 Communty Living
Value Subrank (1=Best) us
$470,012,206 12 $17,220,293,554
29% 22 33%
Value  Subrank (1=Best) US Average Sou
$3.85 31 $4.12 Cole
$189 16 $171 Cole
5/5/2010
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United Cerebral Palsy Releases
2010 Case For Inclusion

5t Annual Report Ranks 50 States & DC on
Medicaid Services for Individuals with
Disabilities

The 2010 Case for Inclusion report (medicaid.ucp org), ranks ail 50 states and the
District of Columbia (DC) for Medicaid services provided to intellectual and
developmental disability (ID/DD) populations. The fifth annual rankings reveat:

1. Despite significant progress, all states have room to improve outcomes and
services for individuals with ID/DD, particufarly in the current economic climate.

2. Too many Americans with 1D/DD still do not live in the community, although real

and notable progress have been made since last year.

Certain states are making substantial progress.

Too much money Is still spent isolating people in large institutions, with nominal

change since 2009.

5. Wiaiting lists have increased dramatically, but performance is quite mixed by state;
most are not serving everyone in need.

How

Top/bottom ten states in terms of quality of Medicaid service provided:

Hely Us Make the
Case For Inclugion

1) Arizona; 2) Vermont; 3) New Hampshire; 4) Washington; 5) California; 6)
Massachusetts; 7) Michigan; 8) Connecticut; 8) Colorado; 10) Hawaii; 42)
Virginia; 43) Ohio; 44) Indiana; 45) Tennessee; 46) Utah; 47) DC, 48)
llinois; 49) Texas; 50) Arkansas,; 51) Mississippi

Seventeen states shifted by at least five places in the rankings from 2009 to 2010, and

OO
o) S 21 states shifted at least six places in the rankings from 2007 to 2010. Highlights
i include:
o ite
R « Animpressive 22 states Az up three from 2009 and an increase from 16 states in
o ALY 2007 A+ have more than 80% of those served living in home-like settings.
« From 2005 to 2008, an impressive 13 states reduced the number of Americans
U e living in large institutions by 20% or more.
© « Overall the number of Americans with ID/DD on waiting lists for residential
. services has increased 56% from 2005 to 2008
IR R B I AT
e Lohy This report focuses on what is being achieved; not how much or how little money is

Enter your zip code and let you?
voice be heard

http://medicaid.ucp.org/index.php 5/5/2010
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pressures at the state level to a large extent, Medicaid shortfalls are projected to come
, raarimﬁ back in 2011, if th? temparary inciease in Medicaid funds run out.

You're viewirig an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.
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About UCP

United Cerebral Palsy (UCP) is one of the nation’s leading
organizations serving and advocating for the more than 54
million Americans with disabilities. Most UCP consumers are
people with disabilities other than cerebral palsy. Through its
nationwide network, United Cerebral Palsy assists more than
176,000 individuals, as well as their families and communities
each day, with services such as job training and placement,
physical therapy, individual and family support, early
intervention, social and recreation programs, community living,
state and local referrals, and instruction on how to use
technology to perform everyday tasks. For more information,
visit www.ucp.org or call (800) 872-5827.

About the Author

Tarren Bragdon has been involved in healthcare policy research
and analysis for over a decade. His work has been featured in
dozens of newspapers and media outlets nationwide including
the Wall Street Journal, New York Post, New York Sun and PBS.
Past and present clients include United Cerebral Palsy; the
MELMAC Education Foundation; the Maine Heritage Policy
Center; the Heritage Foundation in Washington, DC; the
Manhattan Institute; the Home Care Alliance of Maine; and the
National College Access Network. He has testified before the US
Senate’s Committee on Small Business and Entrepreneurship and
presented to numerous legislative committees and physician,
hospital, Medicaid, business, social service and policy research
organizations. He served two terms in the Maine House of
Representatives on the Health and Human Services Committee.

He served as chair of the board of directors of Spurwink Services,

one of the largest social service providers in Maine with over 850
employees.

Introduction

We release this report in the context of a nation struggling with
the worst economic conditions since the Great Depression.
States have been challenged to close unprecedented budget
deficits over the past two years and are projected to have similar
enormous budget deficits for the next two to three years.

Given these factors, this 2010 report needs to be taken in context.
Data for this year’s report is mostly from state fiscal year 2008 -
for most states ending in June 2008 and before the most
significant budget deficits. Therefore, this year’s report is a look
back of where states stood before the current recession and
before states received significant boost in federal stimulus
funding. The challenge for elected officials, families and
advocates is to maintain the progress that has been achieved over
the past three decades. We must not let the current economic
crisis be an excuse to turn back the clock on Inclusion.

The United Cerebral Palsy (UCP) annual Case for Inclusion is so
important to benchmark states actual performance in improving
lives for individuals with intellectual and developmental
disabilities. More than how much or how little is being spent, the
Case for Inclusion shows what is being achieved.

As the University of Minnesota’s Research and Training Center
on Community Living, concisely states: “The promise of access
to and support for integrated community lives and roles for
persons with [intellectual and developmental disabilities] is
clearly expressed in national legislative, judicial, administrative
and other sources that make four basic commitments:

* People with disabilities will live in and participate in their
communities;
« People with disabilities will have satisfying lives and valued

social roles;
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» People with disabilities will have sufficient access to needed
support, and control over that support so that the assistance
they receive contributes to lifestyles they desire; and

» People will be safe and healthy in the environments in which

they live.

These commitments have been articulated in a number of
legislative, administrative and judicial statements describing
national policy.”'

Medicaid is the safety net program that can assist in supporting
individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities with
their acute and long term care service needs. Other state
programs can assist in providing other comprehensive supports
to individuals. However, some Medicaid long term care policies
and state programs can play a negative role by promoting
isolation and seclusion.

Beginning in 2006, UCP annually releases rankings of the 50
states and the District of Columbia to show what states are
ac[ually achieving. T ofren the aoals ot
sovipnaenlence  Prorlaetiveby ang cormrera gt
wrrdi ks e a8 oles otds eealtty The 2010
rankings use the same methodology and core data sets as the
2007, 2008 and 2009 rankings, allowing readers to appreciate how
individual states have improved, regressed or remained the same.

United Cerebral Palsy conducts this holistic analysis to chart each
state’s ranking and progress in creating a quality, meaningful and
community-inclusive life for those Americans with intellectual
and developmental disabilities served by that state’s Medicaid

program.

Nationwide, Medicaid served 608,000 individuals with
intellectual and developmental disabilities in 2008, up 72,000
{13.4 percent) from 536,000 in just three years. Medicaid
spending rose to $34.3 billion or about $56,400 per person for
2008, up from $29.3 billion in 2005 (17.0 percent increase in 3
vears). Although this is a tiny portion of the 58.7 million
individuals enrolled in Medicaid and the estimated $339 billion
spent in 2008, Americans with intellectual and developmental
disabilities are some of the most vulnerable Medicaid recipients.
Individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities make
up one percent of all Medicaid recipients, but a generous 10
percent of Medicaid spending.

[n addition to the noted Medicaid spending, states collectively
spend an additional $17.2 billion to support individuals with
intellectual and developmental disabilities in the community.

Although this report is a set of statistics, it is a collective
summary of the impact and outcomes of Medicaid services to
over half a million unique individuals with intellectual and
developmental disabilities. Ideally such assessments should not
be considered in the aggregate, but at the individual person level.

3

As always, the state rankings in this report are a snapshot in time.
Most data is from 2008, although all data is the most recent
available from credible national sources. Unfortunately, the data
sourced is only as good as that provided directly by the states to
the federal government or in response to surveys.

Although some states rank better than others, every state has
room for improvement. The Case for Inclusion uses data and
outcomes to clearly show where states’ Medicaid programs are
performing well and where improvement is needed.

1 The University of Minnesota Research and Training Center on Community Living. “Medicaid Home and
Community Based Services for Persons with [ntellectual and Developmental Disabilities - Interim Report.”
September 26, 2005. Page 3. Available at: ttp://www.cms.hhs.govireports/downloads/UnivOMinn. pdf

What We Don’t Know but Should

Unfortunately, some of the most important outcome data is not
nationally collected or reported regularly. For example, to more
completely assess key outcomes, states should report regularly
and be scored on:

+ Are services self-directed and how many individuals are
participating in self-directed services?

+ Are individual budgets used?

« What is the pay and turnover rate of direct support staff?

+ What school-to-work transition programming exists for this
population?

+ What are the detailed results of standard client satisfaction
surveys?

+ What is each state’s long term plan to close large institutions
{public and private), if any?
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But advocates should always be looking at quality of life for
the individual, irrespective of rankings and overall scoring.
Aggregate data is important, but the true key to a state’s
performance is what quality of life each individual is living.
The ideal is for outcomes to be reviewed at the individual level.

Hopefully, these Case for Inclusion reports, coupled with other
advocacy initiatives, will encourage national groups to begin
collecting and reporting on the above data measures so that a
more complete picture can be presented and scored in future

rankings.

Using This Report
This report is intended to help advocates and policymakers
understand:

+ How their state performs overall in serving individuals with
intellectual and developmental disabilities

» What services and outcomes need attention and improvement
in their state

+ Which states are top performers in key areas, so that advocates
and officials in those top performing states can be a resource
for those desiring to improve

This report puts into a national context how each individual state
is doing. Advocates should use this information to educate other
advocates, providers, families and individuals, policymakers and
their state administration on key achievements and areas needing
improvement within their own state. These facts and figures can
support policy reforms and frame debates about resource
allocation for this population. Advocates can also use these facts
to prioritize those areas that need the most immediate attention.
Lastly, advocates can use these facts to support adequate and
necessary ongoing funding and increasing resources in order to
maintain their high quality outcomes, eliminate waiting lists, and
close large institutions.

Elected officials should use this report as a guiding document on
what needs time and attention and, possibly, additional resources
or more inclusive state policies in order to improve outcomes for
individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities.

Those within federal and state administrations should use this
report to put their work and accomplishments in context and to
chart the course for the next focus area in the quest for
continuous improvement and improved quality of life. The state
should replicate this data reporting in more detail at the state and
county level to identify areas of excellence and target critical
issues needing attention.

What the Rankings Revealed
—~ More Work Needs to Be Done but

Improvements Still Being Made over
wic 22t Vear

LY L L VP PRS-

1) All states have room to improve outcomes and services for
individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities
and must be particularly vigilant in the current economic
climate.

2) Too many Americans with intellectual and developmental
disabilities still do not live in the community, although real
and notable progress have been made over the last year:

« Now four states (up from two just two years ago) have more
than 95 percent of individuals served living in home-like
settings (at home, in their family’s home or in settings with
three or fewer residents) — Arizona, Nevada, New Hampshire
and Vermont.

An impressive 22 states — up three from last year and an
increase just 16 states in 2007 - have more than 80 percent of
those served living in home-like settings.

Positively, there are 1,140 fewer Americans living in large state
institutions (more than 16 beds). However, there still remain
168 large state institutions (only one closed since last year’s
report) housing 35,035 Americans. From 2005 to 2008, 4,063
fewer Americans were living in these large state institutions
marking real ~but unfortunately slow - progress.

Now 10 states (up from nine last year) report more than 2,000
residents living in large public or private institutions -
California, Florida, Illinois, Mississippi, New Jersey, New
York, North Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania & Texas.

Overall, the number of Americans with intellectual and
developmental disabilities living in large institutions {more
than 16 beds, public or private) has decreased an impressive
8,113 from 2005 to 2008, with 57,462 still living in these
institutions. Inclusion is still the trend, significantly so in
some states, as noted below.

The number of Americans with intellectual and
developmental disabilities served in their own home or in a
family home has skyrocketed by about 70,300 (to 704,500 in
2008 from 634,200 three years prior).

Nine states — Alaska, Hawaii, Maine, New Hampshire, New
Mexico, Rhode Island, Vermont and West Virginia, and the
District of Columbia - have no large state institutions.
Thirteen states have only one large state facility remaining. No
change since last year.

3) Certain states are making substantial progress toward
inclusion:
From 2005 to 2008, an impressive 13 states reduced the number
of Americans living in large institutions by 20 percent or more
~ Washington (-91%), Minnesota (-50%), Wisconsin (-46%},
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Oregon (-42%), Indiana (-37%), Nevada (-36%), Wyoming (-
32%), Kentucky (-29%), Maryland (-29%), Louisiana (-23%),
Maine {-22%), West Virginia (-20%) and Delaware (-20%).
This is in addition of the 4 states and Washington, D.C.
reporting no individuals living in large institutions — Alaska,
Hawaii, New Mexico and Vermont.

4) Too much money is still spent isolating people in large
institutions, with nominal change from last year:

» Nationally, 15.6 percent (down from 19 percent in three years)
of those living in institutions consume 36 percent of all
Medicaid funding spent on those with intellectual and
developmental disabilities.

» Eleven states — Alaska, Arizona, Colorado, Hawaii, Maryland,
Michigan, New Hampshire, New Mexico, Oregon, Rhode
[sland, and Vermont-- direct more than 90 percent of all
related funds to those living in the community rather than in
large institutions.

- Nationally, 28 states direct more than 80 percent of all related
funding to those living in the community.

5) Waiting list have increased dramatically overall, but
performance is quite mixed by state. Most states are not
serving all those in need:

« Overall the number of Americans with intellectual and
development disabilities on waiting lists for residential
services has increased 56 percent from 2005 to 2008 (to
115,000 from 74,000).

» Only seven states — California, D.C., Hawatii, Idaho,
Massachusetts, Rhode Island, and Vermont - report maintaining
a waiting list with no one waiting for residential services.

» Yet, eighteen states report having a residential services waiting
list so large that their programs would have to grow by at least
25 percent to accommodate the need.

» There is a real divide among states — those meeting the need
and those documenting the unmet need through a waiting list.

It is important to note that a state may have improved in some
specific categories but may drop in the overall ranking. This is

primarily due to two factors: 1) A state’s performance may have
not improved as greatly as the national average and this would
cause that state to fall in relation to other states as a whole. 2) A
state may improve in one area but decline in another area. The
weighted impact of that mixed performance may cause a state to
faliz - ce=lings as well.

How the Rankings Were Developed

These rankings were developed through a broad, data-driven effort.
Demographic, cost, utilization, key data elements, and outcomes
statistics were assembled for all 50 states and the District of
Columbia. Ninety-nine individual data elements from numerous
governmental non-profit and advocacy organizations were reviewed.
Dozens of Medicaid, disability and intellectual and developmental
disability policy experts, were consulted as well as members of
national advocacy and research organizations. They were asked to
consider the attributes of top performing Medicaid programs and
offer opinions and recommendations on the project in general.

To comprehensively determine the top-performing states, a
weighted scoring methodology was developed. Twenty key
outcome measures and data elements were selected and
individually scored in five major categories on a total 100-point
scale. If a person is living in the community, it is a key indicator
of inclusion; therefore the “Promoting Independence” category
received a majority of the points, as noted in the table on page 10

In general, the top-performing state for each measure was
assigned the highest possible score in that category. The worst-
performing state was assigned a zero score in that category. All
other states were apportioned accordingly based on their
outcome between the top and worst-performing.

As noted, most data is from 2008, but all data is the most recent
available from credible national sources. Therefore, these state
rankings are a snapshot in time. Changes and reforms enacted or
beginning in 2009 or later have not been considered. When
reviewing an individual state’s ranking, it is important fo
consider action taken since 2008, if any, to accurately understand
both where that state was and where it is presently. Also, it is
important to note that not all individuals with disabilities were
considered. To limit the scope of the effort and to focus
subsequent initiatives on meaningful, achievable improvement,
only individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities
served were considered.

A note of caution: Although over 60 points separate the
top performing state from the poorest performing state, less than
12 points separate the top ten states, about 19 points separate the
top 25 states but only 10 points separate the 25 states in the
middle. Therefore, minor changes in state policy or outcomes
could significantly affect how a state ranks on future or past

Case for Inclusion reports.
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Movers and Shakers

More than the change from year to year, it is important to look at
trends over time. Twenty-one states shifted at least six places in
the rankings from 2007 to 2010 Case for Inclusion rankings. As
previously noted, the variation in scoring among most states is
very small. Therefore, small changes in outcomes can mean a
significant change in rankings.

In total, 21 states had a sizable change in rankings over last four
years. These states include:

‘ Change from
State 2010 2009 2008 2007 2007+t02010
{positive=improved)
Alaska 27 3 3 2 -25
Delaware 30 13 14 14 -16
Florida 37 18 16 18 -19
Georgia 17 N 32 30 13
idaho 16 15 18 25 9
Indiana 4 42 41 37 -7
lowa 33 39 39 39 6
Kentucky 31 38 38 40 ]
Maryland 18 32 33 33 15
Missouri 25 29 28 41 16
Nevada 13 34 34 27 14
New Hampshire 3 4 9 11 8
Oklahoma 41 30 36 35 -6
P ylvania 15 16 15 29 14
Rhode island 38 19 27 28 -10
South Carolina 35 17 17 15 -20
Utah 46 37 37 36 -10
Washington 4 25 20 20 16
West Virginia 22 23 24 16 -6
Wisconsin 20 22 23 3 11
Wyoming 29 28 25 17 -12

Why? The answer is different for each state.

Alaska- dropped so dramatically due to the number of people being
served in a family home was previously estimated (by the state) at over
3,000 but for this year was reported as actually being just 79. This
dramatic change illustrates the problems with using estimated data
compared with hard facts.

Delaware — dropped primarily due to the state no longer participating
in a national quality assurance effort. Delaware in the past participated
in the National Core Indicators quality assurance program.

Florida — similar to Delaware, Florida dropped as a result on no longer
participating in a national quality assurance effort. Florida in the past
participated in the Council on Quality and Leadership program.
Georgia — improved almost in most areas by serving more individual
in home-like settings and directed more resources to the community.
Georgia also added a Medicaid Buy-in program.

Idaho - directed more people and resources to the community. Idaho
also added a Medicaid Buy-in program.

Indiana - dropped due to the large increase in the number of
individuals served in residential setting with 7-15 individuals and a
large reduction in the number served in settings with fewer than 7

residents. Also, the percent of individuals in corpetitive employment
dropped by more than half — to 22% in 2006 from 48% in 2004.

lowa — improved due to its participation in a national quality
assurance effort, the Council on Quality and Leadership program for
numerous lowa agencies.

Vantz*  rroved performance in almost every measure —
dramatically increased the portion of residents served in home-like
settings to 90% from 83% and added a Medicaid Buy-in program.
Maryland - improved dramatically due to serving more people in the
community and directing more resources to the community, began
having private agencies participating in the Council on Quality and
Leadership quality assurance program, and added a Medicaid Buy-in
program.

Missouri — improved dramatically as a result of a striking increase in
the portion of resources being directed at community services (to
82% in 2008 from 50% in 2005) and beginning to participate in a
noteworthy quality assurance program, the National Core Indicators.
Nevada - improved as a result of an impressive increase in the portion
of resources being directly at community services (to 86% in 2008
from 68% in 2005) and having providers begin to participate in a
noteworthy quality assurance program, the Council on Quality and
Leadership.

New Hampshire — improved due to beginning to participate in a
noteworthy quality assurance program, the National Core Indicators,
and a drop in the number of individuals served having a reported
abuse complaint

Oklahoma — dropped as a result of serving fewer people in home-like
settings (from 75% of those served in 2005 to just 68% in 2008) and
an increase of 2,700 people on their waiting list

Pennsylvania — improved dramatically due to substantial
improvement in several areas including a significant increase in the
number of individuals served (to 55,000 from less than 30,000), a
substantial shift in more individual in community settings (less than 7
residents per setting, to 92% from 85%), a drop in population in large
settings of 350, the closure of one state institution, and a reduction in
its waiting lists

Rhode Island - dropped as a result of no longer participating in a
quality assurance program, the National Core Indicators, but,
positively, did add a Medicaid Buy-in program

South Carolina - dropped as a result of no longer participating in a
quality assurance program, the National Core Indicators, but,
positively, are directing more resources to the community (to 73% in
2008 from 55% in 2005)

Utah — dropped as a result of no longer participating in a quality
assurance program, the Council on Quality and Research
Washington — improved in the rankings as started reporting the size of
their waiting list and its being relatively small

West Virginia — dropped in rankings mostly due to not keeping pace
with the rest of the country

Wisconsin — improved in rankings due to a substantial increase in the
number and overall portion of individuals served in the community
and a higher share of spending directed toward community services.
Wyoming — dropped in ranking as a result of modest change in overall
score among a group of tightly clustered states.
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% of ID/DD % Living in Famifies Supported % in Suppartive

Expenditures Settings with with Family Support or Competitive
onnon-ICF-MR. . Rank 13 Rmdnm Rank per 100k of Population Rank Eniployment Rank
100% Alaska 1 98% Nevada 1 537 ‘New Mexico 1 7% Okishoma 1
99% - Vermont 2 '98% " Vermont 2 348 . New Hampshire 2 61% Washington 2
99% New Hampshire 3 - 95% - Arizona. 3 309 Arizona 3 51% . Connecticut 3
99% Michigan 4 95%: ‘New Hampshire 4 308  Montana 4 48% Vermont 4
98% Oregon 5 - 93%  Idaho 5 261 - South Dakota 5 45% Louisiana 5
98% Arizona 6 90% - California 6 228  Alaska 6 44% Massachusetts 6
97% Rhode Island 7 90% - Kentucky 7 228 : New Jersey 6 38% Maryland 7
95%  Colorado 8 89% Washington 8 227 - Connacticut 8 38% Pennsylvania 7
94% - Hawaii - 9 89%  Naw Mexico 9 224 California 9 35% - Alaska 9
94% Naw Maxvco 10 - 89%  Alaska 10 216 Massachusetts 10 35% Colorado 9
93% Maryland 1" 88% - Hewaii. -~ . 11 216 New York 10 34% New Mexico 11
90% Minnesota . 12 87% Goorqu n .. 214" Vermont 12 34% Oregon it
30% Montana 13 85%  West Virginia 13 213 Hawaii 13 32% Utah 13
89% Alabama 14 85% - Colorado. 14 211 South Carolina -~ 14 30% SouthDakota 14
88% Cahforma S 18 *.81% - Delaware 15 206 Delaware 15 29% Nebraska 15
87% Kansas ' [ I 81% Nanersey .18 199-  Wisconsin 16 29% New Hampshirs 15
3 m 81% Florids . 1 199 Wyoming 18 28%  lowa 17
18 . 81% Ohio 18 185 Pennsylvania = 18 26% Dslaware 18
19. - B0% ,,South Carollna 19 181 Louisiana 19 26% - Georgia 18
20 . 80% - Mary ‘ ‘ 157. . Minnesota 20 24% - Michigan 20
Al 139 Maryland 21 23% Virginia 21
2o 139 : Mississippi 21 22% Forida 2
B 7131 Oklahoma 23 22% Indiane 2
L 129 Kansas ! R 22%  Ohio 2
iR 129 Missouri 24 21% - Kentucky 25
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e 2B 113 Florida 28 20%. - Rhode Island. 28
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5 3 100 Texas 33 16% Wisconsin 32
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o 87 lllinois 35 15% . Minnesots u
a 36 76 Georgia 36 15% - Mississippi. 34
i) 74 Colorado 31 15% 'North Dakota 34
1 »3& 69 Rhodelsiand 38 14% - Arizona 38
39 - 67 lowa 39 14% Montana k]
g 86 Indiena 40 14%  New Jorsey 38
LRy .62 Alabama 4 13% - California 81
e 52 Utsh 2 13% Minois 4
g 50 idsho 43 12% . New York a
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States’ Ranking of Medicaid for Americans with Scoring of States
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities

Best performing state ranks #1
Arizona e ————————
“ooa " i vermont e ————————————————————
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Map of Best and Worst Performing States

The resuits of this scoring of staie
Medicaid programs revealed
the following Top Ten states:

1. Arizona

2. Vermont
3. New Hampshire
4. Washington

5. California

6. Massachusetts
7. Michigan

8. Connecticut

9. Colorado

10. Hawaii

...and Bottom Ten:
42. Virginia

43. Ohic

44. indiana

45, Tennessee

46, Utah

47. Dist. of Columbia
48, illinois

49, Texas

50. Arkansas

51. Mississippi

Facts about the Top Ten States

Further examining the top 10 states shows that a state does not
need to look a certain way in order to best serve individuals with
intellectual and developmental disabilities through Medicaid.

What matters is how a state acts and what is achieved.

In fact, the top 10 states are quite diversified. Consider these facts
about the top ten states:

Large and Small Population
+ Includes the most populous - California (#1), and Michigan
(#8) - as well as the least populous states ~Hawaii (#42), New
Hampshire (#41) and Vermont (#49)

Rich and Poor
+ Includes some of the wealthiest states in median household
income —Connecticut (#4}, Hawaii (#5), Massachusetts {#9)

and New Hampshire (#1)- and less affluent states — Arizona
(#33) and Michigan (#25)

High and Low Tax
* Includes high tax burden states — Connecticut (#9), Hawaii
(#7), and Vermont (#1) — and low tax burden states ~Arizona
(#32), Colorado (#31), Massachusetts (#29), and New
Hampshire (#50)

High and Low Spenders (spending per individual with
intellectual and developmental disabilities served)

+ Includes states with some of the highest spending per person
served by the HCBS waiver — Connecticut (#10),
Massachusetts (#10), and Vermont (#13)- as well as some that
spend considerably less —Arizona (#45), California (#50),
Colorado (#31), Hawaii (#33) and Washington (#38)
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Ranking Methodology

i

Major Category

| Promoting Independence

Promoting Productivity

Reaching Those in Neod

TOTAL

Keaping Familios Togother

‘Duta Elerrent

Community-based Percent of racipients with ID/DD on HCBS
‘Percent of ID/DD expenditures on HCBS
‘Percent of ID/DD expendituras on non-ICF-MR

b Resxdenual services  Percent living ii 1-3 residents settings

in the community

* fincludes ol types) Parcent living in 1-6 residents settings

Percent living in 18+ residents settings (negative)
‘ L rPercent living.in Iarga state faculmes (negatwe)
Wawsrs pmmoﬁng self—deten’ninubon
Noted quahtv' ‘ 'surance program
Percent of chams wnth abuss or protact:on report
anrly support per 1&,000 of poputanon

‘ ,Porcant servad lwmg ina famiiy home

Mad;cald buy program operatma

mpoﬁnve umplaymant
‘per 100k of populauon

Percent VR\ wagas to state average
: - Msan’week!y hours workod

: “Average percdnt growth of program for res:dem:al and HCBS wamng list
‘ Indmduals with lD/DD sorvod per 100 000 of popuiaﬂon

‘Ratquf prevaienc,e tq individuals served

20 measures .

Weight

of l”
Moeasures

inthe
Category

24

24

12

12

10

16

100
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Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
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Appendix | Continued
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Report Data Sources

Organization

Council on Quality and Leadership
Research and Training Center on Community Living
Administration on Children and Families
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
Coleman Institute

Department of Education

Human Services Research Institute

PAS Center

Kaiser Family Foundation

US Census Bureau

Quality Mall

Link for Data Referenced

map.c-q-Lorg/about
rtc.umn.edu/misc/pubcount.asp?publicationid=186
www.acf.hhs.gov/programs/add/reports/Clients06.html
www.cms.hhs.gov

www.colemaninstitute.org/
www.ed.gov/rschstat/eval/rehab/2005-tables
www.hsri.org/nci/
www.pascenter.org/demo_waivers/demoWaiverTable_2006.php
www.statehealthfacts.org

www.Census.gov

www.QualityMall.org

Palay

i
; ) Linited
A Cerebrat
it ) g i

United Cerebral Palsy
1660 L Street NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20036

Phone: (800) 872-5827

Web: www.ucp.org
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Khary Wilson
Written by: Monigue DulJue Wilson

My son’s life experiences expanded outside of home and schoot only within the last 6 years of his life: he is 22.
have seen an amazing young man emerge!

Six years ago | was told | needed to place Khary in a developmental center due to his challenging a strong
personality. There would be the supports he needed to address his need or personality, and he would be “safe”.
Instead ! chose to create a personal plan specific for him and all about him, and hired people to assist him in

discovering the world outside of school, home, and me.

Today Khary is leading an active and engaged life in the community, sometimes challenging, but we face each
obstacle or change head on as we all must do in life, figure it out or move on to something else.

My son’s life and so many other people throughout New Jersey deserve the opportunity to live life like everyone else,
by rebalancing the current system and supporting this plan that calls for strong investments in community supports
and by placing value on the people who assist our famity members each and every day and help develop the
characters of our sons and daughters, we expand the opportunity of thousands of people to live everyday lives such

as you and | side by side.

It's huge, It's about freedom, it is about living for all of us!

| 7Nx
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Ari Ne'eman

Ten years ago, the Supreme Court of the United States of America ruled that it wasn't a crime to have a disability.
Today, we launch an effort to make the reality in New Jersey match that ruling. New Jersey's current overuse of
institutions has left thousands of individuals with developmental disabilities locked away and thousands more on
waiting lists. As a self-advocate running an organization of adults and youth on the autism spectrum, the Autistic Seif-
Advocacy Network, | feel this issue is one of great personal importance. Our people have been locked away for ages
in conditions that often challenge the very idea of civilization. The history of disability policy over the last thirty years
has been a story of constant struggles for greater inclusion, greater support, greater access, greater rights and
greater opportunities for our people. We need to take a step forward in the spirit of that history to end a system
whereby individuals have no choice but to live apart from their families, their homes and their communities.

Every major group in the disability community: parents, providers and people with disabilities ourselves all understand
the importance of freeing our people from unnecessary and all too often abusive institutional settings. Let us be clear:
action is needed to achieve a realization of one of the most crucial human rights issues of our time: the right of
individuals with disabilities not to be segregated and marginalized but instead to be included and supported
throughout society. The message that we send is that people with disabilities can, with the right support, succeed in
being recognized as full members of our communities and citizens in our society.

FREE OUR PEOPLE!

|7l
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Reggie Johnson
Written by: Mrs. Patricia Davis Johnson

Initially Reggie was admitted to New Lisbon via a court ordered evaluation. This evaluation should have taken
approximately 30 days. Reggie remained there for approximately 18 and half years, because | was not aware of the
availability of an alternate community based program.

| was comfortable with the developmental center and | thought Reggie was comfortable as well. ! did not want to
deny Reggie the opportunity to grow, to exist in the community to go to work, to bring home a paycheck, to go to

Wawa in his own community.

Now that we (nat just Reggie but my daughter and 1) have transitioned into the group home under the wings of a
community provider, our lives have truly been enhanced. | am so very proud of Reggie because he now exudes his
individualism as well as his manhood and | respect him all the more.

The most impressionable extension of a community agency and the members of its staff is at Reggie’s home is not
just their professionalism in caring for the needs of the guys in the home but the uniqueness of the depth of their
concern for the clients. | perceive a down pouring of love that is not just external but genuine. It doesn't only exist 8

hours a day but 24/7.

It would be selfish of me to want to keep such a wonderful thing to myself. Don’t be afraid of transition when you are
being guided down an unfamiliar path, do your homework, but above all things trust in your spiritual guide.

[ 7o
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Joe Martinelli
Written by: Ann Martinelli

Joe Martinelli is a 24 year old young man who loves the New York Yankees, Bruce Springsteen’s music,
hanging out with friends, going out to eat and watching the thoroughbreds and trotters at the local
racetracks in Monmouth County. He volunteers at a local non-profit agency in the resource library,
delivers gift cards to employees of a large telecommunications company and is on the air at a local
university’s radio station one hour a week. Joe, with the help of his family, directs his supports and
services based on his needs, with an individual budget and person-centered plan. Joe needs support to
safely secure his wheelchair, drive him where he wants to go, and additional assistance at his direction.
Joe has chosen who he wants to support him and how he wants to be supported. Segregated settings
would not allow Joe to live his life his way, something we all take for granted.

[ 73«
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The Center for Outcome Analysis

The Center for Outcome Analysis, is a non-profit firm founded in 1985. Its mission is to perform
evaluation, research, and training projects in the human services that will lead to improvements
in the quality of life of people receiving services and supports. The company has performed
extensive work in the developmental disabilities fie, i iy research and policy-relevant
evaluation in all 56 states and territories. COA is a national leader in research on the impacts of
Sclf-Determination initiatives, the effects of deivisuwiiviiaiizuiion, and the cost-effectiveness of
Medicaid Waiver services. Over the years, COA has tracked more than 7,000 people individually
from institution to community living — measuring dozens of qualities of life for each.

COA has also completed successful and widely publicized studies in the fields of AIDS,
preschool and early intervention, aging, child welfare, housing, nursing homes and long term
care, health care and health care reform, children's health screening, special education and
inclusion, criminal justice, and market research. The company’s primary specialty is the accurate
measurement of outcomes, such as quality of life assessment, and the results of human service
interventions.

The President of COA, James W. Conroy, Ph.D., is a 1970 cum laude graduate of Yale
University with a BA in Physiological Psychology. Dr. Conroy began his career doing research
on the impacts of the Developmental Disabilities Act of 1970, and went on to become Director
of Research and Program Evaluation at Temple University’s Institute on Disabilities.

After directing the Pennhurst Longitudinal Study, the largest study of its kind ever performed, he
received his MA in Sociology/Program Evaluation and Ph.D. in Medical Sociology from Temple
University in 1992. He left the University in that year to concentrate fully on creating the Center
for Outcome Analysis. Dr. Conroy has directed more than a dozen longitudinal studies of the
impacts of moving from institutional to community living. He headed the national impact
evaluation on the individual outcomes of self-determination for the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation. He has been responsible for more than 280 formal research reports to government
agencies and foundations, as well as more than 30 articles in scholarly journals and 10 book

chapters.

His full C.V. can be seen at the company website:
hitp://www.outcomeanalysis.com/DL/CVs/CV-Conroy-Long-2006-10-3 1a.pdf
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The recent introduction of Bill A3625, by Assembly Budget Chairman Louis
Greenwald (D-Camden), would close five of seven Developmental Centers for
people with intellectual and developmental disabilities over five years. There are
currently 2,900 people in the State Centers, Approximately 2,100 people would

move from institutions to small community homes.

The question has arisen: can New Jersey really accomplish this? Can the
community service providers really absorb so many people in five years? This is a
genuine concern, and must addressed carefully and early. Systems that grow too

rapidly can, in some situations, experience disorganizing stress.

New Jersey did close two of its institutions during the 1990s — Johnstone
and North Princeton. We tracked and monitored the people who left Johnstone, and
found very good outcomes. For people who went to community homes, the
outcomes were better than those for people who were transferred to other
institutions.' Later, 570 people left the North Princeton in a two year period, and it
closed in 1998. Scientists at Rutgers monitored that closure, and found the same

kind and magnitude of good outcomes our team has found in its past studies.?

There may be several ways to examine this question, including anecdotal
stories of past deinstitutionalization that were both rapid and successful. (For

example, California, Indiana, and Oklahoma, all of which this author studied

"Conroy, J., & Seiders, J. (1994a). 1993 Report on the Well-Being of the Former Residents of Johnstone. Project
Report Number S of the New Jersey Strategic Planning Project. Wynnewood, PA: Conroy & Feinstein Associates.
2 Hall Apgar, D., Lerman, P., & Jordan, T. (2000). Moving on: Life after Novth Princeton Developmentat Center:
A follow-up of former residents (Progress Report #2). Newark, NJ: New lersey Technical Institute.

Also see Lerman, P., Apgar, D., & Jordan, T.(2005). Longitudinal changes in adaptive behaviors of mavers and
stayers: Findings from a controlled research design. Memal Retardation, Vol, 43, No. I, pp. 25-41.
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scientifically for system issues and quality of life of the people. These three, in

spite of large numbers and rapid change, displayed strongly positive outcomes: the
people involved were much better off in the community, and the entire system

changes were fiscally conservative.)

Right now, nine states and the Distiict ol Columbia have closed all of their
public institutions. This fact calls into serious question the very idea that “some
people” actually “need” institutional settings. Ten jurisdictions have decided that
this is not the case. And those systems, according to multiple studies and analyses,
are healthy and sound, with people enjoying good outcomes and qualities of life.

The ten are states, and the year the last institutional bed was emptied, are shown

below.
State Year
Dastrict of Columbia | 1991
New Hampshire 1991
Vermont 1993
Rhode Island 1994
New Mexico 1995
Alaska 1997
West Virginia 1998
Hawaii 1999
Maine 1999
Minnesota 2000

The present author and colleagues have performed scientific studies of the
outcomes of people moving from institution to community in four of those states,

and also in seven others. The findings have been remarkably consistent:

= P



The people are “better off” in terms of the ma'ori!gta(pefﬂ%@)_ilies of life and

Ice: 're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey
service, You're viewing

* The dimensions of “better off” include independence, self-control of
behavior, integration, productive activity, feeling safe, making choices,
getting needed services, and more;

¢ Those who can communicate on their own are overwhelmingly pleased and
never want to go back; e

o Their families are also overwhelmingly pleased with their relatives’ new
lives in community homes, and many: 2re evemriced:

e The total cost, when all public dollars are tracked down and counted, are
significantly lower in the community living model than in institutions.’

A broader and equally objective method is to review all the states’ records of
depopulation and prepare a table of some of the best known state downsizing
efforts, along with some of the most rapid. Comparing these to the proposed New
Jersey community relocation proposal will enable direct comparison. That will
shed considerable and unbiased Ii ght on recently expressed questions about the

capacity of New Jersey to do what is called for in A3625 — and do it well.

A careful analysis of the “capacity issue” is complex, but it begins with
comparing how many people moved out of institutions, in how many years, into
what size of population base.* The following table does that. For New Jersey, about
2,100 people would move under A3625, into a population base of almost 9 million
over a 5 year period. The table shows that that this can be described as moving

48.2 people per million of general population in each year.

! However, this is primarily due (o lower staff salaries and benefits in the community homes, a situation which

deserves attention and remedy.
! Moving 1000 people into community homes would be a different matter in California, with 35 million people, than

in Wyoming, with 500 thousand - and this must be taken into consideration.
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Reducing Reliance on Institutions

For People with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities:
Review of State Accomplishments and Rates

B Ratio:
o Movers
Number ropuiztion | Per Million .
State Moved Yearsh  Race General Era
Population
Per Year

New Jersey

(Proposed) 2100 5 8,717,925 48.2

DC 351 7 550,521 91.1 90s
New Hampshire 663 6 1,309,940 84.4 80s
Oklahoma 1100 4 3,547,884 77.5 90s
Connecticut 900 4 3,510,297 64.1 80s
New Mexico 700 7 1,928,384 51.9 90s
Delaware 200 5 843,524 47.4 90s
Indiana 700 5 6,271,973 22.3 90s
Kentucky 450 5 4,173,405 21.6 | 2000+
Alabama 450 5 4,557,808 19.7 | 2000+
Alaska 58 5 663,661 17.5| 2000+
North Carolina 450 3 8,683,242 17.3 90s
Wisconsin 410 5 5,536,201 14,8 | 2000+
California 2400 5 36,132,147 13.3 90s
Georgia 600 5 9,072,576 13.2 | 2000+
Pennhurst 1200 10 12,429,616 9.7 80s
Nevada 102 5 2,414,807 8.4 | 2000+

Note: States in italics are ones in which the Center for Outcome Analysis conducted independent

scientific studies of the deinstitutionalization process and outcomes.

* Era is included because more recent efforts have learned from earlier ones. The Pennhurst downsizing
was one of the nation’s first, and took a full 10 years. Later processes were able to move more quickly

because of all that had been learned.

The table offers ample evidence that movements of this scale have been

done before. In five states, the process has been done faster than 48.2 per million

in the population. In Delaware, the rate was about the same as projected for New

Jersey.

B ————
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Now that it has been established that this level of increased community
support capacity is not only possible, but has been done before, the next question
concerns the “maturity” of the community service system.

.

Does New Jersey have the commumty resndennal infrastructure necessary to

S g,

absorb a rapid increase of people moving into commumty homes? Part of the

answer to that question is provided in the graph below.

Number of People in New Jersey Community Residential Homes
1977 to 2008
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Over the past two decades, New Jersey has created community residential

capacily that now supports more than three times the number of people remaining
in Developmental Centers. And this graph only includes the people who are in
settings that qualify for Federal assistance (under the Home and Community Based
Services, or “Waiver” amendments to the SuuuSwunty Act). There are actualiy

more people than shown in this graph.

Adding roughly 400 people to this 10,000 person service system each year

does not seem impossible.

Moreover, the total size of the New Jersey community service and support
system, including those receiving non-residential supports (day activities, case
management, in-home supports, and more) is approximately 35,000 people and
their families. The fact is that New Jersey, by all the evidence, has a mature and

very large, well-established community service system.

Other states have announced plans for facility closures; as well. California
has announced the intention to close one of its facilities, as have Georgia and
Maryland. Michigan is in the process of closing its last state institution, which will

make it the 11" jurisdiction to be completely free of institutions.

On these bases, we find little or no support for fearing that the proposed
Bill’'s movement of people from institutions to communities in New Jersey would
be too many or too fast. The evidence suggests that, given five years, New Jersey’s
community supports infrastructure will be capable of accepting, supporting, and

integrating 2,100 people from the state’s Developmental Centers.
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Simple Facts About Medicaid in New Jersey:
Institutional and Community Care for

Citizens with Developmental Disabilities
James W. Conroy, Ph.D.
President, Center for Outcome Analysis, Havertown, PA
www.eoutcome.org

1. Under the Medicaid program, the Federal government will reimburse New Jersey for 50 cents of every dollar
spent on residential services for people with Developmental Disabilities.'

2. There are two major Medicaid programs in the Developmental Disabilities area:
ICF/MR - Intermediate Care Facilities for [people with] Mental Retardation (Institutions)

HCBS — Home and Community Based Services (Waiver)

3. ICF/MR = Developmental Centers (large institutions)
HCBS = Waiver programs — small group homes and life sharing situations

4. There are about 2,900 people in Developmental Centers (institutions)
There are about 10,100 people in Waiver program settings

5. The average cost per person in a Developmental Center is $233,965
The average cost per person in a Waiver setting is approximately $90,000

6. In either case, the Federal government pays 50% of the cost. That is New Jersey’s FMAP (Federal Medical
Assistance Percentage).

7. This rate, 50%, applies whether the person is in an ICF/MR or a community HCBS home.

8. So, to support a person, here is what New Jersey has to pay and what the Feds pay:

Type of Service Total Cost Fed Medicaid NJ State Pays
Pays
Institutional ICF/MR $233,965 710 $116,982 $116,982
Community HCBS Waiver $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

9. The table above should make it abundantly clear that HCBS Waiver Community services will require fewer
NI tax dollars per person.

10. Because dozens of rigorous research studies have demonstrated conclusively that qualities of life and
service are better in HCBS Waiver Community settings than in Developmental Center Institutional ICF/MR
settings, the cost/benefit ratio strongly favors HCBS Waiver Community support models.

11. For people moving out of institutions, the Feds are currently offering 80% FMAP under the “Money
Follows the Person” program. States should aggressively take advantage of this one-time opportunity to
reduce reliance on the costly and ineffective institutional models.

! As long as service quality standards are met.
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Background Information About
The Center for Outcome Analysis

The Center for Outcome Analysis is a non-profit firm founded in 1985. Its mission is to perform evaluation,
research, and training projects in the human services that will lead to improvements in the quality of life of
people receiving services and supports. The company has performed extensive work in the developmental
disabilities field, including research and policy-relevant evaluation in all 56 states and territories. COA is a
national leader in research on the impacts of Self-Determination initiatives, the effects of deinstitutionalization,
and the cost-effectiveness of Medicaid Waiver services. Over the years, COA has tracked more than 7,000
people individually from institution to community living — measuring dozens of qualities of life for each.

COA has also completed successful and widely publicized studies in the fields of AIDS, preschool and early
intervention, aging, child welfare, housing, nursing homes and long term care, health care and health care
reform, children's health screening, special education and inclusion, criminal justice, and market research. The
company’s primary specialty is the accurate measurement of outcomes, such as quality of life assessment, and

the results of human service interventions.

The President of COA, James W. Conroy, Ph.D., is a 1970 cum laude graduate of Yale University with a BA in
Physiological Psychology. Dr. Conroy began his career doing research on the impacts of the Developmental
Disabilities Act of 1970, and went on to become Director of Research and Program Evaluation at Temple

University’s Institute on Disabilities.

After directing the Pennhurst Longitudinal Study, the largest study of its kind ever performed, he received his
MA in Sociology/Program Evaluation and Ph.D. in Medical Sociology from Temple University in 1992. He left
the University in that year to concentrate fully on creating the Center for Outcome Analysis. Dr. Conroy has
directed more than a dozen longitudinal studies of the impacts of moving from institutional to community
living. He headed the national impact evaluation on the individual outcomes of self-determination for the
Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. He has been responsible for more than 280 formal research reports to
government agencies and foundations, as well as more than 30 articles in scholarly journals and 10 book

chapters.

His full C.V. can be seen at the company website:
http://www.outcomeanalysis.com/DL/CVs/CV-Conroy-Long-2006-10-31a.pdf
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Simple Facts About Medicaid in New Jersey:
Institutional and Community Care for

Citizens with Developmental Disabilities
James W. Conroy, Ph.D.
President, Center for Outcome Analysis, Havertown, PA
www.eoutcome.org

1. Under the Medicaid program, the Federal government will reimburse New Jersey for 50 cents of every dollar
spent on residential services for people with Developmental Disabilities.'

2. There are two major Medicaid programs in the Developmental Disabilities area:
ICF/MR — Intermediate Care Facilities for [people with] Mental Retardation (Institutions)

HCBS — Home and Community Based Services (Waiver)

3. ICF/MR = Developmental Centers (large institutions)
HCBS = Waiver programs — small group homes and life sharing situations

4. There are about 2,900 people in Developmental Centers (institutions)
There are about 10,100 people in Waiver program settings

5. The average cost per person in a Developmental Center is $233,965
The average cost per person in a Waiver setting is approximately $90,000

6. In either case, the Federal government pays 50% of the cost. That is New Jersey’s FMAP (Federal Medical
Assistance Percentage).

7. This rate, 50%, applies whether the person is in an ICF/MR or a community HCBS home.

8. So, to support a person, here is what New Jersey has to pay and what the Feds pay:

Type of Service Total Cost Fed Medicaid NJ State Pays
Pays
Institutional ICF/MR $233,965 710 $116,982 $116,982
Community HCBS Waiver $100,000 $50,000 $50,000

9. The table above should make it abundantly clear that HCBS Waiver Community services will require fewer
NIJ tax dollars per person.

10. Because dozens of rigorous research studies have demonstrated conclusively that qualities of life and
service are better in HCBS Waiver Community settings than in Developmental Center Institutional ICF/MR

settings, the cost/benefit ratio strongly favors HCBS Waiver Community support models.

11. For people moving out of institutions, the Feds are currently offering 80% FMAP under the “Money
Follows the Person” program. States should aggressively take advantage of this one-time opportunity to
reduce reliance on the costly and ineffective institutional models.

' As long as service quality standards are met.
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Background Information About
The Center for Outcome Analysis

The Center for Outcome Analysis is a non-profit firm founded in 1985. Its mission is to perform evaluation,
research, and training projects in the human services that will lead to improvements in the quality of life of
people receiving services and supports. The company has performed extensive work in the developmental
disabilities field, including research and policy-relevant evaluation in all 56 states and territories. COA is a
national leader in research on the impacts of Self-Determination initiatives, the effects of deinstitutionalization,
and the cost-effectiveness of Medicaid Waiver services. Over the years, COA has tracked more than 7,000
people individually from institution to community living — measuring dozens of qualities of life for each.

COA has also completed successful and widely publicized studies in the fields of AIDS, preschool and early
intervention, aging, child welfare, housing, nursing homes and long term care, health care and health care
reform, children's health screening, special education and inclusion, criminal justice, and market research. The
company’s primary specialty is the accurate measurement of outcomes, such as quality of life assessment, and

the results of human service interventions.

The President of COA, James W. Conroy, Ph.D., is a 1970 cum laude graduate of Yale University with a BA in
Phystological Psychology. Dr. Conroy began his career doing research on the impacts of the Developmental
Disabilities Act of 1970, and went on to become Director of Research and Program Evaluation at Temple

University’s Institute on Disabilities.

After directing the Pennhurst Longitudinal Study, the largest study of its kind ever performed, he received his
MA in Sociology/Program Evaluation and Ph.D. in Medical Sociology from Temple University in 1992. He left
the University in that year to concentrate fully on creating the Center for Outcome Analysis. Dr. Conroy has
directed more than a dozen longitudinal studies of the impacts of moving from institutional to community
living. He headed the national impact evaluation on the individual outcomes of self-determination for the
Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. He has been responsible for more than 280 formal research reports to
government agencies and foundations, as well as more than 30 articles in scholarly journals and 10 book

chapters.

His full C.V. can be seen at the company website:
http://www.outcomeanalysis.com/DL/CVs/CV-Conroy-Long-2006-10-31a.pdf
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

INTRODUCTION

New Jersey’s fiscal climate presents an opportunity to revise our continued investment in large public
institutions to better meet the needs of people living with developmental disabilities, enabling them to
live quality lives in the community. Rebalancing the allocation of fiscal, human, and capital
resources within the Department of Human Services through the consolidation and downsizing of
the number of developmental centers is a critical step that must be taken in a restrained fiscal
climate and addressing spiraling costs for institutional care. Rebalancing fiscal and staff resources
are intrinsic to shifting the historical investment from institutional care to promoting community
living for people with developmental disabilities consistent with their assessed level of need.
Consolidating and closing developmental centers offers opportunities not only for efficiencies, but
will align services with need and address the deficits of the current system. These deficits are
evidenced by our continued inappropriate reliance on developmental centers, our inability to
significantly reduce the Community Services Waiting List and our inability to provide a seamless
transition for young adults entering the developmental disabilities system from the educational
system. This course of action will create the long awaited opportunities for people to live quality
engaged lives in the community and create fiscal resources to allow New Jersey to move forward with

systems change.

With the additional support of temporary bridge funding to develop and expand community
services and supports consistent with the direction that has been taken across the country over the
last four decades, New Jersey will be able to right size the system.

Rebalancing resources from the developmental centers will align public resources with national trends
and address the unmet needs of people in the community while serving significantly more people with
the same fiscal resources. Establishing a moratorium on future admission to developmental centers
coupled with a temporary allocation of bridge funding repaid from the net proceeds of the liquidated
properties, additional federal financial participation and other cost savings, minus the cost of the
development and expansion of community based services and supports we can:

= avert costly inappropriate institutional care for 2,457 people,

= address the needs of 8,065 consumers and families awaiting services and supports of the
growing community services waiting list, and

» support young adults transitioning from the educational system to the adult system who aspire
to achieve the opportunities that life offers.

“The goals of the Nation properly include a goal of providing individuals with developmental
disabilities with the information, skills, opportunities and support to make informed choices and
decisions about their lives; live in homes and communities in which such individuals can exercise
their full rights and responsibilities as citizens; achieve full integration and inclusion in society,
in an individualized manner, consistent with the unique strengths, resources, priorities, concerns,
abilities, and capabilities of each individual” (The Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of

Rights Act of 2000 (P.L.106-42).

Our investment in costly institutional care restrains and compromises an ability to respond to the
growing unmet need for community based services and supports for people with developmental

2|Page
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Reliance on costly institutional care limits our ability to make significant progress in addressing the
legal challenges New Jersey faces and to realize:

e the intent of the federal Supreme Court in the Olmstead Decision - Justice Ginsberg delivered
the opinion of the Supreme Court in Olmstead v. L.C. and concluded that States are required to
place individuals with developmental disabilities in the most integrated setting appropriate to
their needs as determined by themselves and their treatment professionals. Justice Ginsberg
and the Court maintained isolating and segregating those living with developmental disabilities
in institutions violates Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and constitutes
discrimination based on a disability. (Olmstead, 1999);

e and address the legal challenges of a consent decree with the Department of Justice addressing
Woodbridge Developmental Center and New Lisbon Developmental Center (Complaint -
United States of America v. The State of New Jersey, 2004) (Boyd, 2003); and

e the present Community Services Waiting List litigation by New Jersey Protection and
Advocacy (Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief, 2008).

COMPARISON OF OTHER STATES

New Jersey, in comparison to other states, has lost ground as it continues to rely on historical
approaches depressing our ability to replicate the positive outcomes of other states. Across the United
States the trends in public spending over the past forty years have shifted away from funding large
public institutions, with a total of 140 closures having taken place in the nation since 1969. New
Jersey has closed two institutions, E.R. Johnstone Training and Research Center in 1992 with a census
of 239, that became a correctional facility; and North Princeton Developmental Center in 1998 with a
census of 512 people. New Jersey is not one of the 40 states with planned additional closures.

The following studies describe the trends in large public institutions over the last two decades and
provide data for comparisons between states including benchmarks for New Jersey:

e “Residential Services for People with Developmental Disabilities: Status and Trends Through
6/2007,” edited by Prouty, Smith and Lakin: University of Minnesota, August 2008 (cited as
“Prouty, 2008”") and

e “The State of the States in Developmental Disabilities: 2008 Study Summary,” by Braddock et
al at the University of Colorado: January 2008 (cited as ‘“Braddock, 2008”).

Drawing on their work one can conclude that:

e Nationally, large state facilities continue to downsize and close. Between 2000 and
2007 the population of large public institutions has dropped from 47,329 to 36,650, a
decrease of 22.5% (Braddock, 2008). During the same period, New Jersey’s institutional
population dropped from 3,514 to 2,995, a decrease of 14.8% (Prouty, 2008), which is only
2/3 of the national effort. In New Jersey, this is an overall decrease of 519 people, which
includes 490 individuals who died while residing at the state run developmental centers,
indicating a passive reduction due to mortality (NJ DDD, 2008). The resulting net
discharge over seven years of 29 people. New Jersey was ranked 49™ in the nation for

4|Page
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILIT 1ES . =

having one of the highest rates of utilization of state institutions at 34.9 people per
100,000. The national utilization rate over this same period was 12.9 people per 100,000.

Average Daily Residents of State —Operated 16+ I/DD Institutions FY 2004-2006

{Utilization in 2006 per 100,000 citizens of the general population in the state and states’ ranking, lowest to
highest, on institutional utilization)

State 2006 2004 T oaange e 1:;::
New Jersey 3064 3145 -3% 34.9 49
New York 1605 1634 2% 8.3 22
Pennsylvania 1416 1473 -4% 11.4 28
Mississippi 1377 1363 1% 47.1 51

Source: Braddock, D., Hemp, R., & Rizzolo, M.C. (2008). The State of the States in Developmental Disabilities 2008. Department of
Psychiatry and Coleman Institute for Cognitive Disabilities, the University of Colorado.

« Large state facility average daily populations decreased by more than half (26.5%) in the
U.S., and in most states between 1999 and 2007 (Prouty, 2008). In this same period, the
average daily population in New Jersey’s large state facilities decreased by 18.4% (Prouty,
2008). During the ten years between 1999-2008, New Jersey discharged 894 individuals from
its developmental centers, admitted 806 people, and 697 residents of the developmental
centers died. The net change in census over ten years, not including mortality represents a
decrease of 78 people. (NJ DDD, 2008)
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Developmental Centers Census in New Jersey

Fiscal Year 10-
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008~ Year
Totals

Census at
the start of
the Fiscal 3,672 3,596 3,514 3,433 3,296 3,169 3,121 3,070 3,051 2,995 3672
Year
Admitted
from the 73 81 66 20 58 105 121 96 101 85 806
Community
Moved to
the -82 90 -60 -87 -107 93 -98 -59 -102 -116 -894
Community
Died 67 -73 -87 -70 78 -64 -79 57 55 67 -697
Census at

the end of
the Fiscal 3,596 3,514 3,433 3,296 3,169 3,121A0 3,070* 3,051** 2,995 2,897 2897

Year

Decrease in
Census
during the
Fiscal Year

-76 -82 -81 -137 -127 -48 -51 -19 -56 -98 -775

Number
“moved to
the
community”
to nursing
homes

n/a n/a 9 11 6 3 8 15 14 7 73

Census
Change
during each
year, not
including
death.

Sources: Adapted from New lJersey State Budget FY 2008-2009 (2008). New Jersey Department of Treasury, Office of
Management and Budget. Retrieved on August 20, 2008 at http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb/
ANew Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities, August 20, 2008.

North Princeton Developmental Center closed at the end of April FY-1998.
“Moved to the community” includes individuals discharged from DDD services and those moved to nursing homes.

Arreflects a net increase of 4 individuals moving between developmental centers; DC census decreased by 48 people overall.
*reflects net increase of 5 individuals moving between developmental centers; DC census decreased by 51 people overall.

**reflects net increase of 1 individual moving between developmental centers; DC census decreased by 9 people overall.
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PE

DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

o It is possible to operate a state system without large state operated facilities. On June
30, 2007 nine states did not operate any large (over 16 people) state facilities (AK, DC, HI,
ME, NH, NM, R, VT and WV) (Prouty, 2008).

e The cost per person in large state facilities continues to rise, and in 2007 reached a
national average of $483 per day (Prouty, 2008). At this same point in time the average
cost per day of service in New Jersey’s large state institutions was $612 (Prouty, 2008).
The average increased cost per year in New Jersey has been 8.1% for each of the last five
years. Our fiscal climate is unable to continue to support these increased costs.

e The amount of spending on New Jersey’s state institutions, as compared to statewide
personal income, places us 6™ highest among the states, yet our community spending
places us in 40™ place. New Jersey’s spending, per $1,000 of personal income, on
institutional care is among the highest in the nation, while our spending on community
services is less than 4/5™ of the states. New Jersey’s total spending on services to people
with developmental disabilities is also less than 4/5" of the states. When compared to our
neighboring states, New York and Pennsylvania, New Jersey is behind in our effort to fund
and prioritize community services. New Jersey is more comparable to the nation’s poorest
state, Mississippi, in how they fund services to people with developmental disabilities.

e As of June 30, 2007, more than two-fifths (41.9%) of the total number of large state
facility residents in the country lived in five states (California, Illinois, New Jersey,
New York and Texas), each with more than 2,100 residents in such facilities (Prouty,
2008). California projects that it will close another of its large state facilities in 2008.

e On June 30, 2007, twenty of the forty-two states (including DC), still operating large
institutions, had 375 or fewer individuals in their entire state operated institutional
systems (AL, AZ, CO, DE, ID, IN, KS, KY, MD, MI, MN, MT, NE, NV, ND, OK, OR,
SD, UT, and WY) (Prouty, 2008). On that same date, six of the seven state operated
institutions serving individuals with development disabilities in New Jersey each housed
more than 375 people. “Operating Data for New Jersey Developmental Centers SFY '06-
09, shows the 2007 average daily census of each of the seven developmental centers (the
year for which comparable national data is available) one center served 103 people, while
each of the other centers was above 394 (the range being 394 — 589).

Thirty six of the 42 states supporting institutions are reducing their census, including New Jersey.
However, mortality has played a major role in the reduction of the census (NJ Division of
Developmental Disabilities, 2008). Over the last ten years, the census has been reduced by 775
people across all institutions of which 697 have been deaths. At the same time 806 people were
admitted from the community and 894 people moved to the community. This represents a net
decrease of 78 people when the statistics are adjusted for mortality across the ten year period.
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Thirty-six of the 42 states that still finance large public institutions have reduced their census during
2004-06, with the greatest reductions in Indiana (-42%), Delaware (-33%), Wisconsin (-28%), Nevada
(-23%), Michigan (-22%), and Oregon (-20%) (Braddock, 2008). Achieving actual reduction of the
census through deinstitutionalization, coupled with a moratorium on new admissions while
investing in community services, has been undertaken by 46 other states. Implementing these
actions will help move New Jersey from 49" in a national ranking of states in average number of
residents in large state institutions on a daily basis (Braddock, 2008).

COMPARATIVE COSTS

Fiscal resources clearly cannot address individuals’ unmet needs with the continued incremental
approach to deinstitutionalization and the lack of a moratorium on future developmental center
placements. As evidenced by the net decrease in developmental center census of only 78 people over
the last ten years when adjusted for mortality, our costs will continue to outpace our ability to retain
the present number of developmental centers. The comparative costs of services in New Jersey’s
Developmental Centers, living in the community, and through the self-directed Real Life Choices
program, shows the variation in costs between these different types of services. The cost of care in
developmental centers continues to escalate representing a 9% increase from 2004 to 2006 with an
annual cost per person of $223,914 or $641 a day per person (New Jersey State Budget FY 2008-09).
Eighty-one percent of the developmental center population does not require an institutional level of
care. This pattern of spending limits the ability of the system to meet the growing need for
community based services, to satisfy the mandate of the Olmstead decision, along with the
Department of Justice and Community Services Waiting List Lawsuits, and to address the Department
of Human Services’ benchmarks.
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STATE ICF/MR FACILITIES
RECOMMENDED REVISED INTERIM RATES
FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2008

FACILITY Da“ge'fs"‘;i per ‘:)’;’:”pa;rggst N‘;Zé’;?f TOTAL ANNUAL COST
GREENBROOK $622.00 $227,030 99 $22,475,970
HUNTERDON $582.00 $212,430 582 $123,634,260
NEW LISBON $720.00 $262,800 479 $125,881,200
NORTH JERSEY $645.00 $235,425 395 $02,092,875
VINELAND $656.00 $239,440 474 $113,494,560
WOODBINE $555.00 $202,575 505 $102,300,375
WOODBRIDGE $716.00 $261,340 436 $113,044,240

Average $642.29 $234,434.29

Total 2,970 $694,723,480

Source: New Jersey State Budget FY 2008-09 (2008). New Jersey Department of Treasury, Office of Management and Budget.
August 20, 2008 at: http//www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb/publications/09budget/pdf/54.pdf

Adapted from NJ DHS
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COMPARISON OF COSTS
BY PROGRAM TYPE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2008

Cost per Person
‘ served per person Supports per Day
Community Group Homes 4,485 $389,262,310 $86,792 $105,183 $288
Supervised Apartments 1,184 $83,428,591 $70,463 $88,855 $243
Supported Living 755 $38,473,986 $50,959 $69,350 $190
Real Life Choices 656 $21,981,931 $33,509 $92
gz:‘;m“"‘ty Day Services 8,990 $165,338,000 $18,391 $50
g;a;fe?se"ebpme”ta' 2,070 $694,723.480 |  $233,914 $641

Source: New Jersey State Budget FY 2008-09 (2008). New Jersey Department of Treasury, Office of Management and
Budget. August 20, 2008 at: http//www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb/publications/09budget/pdf/54.pdf

CONTROLLING INSTITUTIONAL ADMISSIONS

Large public institutions (developmental centers) are unduly restrictive and are an inappropriate level of
care for 81% of the current residents who have been assessed as ready for community placement
(Ritchey, K., 2007). New Jersey’s continued investment in developmental centers consumes a
disproportionate percentage of the Division’s approximately 1.34 billion dollar budget (New Jersey
State Budget, FY 2008-09) and utilizes state and federal funding to support an inappropriate level of
care. The current Olmstead Plan shows a projected reduction at state institutions of 1,850 people over
nine years. However, the SFY’09 budget climate permits the movement of 125 people, not the
benchmark of 250 and as institutional costs have increased 20% over the last three years (NJ State
Budget FY 2008-2009). This is indicative of the budgetary constraints limiting the projected decrease in
developmental center census in the Olmstead Plan. When the additional costs are included in the
equation, we cannot continue the present course of action of ongoing admissions, and hope to achieve
the intended census reduction and cost redirection needed to develop community capacity.

With continued admissions, the developmental center census continues to fall principally due to
mortality (Developmental Centers Census in New Jersey). Over the last ten years, based on a review
of New Jersey’s Division of Developmental Disabilities developmental center census data (DDD
August 20, 2008 and NJ State Budget 2008-09), 894 people were moved into the community.
However, these gains were offset by the admission of 806 people admitted to the developmental
centers during that period with a net reduction of 78 people when the census data is adjusted for

mortality.
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

In 2007, admissions were due to medical, accessibility, behavioral health needs that have resulted in
recent costly institutional placements. The reasons for these admissions could be successfully addressed

in a well developed system of care:

e Medical Issues — 16 (27%)

o Behavioral Issues — 13 (22%)

o Psychiatric Problems — 11 (19%)

» Needs Accessible Residence — 8 (14%)
e Court Order — 6 (10%)

e Consumer Protection — 5 (8%)

Source: New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities January 25, 2008.

Successful reduction of the developmental center census is predicated upon the establishment of a
moratorium on future developmental center placements, with the concurrent development and access to
community based services, supports and residential options to meet emergency needs and avert out of
home placement. Our continued approach mitigates any gains that have been achieved in placing
people into the community. If the necessary development of the community based infrastructure does
not occur with a concurrent moratorium on future admissions, we will continue to rely on institutional
care for many years. Court ordered placements and short term emergency placements due to
circumstances presenting imminent peril, where no immediate appropriate community service/
support is available, should be the exception to the moratorium.
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Comparison of Characteristics between All People at New Jersey Developmental Centers and the
People without Opposition to Community Placement

All People Living 1,005 People Where
in the Centers (%) IDT, Consumer and
Family Do Not

Oppose Community
Placement (%)

W Average Age (Years) 49.2 47.8
B % Female 40% 42%
B % with a Psychiatric Diagnosis 53% 57%
B % with Cerebral Palsy 25% 24%
B % with History of Epilepsy 52% 49%
B % with Active Epilepsy. 21% 18%
B % with Visual Impairment 43% 39%
B % with Health Conditions involving
the cardiovascular/circulatory, digestive,
muscular/skeletal or epidermal systems. 40 -62%, 40 - 60%,
depending depending
M % Using a Behavioral Specialist 29% 39%
W % with special dietary requirements or
special food preparation. 65-71%, 61-74%,
depending on supports needed.
B % needing regular assistance turning
or positioning the body. 20% 18%
B % using a wheelchair. 47% 45%
B % using physical therapy. 24% 23%
M % taking antipsychotic medication. 37% 40%
B % who could benefit from environmental

adaptations in lighting, cabinets, closets,

faucets or doors. 19 - 25%, 14 -21%,

depending on the environmental adaptation.

B % with personal preferences, such as
living with someone of the same sex or age,
having their own room, a smoke free home

or a calm/quiet home. 36 —53%, 32 -47%,
depending on the preference.

Source: Ritchey, K. (2007). Olmstead Plan “Path to Progress”.

http://www.state.nj.us/humanservices/ddd/publications/ISOImPlanFinal.pdf.
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Comparison of Support Needs between All People at New Jersey Developmental Centers and
People without Opposition to Community Placement

Self Care Support Need

Lowest Level of Need (Level 1)
Low Level of Need (Level 2)
Medium Level of Need (Level 3)
High Level of Need (Level 4)

Medical Support Levels

Ambulatory Level 1
Non Ambulatory Level 2
Ambulatory Level 3
Non Ambulatory Level 4
Ambulatory Level 5
Non Ambulatory Level 6

Behavioral Support Levels

Source: Ritchey, K. (2007). Olmstead Plan “Path to Progress”.

No Special Behavioral Supports - Level 1
Minimal Behavioral Supports — Level 2
Formal Behavioral Supports — Level 3
Intensive Behavioral Supports — Level 4

All People Living
in the Centers (%)

10.1%
16.8%
34.4%
38.7%

All People Living
in the Centers (%)

19.8%
1.2%
39.4%
28.8%
1.6%
7.4%

All People Living
in the Centers (%)

21.9%

1.4%
45.1%
31.6%

http://www.state.nj.us/humanservices/ddd/publications/JSOImPlanFinal.pdf.
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1,005 People Where
IDT, Consumer and
Family Do Not
Oppose Community

Placement (%)
13.6%
16.3%
30.9%
39.0%

1,005 People Where
IDT, Consumer and
Family Do Not
Oppose Community
Placement (%)
21.6%
1.5%
37.0%
27.1%
2.3%
8.4%

1,005 People Where
IDT, Consumer and
Family Do Not
Oppose Community
Placement (%)
21.5%

1.9%
43.2%
33.2%



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.
REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

COMMUNITY SERVICES WAITING LIST

The need for community services in New Jersey continues to grow from serving 34,983 people in 2007,
to a projection of 38,263 in 2009 (Community/Developmental Center Census - Developmental Center
Profiles table). New Jersey is home to 2.9% of the American population and 2.7% of the American
population with disabilities. =~ Yet we have a disproportionate percentage of Americans with
developmental disabilities, 9.5% whose needs are inadequately serviced (State and County Quickfacts,

2008).

The Community Services Waiting List has grown from approximately 5,000 in 1998 (ARC, 2008) to
8,065 in 2007 (DDD, 11/2007). People on the growing community services waiting list continue to
require additional services and supports. Of the 8,065 total, 3,932 people are on the priority segment of
the community services waiting list and are determined to be at significant risk and require residential
options, or risk admission to a developmental center. The list grows at a rate of 800-900 people per
year, evidencing that the current approach of addressing 10% of the priority list will allow the list to
continue to expand, at best, at a 10% increase per year.

New Jersey requires 34.3% growth in the system of community services to meet the needs of the people
on the priority waiting list (Prouty, 2008). This number does not include the other 4,221 people on the
waiting list who also require community services. Our neighboring states of New York and
Pennsylvania have greater capacity in their community systems and require between 8 and 9% growth to
meet their waiting list needs (Prouty, 2008).
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Community Services Waiting List by County
WAITING LIST CATEGORY

COUNTY PRIORITY | PRIORITY DEFERRED | GENERAL | TOTAL
ATLANTIC 182 11 110 303
BERGEN 452 46 252 750
BURLINGTON 298 21 175 494
CAMDEN 330 18 177 525
CAPE MAY 58 6 31 95
CUMBERLAND 98 9 92 199
ESSEX 376 33 158 567
GLOUCESTER 175 4 174 353
HUDSON 185 24 93 302
HUNTERDON 77 4 49 130
MERCER 194 5 75 274
MIDDLESEX 386 15 241 642
MONMOUTH 422 15 165 602
MORRIS 238 30 180 448
OCEAN 377 20 217 614
PASSAIC 228 23 127 378
SALEM 29 0 40 69
SOMERSET 176 19 100 295
SUSSEX 104 8 110 222
UNION 229 38 160 427
WARREN 78 3 68 149
OUT OF STATE 136 7 18 161
UNKNOWN 33 2 31 66
TOTAL 4,861 361 2,843 8,065

Source: New Jersey Division of Developmental Disabilities, November 30, 2007
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Persons on the Developmental Disabilities Residential Waiting List for New Jersey

State Total Persons on Waiting List % Growth Needed
New Jersey 3,844* 34.3%
New York 4,130 9%
Pennsylvania 2,023 8.6%
Mississippi N/A N/A

Source: Robert W. Prouty, R.W., Alba, K., & Lakin, K.C., (2008). Residential Services for Persons with Developmental Disabilities: status
and trends through 2007. Research and Training Center on Community Living, Institute on Community Integration/UCEDD, College of
Education and Human Development, University of Minnesota.

*This number represents the priority waiting list. The total waiting list population is 8,065 (NJ DDD, 11/2007).

New Jersey’s Waiting List Compared to National and State Populations

National New Jersey NJ Percentage
General Population1 299,398,484 8,724,560 2.9%
Population w/disability" 49,746,248 1,389,811 2.7%
Waiting list for DD 84,523 8,065 9.5%
services

Sources: ‘State and County Quickfacts (2008). http://quickfacts.census.qov/qfd/states/34000.html.
2 New Jersey State Budget FY 2008 — 2009 (2008). New Jersey Department of Treasury, Office of Management and Budget.

August 20, 2008 at http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb/publications/09budget/pdf/54.pdf . {D-214).
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Percentage of People on the Priority Waiting List Assessed for Self Care Needs

35.00% |

30.00%

25.00%

20.00%

15.00%

10.00% ‘ I S
5.00% | —
0.00% - : , : .

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Level 4

Level 1- the lowest level of self care support need.
Level 2- the low level of self care support need.
Level 3- the medium level of self care support need.
Level 4- the high level of self care support need.

Source: New Jersey Department of Human Services — Division of Developmental

Disabilities
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There were 8,087* people on the waiting list as of March 31, 2007 (DDD Initiative Update June 27,
2007) of which:

e 3,764 individuals were in the priority category, living with their families waiting for services
from the division. Priority status references people at “significant risk” that is, the primary
caretaker is over the age of 55 or has a chronic physical or psychiatric condition which limits
their ability to care for the individual, or there is a risk to the health or safety of any individual
living in the home, or a clear risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation of the individual.

e 214 individuals were in the priority category and part of a current placement initiative.

» 898 individuals were in the priority category living outside the family home, often in a DDD
funded placement.

e 373 individuals were in the priority deferred category. These individuals had been offered
placement that was not appropriate in the past and declined. A person on the priority list, who
was offered a placement but declined that placement because it was not an appropriate placement
for the person, is placed on the Priority Deferred list.

o 2,838 individuals were in the general waiting list category. These individuals have expressed an
interest in receiving residential services sometime in the future. If a person is not deemed to be
Priority status, then they are placed in the General category of the waiting list.

YOUNG ADULTS TRANSITIONING FROM THE EDUCATIONAL SYSTEM TO THE
ADULT SYSTEM

Millions of dollars are spent each year on educating and training children with developmental
disabilities, but after graduation there are no entitlements similar to those that supported their
education. Graduation for most people is the beginning of an adult life filled with hope and
promise, while graduation for many students with developmental disabilities may be looked at as the
beginning of sitting at home with endless days and nights of nothing to do and no hope for a
meaningful future. In some cases, graduates with developmental disabilities may feel they have no
alternatives, become apathetic and eventually lose their hard earned skills and miss the opportunity

to become productive members of society.

CONTROLLING DEVELOPMENTAL CENTER ADMISSIONS

Successful reduction of the developmental center census is predicated upon the establishment of a
moratorium on future developmental center placements, with the concurrent development and expansion
of access to community based services, supports and residential options to meet emergency needs and
avert out of home placement. Our continued approach mitigates any gains that have been achieved
in placing people into the community. If the necessary development of the community based
infrastructure does not occur with a concurrent moratorium on future admissions, we will continue to
rely on institutional care for many years. Court ordered placements and short term emergency
placements due to circumstances presenting imminent peril, where no immediate appropriate
community service/support is available, should be the exception to the moratorium.
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REBALANCING RESOURCES TO PROMOTE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR PEOPLE WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

CAPACITY BUILDING

Access to existing conventional community resources, tailored to include expertise in addressing the
needs of people with developmental disabilities, will promote utilization of existing community
inclusive health and behavioral health care rather than the development of more costly segregated care.
This approach capitalizes on the use of the resources existing within the community infrastructure and
requires education, awareness and cross training to address the particular needs of people with
developmental disabilities, ensuring services are adequate to respond to the need for care in particular
areas of specialty care, such as dental and mental health care.

Building community capacity to meet the needs of individuals moving from developmental centers into
the community will require the investment of bridge funding for a five year period to build the
community capacity. The bridge funding will be repaid from the net proceeds, minus the cost of the
development and expansion of community based services and supports and any life safety enhancements
required at the remaining developmental centers.

Potential Sources of Funding to Support Bridge Funds:

o State FY-2009 appropriated capital improvement funding targeted for the developmental
centers that can be deferred, plus previous unspent capital improvement funding from prior
years.

» Appropriated SFY-09 overtime expenditure reductions achieved through first year, and each
subsequent year’s consolidation.

o State FY-09 community care waiver federal financial participation received in excess of the
bookmarked amount, and amounts over and above the ’09 bookmarked ceiling in subsequent
years, while maintaining the current state share. ~As systems reform takes place, a review of
other states may indicate approaches to increase federal financial participation and alternative
waiver plans. Some promising approaches, such as the Wisconsin Family Care, have utilized
long term care waivers offering increased consumer choice, streamlined the complexity of
the system and yielded consumer satisfaction.

e Reductions in developmental center operational costs achieved through consolidation in the
first year, and each subsequent year.

e Proceeds achieved through liquidation of the developmental center real estate property.
¢ Any unspent funds from the Division of Developmental Disabilities 2009 budget, and going
forward four years (for a total of five years).

o Identify services that can be reimbursed to initiate federal claiming in compliance with the
two yearly timely filing requirements to maximize federal financial participation for out of

state purchase of care.

» Identify agency housing equity opportunities to support agency based capacity building
utilizing agency group home equity.
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These funds are necessary to strengthen and expand the existing community based services, the creation
of supports, services and linkages which will have the capability of fulfilling the unmet need of people
waiting in developmental centers, those on the community services waiting list and absorb the projected

growth in the system.

The areas in which supports, services and linkages must be afforded through use of existing resources
and expansion include, at a minimum:

o Timely and flexible housing options that maximize choice, fiscal and personal independence,
incorporating demonstrated best practices and market availability; including the provision for
individuals who can and wish to move on from existing group homes to create additional
capacity: A variety of community-based residential options replicating the successful
approaches to creating sustainable and affordable housing practices that have been demonstrated
across the country, notably in Virginia, Oregon, Maryland and to a lesser extent New Jersey
itself. These approaches have led to timely and efficient access to housing consistent with need
and promote fiscal independence through consumer purchase or rentals via agency acquisition
and/or federal or state subsidy programs.

» Ensure a seamless transition to services and supports for young adults transitioning from the
educational system are readily available to pursue vocational/educational training,
employment/career opportunities or other meaningful day activities including transportation,
family supports and linkages to appropriate state and county services including, but not limited
to, the Divisions of Vocational Rehabilitation, Disabilities Services and Developmental

Disabilities.

o Employment and skills training to meet the changing job market: Community based agencies will
partner with the business community to identify and incorporate training, supports and skills sets
that will be responsive to job market needs and changing trends in the employment sector.
Agreements will be forged with the Department of Labor and Workforce Development to ensure
accessibility to supports and employment assistance programs, including One Stop Career
Centers and linkages with business leaders through the State and local Chambers of Commerce
to access to competitive employment and promote job retention. Agencies providing supports to
individuals with developmental disabilities should be encouraged to set an example for the
community by becoming employers of individuals with disabilities.

o Providing access to the full range of healthcare supports and professionals within the
community including cross training and regulatory and/or policy changes to promote
community access and quality care: Access to health care will be supported by linkages with
community health clinics, HMO enrollment and the support of outsourced developmental center
medical physicians, dentists and other allied healthcare professionals including nurses,
occupational therapists, nutritionists, physical therapists, speech therapists, etc. Relationships
will be facilitated with community health practitioners through the Department of Health and the
state and local medical associations to increase and develop continuing education/training
opportunities to enhance the skill sets and expertise of the medical, dental and behavioral health
community of practice. State, region, and county DDD personnel, as well as provider agency
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staff and family members will advocate for greater involvement of the medical and dental
community in the provision of service to individuals with developmental disabilities.

e Ensure access and availability of assistive and adaptive technology, including vehicle and
environmental modifications to promote independence.

e Provision of access to behavioral health services and supports to individuals and their support
teams within the community: Linkages with community based mental health services and
supports including acute care and step down options and the children’s behavioral health system
will be developed to facilitate access. Expanded capacity will be developed, including in-home
therapeutic support, behavioral supports, mobile response and crisis intervention and emergency
crisis beds to respond across community settings, to avert inappropriate out-of-home placements.
Support of outsourced developmental center mental health professional and allied behavioral
support staff will provide additional resources to agencies, as well as those in self direction or at
home with their families. The recommendations of the Dually Diagnosed Task Force Report
released in September of 2008 should be fully supported to respond to the behavioral health
needs of people with mental health challenges.

e  Flexible respite care;
o Flexible case management and support services responsive to need;
o Salary parity, education/training to enhance staff skills;

e Social, recreational and meaningful day activities including the need for programs that are
responsive to people throughout their lifespan;

o Peer and family supports, and in-home and family preservation services.

WORKFORCE TRANSITION

It is essential to rebalance the system to support people living with developmental disabilities in the
community and utilize the substantial resources that the developmental centers consume, not only from a
fiscal standpoint, but within the workforce itself. Employing a “staff without walls” approach will
facilitate the redeployment of staff to address the needs of the workplace, either working in the
community or in the developmental centers as downsizing and consolidation takes place while retaining
state benefits. It offers opportunities to redeploy staff to fill vacant positions, thereby reducing overtime
costs in developmental centers and address the growing need for community based county resources.
This approach permits the use of the skilled workforce:

e to assist in the transition of people from developmental centers into the community by
addressing transition issues, emergency services and enhance gap areas, such as case
management, facilitating transition, training, and continuous quality improvement in the
community while ensuring the health and safety standards are sustained in the
developmental centers.

e to assure continuity of service, protect the valuable resource, expertise and commitment of
this dedicated workforce and to protect and to ensure the ongoing certification of the
facilities throughout the implementation of the downsizing plan.
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It is essential to rebalance the system to support people living with developmental disabilities in the
community and utilize the substantial resources that the developmental centers consume not only from a
fiscal standpoint but within the workforce itself.

Current developmental center employees offer a valuable resource in the development and
implementation of an efficient transition plan that promotes employee stability and provides
opportunities for employees to help determine their own future.

Options can be employed to reduce staff through attrition, transfers, early retirement and offset the need
for professional services and direct care staff in the community while retaining state status and benefits.
In state fiscal year ‘09, there are projected to be 8,220 employees in the seven developmental centers,
representing an increase from 6,954 in SFY 06.

Personnel Data from New Jersey Developmental Centers

Actual Actual FY  Revised FY Budget
Position Data FY '06 07 '08 Est. FY '09

Institutional Total
Filled positions

State Supported . ................ 4,735 4,774 4,721 4,702
Federal ..............covviiint, 3,397 3,495 3,518 3,518
AllOother............. .ot 1 0 0 0
Total Positions . ................ 8,133 8,269 8,239 8,220

Filled positions by Program Class
Res. Care and Habilitation Services.. 6,954 7,093 7,083 7,077
Admission and Support Services.... 1,179 1,176 1,156 1,143
Total Positions . ................ 8,133 8,269 8,239 8,220

Source: New Jersey State Budget FY 2008 — 2009 (2008). New Jersey Department of Treasury,
Office of Management and Budget. August 20, 2008 at http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/
omb/publications/09budget/pdf/54.pdf.

As the implementation of the plan for rebalancing resources to promote community living for people
with developmental disabilities begins to take shape, more developmental center employees will be in a
position to examine alternate workplace opportunities within the state and community based system,
including options available through intra and intergovernmental staff transfers. To be proactive with
these employees, the implementation team will offer a variety of supports to help staff take best

advantage of the options available:

o Retirement: An early retirement plan may be presented. It would be particularly beneficial to
this plan if these offerings were made to staff that work through until the closing of the facility to
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which they have been assigned and/or until their position has become phased out, due to the
decrease in developmental center census.

e Transfers: Staff will be afforded the option of filling appropriate vacancies through inter and
intra departmental transfers.

e Retraining: Orientations and training and retraining opportunities will be offered to Direct
Service Professionals (DSP) working in the developmental centers who are interested in
transitioning into the community-based service system.

e Redeployment. Consolidation within developmental centers to offset staff deficits will reduce
overtime. Redeployment to positions in the community could support the system, fill gaps in
specialty care, (OT, PT, Medical, Dental, other allied services), and address gaps in professional
care and direct care positions, thereby, addressing the significant vacancy turnover issues in the
community utilizing a staff without walls approach that will retain state status and union
participation by assigning staff to division regional or county based regional offices to support
the need for professional services and direct care needs.
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Re: A Decade of Little Progress Implementing Olmstead

In 1999 the U.S. Supreme Court, in Olmstead v. Lois Curtis and Elaine Wilson, stated
loud and clear that it is a violation of the civil rights of Americans with disabilities to
require a person to be institutionalized in order to receive necessary disability supports
and services, if these services are more appropriately provided in the community. It is
simply unacceptable, that 10 years later, there has been almost no progress reducing
the numbers of Americans with disabilities, nationwide, who live in institutions. This
report, “A Decade of Little Progress Implementing Olmstead: Evaluating Federal
Agency Impact After 10 Years,” evaluates the efforts of key federal agencies to enforce
the Olmstead decision over the past decade. We found next to no federal oversight of
enforcement efforts and no repercussions for states who fail to make reasonable efforts
to end unnecessary institutionalization. This approach is an affront to the people with
disabilities. NDRN calls for more urgent federal enforcement of the Olmstead mandate.

With every year that passed in the last Administration, it appeared that federal efforts to
spur Olmstead enforcement waned. This report highlights problematic trends like this
and recommends a more effective, aggressive federal approach to bring about
community integration. The research for the report was largely completed in September
2009. Since that time new leadership has been appointed to the U.S. Department of
Justice (DOJ) and we've seen a renewed focus on Olmstead enforcement. Some
welcome signs include:

» DOJ has been more proactive to reach out to members of the disability
community to identify potential Olmstead cases where their participation might
advance the law and help to clarify questions that remain unsettled after the
Supreme Court’s decision. Questions which, if resolved, may remove barriers to
individuals transitioning to the community.

» Recent DOJ investigations and filings under the Civil Rights of Institutionalized
Persons Act (CRIPA) have made clear that Olmstead issues are deeply
intertwined with problems of inadequate conditions, and solving these problems
must look at whether the people in the facility belong there and whether the
institution is complying with laws governing discharge planning and transition.

900 SECOND STREET NE, SUITE 211 + WAaSHINGTON, DC 20002-3560
TEL: 202.408.9514 + FaX: 202.408.9520 + TTY: 202.408.9521
WEBSITE: WWW .NDRN.ORG ¢ E-MAIL: INFO@NDRN.ORG
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Hopefully, we will see a similar sense of urgency at the new HHS, Office of Civil Rights;
and this aggressive commitment to enforcement of the Olmstead mandate will continue
throughout the full Obama Administration and beyond. The ebbs and flows of budgets
may pressure DOJ and the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) to
slow their commitment. However, America can't afford to slow down community
integration. We have a generation of baby boomers facing disabilities as a result of
aging, and thousands of recently wounded Iraq and Afghanistan veterans who deserve
a future outside of institutions.

Sincerely,

Curtis L. Decker
Executive Director
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NDRN is the nonprofit
membership organization for
the federally mandated
Protection and Advocacy (P&A)
Systems and Client Assistance
Programs (CAP) for individuals
with disabilities. Collectively, the
P&A/CAP network is the largest
provider of legally based
advocacy services to people
with disabilities in the United
States. NDRN provides legally
based assistance to P&As and
works at the national and state
levels to create a society in
which people with disabilities
are afforded equality of
opportunity.

Krdek

NDRN calls for more
urgent federal action to
compel compliance with

the civil right to live in,
work and enjoy the
community.

L — " "]

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A decade ago, the U.S. Supreme Court ordered States to stop
unnecessarily segregating individuals with disabilities in
institutions in order to receive long term services.1 Yet, ten
years later, there has been little national progress moving
people with disabilities out of nursing facilities and public
institutions and into communities with supports.2 People who
want to live with their families and neighbors are still
needlessly confined in large public and private institutions.
NDRN calls for more urgent federal action to compel
compliance with this civil right.

The National Disability Rights Network (NDRN) reviewed the
efforts of the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) and the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) -- two
agencies charged with enforcing the Supreme Court’s
mandate. At HHS, we found a reliance on short-term
voluntary financial incentives to encourage state compliance,
coupled with a lack of monitoring and data collection about
the effectiveness of these efforts. At DOJ, we found a lack of
attention to enforcement of the ADA's integration mandate
and many missed opportunities. Particularly when compared
to DOJ’s heavy focus on the need to fix up those crumbling
old institutions that have a history of failing to keep its
residents safe from abuse and neglect, this approach is an
affront to people waiting — often for decades - in
inappropriate institutions for the opportunity to return to the
home communities.

The Obama Administration has announced that 2009 will be

the “Year of Community Living."3 This is a hopeful sign of a renewed federal

commitment to ending unnecessary institutionalization. There is no more time to waste.
Our society is aging and more people are in need of community supports to remain
employed and at home. Neither must we fail the hundreds of recent veterans who may
return home to face institutionalization because of an inadequate community supports.

This report offers stories of individuals who are unnecessarily institutionalized and
recommends practical strategies for HHS and DOJ to do more to spur compliance with

1 See Olmstead v. L.C. ex rel Zimring, 527 U.S. 581(1999) holding that it is a violation of the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) to unnecessarily segregate an individual in an institution to receive care when
these supports could be provided in the community.

2 See Braddock et al., State of the States in Developmental Disabilities, University of Colorado 2008 at
101-305. (Some states have made significant progress moving individuals into appropriate community
settings. However, a handful of states have actually increased their institutional populations.)

3 http://www.ich.qovireadmore/THE YEAR_OF COMMUNITY LIVING.htm

2o



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

Americans’ civil right to remain living and working in the community. Americans waiting
to leave institutions include both adults and children. For example:

Dan Smith (not his real name) is in his thirties and has Down Syndrome resulting in a
mild intellectual disability. He successfully lived with his family in the community until 15
years ago when both his parents passed away, then he was moved into a 96-bed
institution. He is capable of taking care of his needs, and can read, knows how to
balance a checkbook, and held a job at a video store until the store closed. He is
known as friendly with an engaging sense of humor. Mr. Smith would very much like to
move to a small community-based group home in a setting closer to one of his siblings.
He is frustrated after living so many years in an institution with very little privacy and
severe limits on his choices, including those as basic as when to get up in the morning
or when to turn out his reading light at night. His doctors at the institution have
determined that the community would be more appropriate for Mr. Smith, but he
remains needlessly confined in the institution.

David (not his real name) is 8 years old and has intensive mental health needs. He s
eligible for Medicaid and his mother has asked for the therapeutic home-based mental
health services that his doctor has prescribed. Medicaid has denied these medically
necessary home based services and as a result, on numerous occasions, David has
been forced to leave his family and go to the state hospital in order to obtain limited,
episodic mental health treatment. At his young age removal from his family adds to the
trauma he already experiences from his psychiatric impairment. David is at a critical
period of development in his life. Denial of the services he needs like case
management, crisis intervention, and in-home supports is causing long-term damage
that can affect his later ability to live successfully in the community.
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A Decade of “Little Progress” Implementing
Olmstead:
Evaluating Federal Agency Impact

The Olmstead Decision: A Mandate for Community Integration

A decade ago, In O/mstead v. Lois Curtis and Elaine Wilson the U.S. Supreme Court
ruled that unjustified institutional isolation of people with disabilities is a form of
discrimination under the Americans with Disabilities Act.4 To remedy or avoid such
discrimination, States are required to provide community-based services for persons
with disabilities, who are otherwise entitled to institutional services, when:

1) the State’s treatment professionals reasonably determine that community placement
is appropriate;

2) the person does not oppose such placement; and,

3) the placement can reasonably be accommodated, taking into account resources
available to the State and the needs of others receiving state-supported disability

services.5

The ADA’s reasonable accommodation regulation does not require states to make
“fundamental alterations” in its services or programs.s However, just what constitutes a
fundamental alteration has been the subject of much litigation over the past decade.7
Significantly, however, the Court said that States can show that they are reasonably
accommodating persons with disabilities if they develop a comprehensive, effectively
working plan for placing qualified individuals in less restrictive settings, and a waiting list
that moves at a reasonable pace not controlled by a State’s efforts to keep its

4 Olmstead, 527 U.S. at 597.
5 Id. at 607

6 Id. at 595
7 See e.g.: Radeszewski v. Maram, 383 F.3d 599, 613-14 (7th Cir. 2004); Fisher v. Oklahoma Health Care

Auth., 335 F.3d 1175, 1182-83 (10th Cir. 2003); Townsend v. Quasim, 328 F.3d 511, 520 (9th Cir.
2003);,Pennsylvania Protection and Advocacy, Inc. v. Pennsylvania Dept of Public Welfare, 402 F.3d 374 (3d
Cir. 2005); Frederick L. v. Dept of Public Welfare, 364 F.3d 487 (3d Cir. 2004), and Sanchez v Johnson, 2005
WL 1804195,

6
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institutions fully populated.s

Data Shows Little National Progress Providing Disability Supports in the Most
Integrated Settings Appropriate to the Individual

The data over the past 10 years shows only a modest 11% reduction, nationwide, in the
numbers of persons with intellectual disabilities living in public or private institutions
(with 7 or more beds). In 1998, the number was 182,490 and in 2006, the number was
159,909.9 The data for individuals with mental illness living in state hospitals is similarly
disappointing. Twenty years of national state hospital census data (1984-2003) were
used to assess trends in the rate of declines from pre- to post-Olmstead periods. The
data shows a steady decline in census over 20 years, but the decline has slowed
significantly during the post-Olmstead period.10

On a state level, the level of progress varies greatly. Some States have made dramatic
progress reducing the number of individuals with intellectual disabilities (the data is not
available for individuals residing in state hospitals) residing in institutions, while a few
states have made no progress.11 As of 2006, the states with the fewest amount of
individuals with intellectual disabilities living in their own homes or small group homes
(homes with 6 or fewer persons) are: Alabama, Arizona, Georgia, lllinois, Kentucky,
Mississippi, South Carolina, Texas, Utah, and Virginia.12 Another way of measuring
progress is to look at the percentages in which States have lowered their spending on
institutions. Unfortunately, seven States failed to lower their level of spending on
institutions for individuals with intellectual disabilities13 in the decade between 1996 and
2006, including: Connecticut, lowa, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, Nebraska, and
New Jersey.14

Statistics also show that, nationwide, America continues to spend a greater percentage
of its Medicaid long-term-care dollars in institutions rather than on community supports
and services. According to a report by Thompson/Reuters, in FY 2007, nationally, only
42% of all Medicaid long term care costs where spent on community-based services,
including, home and community-based (HCBS) waivers, the personal care option, and
the home health services option. During the same period, 58% if all Medicaid long term
care dollars were spent on institutional care, including nursing facilities and intermediate
care facilities (ICF) for individuals with intellectual disabilities.15

8 Olmstead, 527 U.S. at 605-606.

9 State of the States in Developmental Disabilities, at 308.

10PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES ¢ ps.psychiatryonline.org ¢ October 2006 Vol. 57 No. 10, p. 1. State
Psychiatric Hospital Census After the 1999 Olmstead Decision: Evidence of Decelerating
Deinstitutionalization , Mark S. Salzer, Ph.D., Katy Kaplan, M.Ed. and Joanne Atay, M.A.

11 Braddock,at 101-305 (state profiles)

12 /0. at 19.

13 The author could not find information on level of spending for state hospitals for individuals with mental
iliness by state.

14 1d. at9. .
15 Medicaid Long-Term Care Expenditures in FY 2007, September 26, 2008, By Brian Burwell, Kate

Sredl, and Steve Eiken, Healthcare Thomson Reuters, 1 (http://www.ancor.org/issues/Data-
Statistics/Data-Statistics.html).
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The data can be broken out differently to reveal that the shift to community-based care
is particularly slow for elderly persons and persons with disabilities other than
intellectual disabilities. Specifically, if funding for ICFs is removed, 69% of Medicaid
long term care services were spent in state hospitals and nursing facilities and only
31% on community-based services.16

The slow shift of funding towards community services for the elderly and persons with
mental or physical disabilities is in sharp contrast to an AARP survey showing that “89%
of people 50 years and older intend to remain in their own homes rather than go to
nursing facilities."17 The failure to shift dollars to the community also makes no fiscal
sense, as demonstrated by a recent AARP study which showed that "[O]n average,
Medicaid dollars can support nearly three older people and adults with physical
disabilities in Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) for every person in a
nursing home.”18

So why have some States made significant progress complying with the ADA's
integration mandate and others made none? Generally, it is due to a lack of leadership,
a lack of responsiveness to the requests or demands of persons with disabilities, and a
lack of compliance with federal law. Sometimes, there is opposition to downsizing or
closure of an institution among some family members of those in institutions or by
unions whose members work in institutions. In addition, legislators representing districts
where institutions are situated can be protective of the economic and other benefits
they derive from the institutions. The lliinois P&A, known as Equip for Equality, studied
this phenomenon in their State and learned

that it is possible to address the concerns of parents of institutional residents,
unions, and political representatives without reneging on the state’s
responsibilities to people with disabilities and their right to live in the least
restrictive setting. Common strategies for overcoming opposition to
community living included having parents and guardians of family members
in the institutions meet with parents whose children have successfully
transitioned into the community. Additionally, parents and guardians were
sometimes apprised of the many longitudinal studies that show that, despite
initial opposition to deinstitutionalization, parents of individuals in institutions
had come to view the experiences of their family members in the community
as positive, affording a better quality of life than the institution. In the case of
unions, their concerns have often been addressed by finding jobs for their
members in state-operated community residences or elsewhere in state
government.19

16 /d. at Table | Medicaid expenditures for long-term care services FY 2007.
17 Across the States Profiles of Long Term Care and Independent Living"
(http://assets.aarp.org/rgcenter/i/d19105 2008 ats.pdf), 3

18 /d.
19 SEGREGATION OR COMMUNITY INTEGRATION: ENSURING THE CIVIL RIGHTS OF PEOPLE WiTH DEVELOPMENTAL

DISABILITIES IN ILLINOIS (2004) 4 HTTP://IWWW.EQUIPFOREQUALITY.ORG/PUBLICATIONS/CIPPREPORT.PHP
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The Federal Government Has A Key Role In Ending Unnecessary
Institutionalization

In 2001, recognizing the leadership role that federal agencies can have to facilitate
Olmstead implementation, then President Bush signed Executive Order 13217, which
required all federal agencies to evaluate their regulations, policies, and programs to
determine whether any should be revised or modified to improve the availability of
community-based services for individuals with disabilities.20 The two federal agencies
we are reviewing in this report, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services;
and the U.S. Department of Justice completed this evaluation and identified numerous
steps they could take to facilitate community integration.21

A. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

The Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) Office of Civil Rights (OCR) is
primarily responsible for ensuring that HHS policy promotes access to home and
community-based services for individuals with disabilities. As part of that effort, the
HHS Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) also has a role to ensure that
Medicaid policy is administered in a manner that does not lead to unnecessary
institutionalization. Both of these agencies have focused on enforcement but could be
much more aggressive and transparent in their efforts.

Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

OCR is the agency primarily responsible for ensuring that state HHS agencies comply
with Olmstead. In this role they immediately began educating states about Olmstead’s
requirements and the possible implications for HHS programs. In particular, OCR
advised states concerning development of a comprehensive effectively working plan for
moving unnecessarily institutionalized persons into the community.22 On January 14,
2000, OCR and CMS issued a joint letter to state Medicaid Directors indicating that
state plan development would be an initial focus of OCR’s enforcement efforts. It reads:

Our intent in this enclosure is to identify some of the key principles, including the
involvement of people with disabilities throughout the planning and
implementation process. These principles also will be used by the Office for Civil
Rights as it investigates complaints and conducts compliance reviews involving
"most integrated setting” issues. We strongly recommend that States factor in
these principles and practices as they develop plans tailored to their needs.

20 See: http://www.presidency.ucsb.edu/ws/index.php?pid=61498

21 For the DOJ and HHS responses to EO 13217 see
http://www.namiscc.org/newsletters/December01/hhs-report.htm

22 Olmstead at 605-606 (The Supreme Court had ruled that such a plan would provide states with a
fundamental alteration defense to a judicial finding that the state is in violation of the ADA integration

mandate).
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This letter also signaled to states that OCR would be investigating complaints and
conducting compliance reviews. This program guidance from HHS was a standard
against which states and advocates could monitor and assess Olmstead compliance.
The other component of OCR’s enforcement efforts was to encourage disability
advocates to file complaints with their office on behalf of individuals who were
unnecessarily institutionalized. Unfortunately, neither OCR's intent to hold states
accountable to Olmstead plans, nor its outreach to citizens to file Olmstead complaints,
was implemented effectively.

For example, OCR’s push for disability advocates to file O/mstead complaints, was
followed up by an investigation process that frequently excluded the individuals who
filed complaints. While not universal, many OCR regional offices failed to acknowledge
receipt of complaints or follow-up regarding the outcome of the investigation. The
“closed” investigation process also meant that, with a few exceptions, OCR has not
consulted with protection and advocacy agencies (P&As) or other advocates when
investigating a complaint. P&As could provide OCR investigators with information to
help them determine whether the violation is restricted to one resident or is evidence of
a systemic failure within the institution.

OCR'’s non-transparent approach to its investigations persists at the national level as
well. The Office has released only raw data and minimal details about investigations
and compliance reviews conducted. In the future, we urge OCR to release more
information about the process used and specific outcomes of its Olmstead complaint
investigations. Better data would help states and advocates to assess state compliance
efforts, and tell us if OCR is resolving complaints on a systems level. For example,
releasing data on the particular settings that are the subject of O/mstead complaints,
would allow P&As to identify which facilities are frequent settings of Olmstead
complaints. With this information P&As and advocates would know to reach out to
these facilities with training and information on best practices for conducting community
needs assessments and discharge planning.

OCR efforts to monitor state Olmstead plan development and implementation has also
been less aggressive and transparent than what is needed to ensure Olmstead
compliance. HHS's January 2000 guidelines for state plans seemed promising, but
there is no evidence that, after 2002, states plans were reviewed to ascertain
compliance with these guidelines.23

At a minimum, OCR needs to begin, on an annual basis, tracking whether states are
making progress reducing their institutional census or decreasing institutional spending.
States that are not making noticeable progress ending inappropriate institutionalization
should be feeling public pressure from OCR to make changes or face a DOJ lawsuit.
OCR could also track which states have applied for the federal grants made available

23 In 2002 the US DOJ did issue a letter of corrections that cited Olmstead and referred to the guidelines
for “state Olmstead plans” that were set out in the January 2000 letter, See
http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/split/documents/laguna_honda hosp.pdf
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over the past decade to incentive state spending on home and community-based
services. Those states that did not apply for any of these programs could be prioritized
for OCR technical assistance and assessment of Olmstead compliance. OCR should
also put the U.S. Department of Justice on notice that these states may be violating the
Olmstead mandate.

Data shows that seven states have failed to decrease their spending on institution
services, 2 Yet, OCR does not appear to have questioned these states Olmstead
compliance efforts. If OCR has done so secretly, it is time to break the silence.
Reprimanding a state secretly is not nearly as effective an enforcement tool as if the
state is publically warned to increase its compliance efforts.

On a funding level, OCR’s ability to enforce Olmstead aggressively over the past 10
years has been hamstringed. In the year of Olmstead’s passage, a Commission report
stated that:

OCR operates under severe budgetary constraints . . . OCR’s responsibilities
and workload have increased over the past several years, yet its funding and
staffing have decreased. OCR’s budget has fluctuated around $20 million since
1981, and has not kept up with inflation.?

Three years later the Annual budget for OCR was not significantly increased?® and yet
OCR enforcement responsibilities had greatly expanded to include not only oversight of
Olmstead, but also of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Happily,
this funding trend is beginning to change. The 2008 -2009 budget contained a six
million dollar increase, and the 2009-2010 budget has a slight one million dollar
increase. A tight budget however, does not excuse a failure to approach Olmstead
enforcement more systemically and to reach out to P&As and disability advocates as a
component of its enforcement reviews. Neither should it mean so few compliance
reviews are conducted, nor effect whether details of these reviews are made known to

the public.

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), Department of Health and
Human Services

CMS can provide the regulatory framework for States to rebalance Medicaid long-term
care funding to facilitate community integration. Unfortunately, over the past 10 years,
CMS has not appeared aggressive in its efforts to look for policy changes that would
promote community integration. First let's switch from what CMS could have done to
what the U.S. could have done to promote compliance with the Olmstead mandate. The
U.S. Congress has not been as helpful as it could be to advance movement from
institutions to the community. Specifically, Congress has passed mainly short term

24 Braddock at 9.
% U.S. Commission on Civil Rights - Funding Federal Civil Rights Enforcement: 2000-2003, published

April 2002 available at: http://www.usccr.gov/pubs/criund02/report.htm
26 Budget of the United States Government, Fiscal Year 2003, at 466.
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financial incentive programs that states can voluntarily apply for in order to receive
funding to promote movement from institutions to the community. Some of the major
financial incentives Congress has passed over the past decade include:

. Congress in 2000 created the Real Choice Systems Change grant program.
Between June 2001 and June 2008, over 8 funding cycles, 342 Real Choice
Systems Change grants have been issued awarding approximately $270
million to the 50 states, the District of Columbia and two U.S. territories27.

. Section 6071 of the 2005 Deficit Reduction Act, created the Money Follows
the Person Rebalancing Demonstration, which makes it easier for states to
apply for home and community based waivers. The program authorized $1.7
billion in grants to states and lasts from 2007-2011.

. Another section of the Deficit Reduction Act established a demonstration
program so people with disabilities will receive a single comprehensive
assessment on the date of discharge from a hospital. The purpose of the
"comprehensive assessment” is to "determine the appropriate placement of
such patient in a post-acute care site. The "assessment instrument”
establishes a presumption for community-services, and a hospital protocol
that focuses on home and community-based services.

. the Health Insurance Flexibility and Accountability Initiative, one aspect of
which is to make it simpler and easier for states to submit waiver requests
and to have those requests promptly considered.

These programs have been vital to some states that have moved individuals out of
inappropriate institutions and into the community with supports28. However other states
applied and did not receive funding or never even applied for funding. Another big
problem with Congressional reliance on short-term grants to re-balance Medicaid is the
constant threat that as the Olmstead decision becomes a distant memory Congress will
shift their funding to newer priorities and Olmstead grants will dry up.

It would be much quicker if Congress facilitated Olmstead compliance by changing the
Medicaid statute. Current Medicaid law makes it mandatory for all states that participate
in the Medicaid program to provide institution based care for those who need it. On the

27 http://www.cms.hhs.gov/RealChoice/

28 The largest of these grants is the Real Choice Systems Change grants, which include: the Money
Follows the Person Initiative; the Independence Plus Initiative; a national state-to-state technical
assistance program for community living at Rutgers University; family-to-family heaith care information
and education centers; community-based treatment alternatives for children; respite care for children; and
technical assistance for consumer task forces; respite care for adults; and 2 demonstration projects,
including, one to assess a new definition of homebound for purposes of Medicaid coverage; and the
second, to attract and retain home health workers.
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other hand, there is no requirement for states to provide home and community based
services for those who need it, provision of these services is optional. This is known as
Medicaid’s institutional bias and it is a statutory requirement that hinders compliance
with the Olmstead mandate. For nearly a decade, some members of Congress have
introduced bills attempting to correct the institutional bias in Medicaid law. 29
Unfortunately, these bills have not passed.

Switching from what Congress to do, back to what CMS can do to enforce Olmstead,
there are many ways CMS can promote Olmstead enforcement without needing
Congressional action. Over the past decade CMS has done some work in this area, but
with national data still showing that more funding goes to institutions than to the
community, it is clear more needs to be done. Some examples of CMS Olmstead
related efforts in the past decade include:

. clarifying that Medicaid waiver funds can be used to cover one-time transition
costs associated with moving and to purchase medical equipment for nursing
facility residents in the process of transitioning to the community;

. providing guidance on how to use existing CMS Medicaid data (known as
minimum data set) to identify individuals who are in nursing facilities and
have indicated an interest in moving to the community with supports. The
guidance also discussed the reasonable accommodation requirements of
Title Il of the ADA.

. working with HUD to coordinate Medicaid HCBS transition programs with
HUD housing. Collaboration is vital because Medicaid does not pay for room
and board. Some examples of CMS coordination with HUD over the past
decade, include: the Access Housing initiative which targeted 2000 vouchers
over 5 years for persons transitioning out of nursing facilities; awarding funds
to housing authorities to improve accessibility in public housing; and removing
policy barriers that made it difficult for people with disabilities to utilize
housing vouchers.

CMS policy has not always supported community integration, however. For example,
on December 4, 2007, CMS issued an interim final rule on case management services.
The rule restricted payment for transitional case management, a vital support for
individuals with disabilities. Advocates and providers submitted comments to CMS
arguing that the rule would make it more difficult for community providers to offer
individuals with mental illness coordinated mental health, substance abuse, and primary
care.30 Despite knowledge of its negative impact, CMS went forward with the rule.

29 Examples of allowing individuals eligible for skilled nursing facility care to receive community based
attendant services, include: The Medicaid Community Attendant Services and Supports Act (S. 971); the
Community Choice Act (CCA) (S683/HR1670) and the Community First Choice Act included in a 2009
Senate health reform proposal.

30 http://www.ncd.qov/newsroom/publications/2OOQ/pdf/ProqressReport.pdf at 33.
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CMS has also failed to accept advocates recommendations on low-cost, simple ways to
remove administrative barriers to community integration. For example: broadening
state authority to cover “nurse delegated” services (nursing services that a nurse can
legally delegate under state law to a lower level qualified provider — thus reducing the
cost and increasing the possibility that an individual can find a community-based
provider of the needed service); and prohibiting states from requiring that beneficiaries
be homebound before they can receive home health services. This reluctance to
remove known regulatory barriers to community integration — perpetuates the feeling
that Olmstead compliance is not taken as seriously as a civil right.

The good news is that the current Administration was willing to partially rescind the
harmful rule on Medicaid coverage of targeted case management, May 6, 2009. Also
that summer, the Administration broadened state authority to cover “nurse delegated
services” and loosened Medicare’s homebound requirements. Another positive step
forward is the recent draft regulations which would eliminate the diagnosis based
criteria for Medicaid waivers, and replace it with the more encompassing “needs based”
criteria. Hopefully, these long awaited regulatory fixes will continue.

One area ripe for HHS program guidance relates to the connection between Pre-
Admission Screening and Resident Review (PASRR) and Olmstead enforcement.
PASRR is a provision of federal Medicaid law.31 It requires states to screen individuals
with intellectual disabilities or mental iliness prior to placing them in a nursing facility, to
determine whether the individual requires nursing facility level services or whether their
needs can be met in the community. PASRR is designed to prevent inappropriate
placement of people with intellectual disabilities or mental illness in a Medicaid certified
nursing facility when community living is appropriate. PASRR also requires states to
provide people with these disabilities living in nursing facilities with the therapy and
health care that would assist them to be able to move to the community.

In 2006 The HHS, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, issued
a report on PASRR implementation in nursing facilities and found that 34 states have
“some consideration of PASRR within the broader context of their Olmstead
planning”32. HHS went on to recommend that CMS “Increase guidance to States,
clarify/modify certain regulations.”33

CMS should fulfill this recommendation and issue guidance clarifying that: 1) a PASRR
determination that a nursing facility is needed should only be made by a staff member
adequately trained in meeting mental illness needs; and 2) If an individual is found to
require specialized services to treat their mental iliness, the State Medicaid agency
ultimately is responsible for providing or arranging for provision of those specialized

31 Nursing Home Reform Act under the Omnibus Reconciliation Act (OBRA) of 1987, as amended by
OBRA 1990, 42 USC 1396r (e) (7), later revised by the Balanced Budget Act of 1996.

32 "PASRR Screening for Mental lliness in Nursing Facility Applicants and Residents” at:
http://nasmd.aphsa.org/medicaid _mental/docs/PASRR_Screening for Mental liiness in Nursing Faciliti

es.pdf page 35.
33 /d. at 37.
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services.. The guidance would also encourage states to: 1) have a policy linking people
found eligible for “skilled nursing facility level of care” to appropriate community based
services to support these needs; 2) request permission from CMS to obtain and use
Medicaid data to identify people in nursing facilities who have indicated they wish to
leave; and 3) expand PASRR reviews to include individuals with brain and spinal cord

injuries.

B. The U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ)

Civil Rights Division, U.S. Department of Justice

The DOJ Civil Rights Division (CRD) has enforcement authority for the ADA Title II, and
the “integration mandate” regulation. Yet, a CRD October 2008 report to Congress on
DOJ enforcement of the Americans with Disabilities Act “Access for All: Five Years of
Progress Enforcing the ADA” includes no mention of the Olmstead decision or any
Division efforts to enforce the integration mandate of Title Il. This is not to say that the
DOJ has not enforced Olmstead, it has done so, but it has never brought a suit primarily
to ensure Olmstead compliance.

As of the time this research was completed, in September 2008, DOJ O/mstead
enforcement has been a secondary outcome of DOJ’s main focus which is squarely on
enforcement of the Civil Rights of Institutionalized Persons Act (CRIPA). CRIPA allows
the DOJ to investigate conditions in public residential facilities and to take appropriate
action if they see a pattern or practice of unlawful conditions, such as abuse or neglect
that deprives persons confined in the facilities of their constitutional or federal statutory
rights. DOJ indicates in its 2008 Report of Activities to Enforce CRIPA that one aspect
of CRIPA enforcement is to “ensure that public officials operating healthcare facilities
are taking adequate steps to provide services to residents in the most integrated setting
appropriate to their needs”34

From January 20, 2001 through September 30, 2008, the Division opened 94 CRIPA
investigations, issued 71 findings letters, filed 32 cases, and obtained 69 substantial
agreements.35 As is the case with U.S. HHS, data available concerning DOJ
.enforcement of ADA integration mandate is available but is not comprehensive. This
National Council on Disability spoke of this problem in a 2005 report stating that:

In short, DOJ’s annual reports make it impossible for Congress or other
interested parties to monitor DOJ’s work. More important, the absence of
strong annual reports undermines DOJ’s ability to leverage its work
through voluntary compliance and serves to discourage people in
institutions from reporting illegal conditions in institutions to DOJ. .. [NCD]
Recommendation: DOJ should improve its CRIPA enforcement reports to
Congress by including the full range of data required under the statute.

34 Department of Justice Activities Under the Civil Rights of Institutionalized Persons Act Fiscal Year 2008
http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/split/documents/split_cripa08.pdf , 19).
351d. at 2
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Doing so will increase accountability and enable the public to better
understand the Federal Government's enforcement of the rights of people
who reside in institutions.36

The data we have shows that over the past 10 years CRIPA activities have not focused
on integration mandate compliance with the same commitment as it does whether the
state plans to fix up institutions that have failed to keep residents safe from abuse and

neglect.

A particular frustration documented by NDRN is the DOJ’s willingness to sign
settlements affecting individuals living in institutions without ensuring that residents will
receive services in the most integrated settings appropriate and a failure to collaborate
with the P&A systems when completing CRIPA investigations. These frustrations were
also expressed by NCD in 2005 in a report to Congress that recommended:

[CRIPA] Department staff should err on the side of being more, rather than less,
prescriptive in case settlements. Department staff should insist on specific
outcomes rather than more general policies and procedures to remedy violations
and guard against regression when monitoring ends [and] DOJ should make
better use of local protection and advocacy agencies charged with investigating
abuse and neglect in institutions, and other nonprofit advocacy organizations
with well-established records of protecting the rights of people in institutions.”37

DOJ CRIPA settiements can be an important vehicle for ensuring state Olmstead
compliance. Yet, an NDRN review of several proposed and approved CRIPA settlement
agreements reached by the DOJ between 2005 - 2009 with states and municipalities,
revealed that the focus of these settlements was heavily tilted toward improving
conditions at facilities and little on ensuring residents will be receiving services in the
most integrated settings appropriate to their needs.38

In considering the essential provisions for a DOJ CRIPA settlement, minimum
requirements for any agreement should include adoption of the principal of providing
services in the most integrated setting and the recognition and acceptance that all
individuals can be served in the community. A settlement should ensure: individual
involvement; informed decision-making and choice; person-centered planning;
transition planning; implementation of plans; developing and expanding community
capacity; monitoring of community placements; and quality assurance. Until future DOJ
settlements focus on community integration, instead of just improving services in
already failing institutions, the Department is virtually guaranteeing that institutions
remain the status quo for individuals with disabilities.

36 The Civil Rights of Institutionalized Persons Act: Has It Fulfilled Its Promise??, by the National Council
on Disability August 8, 2005http://www.ncd.gov/newsroom/publications/2005/personsact. htm#appendixiii
37 Id. at "Executive Summary.”

38 This report and press release, “National Disability Rights Network Applauds “Year of Community
Living”, Continues to Question Department of Justice Pouring Millions into Preservation of Failed
Institutions,” is available at http://www.ndrn.org/media/default.htm
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In addition, DOJ should clarify some oft litigated ADA integration mandate questions.
One method of clarification is to issue “DOJ findings letters.” Excerpted below is an
April 2003 DOJ “letter of findings” regarding an agreement entered with San Francisco
in July 2001 under its CRIPA authority. The DOJ and HHS, OCR conducted a joint
review of the California Laguna Honda Hospital and Rehabilitation Center (LHH) and
issued these findings related to the City’'s compliance with Title Il of the ADA. It is one
of very few good examples of DOJ clarification of O/mstead requirements:

[DOJ and OCR] have identified several areas of deficiencies that
contribute to the unnecessary isolation of qualified residents at LHH.
These areas include inadequate assessments, inadequate discharge
planning, and inadequate capacity in the community to meet the needs of
LHH residents for whom community placement is appropriate3as.

The letter goes on to list specific actions that “at a minimum” LHH and San Francisco
must take to remedy including:

Allocate adequate funding for, or otherwise provide home and
community-based services to ensure that LHH residents are not
unnecessarily isolated at LHH; and 2) Develop and implement a
system-wide assessment of various subcontracted community
programs to identify network gaps as well as areas of highest demand,
and to provide a basis for comprehensive planning, administration, and
resource targeting in San Francisco.40

Another mechanism for clarifying integration mandate requirements is by filing or
intervening in cases that raise questions about the scope of the legal mandate. As the
National Council on Disability (NCD) noted in its 2000 report “Promises to Keep: A
Decade of Federal Enforcement of The Americans with Disabilities Act™

The Department of Justice's ability to enforce ADA is not restricted to
waiting for individuals with disabilities to file complaints of violations.
Compliance monitoring refers to proactive measures to assess and
ensure conformance with the requirements of a law in advance of the
report of a violation.41

The NCD report further explains that;
Title Il of the ADA ... is subject to the same remedies, procedures,

and rights set forth in Section 505 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
[which]... is subject to the same remedies, procedures, and rights

39 See,http://www.usdoj.govicrt/split/documents/laguna _honda hosp.pdf Page 3.
40 Id. at 25.

41 7 at: http://www.ncd.gov/newsroom/publications/2000/promises 2.htm

[See section 2.4 Compliance monitoring]
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set forth in title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Under the
Department of Justice's regulations implementing Title VI, the
Department shall conduct periodic compliance reviews of recipients
to determine whether they are complying with Title VI. (28 C.F.R. §
42.107(a).) Thus, through this chain of references, the Department
has authority to conduct compliance reviews under [ADA] Title 11.42

The Obama Administration has indicated that it intends to move in this direction.
Hopefully, future reports will show examples of DOJ cases brought to enforce the
Olmstead mandate; DOJ intervention to support plaintiffs in Olmstead cases brought by
private attorneys; strong community integration requirements in all relevant CRIPA
settlements; and a focus on the importance of person-centered transition planning; and
Olmstead compliance in all relevant CRIPA investigations.

Other methods of DOJ Olmstead guidance need to continue. For example, it is vital
that DOJ clarify the meaning of the language in O/mstead which states that, “Nothing in
the ADA or its implementing regulations condones termination of institutional settings
for persons unable to handle or benefit from community settings.”43 A few courts have
held that states must maintain institutions just so that individuals living in an institution
can remain in their current institution.44 The majority of courts, however, have held that
there is nothing in Olmstead that suggests that a state has to provide institutionalized
care at the facility of the resident’s choosing. The integration mandate is simply the right
to be transferred to a community placement, if medically appropriate and if the State
can reasonably accommodate the placement.45

Just as vital is the need for DOJ advice on what constitutes a fundamental alteration in
the context of the Olmstead decisions. This could include guidance on the interplay
between Medicaid waiver cost caps and the integration mandate and re-iteration of the
necessary components for a comprehensive effectively working state plan for moving
individuals into the most integrated settings.

INDIVIDUALS WAIT NEEDLESSLY IN INAPPROPRIATE SETTINGS

P&As hear from dozens of people each year seeking assistance to avoid or move out of
nursing facilities, intermediate care facilities and state hospitals, and return to their own
homes, neighborhoods and communities with supports. The stories of just some of
these individuals follow.

42 [d.

43 OImstead v L.C. and E.W., at 601-602.

44 These arguments have been presented most powerfully and consistently by the Voice of the Retarded
45 See, Richard C. ex. Rel. Kathy B. v. Houstoun, 196 F.R.D. 288, 292 (W.D. 1999) aff. sub. nom,
Richard C. v. Snider, 229 F. 3d 1139 (Table) (3d Cir. 2000). By its specific terms, the integration mandate
requires movement from more to less restrictive settings, not the reverse. See, Richard C. v. Houston,
196 F.R.D. 288, 291-92 (W.D. Pa. 1999).
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A 55 year old client with mild intellectual disability and anxiety disorder had been living
in a state-operated residential facility since 1969. Because of her anxiety, the client
was afraid of the extensive dental work she needed. In 2008, a PADD advocate of the
Office of Protection and Advocacy for Persons with Disabilities (the Connecticut P&A)
helped the client try an anti-anxiety medication and begin a desensitization process of
regular dentist visits. As a result, the client had several successful dental
appointments, has made positive strides, and is making a plan for community
placement.

A 16 year old girl lived at a state hospital for approximately 8 months due to self-
inflicting, harmful behaviors. The client lived in one particular foster home in her home
county where she wished to return upon discharge. The hospital agreed she was no
longer a suicide risk, but had made no plans for her release. The client's former foster
parent called Disability Rights Wisconsin (the Wisconsin P&A) to get her out of the
hospital. P&A staff attended discharge planning meetings and helped to prepare an
appropriate plan of services. She now lives with the foster family of her choice and is
doing well in the community.

Indiana Protection and Advocacy Services (the Indiana P&A) helped a 23-year-old man
with quadriplegia from a spinal cord injury who wished to remain in his temporary home,
given to him through community placement. The client was happy with the fully-
accessible home in which he had a spacious room, roll-in shower, and private deck.
However, his insurance company and case manager informed him that the placement
was only temporary. The client’s provider determined he could stay if he received more
hours of personal care assistant (PCA) supports. At the client’s request, PAIR staff
helped him complete and submit a PCA appeal to the Department of Human Services
(DHS), which determined he needed a higher number of PCA hours for proper care.
The increased PCA hours enabled the client to remain in his chosen home where he is
currently enjoying freedom to date his girlfriend, investigate post-secondary school
options, and maintain his health.

A 41 year old female with traumatic brain injury, intellectual disabilities and substance
abuse, contacted DisAbility Rights Idaho (the Idaho P&A) while residing at a state
facility. The client requested assistance to enter into a community outpatient addiction
recovery rehabilitation program she was told was necessary prior to a discharge from
the facility. PAIMI staff ensured that her discharge was planned and helped facilitate
transportation in the community. As a result of PAIMI intervention, the client completed
appropriate programming, was discharged, and is living independently in the community
with community supports.

Ohio Legal Rights Service (the Ohio P&A) helped a client who lived in a nursing facility
for more than a year and wanted to live in a home or apartment. PAIMI staff attended
team meetings and negotiated with staff and the client's guardian to permit discharge to
a home of the client's choice. However, the manager denied her application based on
presumptions about her ability to succeed in independent housing because of her
mental illness. PAIMI staff represented the client at an informal hearing to challenge
the denial of her application. The management reversed its decision and accepted the
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client's application for residency. PAIMI successfully protected the client from
discrimination based on disability, as well as her fair housing rights and right to
accommodations.

South Dakota Advocacy Services (the South Dakota P&A) assisted a 67 year old male
with severe depression and diabetes. The client’s treating physician considered placing
him at the state inpatient psychiatric hospital because he feared the client lacked the
ability to take care of his medical needs at home. PAIMI staff contacted the state’s
adult services department regarding funding and home health care service options.
PAIMI staff also contacted several of the client’s support systems in the community. A
civil commitment hearing was scheduled, and PAIMI staff met with the client’s court
appointed attorney and the qualified mental health professional conducting an
evaluation to determine whether to recommend long-term psychiatric care. Because of
PAIMI involvement, the petition for commitment was dismissed and the client was
discharged with more services and supports in place to continue living independently in

the community.

Disability Rights Oregon assisted a 12 year old with autism and bi-polar avoid
institutionalization and obtain appropriate community supports. The child’s mother
called requesting assistance accessing services for son. The school had told her that
the child was not welcome to return to any of the schools in the rural district. The
district told the mother that in order to get needed services she should sign over her
parental rights and make her son a ward of the state. The district said that if client hurts
his sister then the state would take both of the son and daughter away from their
mother. The client has episodes where he is emotionally distraught, kicks, throws
himself, shakes his head, etc and he can sometimes hurt others in the process. These
episodes are part of his disabilities. The district refused the mother’s requests for an
aide. The P&A helped the mother fight institutional placement. Instead appropriate
services were found in a day treatment program. The child is receiving services and
still able to return home with his family in the evenings.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE OBAMA ADMINISTRATION

In fulfillment of this Administration’s commitment to “The Year of Community Living”
HHS and DOJ must move beyond use of voluntary incentives, and spur on stubborn
states with mandates. States have had 10 years to beef up their community integration
infrastructure. For a handful of states the voluntary approach has been effective -
populations and funds are shifting. For the other states the time for voluntary action
has expired. In these states people are not moving off of community support waiting
lists at a reasonable pace; Olmstead plans have not been implemented and institution
censuses have barely declined. This is the Year for Community Living - the time in
which civil rights are taken seriously. NDRN urges the following recommendations:

A. Department of Justice:
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File and intervene in cases to support full enforcement of the ADA Integration
mandate.

Strengthen the community integration aspects of all future CRIPA
settlements.

Clarify some questions regarding the integration mandate on which federal
courts are split

Health and Human Services, Office of Civil Rights:

Prepare an annual report of state institutional census. This would include
tracking whether states are making progress reducing their institutional
census. States that are not make noticeable progress ending inappropriate
institutionalization should be under public pressure from OCR to make
changes or face a DOJ lawsuit.

Work collaboratively with P&As and disability advocates to supplement
Olmstead compliance reviews.

Conduct annual reviews in selected states which have failed to implement
plans that met the basic components identified in the January 14, 2000 HHS
letter to state Medicaid Directors.

Communicate with DOJ regarding state efforts, or lack thereof, to ensure that
individuals receive services in the most integrated settings appropriate to their
needs. Issues to report on could include: States which have reduced home
and community based programs; States that have not reduced populations in
either state hospitals, ICF’s, or nursing facility populations; and states that
have not applied for Medicaid community integration incentive programs.

Health and Human Services, Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Services:

Continue to collaborate with HUD, including announcing an expectation that
State Medicaid Agencies will coordinate funding and programs with state
housing finance departments, and state community development agencies;

Issue guidance to clarify PASRR requirements focusing on its role in
promoting community integration and preventing unnecessary placement in a
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nursing facility. Coordinate with DOJ to facilitate better enforcement of
PASRR requirements.

. Issue guidance clarifying that EPSDT can cover teenagers from 18 to 21 and
explaining promising practices in transition services.

. Issue guidance offering best practices in short-term mental health crisis
services. States that increase their crisis service capacity can minimize costly
and disruptive hospitalization.

CONCLUSION

This report has highlighted problematic trends in the federal approach to enforce the
Olmstead decision over the past decade. It is simply unacceptable, that after ten years
there has been little progress in reducing the numbers of Americans with disabilities,
nationwide, who live in institutions. The National Disability Rights Network offers this
report and recommendations with the hope that federal enforcement of the Olmstead
mandate by the U.S. Department of Justice and the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services -- the two agencies charged with enforcement — will turn the promise
of the Olmstead decision into a reality for all individuals languishing needlessly in
institutions.
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NATIONAL oK Y
DISABILITY RIGHTS "
NETWORK
Protection & Advocacy for Ingividuals with Disabilities
Press Release July 2, 2009

National Disability Rights Network Applauds “Year of Community Living”,
Continues to Question Department of Justice Pouring Millions into Preservation
of Failed Institutions

The National Disability Rights Network (NDRN) applauds President Obama's proclamation of
the “Year of Community Living,” but decries the Department of Justice’s continued support of
segregation of persons with disabilities. The recent proclamation of the “Year of Community
Living” from President Obama and the follow-up of specific programs from the Department of
Health and Human Services are important steps to the full integration of people with disabilities
into the community. However, across the Washington Mall at the Department of Justice (DOJ),
actions by the Special Litigation Section of the Civil Rights Division continue to force states to
funnel millions of precious state dollars into maintaining outmoded, discriminatory, and
dangerous facilities that will warehouse people with disabilities for generations to come.

On June 22, 1999, the U.S. Supreme Court, in Tommy Olmstead v Lois Curtis and Elaine
Wilson, ruled that unnecessarily segregating an individual into an institution when community
supports exist is a violation of the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) Title Il. Specifically, the
regulations covering Title |l of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12131, et seq., and its implementing
regulations at 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(d) contain what is commonly called “the integration mandate,”
requiring states to provide community-based services for persons with disabilities who are
otherwise entitled to institutional services, when certain factors are met.

Despite the ruling in Olmstead, the Department of Justice continues to carry out the Bush
Administration practice of forcing states to “fix up” facilities that many states have abandoned as
unworkable and unsafe settings for people with disabilities to live. A review by NDRN of
proposed and approved settlement agreements negotiated by DOJ under the Civil Rights of
Institutionalized Persons Act (CRIPA) clearly shows the failure of the DOJ to creatively work to
move people into the community in a planned and safe manner, in opposition to the will of a
vast majority of disability advocates. DOJ’s settlements stand in stark contrast to the litigation
brought by Protection and Advocacy agencies and others that have used the dreadful conditions
in these facilities to move to a more humane community based system.

If the Administration is serious about its commitment to community integration, it is critical that
DOJ CRIPA settlement agreements, including those pending in Texas, Georgia, and other
states, be directed toward improving community integration. By wasting hundreds of millions of
dollars in taxpayer money on segregated institutions, DOJ is virtually guaranteeing that these
failed institutions remain the status quo for individuals with developmental disabilities in Texas

and elsewhere.

Contact: Curt Decker, Executive Director, NDRN. 202-408-9514
curt.decker@ndrn.org
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COMPARISON CHARTS OF DOJ CRIPA SETTLEMENTS
VS. P&A SETTLEMENTS
(in cases involving ICF/MR or SNF)

In April 2001 President Bush signed Executive Order 13217, requiring all federal agencies to
evaluate Department regulations, policies, and programs to determine whether any should be
revised or modified to improve the availability of community-based services for individuals with
disabilities. The Department of Justice (DOJ) identified 33 actions that the Civil Rights Division
would take to help implement the decision, including enforcement of the ADA integration
mandate (Title Il) at issue in the Olmstead decision. Sadly, the data shows that the Civil Rights
Division has not focused on integration mandate compliance with the same commitment as it
has other provisions of the ADA.

A 2006 Department of Justice report to Congress on the department's enforcement in the
prior five years of the Americans with Disabilities Act, “Access for All: Five Years of Progress
Enforcing the ADA,” includes no mention of the O/mstead decision or any Civil Rights Division
efforts to enforce the integration mandate of Title Il. This is not to say that the DOJ has not
enforced Olmstead, it has done so, but it has never brought a suit primarily to ensure Olmstead
compliance. DOJ Olmstead enforcement has remained a secondary outcome of DOJ’s main
focus, which is squarely on enforcement of the Civil Rights of Institutionalized Persons Act

(CRIPA).

CRIPA allows the DOJ to investigate conditions in public residential facilities and to take
appropriate action if it sees a pattern or practice of unlawful conditions, such as abuse or
neglect, that deprives persons confined in the facilities of their constitutional or federal statutory
rights. While DOJ indicates in its 2008 Report of Activities to Enforce CRIPA that one aspect of
CRIPA enforcement is to “ensure that public officials operating healthcare facilities are taking
adequate steps to provide services to residents in the most integrated setting appropriate to
their needs,” this often becomes too insignificant an aspect of CRIPA settlements.

NDRN has reviewed several proposed and approved settlement agreements reached by the
U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) between 2005 - 2009 with states and municipalities under
their CRIPA authority. The purpose of the review is to highlight the provisions that address
community integration for individuals with disabilities versus the provisions focused on
improving institutional conditions. Similarly, we have looked at settlement agreements
negotiated by several Protection and Advocacy (P&A) agencies and compared the P&A
agreements against the DOJ agreements on community integration and institutional conditions

provisions.

The two charts attached show the emphasis placed on community integration versus the
improvement of institutional conditions in these settlements. These charts are for illustrative
purposes only and include a randomly selected sample of settlement agreements. However,
NDRN believes these charts illustrate our concern, as we commemorate the ten year
anniversary of the Olmstead v. LC decision, and as the Administration launches the "The Year
of Community Living," that the promise of Olmstead and the rights of individuals with disabilities
to live independently and enjoy the fullest inclusion in our society are not being recognized nor
facilitated by the DOJ in its settlement agreements. The focus of the DOJ settlement
agreements continues to be on improving conditions at facilities, despite the tremendous costs,

both human and financial.
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The DOJ CRIPA settlements reviewed are U.S. v. Texas (proposed, ICF/MR, 2009); U.S. v.
Nebraska (ICF/MR, 2008); U.S. v. City of San Francisco (SNF, 2008); U.S. v. Kentucky
(ICF/MR, 2006); and U.S. v. New Jersey (ICF/MR 2005).

The P&A settlements reviewed include Capitol People First v. Department of Developmental
Services (CA 2008, ICF/MR); Chambers v. San Francisco (CA 2007, SNF); and Travis D. v.
Eastmont Human Services Center (MT 2004, ICF/MR).

In considering the essential provisions for facilitating a community integration mandate,
minimum requirements for any agreement should include adoption of the principal of providing
services in the most integrated setting and the recognition and acceptance that all individuals
can be served in the community; individual involvement; informed decision-making and choice;
person-centered planning; transition planning; implementation of plans; developing and
expanding community capacity; monitoring of community placements; and quality assurance.
We consider these elements essential for any agreement.

The community integration provisions charted are: principle of most integrated setting;
individual involvement and choice; individual transition planning; informed decision-making and
consent; education for individuals and families on community integration options; person-
centered planning; developing and expanding community capacity; community housing;
community healthcare/services; enhanced case management; employment and vocational
services; transportation; money management; monitoring of community placements; and quality
assurance.

The improvement of institutional conditions provisions included in the chart are: integrated
treatment plans; comprehensive needs assessments; psychiatric services; neurological
services; psychological and behavioral services/PBS; general healthcare; nutrition;
restraint/seclusion; related services (speech, occupational therapy, physical therapy, etc.); risk
management/safety; daily activities/habilitation; increased staffing; implementation and
monitoring of agreement; and quality assurance.

By way of visual comparison we have also included an approximation of the pages dedicated
to community integration versus institutional conditions.

The simple exercise of charting the provisions reveals that the DOJ settlements heavily focus
on improving institutional conditions, while the P&A settlements emphasize aspects of
community integration. However, in settlement agreements reached in U.S. v. San Francisco
(6/13/08) followed by U.S. v. Nebraska (7/2/08), the DOJ negotiated what we consider to be two
of its strongest agreements, thus far, that include elements of community integration. We
believe that this emphasis on community integration by DOJ was prompted by the active
involvement of Disability Rights California, Disability Rights Education and Defense Fund, and
other disability rights advocates in the San Francisco, California case. Yet, in 2009 DOJ has
reversed this movement toward community integration, as illustrated in the settlement
agreement proposed by DOJ in U.S. v. Texas.

Instead of embracing O/mstead and focusing on moving people into the most integrated living

settings appropriate to their needs, the Texas agreement emphasizes changing institutional
conditions and calls for the hiring of 1,160 additional staff at the Texas State Schools

(ICFs/MR).
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The enormous costs of institutions, both financial and human, are largely avoidable. It actually
costs less to serve people in community settings than it does in ICFs/MR." For example, by
focusing on ending the unnecessary institutionalization of people with developmental disabilities
and embracing community integration, the Nebraska legislature has estimated the cost of
compliance with the DOJ settlement agreement to be $2.5 million per year™ while the Texas
agreement with its greater emphasis on improvement of institutional conditions requires $112
million over a five-year period."

This is particularly troubling, given the lack of progress Texas has made with regard to
community integration. According to the 2008 State of the States in Developmental
Disabilities*, a whopping 57% of federal intellectual and developmental disabilities (1/DD)
Medicaid spending in Texas is on institutional care and only 31% on home and community-
based services (HCBS). In contrast, Nebraska spends 25% of its I/DD Medicaid funds on
institutions and 56% on HCBS.

If the Administration is serious about its commitment to community integration, it is critical
that DOJ CRIPA settlement agreements, including those pending in Texas, Georgia, and other
states, are directed towards improving community integration. By pouring over $100 million into
segregated institutions, DOJ is virtually guaranteeing that ICFs/MR remain the status quo for
Texans with developmental disabilities and this is true in other states.

' See, http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/split/documents/split cripa08.pdf at page 19.

" See, Residential Services for Persons with Developmental Disabilities: Status and Trends Through 2007

at page 72, http.//rtc.umn.edu/docs/risp2007.pdf
" See, State Of Nebraska FY2009-10 / FY2010-11 Biennial Budget at page 49,

httg://www.nebraskalegislature.gov/gdf/regons/ﬁscaI/2009budget.gdf

v See, “State Reaches Settlement with DOJ on State Schools Investigations,”
http://www.txddc.state.tx.us/resources/publications/fvi/fviiun09/fvistate06-09.asg

¥ Braddock et al., State of the States in Developmental Disabilities, University of Colorado, 2008.
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TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2009

NASDDDS Survey on State Plans to Close or Downsize

In late October 2009, NASDDDS conducted a brief email survey of member state
agency officials regarding the existence of plans to close or downsize large state-
operated institutional programs in their respective states. Respondents were
additionally requested to indicate whether or not their current plans were being
implemented in response to financial considerations.

Total NASDDDS member state agencies: 51

Total number of states responding to the survey: 49 (96%)

Of the 49 responding states, 11 (22%) states reported that they had closed alf
state operated institutions for persons with intellectual and developmental
disabilities (IDD).

Of the 38 states operating institutional programs that responded to the survey
{unduplicated count):

4 (11%) states are planning to close one or more facilities and not downsize other
programs or facilities.

14 (37%) states are planning to downsize existing facilities but not close any
institutions.

5 (13%} states are panning to close one or more institutions and downsize additional
facilities.

15 (39%) states have no plans to close or downsize state operated institutional
programs.

Summarizing the results of the data from the 38 states reveals that:
9 states (24%) have plans to close one or more institutions.

19 states (50%) have plans to downsize programs, reducing the census of existing
facilities.
Financial Impact

10 states (26%) made the decision to close and/or downsize IDD facilities due to
financial reasons.

Of the 4 states with plans to close some facilities but not downsize others, three states
are closing the facilities for financial reasons.

Of the 14 states with plans to downsize but not close facilities, three states are
downsizing for financial reasons.

Of the 5 states with plans to both close and downsize existing facilities, three states
made the decision for financial reasons.
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H.R 868 Co-Sponsor List

ASK WORKFORCE
BILL CO-SPONSORS
FROM THE 110TH
CONGRESS TO CO-
SPONSOR IN THE
111TH!

Use ANCOR's Action Center
to contact your
Representative and ask them
to co-sponsor H.R 868! °
Respond to this alert if your
Representative co-sponsored
the Direct Support Fairness
and Security Act in the 110th
Congress, but has not yet co-
sponsored the bill in the
111th Congress. (See also
the current co-sponsor list)
Using the Action Center is
easy and also provides us
feedback on your outreach.
Check out ANCOR's
Workforce Shortage
webpage for more
information.

NEW H.R.868 CO-
SPONSORS

Rep. Paul Hodes(D-NH) and
Rep. Tim Waltz (D-MN)
recently signed on to the
Direct Support Professional
Fairness and Security Act!
Thank you to ANCOR
members in for reaching out
to these members.

See all 59 members of
Congress supporting the bill
so farl
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May 7, 2010

Testimony for Senate Health, Human Services and Senior Services Committee and
Assembly Human Services Committee Joint Hearing

For us it's very simple. We are all the same. Everyone belongs. Everyone has a
right to live in a community. We all do — everyoné in this room lives in a
community. We do not segregate because someone has a developmental
disability. We cannot segregate in the education system, in our workplace or
anywhere else in our communities.

The people who live in NJ’s seven developmental centers should have the right to
remain there if they want to, or if their family wants them to. However, for every
person with significant needs living in a DC there is someone living in the
community with the same needs, with supports in their own home, a group home
or in the family home. The same services available in a DC- medical, dental,
mental health, assistive technology, durable medical equipment- are available in

the community.

Our families are a new generation. Our children with significant needs attend
local schools and participate in community activities. Our education system
invests millions to fully include our children and empower them to become
contributing citizens. When our children leave the education system as youhg
adults, we expect them to continue to be part of the community. Yet many
families place their loved one’s name on a waiting list for community services and
do just that. Wait. Sometimes for decades. They wait because they want their
loved one to remain in the community.

We believe our state can change. We must change. Public policy is not about
making people happy — it’s about serving citizens equitably. Right now our public
policy for people with developmental disabilities is not equitable. It must be
changed. It's time we raised the bar and invest in the citizenship of all, by
developing a system that serves people when they need it and where they want it
— in the community of their choice.

Ann C. Martinelli
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A Good Life

Joe Martinelli is known for his sense of humor, his attention to details, his memory and his love
of the New York Yankees. In fact, his chair has a name, “Bernie”. (For the uninformed, Bernie
Williams was the center fielder for the Yankees for many years!)

Joe graduated high school in 2005 and accepted a Real Life Choices Transition individual budget
and completed an Essential Lifestyle Plan. Joe and his family visited a non-traditional day -
program and he decided to attend two days a week. Joe also spent a lot of time putting
together questions he wanted to use when he interviewed for a support person. The agency he
used encouraged him to write the newspaper ad himself and ran it for a short time. Joe and his
family interviewed and hired a young woman. She began taking him to the day program and
supported him there. She also began to hang out with Joe at his home and take him out

shopping.

Joe soon realized he didn’t like the day program and stopped going. Joe’s support person
began asking Joe to stay home more and more and he acquiesced. Joe’s family thought it was
what he wanted to do and didn’t push him. That was a huge mistake because inside, Joe was
upset and angry. He began arguing with his parents, especially his mom. It was very much out
of character and disrupted his whole life. Joe began taking medication which did not help and
caused side effects. Joe had always been a polite, respectful young man and once he started
talking about how he felt, his family realized he didn’t want to speak badly about his support
person. He told his mom “i like her as a person, but she’s no fun.” Joe and his mom let her go

and began a new journey.

Joe and his family connected with an agency and contracted with them to do job development
and provide support staff. Joe’s next support person was Steve, who was as fun-loving as Joe.
They immediately connected and once a volunteer position was developed, Steve accompanied
Joe weekly. Steve was creative, too, and this proved to be the impetus Joe needed. One day,
he and Joe drove past an assisted living facility and stopped in, introduced themselves, and
asked if they could visit on a regular basis. Joe is still there today. Joe and his Mom asked the
agency to locate another support person and they found Carrie. Carrie was creative, too. She
was a recent graduate of Monmouth University and as she got to know Joe, learned that he
liked music. She approached a communications professor at MU who coordinated the radio
station and asked if she and Joe could hang out during a broadcast. Not only did Furg (aka Dr.
Aaron Furguson) allow them to visit “the booth”, he invited them to do a one hour show with
him each week. Joe is currently participating in his eighth semester on the air and last spring,

the show was extended to two hours.
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Unfortunately, Steve moved to Florida three years ago. But Carrie is still part of Joe’s team.
She will be graduating from the Monmouth County Police Academy this month and has invited
Joe to her graduation. Carrie introduced Joe to Brian and Jenna. Brian accompanies Joe to his
volunteer position at Vonage where he delivers gift cards to employees on the anniversary of
their employment, assists him at his weekly bowling league, walks at local parks, haircuts,
shopping, visiting Monmouth Park during racing season, movies and anywhere else “the wind
takes them” (as Brian and Joe like to tell me). Brian introduced Joe to Chris who began
supporting him over a year ago. Chris accompanies Joe to his weekly visits with the “old folks”
(as Joe calls his friends at the assisted living facility). They play bingo and pokeno with them.
One of the gentlemen they befriended does not come to the community room any longer, and
Joe and Chris visit him in his room. Another friend introduced him to Ben, who accompanies
Joe weekly to his volunteer position at a local non-profit organization in their resource library.
Ben also accompanies Joe to Chris’ softball games, the local pool hall and basketball games with
Ben’s friends. Joe has also supported Ben during talks he gives to his congregation. Jenna
supports Joe by accompanying him to local high school plays, Monmouth University basketball
and baseball games and walks on the boardwalk. During the past five years, these five people
have introduced Joe to so many more people that his cell phone continually rings with a call or
buzzes with a text message. It’s a good life.

Ann and Joe Martinelli
16 Hillmont Terrace
Colts Neck, NJ 07722

(908) 586 - 9257
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Senate Health Human Services and Senior Citizens Committee
and the
Assembly Human Services Committee

Friday, March 7, 2010

Thank you Senator Weinberg and Assemblywoman Vanieri Huttle for hearing testimony today.

| remember 15hearings held throughout the state, 40 hours of transcribed and archived testimony from
people with developmental disabilities and their families telling their stories to New Jersey legislators
and leaders in the disability community. The message: “Keep us together!” We thought you
understood, we thought you finally heard us, after years of dwindling family supports and the increase
of more and more families choosing to support loved ones at home and wanting different choices

in the community other than just centers and group homes.

In 2006 families and people with disabilities rallied testified b the hundreds, wrote letters, sent
pictures, thousands signed petitions! to make it clear that people were thinking differently, families
wanted resources available to keep their families together rather than making a choice of group homes
or institutional care. The majority of funding was going to residential and community placements, out of
sync for families growing up in an educational system full of expectation and the promise of fulfilling
adult lives for our family members regardless of their disability. Without needed supports our family
members were not living, and now most families involved in that pivotal moment have joined the
»waitlisters” needing transition and adult services so that they can continue to go to school to volunteer
or work, to be When waiting becomes impossible unwanted placements out of the home became
inevitable and common. Not by choice. Crises led to placements development centers because there
were no other choices given .the overwhelming cry of information shared by families to the decision
makers, to the DD system and to the providers who support people within that system that people and
families with developmental disabilities were moving in a different direction of thinking was hear loud
and clear. In 2006, New Jersey moved towards self directed services and began to recognize people
wanted to be supported differently than in the past.

2010 the lists have grown ...the disproportion and the dis-appropriation of where people live and
where the money goes continues to be wickedly unbalanced. The climate within the disability
community is tense and mistrusting. It is sad to see that the real issue of people and families having
choice has been forgotten and lost in an ugly mesh of politics, selfishness, special interests, and egos
that have nothing to do with the voice of the people. | cannot understand how such a documented
event in 2006,that created a historical shift in the thinking of the expectation of people with disabilities,
where they choose to live, go to school and play, can be ignored? The information is not new! Why do
we continue to play this game of surprise? While people wait and die to live.

What the majority of people in the state want cannot be disputed. It is to live within the community
witOh supports and services available to sustain a productive and happy life. There should not be an
exclusion of the choice to remain in a development center, but today, that option is not the majority:
made clear for so many years. People are being born with disabilities, surviving, growing up in families
that challenge them to live life. The numbers grow, yet the supports and the resources cannot keep up.
Why do you continue to support this archaic way of thinking??
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Who are we supporting? Please rebalance this system so that we,an support a plan that allows
opportunity for choice. | do not want to find myself here four years from now having the same stagnant
conversation. We cannot continue to wait.

Monique Dujue Wilson

Parent of Khary Dominique Wilson
23 years old....striving to live!
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The total budget of the Division

7
g of Developmental Disabilities is
/\//— just over $1 billion to serve a
caseload of 36,622 individuals.
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Keep Us Together
'PubLic Heartngs
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Testumong Fromw FamLlLes

After 15 public hearings in nine locations throughout the state, families have told their
stories to New Jersey legislators and leaders in the disability community. Their message
was powerful, yet simple: “Keep us together!”

~

Public Hearing Sites
April 24 - May 23, 2006
Parsippany
Newark
Hamilton
Pemberton
Atlantic City
Gibbstown
Mt. Holly
Neptune
- Paramus




‘ III ask you to demand DDD
immediately begin changing its
funding priorities from institutional
supports and out-of-home placements
to a model that will permit my
daughter to live with the family she
chooses, in the home she chooses and
in the inclusive community of her

choice.”
—FRaANK TETTO

Parsippany Hearing

l IThe day is coming that this

family is going to need help, and I
have no idea what the future holds for
us.”

—Fay WILSON

Pemberton Hearing

IlCaring for family members
with a developmental disability in the
home with family supports in place is
still cheaper than the cost of institu-
tionalizing that person ... Increasing
the budget for family support is a
win-win situation.”

—VERNA BuLLoCK-LEWIS
Gibbstown Hearing

llBecause (our daughter) is in
Real Life Choices, my husband and I
are able to work full-time jobs with-
out having to resort to government

assistance.”
—GAIL FURRER

Mt. Holly Hearing

III will be 82 in September and
(my son) is 43 ... I was very pleased
in 2002 when I heard about Real Life
Choices because for the first time in
my life, I was going to ask for some-
thing from the state to help me and

that would be some respite care.”
—JEAN MANOGUE

Parsippany Hearing

(Note: Transcripts from the Paramus and Neptune hearings were not available as we went to

You're viewin?yrchived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

I’m here and there’s a hundred other people who are behind me who
can’t be here because they don’t have the services. They don’t have anyone to
sit with their child at home. I couldn’t leave Tiffany home alone. I had to bri»~
her with me ...We don’t complain about our children. It’s just that we need . |
little help, you know, to keep us going.”

—-Ms. SMITH
Newark Hearing

They told us if (our daughter) was in a group home, there would be
more money allocated ... I don’t think it’s fair. She loves being home, she
loves being with her sister ... We don’t want to take that away from her but we

need more suppport at home.”
—CECELIA BERTONASCHI

Parsippany Hearing

IlBeing a parent of a special needs child, we had to fight to keep her
alive and we have to fight afterwards just to get her the things that she needs in
order to function to the best of her ability. ...I’m going to need help with her
for the rest of her life, and I will battle as long as I can to get her what she

needs.”
—Michele Harps

M. Holly Hearing

III try not to focus, as you know, scared out of your mind, but I don’t
know what the future brings. And obviously, you know, I’m relatively youn
and so as I get older and I know my children won’t become independent in the
sense of independence, they’ll always be my responsibility. I don’t want to

place my kids, I want my kids to be with me. There is no place for my kids.”
—STEPHANIE ROSATI

Hamilton Hearing

I I The reality for me as a young woman with a disability is that I want to
contribute just like I want to live a very ordinary life in a very ordinary com-
munity doing ordinary things. If warehousing people in institutions is the way
that our government decides to handle this increase of people with disabilities,

I think that’s a very, very sad statement.”
—COLLEEN ROCHE

Newark Hearing

Our days were filled with feeding and caring for both babies. Our
nights involved one of us staying in the girls’ room to ensure their safety and
look after the complicated feedings. We became totally exhausted, both physi-
cally and emotionally. Fortunately, both (my wife) and I are healthy, stable
individuals, deeply committed to each other and to providing all our children
with a loving home. I do not know how long we could have continued in tk

situation without professional assistance.”
—RoBERT HAGE

Pemberton Hearing

press. Those transcripts will be posted on our website: www.njddc.org/familysupport.htin)
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’ Il(They asked,) ‘Why don’t you just place them in residential settings?’

The response was immediate and unequivocal: ‘Because we love them, and no

patter what, they are part of our family.””
' —KATHY ROBERSON

Hamilton Hearing

I turned to DDD and then was told there’s no money ... I’'m doing all I
can to keep my child out of an institution, to not be put in a special school, to

make her a contributing person in the community. It’s not easy.”
—DoNNA LEFEVRRE

Pemberton Hearing

IIPhysically we were unable to handle (our son) anymore So we decided
to put him in a group home. Which, I hate to say, was the worst thing I have
ever done in my life. The care that he got was so below what I expected, and
he deteriorated so badly that I don’t even want to think about it. I would have

preferred keeping him at home if I had had the support that I needed.”
—NATA FLORENTINE

Atlantic City Hearing

I I The number of families in our communities that are living with a
person with a developmental disability is growing each year. These families
must be seen. These families must be acknowledged. These families want to
sfay together and they need the community-based programming and family

orts to do so. Funding family supports is not only cost-effective, it is the

right thing to do for the citizens of New Jersey.”
—ABBY JAROSLOW

Hamilton Hearing

III want tc keep my child home as long as I can. I don’t want to think
about putting her in a group home. I want her to be home where I know she’s

going to get the love, the nourishment she needs.”
—MICHELLE ARCHIE

Atlantic City Hearing

IlOur children are the most needy and the families receive little or no
support. Families are the very fabric of our society. We’re not asking for
handouts. We’re not asking for free passes, only assistance in this monumental
task of raising a child with a disability. My family is a part of my community
... ’'m asking for support to afford my children the same opportunities you're

able to afford and offer your own.”
—Kim ELpHICK

Parsippany Hearing

4
’ Il’m a parent fighting for my child with everything [ have ... I'm asking
for three hours a week. Give me two. | even offered to compromise. You know,

I’m not asking for any out-of-home placement.”
—REGINA Farus

Pemberton Hearing

28 U v0

stopped working full time,
so I can provide the service (my son)
needs. And, now, we’re like in
another area with bills and things.
And I want very much to keep him
home. He has a home, he has a family
that loves him, and we want to keep

him home.”
-—ANNA TOSEN

Newark Hearing
IlWe’re still taking care of our
children in our 70s. Thank God we’re
able to do it. It’s getting a little rough
now. (our daughter) needs help with
needing a lift into the bed and bath,
everything. So it’s a little rough. We
do our best.”
—JOSEPHINE CRONEN
Hamilton Hearing

IIThose 15 hours a month (of
respite service) were an absolute
God-send to me. It gave me an oppor-
tunity even if I wanted to go take a
walk around the block. ...I want to try
to keep (my daughter) in my home.
I’m her number one advocate. I have
devoted my entire life to my child and
I know her best. ...I really hope that
the government or whoever is making
the decisions hears the outcry of
parents and does provide some more
money for family support. I think it is
so urgent.”

—TaRra LANG
Gibbstown Hearing
III ‘m very stressed. [’'m very
strapped, I have no child support. I
have nothing. [ relate to everything
about what they’re saying about
putting (my son) in an institution. It
will never happen. I’ll die first.”
—DANIELLE HOLDEN
Atlantic City Hearing



Dear New Jersey Senate and General Assembly members,

You have just read a few excerpts, taken from more than

40 hours of testimony from 15 public hearings. We thank

those of you who participated or sent a representative.

As you can tell, these are families who want to stay

together. They have chosen to keep their loved ones with

developmental disabilities at home, instead of in residen-

tial settings that are more costly to the state. You can

hear in the transcripts the frustration they feel because

they cannot receive even a fraction of the services they

need. Over and over again, they wanted to know why more of you were not
present to hear their stories. We promised that we would get their message to you.

There needs to be an ongoing funding mechanism in the Division of Developmental Disabilities’ annual
budget for in-home support and transition services, and for expanding the “Real Life Choices” program.
Assemblyman William Payne told the families at the hearing in Newark, “You're not asking for any kind of
luxurious thing. You're asking for what | think you're entitled to.” We applaud that statement. And we hope it

and this publication serve as a working thesis when you consider keeping families together.
—Susan Richn.

Deputy Director
NJ Council on Developmental Disabilities
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Testimony to the Senate Health, Human Services, and Senior Citizens Committee and the Assembly
Human Services Committee by John Vega, on May 7, 2010

My name is John Vega and | live in Voorhees with my friends.

| used to live at New Lisbon for a long time and | don’t want to back there.
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| live with my best friend, Reggie.

ﬁ

| can go where | want to go.

| like the staff who work at my house. They treat me nice and they help me.
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I think everyone should be able to leave New Lisbon if they want to .
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Testimony of Rocco A. Mazza
Coalition of Families Advocating for Developmental Centers

Joint Hearing
Senate Health, Human Services and Senior Citizens and
Assembly Human Services

May 7, 2010

My brother has successfully resided in the same state developmental
center for the last 36 years. He is currently 50 years old, diagnosed
from birth as having severely profound mental retardation with the
intellectual capacity of about a 2 year old. He suffers from cerebral
palsy and has very limited to nearly no verbal ability. When my
parents admitted my brother into that developmental center nearly
four decades ago, they believed they were entering into a compact
with the State of New Jersey that would guarantee the stability of
his long term care for the rest of his life. Since then, our family has
been fully satisfied with the loving care and service he has received.

I believe that many of the community based providers, some of
whom are here today, are well intentioned and have a willing heart
to serve our developmentally disabled. But, nevertheless, the
philosophical trend toward diminishment and eventual closure of
state developmental centers is a dangerous one. What we are
looking at is nothing less than the wholesale privatization of care for
the most vulnerable population among us.

It was less than a month ago when a statewide newspaper splashed a
story across its front page about two disturbing incidents that
occurred in 2008/2009 where two developmentally disabled women
died from brutal neglect at the hands of a state-licensed private
sponsor in the community. Innocent, fragile and vulnerable Tara
O’Leary was sent to a private home in the community after her
parents passed away. Lydia Joy Perry was under the same
privatized care after she lost her parents.

YQy
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Their horrible deaths are the result of a core belief that privatized
care with little oversight, minimal regulatory standards and no
accountability is perfectly suitable for our developmentally disabled

loved ones.

New Jersey’s Developmental Centers are federally certified
ICF/MRs (Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded),
adhering to very, very strict federal standards of care that include a
detailed Active Treatment program, an Individual Habilitation
Plan, multiple layers of oversight and on-site 24 hour medical
supervision. None of which are required in community based
settings. My brother suffers from periodic mild brain seizures. He is
on medication and is supervised by medical personnel at his
developmental center around the clock. Sometimes it is necessary
for the dosage of his medicine to be adjusted. This requires constant
monitoring by medical personnel. In contrast to the seven state-run
facilities, there is only one privately run ICF/MR in the entire state.
No other community based group home is a certified ICF/MR. By
very definition, the private community provider’s standards of care
and regulatory oversight pale in comparison to that which is
mandated upon our state-run developmental centers.

Privatization may be a logical choice for municipal garbage
disposal. Privatization of sewerage services or water supplies may be
the economically viable alternative on a local level. I am sympathetic
to the belief that government may have grown too expensive for
many of us to afford with property taxes skyrocketing. But let’s be
clear about this. Our developmentally disabled are the most delicate
and fragile human beings among us. They are our children, our
brothers and sisters and our friends. Their lives must not be
contracted out to the lowest bidder.

We have a moral imperative to provide access to the best possible
services for these medically needy and intellectually impaired
people. With federal Medicaid subsidies based on ICF/MR

2
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standards, the cost of care for each of our residents in
developmental centers to the state treasury is minimal. The
community providers cannot match the state in cost effectiveness for
the extensive care that most of our residents require.

You can be sure that I am keenly aware that a developmental center
may not be the most appropriate residential setting for everyone,
particularly those who are blessed with a higher functioning
disability. But the reality of life within some of these community
settings gives me serious pause, nonetheless.

I’ve recently heard from a social worker in one of the seven state
developmental centers who told me of an individual on the list for
community placement. This individual had very specific needs for
their care and it was incumbent upon the community provider to
ensure that the proper equipment for this individual meet the
criteria necessary for the resident’s needs. The resident was released
to the group home where they failed to provide the specific bed that
was necessary for this individual. That resident fell off an
inappropriate bed and landed in the hospital with a broken leg
within the first 48 hours of their move into the community.

I’ve learned of a community group home in Bergen County that
neglected their developmentally disabled so badly that the private
provider had to eventually be removed from its operation but only
after numerous complaints by neighbors who were appalled by the
mistreatment they witnessed day after day after day. This is what
you get with a lack of accountability and lack of federal standards.

Privatization may work for some of the developmentally challenged
in our state but certainly not for many others. Closing any one of the
seven developmental centers will result in not only disorienting the
developmentally disabled residing in a place they call “home” but
will also remove these vital facilities and their specialized Active
Treatment programs from our choice of options. We need to protect
our ability to choose the residential care setting that is best for our
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loved ones. Closure of developmental centers is nothing less than a
gradual elimination of that choice.

This movement toward private community providers as the
dominant option for this sensitive population is troubling. Those
providers who do it well deserve our applause and gratitude. But
our loved ones’ lives and living arrangements should not be the
product of a grand community social experiment. We either do it
right or don’t do it at all. Lives are at stake. Community placement
is a precarious choice that should be reserved for those families who
willingly choose that option and who know their developmentally

challenged loved one best.

Let’s rethink this process. Developmental Center care should not be
used as an emergency backstop but instead as the central hub of
active treatment services, the level of care required in ICF/MRs, for
the disabled in both state facilities and in the community.

With nearly 8,000 people on a high priority urgent waiting list for
residential placement, we do not have the luxury of eliminating any
residential options. I would strongly recommend the state reinvest in
capital improvements to the existing seven developmental centers.
Let’s update and modernize them. Reopen admissions and allow
families on the waiting list to exercise their right to an option of
choosing developmental center placement if they so wish. We are
recommending real choice for everyone.

For years, admissions to these centers have been closed by the state
DDD with emergency situations and court order the only exceptions.
That is an outrageous policy when you’re operating under an 8,000
person urgent waiting list that will only continue expanding. It is
immoral and unlawful by federal standards to deny ICF/MR
services in the assessments for these individuals. Why not allow
these potential new residents the option of choosing the best
environment for medical care, active treatment, socialization and
safety? Each center is a safe and secure community unto itself

4
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providing all the socialization you can ask for. My brother and most
other developmental center residents enjoy regular off campus
recreation by attending activities in the community including
camping, trips to amusement parks, ice cream parlors, sports
venues and more.

Let us not only continue to use the resources that our seven
developmental centers provide but let’s expand them.

Developmentally challenged individuals residing in the community
should be able to avail themselves of activities at the developmental
centers, and within federal guidelines, the centers could offer off-
campus services to those out in the community. How about forging a
partnership instead of this attempt by some community provnders to
dismantle the developmental center infrastructure?

There is a misrepresentation of truth being peddled that you can
somehow solve the waiting list problem by closing the centers and
using the money saved to establish more community living
opportunities. That is patently false and anyone honest enough to
look at the difference in federal Medicaid reimbursement rates
between ICF/MRs and community waiver programs will understand
this. This is a divisive argument that only foments a deepening rift
between families and advocates on both sides of this issue. We
simply need to look at the long term prospects of a reality that
includes a constantly growing waiting list. I promise you the waiting
list will grow longer turning into a worse crisis even if you close all

the centers.

Privatization is not a panacea for the needs of this most vulnerable
population. Private community care is but one piece of a large
puzzle. The unique expertise and federally mandated services of
state-run ICF/MR's is the central anchor to this broad continuum of
care. A recommitment to and reinvestment in our state’s
developmental centers will ensure that the growing numbers of

5
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developmentally impaired individuals in New Jersey will always be
provided for.

Allow me to conclude by briefly quoting from our survey of
developmental center families on residential choice: “Our hope is
that we can finally understand that the majority of those who are
living at the developmental centers are happy in their homes and
need to have their choices acknowledged. There is no mandate to
close any centers in any law including the Supreme Court decision
in the Olmstead case. The representatives of those living in our
developmental centers should be respected in the same way that
those who represent those living at home or in other community
placements are. We all love our children and want what is best for

them.”

Thank you.

Rocco A. Mazza

351 Page Avenue
Lyndhurst, NJ 07071
(201) 615-3928
Rocco-temp@comcast.net
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A Message from VOR’s Immediate Past President

My daughter, Mary Elizabeth, has profound mental retardation, with
significant physical and medical disabilities. She functions at the
level of less than one year old and needs fulltime help for all her
daily needs, from toileting to dressing to eating. Mary Elizabeth
resides in a community group home, but each and every day
returns to her former home — a state-operated ICF/MR - for
physical therapy, swimming in a therapeutic pool, socialization,
community outings with facility residents, and nursing care. Mary
Elizabeth’s successful community living is due in large part to her
continued interaction with the ICF/MR’s nurses, direct care staff and
residents — people she has known most of her life.

. Mary Elizabeth is not alone in terms of her level of disability and her

reliance on ICF/MR care for continued health, safety and happiness.
She represents thousands of others whose lives depend on the
continued existence of ICF/MR options for people with severe and profound mental retardation,
who also have chronic medical conditions and/or severe behavioral challenges.

In addition to being Mary’s Elizabeth’s mother, I am also the Immediate Past President of VOR.
I agreed to serve VOR because this organization supports residential and service choice. VOR is
a national advocacy organization that speaks for all individuals with mental retardation and their
families. We recognize that the availability of a full array of quality residential services and
supports for people with mental retardation, through all stages of life, based on choice and
need, with full family involvement, is a common sense policy that leads to good outcomes.

We respectfully request your consideration of VOR’s position on behalf of our nation’s most
vulnerable citizens and the proposed reforms to the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and
Bill of Rights Act (DD Act). We submit that some DD Act funded programs are violating some of
the key purposes and policies of the Act and, as a result, are doing harm to people with severe
and profound mental retardation.

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration. Remember, Americans who can't help themselves
due to no fault of their own are dependent upon the good will of the Congress.

Mary E. McTernan, Ph.D.
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Executive Summary

The Reauthorization of the
Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act:
The Need for Immediate Reforms

For the first time in ten years, Congress will be considering the reauthorization of programs receiving federal funding
under the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (DD Act).

While the DD Act’s policy endorses residential choice and individual decisionmaking, some DD Act programs, through
legislative lobbying, class action lawsuits and other tactics, act to eliminate one of those choices ~ Medicaid-certified
and funded Intermediate Care Facilities for Persons with Mental Retardation (ICFs/MR). These practices force the
transfer of thousands of individuals from specialized ICFs/MR that are uniquely suited to meet their extreme needs.
Protection & Advocacy (P&A) lawsuits, for example, have been filed without regard to the choices of the people
affected and their families/guardians. The resulting closures of some ICFs/MR have led to higher incidences of abuse,
neglect and death of people with severe and profound developmental disabilities, who also have other debilitating
physical, medical and/or behavioral disabilities. What's more, when P&A (funded by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS), as authorized by the DD Act) sues to close an ICF/MR (funded and certified by HHS), the
lawsuit could be titled HHS v. HHS — an absurd use of federal dollars.

VOR urges Congress to adopt the following reform proposals aimed at assuring that DD Act program recipients carry
out the Act’s mandate to respect choice in residential settings and family decisionmaking:

A. level fund DD Act program funding to give Congress time to review the programs and consider
reforms.

B. Pass H.R. 1255 to require that federally-funded organizations, including P&A, notify residents of
Medicaid-funded and certified ICFs/MR before a class action is filed, and provide a time limited
opportunity for residents, or where one has been appointed, their legal guardians, to opt out of the

lawsuit.

€. Secure an HHS audit of how all DD Act programs are working and whether they are respecting family
choice and the O/mstead Supreme Court decision, to be submitted to relevant House and Senate
committees within one year.

D. Limit the reauthorization to three years so that the Congress can more closely monitor the
effectiveness of DD Act policy and DD Act program activity and how HHS is overseeing it.

VOR also calls on Congress to require that CMS conduct a study of whether states are offering people freedom of
choice between an ICF/MR and Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) waiver settings, as required by Medicaid
law and regulation (42 U.S.C. §1396n(c)(2)(C), 42 C.F.R. §441.302, and 42 C.F.R. §441.303(d)).

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration of VOR's DD Act reform proposals.

About VOR: VOR is a national organization advocating for the right of individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities
and their families to choose from among a full array of high quality residential and other support options. For more information,
please contact Tamie Hopp, Director of Government Relations and Advocacy at 605-399-1624 (direct); or Tamie327 @hotmait.com.
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The Reauthorization of the
Developmental Disabilities Assistance
and Bill of Rights Act:

The Need for Immediate Reforms

I. INTRODUCTION

For the first time in ten years, Congress will be considering the reauthorization
of programs receiving federal funding under the Developmental Disabilities
Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (DD Act). The DD Act needs to be
reauthorized, but it also needs to be amended to make sure its purposes are

being carried out.

VOR is a national organization that advocates for the right of individuals with
mental retardation and developmental disabilities and their families to choose
from among a full array of high quality residential and other support options.

While the DD Act’s policy also endorses residential choice, some federal funds
allocated to implement the DD Act are used to eliminate one of those choices:
Intermediate Care Facilities for Persons with Mental Retardation (ICFs/MR).
ICFs/MR are often the best way to meet the needs of the most vulnerable of
the population with mental retardation and developmental disabilities.

So far, a volunteer VOR task force has identified over 90 examples in 20 states
of the DD Act programs’ disregard for Congressional intent, often with tragic
consequences to the displaced individuals.

The reauthorization process will allow Congress a rare opportunity to review
DD Act funding streams. There is a clear disservice being done to some of our
most vulnerable, least able citizens under the auspices of DD Act programs.

With this presentation, VOR documents for Members of Congress federal law
as it relates to residential choice, the people being served by ICFs/MR, the
services they receive, the disconnect between DD Act policy and practice, and
the sometimes tragic outcomes that result. The presentation concludes with
suggestions for much needed reform to be written into the 2010 DD Act

reauthorization (see page 12).
II1. LACK OF CONGRESSIONAL AND AGENCY OVERSIGHT

In 2000, when the Congress last reauthorized the DD Act, it amended the Act
to extend the reauthorization period from three years to seven. 7The /ong
reauthorization period resulted in little or no congressional oversight regarding
the effectiveness of DD Act programs for this extended period of time. VOR
believes that, as a result, the purposes of the DD Act and the interests of a
highly vulnerable population have been seriously compromised. In many cases
these programs have undermined the structured care which many individuals
with complex, severe disabilities require for their well-being and survival.
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Since 2000, the House Energy and Commerce Committee’s membership
has changed by at least 51%; the Senate Health Education Labor and
Pensions Committee has changed by at least 57%. Reauthorization in
2010 provides an opportunity for the reconstituted Senate and House
committees to scrutinize how effective the DD Act programs are in
carrying out their congressional mandate for people with mental
retardation and developmental disabilities. In particular, Congress should
assess the impact that the programs are having on people with severe and
profound mental retardation. Following this review, Congress needs to
adopt meaningful reforms.

Section III, which follows, provides background information supporting
our case for immediate reform to key provisions within the DD Act.

Section IV (p. 12) sets forth VOR’s recommendations for immediate
reform.

III. THE NEED FOR IMMEDIATE REFORMS

The people served in ICFs/MR

The services people receive in ICFs/MR

An overview of federal law in support of choice

Abuse and neglect in community settings

Protection & Advocacy lawsuits: Questionable results and
a demonstrated lack of family involvement

Mmoo

A. The people served in ICFs/MR

Residents of ICFs/MR are among the neediest, most fragile and most
disabled members of our society. They need support in every aspect of life
including walking, communicating, bathing, eating and toileting. 74.5% of
all ICFs/MR residents experience severe and profound mental retardation;
they also endure multiple disabilities, chronic medical conditions and/or
behavioral challenges. Many of these people also have seizure disorders,
behavior problems, mental iliness, are visually-impaired or hearing-
impaired, or have a combination of these conditions.

Currently, 6,381 ICFs/MR are home to 93,164 people.
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DD Act,” August 2006.
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C. An overview of federal law in support of choice

Federal law is consistent with common sense: Like any other citizen, people
with mental retardation and their families/guardians have the right to
choose where to live.

The Developmental Disabilities
Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000

Nothing in the DD Act mandates or supports removing people from the
facilities in which they choose to live. Indeed, the Act validates the role of

the individual and family:

“Individuals with developmental disabilities and their families are
the primary decisionmakers regarding the services and supports
such individuals and their families receive, including regarding
choosing where the individuals live from available options, and play
decisionmaking roles in policies and programs that affect the lives
of such individuals and their families.” DD Act, 42 U.S.C.
15001(c)(3)(2000) ( Findings, Purposes and Policies).

Congressional intent further confirms support for the provision of facility-
based care based on individual choice and need:

“[T]he Committee would caution that goals expressed in this Act to
promote the greatest possible integration and independence for
some individuals with developmental disabilities not be read as a
Federal policy supporting the closure of residential institutions. It
would be contrary to Federal intent to use the language or resources
of this Act to support such actions, whether in the judicial or
legislative system” (House Energy and Commerce Report No. 103-
378, Nov. 18, 1993, pages 7-8 (to accompany H.R. 3505,
Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act
Amendments of 1993, Section-by-Section Analysis, Section 3, adding
Purposes and Policies to Findings)).
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The Olmstead decision

Contrary to some advocates’ representations, Olmstead does NOT mandate
deinstitutionalization of every disabled person. The Supreme Court in
Olmstead very clearly supports choice in residential options, finding that the
decision of where someone is served must be grounded on need, choice and
available resources:

“"We emphasize that nothing in the ADA or its implementing
regulations condones termination of institutional settings for
persons unable to bhandle or benefit from community
settings...Nor is there any federal requirement that community-
based treatment be imposed on patients who do not desire it.”
Olmstead v, L.C, 119 S. Ct. 2185, 2187 (1999).

Consistently, the plurality opinion noted:

“As already observed [by the majority], the ADA is not
reasonably read to impel States to phase out institutions,
placing patients in need of close care at risk... ‘Each disabled
person is entitled to treatment in the most integrated setting
possible for that person — recognizing on a case-by-case
basis, that setting may be an institution’ [quoting VOR's Amici
Curiae brief].” 119 S. Ct. at 2189 (plurality opinion)

Justice Kennedy concurred:

"It would be unreasonable, it would be a tragic event, then,
were the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) to be
interpreted so that states had some incentive, for fear of
litigation, to drive those in need of medical care and treatment
out of appropriate care and into settings with too little
assistance and supervision.” 119 S. Ct. at 2191 (Kennedy,
Concurring).

According to the Supreme Court, institutionalization is “unjustified” and
community placement is required and only appropriate when:

(a) "The State’s treatment professionals have determined
that community placement is appropriate;

(b) The transfer from institutional care to a less restrictive
setting is not opposed by the affected individual; and

(c) The placement can be reasonably accommodated, taking
into account the resources available to the State and the
needs of others with mental disabilities.” Olmstead v.
L.C., 119 S. Ct. 2185, 2181 (1999).
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Very recently, a U.S. District Court Judge for the Eastern District of Virginia
cited “personal choice” as key principle in the Olmstead decision. In Arc of
Virginia v. Kaine, the Virginia Office for Protection & Advocacy (VOPA),
claimed that renovations to a state-operated ICFs/MR violated Olmstead
because rebuilding and resizing the facility could force the plaintiff's
members to be served at the renovated facility. Judge Robert Payne
dismissed the lawsuit finding that plaintiffs failed to establish a "case or
controversy" ripe for judicial review and, thus, the court lacked jurisdiction
to hear the case. Recognizing that deinstitutionalization was the

plaintiff's central motivation in this case, Judge Payne cited Olmstead,
stating:

Thus, the argument made by Arc [represented by P&A] and the
United States [Amicus in support of plaintiffs] who filed
regarding the risk of institutionalization fails to account for a key
principle in the Olmstead decision: personal choice. And here,
where more residents desire to remain in institutional care than
the new facility can provide for, there is little to no risk of
institutionalization for those whose needs do not require it and
who do not desire it." (citation omitted)

Medicaid law

The receipt of federal Medicaid funding is contingent upon a state offering
the choice of ICFs/MR or Home and Community Based Services (HCBS)
waivers.

A Medicaid HCBS waiver shall not be granted unless the state provides
satisfactory assurances that —

“such individuals who are determined to be likely to require
the level of care provided in a hospital, nursing facility or
intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded are
informed of the feasible alternatives, if available under the
waiver, at the choice of such individuals, to the provision of
inpatient hospital, nursing facility services or services in an
intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.” 42
U.S.C. §1396n(c)(2)(C).

When a recipient is determined to be likely to require the level of care
provided in an ICF/MR, the recipient or his or her legal representative will
be —

“(1) Informed of any feasible alternatives available under the
waiver, and (2) Given the choice of either institutional or
home and community-based services.” 42 C.F.R. §441.302

The State agency must furnish CMS with sufficient information to support
the assurances required by §441.302, including its “plan for informing
eligible recipients of the feasible alternatives . . . institutional services or
home and community-based services.” 42 C.F.R. §441.303(d).
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- ABUSE AND NEGLECT IN
COMMUNITY SETTINGS:
RESOURCES

VOR’s Abuse and Neglect
document:
http://lvor.net/abuse neglect.h
tm (rev. March 2010)

Closing the Gap: A National
Blueprint to Improve the
Health of Persons with
Mental Retardation, U.S.
Surgeon General  (2002):
http://www.surgeongeneral.go
v/topics/mentalretardation/

Bibliography of 72 peer
reviewed studies about the
abuse of children with
developmental disabilities
(2001):
hitp://www.cfrc.illinois.edu/bib
lio.pdfs/abuseofdisabled.pdf

Special Olympics Health
Research: Research studies
condtcted by Special
Otympics found disturbing
evidence that individuals with
ID face widespread health
problems, while health
professionals are not
receiving adequate training in
order to treat them:
http://vor.net/images/SOHealt

h.pdf

Quality Oversight
Compared: A comparison
between ICFs/MR and
HCBS Waivers (2004):
http://vor.net/images/ICEvHC

BSQuality.doc

Federal Oversight of
Growing Medicaid HCBS
Waivers Should be
Strengthened, GAO-03-576
(June 2003),
hitp://www.gao.gov/new.items

{d03576.pdf.

Letter from Senators
Grassley and Breaux, re:
poor HCBS quality:
http://grassley.senate.gov/rel
eases/2003/p03r07-07a.htm

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

Many states rowtinely do not follow the law with regard to advising
eligible individuals or their legal guardians the choice between HCBS waiver
and ICF/MR services. Furthermore, CMS has not held states accountable to
upholding the choice law, despite citizen complaints. In addition to DD Act
program reform, VOR also requests that Congress put in place reforms that
help ensure that established law with regard to the provision of choice is
followed. ICF/MR and HCBS-eligible individuals must be advised of their
right of choice under Medicaid law.

D. Abuse and neglect in community settings

Sadly, abuse and neglect of people with mental retardation continues to
occur in both institutional and community settings. Simply residing in the
community is no guarantee of quality care. Quality care is not a function of
where one lives but of the skills and commitment of the staff and of proper
oversight.

The cause of compromised quality in community-based settings for people
with mental retardation and developmental disabilities is generally linked to
the rapid expansion of community programs over the past decade;
inadequate access to health care; the lack of adequate staff training and
competency (attributed to low wages and qualifications); the lack of state
and federal oversight; and the lack of adequate funding.

These concerns are widespread. In at least 30 states and the District of
Columbia, reports of systemic abuse, neglect and death have appeared in
newspapers, state audits, and scholarly journal articles. Congress, the U.S.
Surgeon General, the General Accountability Office and CMS have also cited
serious concerns regarding compromised quality in community settings. For
example, citing lack of access to necessary health care, the U.S. Surgeon
General noted in 2002, “Compared with other populations, adults,
adolescents, and children with mental retardation experience poorer health
and more difficulty in finding, getting to, and paying for appropriate health
care.” Financial exploitation was the subject of a 1993 House Committee on
Small Business, released by then-Chair Ron Wyden: “Increasingly, millions
of Americans with these life-long handicaps are at risk from poor quality
care, questionable and even criminal management practices by service
providers, and lackluster monitoring by public health and welfare agencies.”
While similar problems occur in ICFs/MR, state and federal scrutiny
regarding ICF/MR care guards against long-term, systemic problems.
ICFs/MR are held to 378 specific standards (“Conditions of Participation”)
annually. In contrast, HCBS waiver programs are reviewed only every 3-5
years and are not subject to uniform quality assurance standards. So,
while there are good community programs, there are many others that fail
to provide high quality care. The current system of oversight often fails to
identify these “bad apples” until tragedy occurs.
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PROTECTION &
ADVOCACY
LAWSUITS

Admin on DD
http://www.acf.hhs.gov/progr
ams/add/states/pas.html.

DD Act, 42 U.S.C. 15041
and 15043(a)(2)(A):
http://www.acf.hhs.gov/progra
ms/add/adddocs/act.pdf

P&A Class action
lawsuits against
JCFsI/NIR:
http://vor.net/images/PACI
assActions.doc

Protection and
Advocacy

Agencies: Involvement
in Deinstitutionalization
Lawsuits, GAO-03-1044:
hitp://www.gao.gov/new.ite

ms/d031044.pdf

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

E. Protection and Advocacy lawsuits: Questionable
results and a demonstrated lack of family

involvement
fre—————_—_—_-—————————— e ]

Statement of the problem

The activities of some federally-funded DD Act programs have contributed
to higher abuse, neglect and death of some individuals with severe and
profound mental retardation. Foremost among these activities are class
action lawsuits brought by Protection and Advocacy (P&A) that eliminate
specialized services needed by many of our nation’s most vulnerable
citizens, forcing the transfer of these individuals over the wishes of their
parents and guardians to community programs that are often unprepared to
safely serve their specialized needs. Many of these problems could be
avoided if P&A consulted with and secured the approval of the families and
guardians of people living in large facilities before they filed class action
suits on their behalf. Instead, P&A'’s routinely ignore family/guardian input
and choice.

P&A systems’ mandate

State-based P&A systems receive federal funding to “protect the legal and
human rights of individuals with developmental disabilities” by “pursuing
legal, administrative, and other appropriate remedies or approaches.” Some
P&A’s have interpreted their charge to include class action lawsuits against
ICFs/MR (42 U.S.C. 815041 and 42 U.S.C. 8§15043(a)(2)(A) (2000)
(http://www.acf.hhs.gov/programs/add/adddocs/act.pdf).

P&A funding since the last reauthorization
P&A Funding, FY 2000 — FY 2010 (in millions)

2000 | 2001 | 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 | 2007 2008 | 2009

2010

$28.11 | $33.0 | $32.34 | $36.263 | $38.416 | $38.107 | $37.928 | TBD | $39.024 | $40.0

$41.0

Class action lawsuits: HHS v. HHS

Since the late-1970s, there have been 30 P&A-initiated class action lawsuits
against ICFs/MR with the express or implied purpose of closure. Since 2000,
the date of the last reauthorization, at least nine such lawsuits have been
filed. In the last five years (since 2005), there have been four lawsuits filed.
At least seven lawsuits are pending, either as active cases or with court
oversight of a settlement agreement. As a result of all these lawsuits, at
least 21 ICFs/MR have closed, resulting in the forced transfer of thousands
of individuals from their homes.

P&A class action lawsuits against ICFs/MR are funded by the U.S.
Department of Human Services (HHS) through grants from the
Administration on Developmental Disabilities, an agency within HHS. Most if
not all residential facilities targeted by P&A class action lawsuits are funded
and certified by CMS, also an agency within HHS. In these lawsuits, HHS is
both plaintiff and defendant — a waste of taxpayer funds!
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VOR’s Abuse and Neglect
document: —>
hitp://vor.net/abuse neglect.
htm.

Shavell, Strauss, and Day
Mortality Study,
http://www.lifeexpectancy.co
m/articles/ids.pdf. —»
Note: The 2005 Shavelle, et
al., study is one in a series of
comparative mortality
studies involving peopie with
DD and deinstitutionalization
(see,
hitp://www.lifeexpectancy.co
m/articles.shtml - link,
“Comparative Mortality”).

DD Act, 42 U.S.C.
15001(c)(3):

http://www_acf hhs_gov/progr
ams/add/adddocs/act.pdf

Family —>
testimonials from
California, Kentucky,

Ohio, Florida, lllinois,
Arkansas, Pennsylvania,
Maryland, and Utah
speaking to state P&A’s’ lack
of respect for the parents,
families and guardians,
along with fervent efforts to
close large ICFs/MRs, are
available at
http://www.vor.net/legislative
-voice/additional-dd-act-
reauthorization-
resources/summary-of-
family-testimonials

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

Tragic consequences

The closures of ICFs/MR as a result of P&A class action suits have often
had tragic consequences, with both mortality studies and media stories
documenting systemic abuse, neglect and death (see e.qg., Robert
Shavelle, David Strauss and Steve Day, “Deinstitutionalization in California:
Mortality of Persons with Developmental Disabilities after Transfer into
Community Care, 1997-1999,” Journal of Data Science 3(2005), 371-380:
Following a class action lawsuit by California’'s P&A agency, more than
2,000 persons with developmental disabilities transferred from California
institutions into community care during 1993 to early 1996. Researchers
found a “corresponding increase in mortality rates by comparison with
those who stayed behind . . . a 47% increase in risk-adjusted mortality
over that expected in institutions.”)

In the meantime, the number of people on waiting lists for services
continues at high levels. When a facility is closed, the service system
often loses the largest, most experienced provider, exacerbating a state’s
waiting list problem.

Lack of communication with families

The policy provisions of the DD Act state that the individuals with
developmental disabilities and their families — not the P&A’s — are the
primary decisionmakers regarding the services and supports they receive,
including residential options:

“Individuals with developmental disabilities and their families are
the primary decisionmakers regarding the services and supports
such individuals and their families receive, including regarding
choosing where the individuals live from available options, and play
decisionmaking roles in policies and programs that affect the lives
of such individuals and their families.” DD Act, 42 U.S.C.
15001(c)(3)(2000) (Findings, Purposes and Policies).

On its face, this policy makes good sense. It is based on the premise that
the power of informed decisionmaking best rests with individuals and their
families and not with the DD Act funded entities. Many people with severe
and profound mental retardation benefit from having a loved one who
knows and cares about them serve as a legally-appointed guardian. The
law appoints guardians to make fundamental decisions on behalf of their
family members, recognizing that families often know best when the
individuals are not able on their own to make life and death decisions.

Despite this common-sense notion and the clarity of Congressional intent,
P&A programs routinely do not consuit with families and guardians before
filing suit. Generally, P&A’s only comply with the notice requirements of
the federal rules of civil procedure, which require notice to families and
guardians only after a proposed settlement has been reached. Here are
some examples.
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In California, P&A brought suit irrespective of the fact that 98%
of the developmental center family/guardian survey respondents
opposed P&A representation of their family members (Coffelt v.
Department of Developmental Services, No. 91-6401 (Ca. Super.
Ct. Jan. 1994).

In California, in “Coffelt 1I” (Capitol People First, et al. v.
California Department of Developmental Services, 2002), P&A
challenged intervention efforts by parent/guardian representatives,
arguing, “As a matter of substantive law, parents and guardians of
institutionalized persons have different and potentially conflicting
interests on matters pertaining to their child's or ward’s
constitutional or statutory rights to liberty and due process.” The
Court rejected P&A’s challenge.

In Kentucky, families and guardians filed a lawsuit to oppose a
settlement agreement between P&A and the State that called for
transferring individuals from state ICFs/MR, and then closing those
beds to future admissions.

In Ohio, more than 31,000 people, including families and
guardians, successfully opposed a proposed settlement between
the P&A (OLRS) and the State to eliminate entirely the ICF/MR
program. “For the past sixteen years, families of individuals who
chose to live in state-operated and private ICFs/MR wrote to OLRS
asking that their loved ones be removed as part of the class . . .
Shouldn’t families and guardians be allowed a more active voice in
litigation involving their family members with mental retardation?”
(Ohio League for the Mentally Retarded (OLMR), a statewide
family/guardian association, comments on OLRS state plan, June
2006).

In Florida, families sought intervention in a P&A lawsuit that
expressly calls for the closure of public ICFs/MR. Shortly after filing
the lawsuit in 1998, the Florida P&A responded to a family’s
concern that their loved one may be transferred from a Florida
facility by saying in a letter, “Florida’s Developmental Services
Institutions, constitute a despicable way for government and
society to treat people who happen to have a developmental
disability.”

In Illinois in 2010, family guardians, on behalf of their family
members, successfully sought intervention after several years of
trying in a P&A lawsuit that threatens the closure of private
ICFs/MR with more than 9 beds. Illinois’ P&A agency has opposed
efforts by families to intervene. In July 2009, more than 2,000
objectors, mostly families, successfully blocked a proposed
settlement advanced by P&A and the State.

10
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For more
Information

Family —>
testimonials from
California, Kentucky,
Ohio, Florida, lllinois,
Arkansas, Pennsylvania,
Maryland, and Utah
speaking to state P&A’s’
lack of respect for the
parents, families and
guardians, along with
fervent efforts to close
large ICFs/MRs, are
available at
http://www.vor. net/legistati
ve-voice/additional-dd-act-

reauthorization-
resources/summary-of-
family-testimoniais.

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.
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In Arkansas, families successfully intervened and challenged a P&A
legal attempt to make admissions to state ICFs/MR more onerous
for families by requiring court hearings for all admissions and
annual court hearings to consider whether state-center residents
should be discharged. This proposed process would have
undermined the role of families and guardians, an apparent P&A
objective in this case.

In Pennsylvania, families of state operated facilities are seeking to
intervene in a lawsuit filed by P&A that alleges all facility residents
can and should be served in community settings. Families object to
the lawsuits allegations and objectives and are seeking to intervene.

In Pennsylvania, families of Western Center residents filed a
lawsuit following the center's closure due to a P&A lawsuit. In
addition to other claims, the families challenged the manner in
which the center was closed — families were separated from their
relatives by 20-30 state police as the remaining 49 residents were
loaded into vans and transported to places unknown to them or
their families. About a month after this incident, and in response to
30 complaints filed by family members, the Executive Director of
P&A insisted that “the behavior of Office of Mental Retardation and
center staff during those three days was exemplary” (Source: OMR
Planning Advisory Committee Meeting Summary, May 22, 2000).

In Maryland, P&A testified before the state legislature that “No
one should have to live in an institution . . . The model of
warehousing people with developmental disabilities in institutions is
an outdated relic of history” (February 16, 2006). At this same
hearing, family members and guardians testified in support of
facility care for those who need specialized supports.

In Texas, P&A intervened in the Lelsz lawsuit. Families spent over
$500,000 and intervened in the Lelsz lawsuit in attempt to preserve
choice. Following the lawsuit, legislative action led to the closures of
Travis and Fort Worth State Schools in 1995 and 1996

In Utah, in response to a P&A lawsuit settlement, families retained
legal counsel to prevent community placements of their family
members, counter to choice and need. Despite assurances by P&A
that these residents will not move, P&A has renewed its call for the
developmental center’s closure.

Examples of state P&A’s using their federal funds to eliminate the ICF/MR
option, through legal and legislative means, are abundant. The need for
immediate reform is clear.

11
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Robin Sims

President, VOR

582 E. Passaic Ave.
Bloomfield, NJ 07003-4416
973-338-7266 hm
973-893-9671 hm fax
973-517-1126 cell
973-244-0850 work
rsims23@aol.com

Peter Kinzler, Chair
VOR Legislative
Committee
7310 Stafford Rd.
Alexandria, VA 22307
703-660-6415 home
703-660-0799 office ph/fx
pkinzier@cox.net

Larry Innis

VOR DC Representative
529 Bay Dale Court
Arnold, Maryland 21012
410-757-1867 ph/fx
LarryInnis@aol.com

Tamie Hopp, Director

VOR Govt Relations &
Advocacy

P.O. Box 1208

Rapid City, SD 57709

605-399-1624 direct

"You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

IV. REFORM PROPQOSALS FOR THE REAUTHORIZATION OF
THE DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES ASSISTANCE AND BILL

OF RIGHTS ACT

VOR submits the following reform proposals to redress the problems of DD
Act funding recipients not complying with the purposes of the Act, most
specifically with the provisions supporting choice in residential settings and
family decisionmaking.

Reform is needed because the result of DD Act program abuse has often
been the elimination of the public safety net for the nation’s most
vulnerable persons with developmental disabilities: ICFs/MR. The reform
proposals are designed to assure that the purposes of the Act’s mandate to
respect choice in residential settings and family decisionmaking is carried

out.

VOR urges Congress to amend the DD Act as followed:

A. Level fund DD Act program funding to give Congress time to review the
programs and consider reforms.

B. Pass H.R. 1255 to require that federally-funded organizations, including
P&A, notify residents of Medicaid-funded and certified ICFs/MR before a
class action is filed, and provide a time limited opportunity for residents, or
where one has been appointed, their legal guardians, to opt out of the
lawsuit.

C. Secure an HHS audit of how all DD Act programs are working and
whether they are respecting family choice and the Ofmstead Supreme Court
decision, to be submitted to relevant House and Senate committees within

one year.

D. Limit the reauthorization to three years so that the Congress can more
closely monitor the effectiveness of DD Act policy and DD Act program
activity and how HHS is overseeing it.

VOR also calls on Congress to require that CMS conduct a study of whether states
are offering people freedom of choice between an ICF/MR and Home and
Community Based Services (HCBS) waiver settings, as required by Medicaid law
and regulation (42 U.S.C. §1396n(c)(2)(C), 42 C.F.R. §441.302, and 42 C.F.R.
§441.303(d)).

605-484-8300 cell
605-399-1631 fax
Tamie327@hotmail.com

V. CONCLUSION

Thank you for your thoughtful review and compassionate support of VOR's
concerns and recommendations for changes to the DD Act. Remember,
Americans who can't help themselves because of no fault of their own are
dependent upon the goodwill of Congress.
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ABVOCATES FOR DEVELOPMENTAL CENTER RESIDENTS

LAl U L

THE THINGS WE KNOW

The State of NJ has no law on the books thet orders the ciosure of
any Devsiopmental Center.

There iz no Federal Law that mandates the closure of any
deveicpmental center.

The survey was conducted by Family Representatives from 6 of the 7
Developmental Centers in NJ.

There has been no such survey done by DDD or any other agency in
NJ.

96% of those responding to the survey stated that they wanted their
family memberiward to remain in their current home at the
Developmental Center

The guardians employed by the Bureau of Guardianship Services do
not act as independent representatives of those ciients but make
their recommendations bassd on mandates from DDD.

The Bureau of Guardian Services refused to participate in this study.
The use of state employees as “advocates” are therefore in direct
conflict of interest of the persons receiving ICF/MR services and
their actions should be suspended immediately.

Parants who may have asked for BGE services have done so in many
cases out of fear that when they die their loved one will not be
protected. They are not however in favor of their loved one being
moved out of their placement at thelr Developmental Center,

10. The treatment profesgicnals are being forced to recommend a

community placement against their professional opinions of the
nead for ICF/MR services for their clients.

11. The contracts hetween NJIT (DDP!) and DDD show a pattern of

targeting peopie to move rather than to aliow them their choice.

42.Assembly bill A1873 will deprive the most vulnerable sitizens of MJ

the proper cars and treatment they nsed.

13.Assembiyman Greenwald is not considering the overwhelming

majority of family members who oppose community placemert for
their loved one.

14.Many on the urgent waiting list are giigible for the: ICF/MR services

offerad in the Developmental Centers and are being denied access.

RAKDx



Toli fr Executive Director Dir. of Govt. Relations & Advocacy  Washington, D.C.
' : 8¥P§§§3-4‘()9W'n9 an ajgRixpfEQPY from the New JeggaySigysp Library. Larry Innis
{ ’ 836 S. Arlington Heights Rd, #351 PO Box 1208 529 Bay Dale Court
’ www.vor.net Elk Grove Village, IL 60007 Rapid City, SD 57709 Armold, MD 21012-2312
Speaking Out for People - 605-370-4652 Voice 605-399-1624 Voice 410-751-1VOR Voice/Fax
with Mental Retardation 605-271-0445 Fax 605-399-1631 Fax Larryinnis@aol.com
husoj@sio.midco.net Tamie327 @hotmail.com
April 2010

SUPPORTING COMMON SENSE and LAW:
INDIVIDUALS and FAMILIES AS “PRIMARY DECISIONMAKERS”:

The Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (DD Act) creates and
authorizes appropriations for federal funding of three primary programs: state
Developmental Disabilities Councils (DD Councils), state Protection and Advocacy
(P&A) systems, and state University Centers for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities

(UCEDD).

Among other federal legislative directives, funding for DD Act programs is conditioned
upon adherence to the following policy requirement:

(3) individuals with developmental disabilities and their families are the primary
decisionmakers regarding the services and supports such individuals and their
families receive, including regarding choosing where the individuals live from
available options, and play decision making roles in policies and programs that
affect the lives of such individuals and their families; (42 U.S.C. 15001(c)(3}).

The “primary decisionmaking” policy language was added by then-Health
Subcommittee Chairman Henry Waxman in 1993 after hearing from families of
individuals with profound developmental disabilities. These families expressed concern
about DD Act programs ignoring their need for specialized care for their loved ones
with severe cognitive disabiliies and, worse, actively working to eliminate these
specialized residential programs. The accompanying House Energy and Commerce
Committee Report expanded on the meaning of the primary decisionmaking language
as follows:

“[Tlhe Committee would caution that goals expressed in this Act to promote the
greatest possible integration and independence for some individuals with
developmental disabilities not be read as a Federal policy supporting the closure of
residential institutions. It would be contrary to Federal intent to use the language or
resources of this Act to support such actions, whether in the judicial or legislative
system.” [H.Rpt 103-378 (to accompany H.R. 3505, the Developmental Disabilities
Act Amendments of 1993)].

Despite this clear language in favor of residential choice, some DD Act-funded
programs have engaged in activities that have resulted in the loss of facility-based care
for persons with MR/DD, over the wishes of the residents and their parents and
guardians and to the detriment of many former residents. In its report, VOR's DD Act
Task Force documents over 90 examples from 20 states of DD Act programs’ anti-facility
bias. {see, http://www.vor.net/images/stories/pdf/DDActAbuseReport.doc)

Congressional support for families as primary decisionmakers makes good common
sense. Involved families, many of whom are also court-appointed legal guardians, are
in the best position to make care decisions on behalf of their family members with
profound developmental disabilities. Specialized residential settings — federally licensed,
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Medicaid-funded ICRg{MRiemifgtienrREevigaohe: kesleenimnment for individuals with
significant cognitive, physical, medical and behavior challenges.

Congress will soon consider the reauthorization of the DD Act. When it does, please
STRONGLY SUPPORT individuals and their families as PRIMARY DECISIONMAKERS, as well
as consider other reforms that will put a stop to DD Act activities which ignore this
important policy directive.
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The Need for Inmediate Reforms:
The Reauthorization of the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act

For the first time in ten years, Congress will be considering the reauthorization of programs receiving federal funding under
the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (DD Act).

While the DD Act's policy endorses residential choice and individual decisionmaking, some DD Act programs, through
legislative lobbying, class action lawsuits and other tactics, act to eliminate one of those choices — Medicaid-certified and
funded Intermediate Care Facilities for Persons with Mental Retardation (ICFs/MR). These practices force the transfer of
thousands of individuals from specialized ICFs/MR that are uniquely suited to meet their extreme needs. Protection &
Advocacy (P&A) lawsuits, for example, have been filed without regard to the choices of the people affected and their
families/guardians. The resulting closures of some ICFs/MR have led to higher incidences of abuse, neglect and death of
people with severe and profound developmental disabilities, who also have other debilitating physical, medical and/or
behavioral disabilities. What's more, when P&A (funded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), as
authorized by the DD Act) sues to close an ICF/MR (funded and certified by HHS), the lawsuit could be titled HHS v. HHS
~ an absurd use of federal dollars.

VOR urges Congress to adopt the following reform proposals aimed at assuring that DD Act program recipients carry out
the Act's mandate to respect choice in residential settings and family decisionmaking:

A. Level fund DD Act program funding to give Congress time to review the programs and consider
reforms.

B. Pass H.R. 1255 to require that federally-funded organizations, including P&A, notify residents of
Medicaid-funded and certified ICFs/MR before a class action is filed, and provide a time limited
opportunity for residents, or where one has been appointed, their legal guardians, to opt out of the
lawsuit.

C. Secure an HHS audit of how all DD Act programs are working and whether they are respecting family
choice and the Olmstead Supreme Court decision, to be submitted to relevant House and Senate
committees within one year.

D. Limit the reauthorization to three years so that the Congress can more closely monitor the effectiveness
of DD Act policy and DD Act program activity and how HHS is overseeing it.

VOR also calls on Congress to require that CMS conduct a study of whether states are offering people freedom of choice
between an ICF/MR and Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) waiver settings, as required by Medicaid law and
regulation (42 U.S.C. §1396n(c)(2)(C), 42 C.F.R. §441.302, and 42 C.F.R. §441.303(d)).

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration of
VOR’s DD Act reform proposals.

About VOR: VOR is a national organization advocating for the right of individuals with mental retardation and developmental disabilities and
their families to choose from among a full array of high quality residential and other support options. For more information, please contact Tamie
Hopp, Director of Government Relations and Advocacy at 605-399-1624 (direct); or Tamie327 @hotmail.com.
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May 7, 2010

Senator Loretta Weinberg
Assemblywoman Valerie Vainieri-Huttle
Members of the Senate Health and Human Services Commitiee and

the Assembly Human Services Committee

Dear Senator Weinberg, Assemblywoman Vainieri-Huttle and
Committee Members:

On behalf of the New Jersey Association of Mental Health and
Addiction Agencies (NJAMHAA), I would like to share with you
concerns and recommendations related to A-1673/S-811. However, 1
would like to first announce that our members voted in favor of
making the strategic change in our name to NJAMHAA, which we
believe reinforces our commitment to addressing issues that affect
providers and consumers of treatment and support services to
address mental illnesses, addictions and co-occurring disorders.

In addition, many of our members also serve individuals who have
developmental disabilities, in addition to mental illnesses and/or
addictions. This leads me to the first point I would like to make
regarding A-1673/S-811.

The state must recognize that many individuals with developmental
disabilities also have underlying mental illnesses, as evidenced by
emotional and behavioral symptoms. Therefore, the need for
adequate funding for psychiatric services to address mental health
disorders, as well as developmental disabilities, must not be
overlooked when providing community placements for individuals
who are being discharged from institutions. In addition, as much of
the system is already overburdened with demand, before individuals
are discharged to the community, there must be sufficient access to
services to address this need.

NJAMHAA has always believed that individuals should have the
opportunity to live in the least restrictive, most appropriate
environment that meets both their needs and their preferences.
Therefore, choices must be made available to enable them to live
most successfully in the settings of choice.

Not only is it imperative that each individual be placed in the most
suitable environment, but it is equally crucial that sufficient funding
be provided to ensure adequate, high-quality, treatment and other
support services in these settings. State dollars for these services
must follow the individuals into the community.
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In addition, for those whose families prefer continued stays in
developmental centers, adequate bed space is required — and,
naturally, sufficient funding for these beds and the needed services is

neeessary.

Funding must also include "bridge funds" to cover the simultaneous
costs of continuing to operate the developmental centers while
building up community resources to ensure everyone’s needs can be
met.

Furthermore, to ensure a seamless transition from developmental
centers to the community, the state needs to develop a more realistic
time frame for the closing of institutions. The proposed schedule is
very aggressive, especially considering the state’s limited resources.

Intensive resources and careful planning are essential to ensure that
individuals will receive the services they need, whether they are
moving into the community or staying in an institutional setting.

Thank you very much for your time and consideration regarding this
important matter. If you need additional information, please do not
hesitate to contact me. I can be reached at 609-838-5488, ext. 292, or
dwentz@njamha.org.

Sincerely,

b Wit

Debra L. Wentz, Ph.D.
Chief Executive Officer

New Jersey Association of Mental Health Agencies; inc.

The Neuman Building | 3575 Quakerbridge Road, Suite 102 | Mercerville, N 08619

[p] 609.838.5488 | [f] 609.838.5489 | www.njamha.org
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